Wiltshire Council

~——">_ Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: Cabinet

Place: Council Chamber - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN

Date: Tuesday 3 July 2018

Time: 9.30 am - please note that the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations

item (no. 8) will not start until 10:30am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Will Oulton, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713935 or email
william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115.

All public reports referred to on this agenda are available on the Council’'s website at
www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:

Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE Leader of Council

Clir John Thomson Deputy Leader, and Cabinet Member for
Communications, Communities, Leisure and
Libraries

Cllr Pauline Church Cabinet Member for Economic Development
and Salisbury Recovery

Cllr Richard Clewer Cabinet Member for Housing, Corporate
Services, Arts, Heritage and Tourismm

Cllr Laura Mayes Cabinet Member for Children, Education and
Skills

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Spatial Planning,
Development Management and Property

ClIr Bridget Wayman Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and
Waste

ClIr Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Finance, Procurement,
ICT and Operational Assets

Clir Jerry Wickham Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Public

Health and Public Protection

Page 1



Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’'s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability
resulting from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings
they accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
questions and statements for this meeting.

The full constitution can be found at this link. Cabinet Procedure rules are found at Part
6.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 2


http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mglocationdetails.aspx?bcr=1
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1392&MId=10753&Ver=4

Part |
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Key Decisions Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council's
Forward Work Plan are shown as O™

Apologies

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 7 - 20)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 12 June 2018,
previously circulated.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Leader's announcements

Public participation and Questions from Councillors

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. This meeting is open
to the public, who may ask a question or make a statement. Questions may also be
asked by members of the Council. Written notice of questions or statements should be
given to Will Oulton Democratic Services by 12.00 noon on Wednesday 27 June. Anyone
wishing to ask a question or make a statement should contact the officer named above.

Emergency Stopping Places Strategy (Pages 21 - 46)

O—= Report by Alistair Cunningham, Corporate Director

Site Disposal (Pages 47 - 100)

O== Report by Alistair Cunningham, Corporate Director

Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document -
Proposed Submission Materials (Pages 101 - 330)

O== Report by Alistair Cunningham, Corporate Director

Please that we will not start this item until 10:30am.

Page 3



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (Pages 331 - 356)

Report by Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director

Annual Governance Statement (Pages 357 - 380)

Report by Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director

Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q4 2017/18 (Pages 381
- 398)

Report by Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director

Families & Children's Services Social Work Capacity **Not yet available**
(Pages 399 - 408)

O-== Report by Terence Herbert, Corporate Director

Wiltshire Council Adoption Service: 2017-18 Year End Report (Pages 409 -
432)

Report by Terence Herbert, Corporate Director
Proposed Changes to the Senior Management Structure (Pages 433 - 442)

Report by Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, the Leader of Council

Wiltshire Council's Housing Board Annual Report (Pages 443 - 462)

Report by Alistair Cunningham, Corporate Director

Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service (Pages 463 - 472)

O== Report by Alistair Cunningham, Corporate Director

Urgent Items
Any other items of business, which the Leader agrees to consider as a matter of
urgency.

Part Il

Items during consideration of which it is recommended that the public
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt

Page 4



information would be disclosed

18 Exclusion of the Press and Public

This is to give further notice in accordance with paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following
item in private.

To consider passing the following resolution:

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in Iltem
Number 19 because it is likely that if members of the public were present there
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of
Part | of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the
public.

Reason for taking item in private:

Paragraph 3 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

19 Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service (Part ii) (Pages 473 - 478)

The information contained in the appendix has been made exempt from
publication as it contains sensitive contract information, and sensitive staff
information.

Our vision is to create stronger and more resilient communities. Our priorities are: To protect
those who are most vulnerable; to boost the local economy - creating and safeguarding jobs;
and to support and empower communities to do more themselves.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltsrire Council

~————_ Where everybody matters

CABINET

MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 12 JUNE 2018 AT ALAMEIN
SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, SALISBURY, SP2 7TU.

Present:

Cllr John Thomson (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Pauline Church, ClIr Richard Clewer,

Cllr Laura Mayes, ClIr Toby Sturgis, ClIr Bridget Wayman, ClIr Philip Whitehead and
Clir Jerry Wickham

Also Present:

Clir Ben Anderson, CliIr lan Blair-Pilling, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Mary Douglas, Clir

Darren Henry, ClIr Alan Hill, Clir Ruth Hopkinson, Clir Jon Hubbard, CllIr Brian
Mathew, Clir Jonathon Seed, Clir lan Thorn, ClIr Philip Whalley and Clir Robert Yuill

236 Apologies
Apologies were received from Baroness Scott

237 Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2018 were presented.
Resolved

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held
on 15 May 2018

238 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
239 Leader's announcements
The Deputy Leader made the following announcements:
Royal Visit to Salisbury
The Deputy Leader stated that he was delighted to be holding our cabinet

meeting in Salisbury today, as this marked 100 days since the incident on 4
March.

Page 7



Noting that the recovery work that is well underway had involved major resource
and effort from both local and national agencies, he stated that the clean-up
process was well under way, with sites being handed back and returning to
normal use, including The Maltings reopening which was key milestone in the
recovery process.

As well as the support to almost forty businesses, the council had supported the
OVO Energy Cycle Race to help boost the local economy and showcase
Salisbury nationally and internationally through extensive positive media
coverage.

The Deputy Leader also welcomed the announcement that their Royal
Highnesses The Prince of Wales and The Duchess of Cornwall would be
visiting the city on Friday, 22 June to support the recovery programme.

Health and Social Care Integration

At the invitation of the Deputy Leader, Councillor Jerry Wickham stated that the
70th anniversary of the NHS is being widely publicised and will include the
publication of a Government green paper in July to coincide with this
anniversary with a likely focus on collaborative working to integrate health and
social care services will continue.

It was also anticipated that the green paper would provide clarity on the future
direction for NHS commissioning; particularly commissioning by CCGs of health
services. On the basis of the anticipated change, Wiltshire Council and CCG
had discussed and agreed that it would be sensible to reconsider the
appointment of a joint accountable officer.

He also stated that the integrate health and care services remains a priority for
the council, expressed disappointment that the council and CCG cannot
proceed, as planned, with a senior joint accountable officer post. He confirmed,
however, that the council would continue to look at an alternative joint post with
Wiltshire CCG so that they could build on what had already achieved in
integrating services for the benefit of Wiltshire residents.

Urgent Item

In accordance with the Special Urgency provision as set out in the Constitution,
and with the consent of the Chairman of Council, | agree to take the item
regarding Southview Park Council House Building for the following reason:

That contractors are currently onsite and are close to completing phase one.
Allowing them to ramp down and leave site will create a serious time and cost
risk to the development of phase two. By taking the decision today we mitigate
against the risk of that increase cost and potential delay.

Page 8



240

241

Public participation and Questions from Councillors

Colin Gale made a statement, appended to these minutes, regarding the
Everleigh Recycling Centre on behalf of Pewsey Community Area Partnership
(PCAP), Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) and Pewsey Parish
Council (PPC),

The Deputy Leader stated that he would ask for any outstanding response to
issues raised by given, and that would ask the Monitoring Officer to arrange a
response to the issue of the legality of the consultation.

Draft Statement of Accounts and Revenue Outturn 2017/2018

Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which advised Cabinet of the
(unaudited) General Revenue Fund and Housing Revenue Account outturn
positions for financial year 2017/18, as well as the position for the Collection
Fund and Reserves; and provided Cabinet with oversight of the unaudited
Statement of Accounts, including the narrative report.

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:
that the council had ended the year with a budget surplus which would transfer
to reserves; that there was an underspend of under £1m on Housing Revenue
Account; that the £144m capital programme was underspent by £30m; the
highlighted major changes to the budgets and the reasons for those including
changes in income and spending assumptions.

Clir lan Thorn, Chairman Financial Planning Task Group thanked lan Duncan
and Councillor Whitehead for meeting with the task group and stated that he
was encouraged that the Council had ended the year with an underspend, and
agreed that the underspend on capital funding should be addressed.

Resolved
To note:

a) the outturn for the General Revenue Fund and HRA, subject to
external audit, of a General Fund underspend of £0.410 million and
an HRA underspend of £0.951 million and planned draw from
reserve of £6.762 million. This gives an overall draw from HRA
reserves of £5.811 million.

b) the transfers to the General Revenue Fund and Earmarked reserves,
as set out in Sections 38-43 of the report, and return to HRA
reserves.

c) the unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2017/18.

To approve:

Page 9



242

d) The position of the 2017/18 capital programme at Outturn (31 March
2018) including highlighted budget changes.

Reason for Decision:

As part of its role in ensuring sound financial management and financial
soundness, Cabinet are required to assess and note the final revenue outturns
for 2017/18 and assess any impact on the longer term financial standing of the
Council.

Annual Reports on Treasury Management 2017/2018

Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which provided the annual
review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the
treasury strategy.

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:
how the borrowing and investments were managed over the course of the year;
the changes proposed to the strategy which would require the agreement of Full
Council; the revenue benefits arising from investment decisions; that the council
will prioritise using its own cash for investment rather than requiring borrowing;
how risks will be identified for future individual investment decisions; and that
the council would normally look to invest over the longest appropriate period.

Resolved

a) To note that the contents of this report are in line with the Treasury
Management Strategy 2017/18.

Recommend to Full Council

b) To approve an amendment to the Treasury Management Strategy
2018/19, to include a new class of alternative investments to the
available list of non-specified investments (as outlined in report).

c) To approve an amendment to the Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy 2017/18, to allow for an alternative method of calculation,
where appropriate (as outlined in report).

Reason for Decision

To give members an opportunity to consider the performance of the Council
against the parameters set out in the approved Treasury Management Strategy
for 2017/18.

To agree to a revision to the Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 and the

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 2017/18 in order to continue to comply with
statutory guidance and reflect best practice.

Page 10



243

Delivery of the Digital Strategy - Outline Business Case

Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which: informed Cabinet of the
Microsoft Cloud Navigator Programme and its Outcome; sought approval to
delegate the Council to award a call-off contract from the G-Cloud 9 Framework
subject to the positive review of the full business case; and requested that
Cabinet delegate the decision to enter into the contractual agreement and
approve capital expenditure to the Corporate Director for Communities,
Resources and Digital after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance,
Procurement, ICT. In making his presentation, Councillor Whitehead
commended the hard work of the team to bring the proposals together.

Matters highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:
the proposals were part of the first stage in the delivery of the wider digital
strategy; that the savings that have been identified but more information would
be required to allow the delegated decision to be taken; the scope and impact of
the proposals; the opportunities to expand on app based services, the
development of the website and the opportunities for using automation; that the
chair of the Chairman Digital Strategy Task Group was on the digital board; how
savings may be realised; the particular support for vulnerable groups including
looked after children and those leaving the armed services.

Councillor Jon Hubbard, Chairman Digital Strategy Task Group, asked the
Council to be mindful that the aspirations should be realistic. He also stated that
he recognised that change was required.

In response to a series of questions raised by Councillor Hubbard, Councillor
Whitehead stated: that some of the investment identified would have been
required simply to maintain the current system; that the service agreements
would be required to ensure that savings would be achieved and accountability
was clear; that feedback on progress made would be received as the
programme achieves different milestones were reached; that it was recognised
that there was a need to get right staff recruited and that he did not want to
progress the project at too quick a pace without the appropriate resource; that
Microsoft had been picked as reputable partner with a good track record in
delivering projects in support of the vulnerable.

In response to further questions at the meeting, Councillor Whitehead
confirmed: that Microsoft had been selected following a procurement process;
that business cases would be submitted for individual projects; that partners
such as the Police would benefit from some of the additional security features
but that further benefits from the programme would have to be discussed.

In moving his recommendation, Councillor Whitehead stated that an additional
resolution should be added requesting that a presentation be made to Cabinet,
at a future meeting, at least within 12 months of the commencement of the
project, on the actual savings achieved in each service area and relate these
back to the current forecast savings.

Resolved

Page 11



244

)] To note the progress of the Microsoft Cloud Navigator Programme.
i) To agree in-principle to embark on the Cloud Navigator Programme.

iii)  To agree to award a call-off contract from the G-Cloud 9 framework
arrangements to Microsoft and Thoughtonomy.

iv) Based on the completion of the full business case and in line with
the funding recommendations made in paragraph 54, to delegate
the decision to enter into the contractual agreement and approve
capital expenditure to the Corporate Director for Communities,
Resources and Digital after consultation with the Cabinet Member
for Finance, Procurement, ICT and Operational Assets, Corporate
Director for Growth, Investment and Place, Corporate Director for
Children and Education and the Director of Finance and
Procurement.

V) To agree that the Corporate Director for Communities, Resources
and Digital is nominated as the Contracting Council’s
Representative for the purposes of the Contract.

vi)  That a presentation be made to Cabinet, at a future meeting, at least
within 12 months of the commencement of the project, on the actual
savings achieved in each service area and relate these back to the
current forecast savings.

Reason for Decision:

The Council’s digital strategy must be delivered and the associated
improvement to customer digital service access and savings made. The
Microsoft Cloud Navigator proposal provides an integrated solution to deliver a
series of initiatives delivered as a coherent programme. This will provide both
the digital tools and skills to ensure Wiltshire Council continues to utilise digital
technology to save money, provide an improved service to our customers and
meet their digital expectations of our customers, staff and partners as per the
council’s vision for the future.

Outdoor Education Update
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which asked Cabinet to
consider the next steps for outdoor education centres following the receipt of

expressions of interest in the sites operation.

Mr John Hawkins, Chairman Outdoor Education Task Group, stated that he was
pleased to note the Council motion and the support to find a solution.

In response to questions raised by Mr Hawkins, Councillor Whitehead stated
that press releases had been published to encourage the centre’s usage; that

Page 12



245

the updated condition survey could be considered as part of the preplanning
process

In response to questions raised by Councillor Hubbard, Councillor Whitehead
that he recognised the need to consider social value as part of the legal
requirements to meet best value; that he did not agree that a further extension
of the period when the Council was running them.

In response to questions raised by Councillor Thorn, Councillor Whitehead that
it was important to establish the open market value of properties to enable the
council to assess properly how best value can be achieved.

Resolved

i To commence a market testing process to consider options for the
future operation of the outdoor education sites;

ii. To delegate to the Director for Children’s Services, in consultation
with the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and Finance, the
delivery of the market testing process;

iii. To extend the operation of both Braeside and Oxenwood outdoor
education sites until 31 December 2018.

iv. To extend the period of consultation with outdoor education staff in
line with the Councils HR Policies.

Reason for Decision:

1) Following the Council’s review of the two outdoor education sites, Braeside
and Oxenwood and the Cabinet’s decision to close both sites, interested
parties have come forward with a variety of proposals for the continuation of
outdoor education in Wiltshire.

2) This report considers these expressions of interest and how best to
progress the review of outdoor education. This provides new information for
Cabinet to consider.

Approval to Dispose of the Freehold Interest

Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which asked Cabinet to
consider the next steps for outdoor education centres following the receipt of
expressions of interest in the sites operation.

Mr John Hawkins, Chairman Outdoor Education Task Group, stated that he was
pleased to note the Council motion and the support to find a solution.

In response to questions raised by Mr Hawkins, Councillor Whitehead stated
that press releases had been published to encourage the centre’s usage; that

Page 13



246

the updated condition survey could be considered as part of the preplanning
process

In response to questions raised by Councillor Hubbard, Councillor Whitehead
that he recognised the need to consider social value as part of the legal
requirements to meet best value; that he did not agree that a further extension
of the period when the Council was running them.

In response to questions raised by Councillor Thorn, Councillor Whitehead that
it was important to establish the open market value of properties to enable the
council to assess properly how best value can be achieved.

Resolved

i To commence a market testing process to consider options for the
future operation of the outdoor education sites;

ii. To delegate to the Director for Children’s Services, in consultation
with the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and Finance, the
delivery of the market testing process;

iii. To extend the operation of both Braeside and Oxenwood outdoor
education sites until 31 December 2018.

iv. To extend the period of consultation with outdoor education staff in
line with the Councils HR Policies.

Reason for Decision:

1) Following the Council’s review of the two outdoor education sites, Braeside
and Oxenwood and the Cabinet’s decision to close both sites, interested
parties have come forward with a variety of proposals for the continuation of
outdoor education in Wiltshire.

2) This report considers these expressions of interest and how best to
progress the review of outdoor education. This provides new information for
Cabinet to consider.

Future of Wiltshire Council's Freehold Assets in Rudloe

Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which outlined the options to
Cabinet so that they might make a decision on whether to declare the freehold
interest of the Council’s land holding in Rudloe for disposal either selectively or
as a whole, and to confirm a preferred option for disposal. In moving his
recommendations, Councillor Sturgis suggested that resolution two be
amended to specify that the community’s requirements be considered.

Representations were received from the following at the meeting:

Page 14



Councillor Ben Anderson, the local division member, stated that he was aware
of the concerns of those in the area, and hoped that development in the area
would address some of these concerns sensitively, with particular reference to
parking, community space and parks/green spaces.

Councillor Brian Matthew, from a neighbouring local division, asked that the
potential community benefit arising from commercial development be
considered.

Phil Bowley, from GreenSquare, expressed his organisations desire to work
with community groups to see how best their requirements can be met by the
development.

Paul Turner expressed concern that the development would not meet the needs
of the community and stressed the importance of community facilities.

Francis Tristam, owner of the Camomile Café, outlined her alternative proposals
for site.

Councillor Ruth Hopkinson, from a neighbouring local division, stated that she
recognised the problems with the existing community centre building, but
emphasised the need to improve facilities for the community.

Councillor Philip Whalley, from a neighbouring local division, stated that there
was need for more social housing and that he hoped the needs of the
community would be addressed by the development.

In response to the issues raised, and with the support expressed from
colleagues in the Cabinet, Councillor Sturgis stated that he would work with
GreenSquare, with whom the Council had a good working relationship, to
investigate what funding was available to address the community’s needs.

Resolved

1. To declare the Council’s freehold land and property holding in Rudloe
(See Annex 1 — Plan) as surplus and for disposal either in its entirety
or selectively. If a disposal of part only of the site transpires as the
outcome, elements of the site would remain in Council ownership.

2. To support the recommendation on the preferred option to engage in
negotiations with GreenSquare, to include consideration of
community requirements, with a view to a transfer to GreenSquare of
the Council’s freehold interest required for their regeneration scheme
within an agreed timescale, potentially at an under-value and on terms
to be agreed.

3. To confirm disposal of part or the whole of the Council’s freehold land

and property in Rudloe on the open market if negotiations are
unsuccessful with GreenSquare.

Page 15



247

248

Reason for Decision:

To confirm the freehold interests of the Council’s assets in Rudloe can be sold,
with the primary aim to increase affordable housing provision in Rudloe through
partnership working with GreenSquare to enable their proposed regeneration
scheme.

Urgent Items

Councillor Richard Clewer presented the item which sought approval to build 22
new council homes across two parcels of land at Southview Park, Trowbridge with
capital funding and land set aside for the delivery of affordable housing.

Resolved
a) To usetheland in Appendix 1 for affordable housing

b) To carry out any appropriations necessary pursuant to s122 LGA 1972 to
ensure that the sites in a) are held by the Council for housing purposes

c) To use atotal budget of £4m with delegated authority to substitute and
change funding streams to optimise financing. Funding streams may be
increased or decreased as required providing that they stay within
available allocation and do not affect the total budget position.

d) To enter into contracts for consultants, construction and other elements
of the project to enable the delivery of 22 new homes within the total
scheme costs identified in Appendix 1 in accordance with the Corporate
Procurement & Commissioning Board approach.

e) To enter into funding agreements with Homes England as required to
secure any grant funding allocated.

Reason for Decision

The Council has capital funding set aside within the Council’s capital budget for
investment in affordable housing. The Council also has land at Southview Park,
Trowbridge that was transferred to the Council for the delivery of new affordable
homes. This creates an opportunity to use the available funding to deliver 22 new
affordable council owned and managed homes in Trowbridge to meet identified
housing needs.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The Cabinet resolved not to exclude the press and public as there was not a

need to discuss the information contained in the following appendix exempt
from publication.

Page 16



249 Future of Wiltshire Council's Freehold Assets in Rudloe (Part Il)

The meeting noted the information contained in the exempt report when making
their decision.

(Duration of meeting: 9.30 - 11.58 am)

These decisions were published on the 15 June 2018 and will come into force on 25
June 2018.

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton of Democratic Services,
direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Minute Item 240

Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

12 June 2018

Colin Gale

To Councillor Bridget Wayman, Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and

Waste

Pewsey Community Area Partnership (PCAP), Campaign to Protect Rural
England (CPRE) and Pewsey Parish Council (PPC) Statement to Wiltshire
Council Cabinet, 12 June 2018, on the status of Everleigh HRC

PCAP submitted questions on Everleigh Household Recycling Centre to the
Pewsey Area Board on 5" March 2018. The Director for Waste did not answer
the questions as part of her presentation at the Area Board and has still not
provided a formal response to the questions which were submitted prior to the
meeting.

PCAP/CPRE/PPC submitted further questions to the WC Cabinet meeting
held on 27" March. It was agreed by Cabinet at the direction of Baroness
Scott that the continuous to-ing and fro-ing was not progressing the situation
and not satisfying either parties. It was agreed that a meeting would be held
with the Cabinet Member to resolve the status. Questions would be submitted
prior to this meeting to aid the discussions. The area WC Councillors
requested that they also attend.

The meeting with PCAP and CPRE was held on 2" May. A history of events
covering the period since September 2015 was provided in advance along
with a set of questions. This information was also provided to all the area WC
Councillors. The questions and draft responses were discussed. The following
is a snapshot of some of the status advised:

o The drainage system that was installed at Everleigh in 1996 was not
installed in accordance with the original design.

o There has been no maintenance carried out at Everleigh since 1996
and as a consequence the shortfall in drainage was not discovered
until the recent surveys were conducted as part of the changeover of
contractors in 2017.

o The original Environmental Agency permit covered a much reduced set
of recyclable items. As a consequence the installed drainage system
would have been adequate. The level of recycling has grown which at
the time of contract transfer has highlighted the potential risk and has

Page 19



resulted in a reduced range of recycling being made available at the
Everleigh HRC.

o The original contract with Hills was written at a much higher level than
contracts now issued by WC. However, under the Hills contract there
may be some liability for Hills to pay for some of the recovery of the site
but the majority of the liability would fall to WC.

e PCAP/CPRE/PPC have still not received a formal response to the questions
submitted for this meeting.

e The area WC Councillors held a separate meeting with the Cabinet Member
on 10" May. No feedback on this meeting has been provided, however, at the
Pewsey Area Board on 215t May the Councillors in response to a similar
statement being made did confirm the meeting did take place but stated that
they were unable to provide details of the meeting due to confidentiality.

e PCAP/CPRE/PPC have, and will continue to provide full support to try and
progress the Everleigh issue but at present the action is firmly with Wiltshire
Council to provide formal responses to the questions raised.

Since the submission of this statement responses have been received on 7" June
which the organisations are reviewing. A further meeting has been offered by the
Director of Waste to discuss the responses. It is probable that further discussion will
be requested.

Yesterday we were also notified that a consultation on the proposed closure of
Everleigh HRC had been posted on the WC website. This was surprising when
discussions were still ongoing on the status and issues over Everleigh. | have
reviewed the consultation document and support document and my initial belief is
the consultation as presented is unlawful based on the criteria laid down by the
Supreme Court. | believe a number of the 6 criteria stipulated by the Supreme Court
have been breached. We will advise accordingly in due course.

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 6

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Gypsy and Travellers
Emergency Stopping Places Strategy

Cabinet Member: Councillor Toby Sturgis - Planning and Strategic Asset
Management

Key Decision:  Yes

Executive Summary

National planning policy requires local planning authorities to identify, and
ensure the delivery of, sites to meet the permanent and transit accommodation
requirements for travellers. Planning for permanent accommodation needs will
be addressed through the Local Plan Review. There is currently no transit
provision operating in Wiltshire, as the Council’s only transit site located at
Odstock in the south of the County it is currently closed.

There is a continuing problem of unauthorised encampments and lack of basic
temporary accommodation for travellers passing through the county. Cabinet
have previously agreed that an Emergency Stopping Places Strategy should be
developed to manage unauthorised encampments, consistent with the approved
Wiltshire Traveller Strategy. Such a network can allow for more effective
management of unauthorised encampments and provide opportunities for short-
term, safe stay for travellers.

This report seeks approval for an Emergency Stopping Places Strategy and the
development of the network of sites using land in the Council’'s ownership. A
report will be brought to Cabinet Autumn 2018, with proposals to bring forward
sites.

> Page 21



Proposals
That Cabinet:

(i)  Approves the Wiltshire Emergency Stopping Places Strategy for Gypsy
and Travellers set out at Appendix 1; and

(i)  Agrees that the Director for Economic Development and Planning, in
consultation with the Director for Finance and Cabinet Members for
‘Planning and Strategic Asset Management’ and ‘Finance’, prepare a
subsequent report for Cabinet’s consideration regarding the
implementation of the Strategy including site proposals and assessments
of delivery and maintenance costs.

Reason for Proposal(s)

Wiltshire Council currently has no operational transit site. Dealing with
unauthorised encampments is a continuing issue for Wiltshire Council Highways
Enforcement and Wiltshire and Swindon Police. Establishing a network of
Emergency Stopping Places will enable unauthorised encampments to be dealt
with more effectively, enable large groups of Travellers to be dispersed and fulfil
the Council’s statutory duties to provide for the transit accommodation needs of
Gypsies and Travellers.

Alistair Cunningham
Corporate Director

> Page 22




Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Gypsy and Travellers
Emergency Stopping Places Strategy (Part | and Part Il
Report)

Cabinet Member: Councillor Toby Sturgis - Planning and Strategic Asset
Management

Key Decision:  Yes

Purpose of Report

1. To seek approval for, and agreement to, implement an Emergency
Stopping Places (ESP) Strategy for Gypsies and Travellers.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2. The Business Plan 2017-2027 ‘Forward Thinking’ seeks to create strong
communities in Wiltshire. Priorities in relation to stronger communities and
protecting the vulnerable recognise the importance of early intervention
and action. Agreeing the ESP Strategy and delivering sites for transit
traveller accommodation responds to these challenges by providing a safe
stopping place for young families and potentially vulnerable adults, and
removing potential for conflict between the settled and travelling
communities.

Background

3. In September 2017, Cabinet approved the Council’'s Local Development
Scheme (LDS) 2017. As part of this, Cabinet agreed that a standalone
Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document would no longer be
pursued and planning for the permanent accommodation needs of
travellers would be subsumed into the Local Plan review.

4. It was also agreed that a strategy for emergency stopping places would be
developed to manage unauthorised encampments, consistent with the
approved Wiltshire Traveller Strategy.

5. Dealing with unauthorised encampments is a continuing issue for Wiltshire
Council Highways Enforcement and Wiltshire and Swindon Police. Where
they occur, encampments can be a nuisance to landowners and the
public.

6. Delivering and maintaining a network of emergency stopping sites would

complement the review of Council owned gypsy and traveller sites
considered by Cabinet under a separate agenda item; including providing

> Page 23



10.

11.

alternative provision to the Odstock transit site to enable investment in the
adjoining permanent site at Oak Tree Field.

Main Considerations for the Council

Attached at Appendix 1 is a draft Emergency Stopping Places (ESP)
Strategy for Gypsy and Travellers which sets out the Council’s role in
meeting the transit accommodation needs of Travellers; clarifies the need
for transit accommodation in Wiltshire and proposed location of ESP; the
methodology for identifying sites; and considers how the strategy could be
implemented. Each section of the Strategy reports on the main
considerations for the Council, and are summarised below.

Policy requirements (Section 3, Appendix 1)

Local planning authorities are required by national planning policy
enshrined in Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS)! to prepare and
maintain an up to date understanding of the likely permanent and transit
accommodation needs of their areas. In seeking to fulfil this duty the
Council undertook a Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs
Assessment in 2014 (GTAA). This concluded that:

“The evidence also shows that as transit provision is required in a number
of areas and suggests that a single transit site would not meet this need
and would result in ongoing problems with encampments elsewhere in
Wiltshire. We would therefore recommend that the Council seek to provide
a number of shorter-term stopping places at locations across Wiltshire.”
(paragraph 7.5, GTAA)

The Wiltshire Traveller Strategy was adopted in 2010 and refreshed in
2016. The refreshed document was approved by Environment Select
Committee on 13 September 2016. Action 2 relates to unauthorised
encampments.

Unauthorised encampments (Section 4 and Appendix A in Appendix 1)

The Council’s only transit site is currently closed pending a decision on its
future. The Council and Police cannot currently move travellers from
unauthorised encampments onto a dedicated site within the local authority
boundary. Stakeholders on the Traveller Reference Group have confirmed
that this reduces the ability to deal with encampments effectively within the
powers of the Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994.

The ongoing occurrence of unauthorised encampments has implications
for the Council in terms of:

e Clean up costs when public spaces and roads are used and then
abandoned by the traveller community.

1 DCLG (2015)

Page 24



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

¢ Reputational costs when public spaces are not available to the public
or through nuisance complaints not quickly dealt with.

Emergency Stopping Places Site Requirements (Section 7, Appendix 1)

There is currently no guidance available on requirements for emergency
stopping places. Practice from elsewhere suggests that emergency
stopping sites can be relatively basic compared to a fully developed transit
site. They should not be designed to encourage long stay beyond a period
of 28 days. The ESP Strategy proposes that several small sites of 4-6
pitches would be better for managing larger groups, as opposed to a
single large site.

The ESP Strategy proposes that once created, sites should only be
available through the main travelling season from April to November and
even then, only available when required. This will reinforce their temporary
nature and reduce overall costs.

The site selection methodology for identifying sites reflects the expectation
that the sites will cater for short term needs only. Table 1 in Appendix 1
sets out the criteria for site assessment covering:

Policy and environmental constraints

Site size

Safe and convenient access to the road network

Impact on the strategic road/highway network

Vehicular access

The site causes minimum disruption to surrounding communities
Land quality

Health and safety

Deliverability

TST@Tmoao0oTw

The criteria have been derived from Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policy
47 which applies to both permanent and transit sites and develops the
approach first discussed at Cabinet Capital Assets Committee on 20 May
2014 in relation to permanent Traveller accommodation.

Suitable sites on Council owned land will be identified using this
methodology and the approach set out in the ESP. A report will be brought
to Cabinet Autumn 2018, with proposals to bring forward sites. This will
consider suitable sites on Council owned land, as well as land in other
public sector ownership as appropriate.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

Overview and scrutiny engagement has taken place in relation to
monitoring the progress of the former Gypsy and Traveller Development
Plan Document. The Environment Select Committee received reports on
its progress in June 2016 and February 2017.

Progress in relation to the Wiltshire Traveller Strategy was last considered
by the Environment Select Committee on 19 September 2017.

Page 25



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

At the request of the Chairman and in consultation with the Vice-
Chairman, the Environment Select Committee (ESC) will be receiving
information on this Cabinet report at its 26 June 2018 meeting

Safeguarding Implications

There are no safeguarding implications arising immediately from the
proposal. However, once the network of emergency stopping places is in
place the sites may be occupied temporarily by families with young
children or vulnerable adults.

Public Health Implications

Optimal health and wellbeing is supported by planning for sustainable
development to meet the employment, housing and infrastructure needs of
communities. Well planned developments, including appropriate
infrastructure, supports the health and wellbeing of local communities, for
example through the provision of green infrastructure and infrastructure to
encourage walking and cycling as means of travel. The provision of short-
term safe stopping places could allow travellers (if required) to be able to
stop to access local healthcare services.

Procurement Implications

The ESP Strategy is a process document and therefore has no direct
procurement implications. However, in agreeing to take forward sites to
be developed as ESP there may be implications in relation to maintaining
the safety and security of the sites while they are occupied; services which
may need to be procured.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

The ESP Strategy has been developed through the Traveller Reference
Group which brings together multiple departments within the Council with
the aim to create resilient communities. The ESP Strategy is geared to
improve the availability of stopping places. A network of emergency
stopping sites is considered to be more effective in managing
unauthorised encampments and improving the conditions for short-term
stay for travellers by providing dedicated sites.

The Council must consider its duties under the Equality Act 2010 in taking
the recommended decisions. Officers do not consider that the decisions or
their implications will prejudice any particular group or groups of people
defined by a protected characteristic. The Traveller Reference Group is
committed to promoting equality and diversity and ensuring that everyone
is treated fairly taking into account their individual needs and
circumstances. The ESPs will improve the range of facilities available to
gypsies and travellers, mitigate the impacts of enforcement action against
them in other locations and reduce the risk of harm being caused to others
in the community in consequence of the use of unsuitable stopping places.
The provision of a safe managed environment, together with the services

Page 26



25.

26.

27.

28.

that can be made available to users of the ESPs, will help to address the
education and health and other particular needs of those staying on the
ESPs Compatibility with the Human Rights Act 1998. The provision of
ESPs ensures a balanced and equitable approach to ensure that duties
are fulfilled appropriately in line with the Human Rights Act 1998.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

At the next stage, in considering candidate sites specialist officers will be
consulted to ensure that environmental or climate change impacts can be
minimised. There are no further environmental and climate change
considerations arising from the proposal at this stage.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

The principal risk is that there will continue to be incidents of unauthorised
encampments which cannot be dealt with effectively given the absence of
transit accommodation in the County to direct groups to an alternative site.
Another risk may be further costs to the council of officer time, site visits
and legal intervention with unauthorised encampments. The introduction
of a network of ESP will not remove the problem of unauthorised
encampments but it would help manage their impact by enabling the
police to utilise their powers to move unauthorised encampments
(providing there was adequate space) reducing their occurrence,
minimising costs and improving community relations. There is a potential
for challenge from third parties if the Council does not make provision to
meet identified need.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions
that will be taken to manage these risks

There is a risk that as awareness of new transit provision becomes known
within the Gypsy and Traveller community it will attract more Travellers to
the County. In reality, many Travellers follow a similar, traditional route
each year. Making the network of ESP available for only part of the year
and only when required should help mitigate against this possibility. Also,
Dorset County Council’s experience is that the number of encampments
decreased since their stopping site at Piddlehinton opened several years
ago.

Communities may be concerned about the nature and use of emergency
stopping places. This would be mitigated by working with the Council’s
Communications Team to enable effective communication and
engagement throughout the planning and implementation process.
Consultation with gypsies and travellers will be undertaken as part of
strategy implementation.

Page 27



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Financial Implications

To implement the ESP Strategy, as set out in its Section 7, costs will be
incurred in relation to:

e developing a site (planning, on site works)
e maintaining a site (clean-up costs, basic facilities while site is
occupied, potential security)

Site acquisition is currently not identified as a cost as the focus is likely to
be on land already within the Council ownership. Delivering ESPs on
Council owned site rather than purchasing or leasing a private market site
will reduce the cost to the Council. There may be the option to consider
land owned by the MoD or other public sector partners.

The assessment of site delivery and maintenance costs should include
consideration of whether capital received from the proposed sale of the
Council’s Traveller sites at Oak Tree Fields and Dairy House Bridge can
be used to invest in the ESPs in order to ensure there is sufficient transit
provision in the County to meet needs in locations that are suitable for this
purpose.

It would be possible to recoup some of these costs by charging travellers
when occupying the site. When the transit site was last open, the Council
charged travellers £20 pound per week plus electricity (on a card meter).
Dorset CC charges more for the use of their site (a recent and relatively
local example of providing ESPs). Some councils also ask for an initial
bond as well before the traveller can move on to the site for example
£200. Consideration will need to be given to what would be an appropriate
charge once further details on individual set up cost are known.

It is envisaged that a cross-service departmental group would be formed
to ensure effective Strategy implementation and management. Officers
within Spatial Planning, Properties, Legal Services, Finance, Highway
Enforcement and Gypsy and Traveller Liaison would be involved.

Legal Implications

Through the development and implementation of the Emergency Stopping
Places Strategy the Council fulfils its stated intention in the 2017 Local
Development Scheme report. This will further inform the Local Plan review
and contribute to planning for gypsies and travellers consistent with

national policy.

Other legal implications are detailed in the body of the report.

Page 28



36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Options Considered

The option to encourage private transit sites to be provided alongside
existing permanent traveller sites was considered as an option alongside
the provision of ESP. This was discounted at an early stage because of
the experience of tensions between the permanent and temporary
residents. There were also concerns over availability should the
permanent site owners retain transit pitches for personal friends and
family fettering the Police’s ability to respond to incidents of unauthorised
encampments.

It was concluded that implementing a network of emergency stopping sites
would be the most effective way of dealing with unauthorised
encampments, providing safe stay for travellers and meeting national
policy requirements. A network of stopping places would aid officers to
react more flexibly in collaboration with the Police where necessary to deal
with unauthorised encampments.

Next steps

Subject to Cabinet’s approval of the ESP Strategy, the next steps relate to
the identification of available and suitable sites, and delivery and
maintenance costs. A report will be prepared for Cabinet’s consideration
regarding the implementation of the Strategy including site proposals and
assessments of delivery and maintenance costs. It is anticipated that this
will be in late Autumn 2018.

Conclusion

The Emergency Stopping Places Strategy sets out how the Council can
respond to the ongoing need for temporary accommodation for Gypsies
and Travellers in Wiltshire. It includes a methodology for identifying
suitable and deliverable sites and explains why such a network is a
reasonable response to the current lack of transit accommodation. A
network of stopping places would also aid officers to react more flexibly in
collaboration with the Police where necessary to deal with unauthorised
encampments.

The proposal implements the agreed action of Cabinet that a Strategy for
emergency stopping places should be developed to manage unauthorised
encampments, consistent with the approved Wiltshire Traveller Strategy.

Tim Martienssen
Director, Economic Development and Planning

Report Authors:

Georgina Clampitt-Dix, Head of Spatial Planning
Georgina.clampitt-dix@wiltshire.gov.uk

01225 713472

Page 29


mailto:Georgina.clampitt-dix@wiltshire.gov.uk

Carolyn Gibson, Spatial Planning Manager
Carolyn.gibson@wiltshire.gov.uk
01225 718452

Appendices

Appendix 1: Draft Wiltshire Emergency Stopping Places Strategy for Gypsies
and Travellers (May 2018)

Background Papers

Wiltshire Traveller Strategy 2017 http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/sppolicy-wiltshire-
traveller-strategy-2016-refreshed.pdf

Wiltshire Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment 2014
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshire-gtaa-final-report.pdf

> Page 30


mailto:Carolyn.gibson@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/sppolicy-wiltshire-traveller-strategy-2016-refreshed.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/sppolicy-wiltshire-traveller-strategy-2016-refreshed.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshire-gtaa-final-report.pdf

Wiltshire Council Traveller Reference Group

Draft Gypsy and Travellers Emergency Stopping Places Strategy

June 2018

Spatial Planning Service
Economic Development and Planning

Email: spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 31


mailto:spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk

Contents

1. EXECULIVE SUMMAIY 1uuiieiiiiiiriiiiises s sss s s s s s ss s srs s s s sa s sra s s sa s sn s san s s s s enssnnssnnsssnnns 3
72 14 [T T o 4
G TR = =T o | {011 T 1P 4
4. Management of unauthorised encampments in Wiltshire........ccccooeviiiiiiiiiiiinieninceennnn, 6
T Y U 0] o 4=V PPN 9
6.  GeographiCal SCOPE ....uuiieruiiiiii it s e r e e r e e e a e e nna s 9
7. Strategy implementation .........cocuiiiiiiii 10

Emergency stopping Site reqUIrEMENES .....ovvviiriiiiiiiiiiir e 10

Notional CoSts Of SItE ProOVISION......cuuiieiiiiiiii e e 12

Site delivery and Management..........oooceueiiiiiiir e e 13
8. Monitoring and Strategy ReVISION........c.ciiuiiiiiiiicciic e 14
Appendix A — Number and location of encampments in Wiltshire (2016).........ccoeveevnnierneens 15

Page 32



1. Executive Summary

1.1

In Wiltshire there is currently no temporary accommodation available for travellers
when they pass through the county. This Strategy (developed through the Council’s
Traveller Reference Group) sets out how a network of emergency stopping places will
be delivered which provides for short-term, safe stay for travellers and helps managing
unauthorised encampments more effectively. The network will consist of suitable
council-owned sites in three broad locations in the north, south and west of the
county, based on a robust but flexible methodology. Sites will be implemented through
a cross-departmental delivery team and operated and maintained by the Council’s
Highway Enforcement Team together with the Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Service.

Paée 33



2. Introduction

2.1

In Wiltshire, there are no emergency stopping places which can provide safe short
term stay to meet gypsies and traveller’s temporary accommodation needs. One
consequence of this is that travellers encamp on public and private land in Wiltshire,
which can result in expenditure to landowners, local authorities and the police when
dealing with encampments. Providing a network of emergency stopping places will aid
in improving this situation.

3. Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Local planning authorities are required by national planning policy in Planning Policy
for Traveller Sites (PPTS)! to prepare and maintain an up to date understanding of the
likely permanent and transit accommodation needs of their areas over the lifespan of
their development plan, working collaboratively with neighbouring local planning
authorities (PPTS para. 7b). Local planning authorities are required to set pitch targets
for gypsies and travellers and plot targets for travelling showpeople which address the
likely permanent and transit site accommodation needs of travellers in their area,
working collaboratively with neighbouring local planning authorities (PPTS para. 9);
and identify sites to meet those targets (para. 10).

The Council owned and operated a transit site with 12 pitches at Odstock near
Salisbury. The site lies adjacent to the council-owned permanent site at Oak Tree
Field. The Odstock site was used to accommodate travellers on a short term basis,
including travellers who had encamped unlawfully within the county area. The site has
been closed for several years and there are no plans to re-open it. As a result Council
does not currently provide land in its area to accommodate travellers on a temporary
basis.

Lack of transit accommodation also hinders the effective management of unauthorised
encampments.

Wiltshire Council completed a Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment
(GTAA)? 3 in 2014 to determine the need for new permanent and transit pitches in the
county from 2014-29. The evidence in the GTAA is based, amongst other things, on
interviews with key stakeholders and travellers. It was prepared to inform the review
of the Wiltshire Local Plan. The study states at paragraph 7.5:

"Based on evidence provided by stakeholders and data from the Council the view of
ORS is that it would not be economically feasible for the Council to provide and

! Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) (2015)
2 Opinion Research Services, for Wiltshire Council (2014)
3 http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshire-gtaa-final-report.pdf

Page 34


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshire-gtaa-final-report.pdf

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

manage more than one permanent transit site in Wiltshire. The evidence also shows
that as transit provision is required in a number of areas and suggests that a single
transit site would not meet this need and would result in ongoing problems with
encampments elsewhere in Wiltshire. We would therefore recommend that the Council
seek to provide a number of shorter-term stopping places at locations across Wiltshire,
and also to explore how best to meet the very short-term needs of those travelling to
specific events and festivals. As such it [is] [sic] recommended that the Council to
consider the provision of Emergency Stopping Places at locations near to Trowbridge,
Salisbury and to the north of the county.”

The GTAA currently forms a material consideration in planning terms and its findings
are considered in this Strategy.

Going forward, the Local Plan 2016-36 will include the strategy and policy for meeting
permanent accommodation needs for travellers and travelling showpeople as per
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites. This is set out in the published Local Development
Scheme 2017. Its supporting report* states that in order to address the relatively
urgent need for emergency stopping provision an Emergency Stopping Sites Strategy
should be developed.

Wiltshire Council has a dedicated Traveller Reference Group which brings together
Wiltshire Council officers, members, and representatives from the Fire Service and the
Police. The aim of the group is to improve the health and wellbeing of the traveller
population of Wiltshire in line with the strategic objectives of Wiltshire Council to
create stronger and more resilient communities and ensure those from traveller
communities have healthy, high-quality lives. The group is accountable to the Council’s
Environment Select Committee.

The Traveller Reference Group developed a Wiltshire Traveller Strategy which was
adopted in 2010 and refreshed in 2017. The Strategy also notes that there are
currently no emergency stopping places where Gypsies and Travellers could stop for
very short periods determined by the Local Authority.

The Traveller Strategy is accompanied by an action plan which aids in its delivery.
Action 2 in the plan provides to gather intelligence on preferred travelling routes and
locations of unauthorised encampments over time to understand the repeating
patterns of accommodation needed to reduce unauthorised encampments in Wiltshire.
Evidence collated as part of this work has informed the preparation of this Strategy.

4

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s133636/Wiltshire%20Local%20Development%20Scheme%2

Qupdate.pdf

Paée 35


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s133636/Wiltshire%20Local%20Development%20Scheme%20update.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s133636/Wiltshire%20Local%20Development%20Scheme%20update.pdf

4. Management of unauthorised encampments in Wiltshire

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

An unauthorised encampment is when an individual or group of individuals move onto
a piece of land that they do not own, without the permission of the landowner.
Wiltshire Council’s policy towards dealing with unauthorised encampments is published
on its website.

The Council’s Highways Enforcement Team collects data on the number and location
of unauthorised encampments in Wiltshire. The data shows that there are locations
within Wiltshire which are regularly frequented by travellers for short-term stay.
Reasons for this can be (non-exhaustively):

e Travellers know these places are accessible

e They are on route to their destination

e They are safer than other more isolated spots

e Travellers may be tolerated there by the Council

Appendix A (all encampments data 2012- 2016°) shows the location and number of
unauthorised encampments, and ethnicity. Some recorded encampments are
connected with the same group of travellers but they also show that encampments
can occur in the same area at the same time.

The analysis of number of visits per month indicates that most visits occur between
April and November (Appendix A, Figure 2). This aligns with the travelling season
which normally begins in the spring and ends in the autumn; but a proportion of
travellers recorded are economic or new age travellers who travel all year round.
Unauthorised encampments are mainly Irish or New Age Travellers.

The data further shows that there are a number of settlements in the county where
unauthorised encampments concentrated in 2012-16. Table 1 in Appendix A
summarises where more than 10 encampments were recorded in 2012-16 at
respective settlements. These were Amesbury, Salisbury, Chippenham, Marlborough,
Devizes (incl. Rowde), and Trowbridge. The largest numbers of encampments were
recorded at Salisbury which could be due to the presence of the transit site (although
this is closed) and the proximity to key travel routes.

Out of 244 encampments, 155 were recorded at those key settlements, and 89 were
recorded elsewhere. Amongst the latter, the main areas where encampments occurred
were Calne, Seend and Melksham.

The usually very large unauthorised encampments which occur during the summer
solstice are not captured in these data. The summer solstice event attracts large
numbers of new age travellers and other people to the south of Wiltshire and can

> http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/gypsies-travellers-unauthorised-camping

6 Note that 2016 monitoring data is only available for January-August.

Page6 36


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/gypsies-travellers-unauthorised-camping

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

result in dozens of caravans parked up adjacent to the highway, local byways, and car
parks for a few days in late June. This is a single, large event and different from
unauthorised traveller encampments occurring throughout the year. Also, visitor
numbers are so large that provision of ESPs would simply be insufficient. Separate
event management is undertaken for Avebury and Salisbury for these specific periods.

There is wide range of powers available to the police and local authorities to deal with
unauthorised encampments. They are summarised in Government guidance’. The
main legislation is the Human Rights and Race Relations Acts and Sections 61, 62,
62A-E, 77 and 78 of the Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 (CJPOA). There
also provisions in the Highway Act 1980 that can be applied in connection with
encampments on highway land. CJPOA S.61 and S.62 are applied by the police
whereas S.77 & 78 powers can be exercised by council officers.

Legislation was interpreted by the courts and there is guidance from government.
Wiltshire Council follows a set procedure based on Government guidance which
involves proving ownership of the land, obtaining details of the encampment,
assessing an encampment’s effects on the local area, serving notices and summonses
that will enable necessary authority to be obtained from the courts to order the
travellers to leave the site. In addition, officers will have to make enquiries regarding
general health, welfare and children's education.

In certain circumstances the Council will work with Wiltshire Police and request use of
S.61 powers to promptly remove encampments. The police will deal with crime when
there is a complaint and evidence to support it; such as anti-social or unlawful
behaviour. Fly-tipping and damages to property can also be reasons for eviction and
potentially prosecution.

Unauthorised encampments may be tolerated up to an agreed deadline if the
occupants are behaving in an acceptable manner and the site is being kept tidy. This
approach can save the council costs and provides a period of stability to travellers.

Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994

Section 61 and 62 of the Act can be applied by the police to direct two or more
persons to leave the land they have been trespassing if the landowner has asked them
to leave; was subjected to abuse and trespassers caused damage to the land or
property on the land; and if those persons have between 6 or more vehicles on the
land. Non-compliance or return within 3 months constitutes a criminal offence and can
result in imprisonment of up to 3 months, or a fine. The police can also seize vehicles
under Section 62 if such persons return within 3 months or fail to remove vehicles
having been issued with a S61 direction. Section 62A (5) requires the police officer to
consult the local authority if there is a pitch for the caravan or each of the caravans on
a relevant caravan site in the local authority’s area. There are further provisions in the

7 Dealing with illegal and unauthorised encampments - A summary of available powers (DCLG, 2015). The
Government is currently consulting if available powers should be strengthened.

Page 37



Act dealing with unauthorised gatherings/raves on private land; and provisions
enabling the local authority to direct unauthorised campers to leave any land forming
part of a highway; any other unoccupied land; or any occupied land without the
consent of the occupier (Section 77 and 78).

4.13 Section 62A (5) is particularly relevant here as the ability to move travellers onto a site
managed by the local authority increases ‘leverage’. Otherwise trespassers are likely to
appear in other places following eviction. Council data show that repeat encampments
at different locations by the same group of travellers have occurred before.

4.14 S62 powers are easier to do and are better in preventing further trespass within the
local authority’s area if persons can be moved onto a site within the area. If a suitable
site is available within the local authority area, but persons refuse to leave or trespass
on any land within the local authority area within 3 months, then an offence is
committed. According to Wiltshire Police this would have a marked impact on not only
dealing with the issue, but preventing reoffending and also quickly make Wiltshire an
unattractive location to trespass as they could deal with the matter effectively. This
was also confirmed by Dorset CC who operates an emergency stopping site. The
provision of an emergency stopping site at Piddlehinton has resulted in a swift move of
traveller encampments onto the new site under the legal powers held by the authority
in collaboration with the police. Dorset CC officers confirmed that unauthorised
encampments overall decreased since the site was put in place.

4.15 However in Wiltshire S62 powers cannot be used due to the lack of suitable sites, such
as transit or emergency stopping places, where trespassers could be directed to.

4.16 In contrast, S.61 is only effective in preventing a person from returning to a specific
location but does not stop them trespassing elsewhere.

4.17 Wiltshire Police provided rough statistics on dealing with unlawful encampments to
give an idea about officer hours committed:

e For 2 months (June/July 2016) 30 unlawful encampments were recorded by the
Police (21 in Wiltshire and 9 in Swindon) totalling approximately 600 Police hours
(200 Wilts/400 Swindon)

e Enforcement action was required on 7 occasions:

o 5 in Wiltshire — approx. 140 hours
o 2 in Swindon — approx. 235 hours (one very difficult group took over 200
hours)

4.18 These figures do not take into account any aspects outside of attending the site.

Assuming that this is £50/hr (the Police charge £75/hr on events as this means
working on rest days) this would equate to over £30,000 in 2 months.

Pagé3 38



4.19 Highway Enforcement colleagues advised that in the first three months of 2017, 17
unauthorised traveller encampments were reported resulting in 238 hours of officer
time. The hourly rate of pay is £13.90 which results in total costs of £3,308. This does
not include internal vehicle hire which has a recharge of £37 per day, and any clean-
up costs.

4.20 In addition to officer time spent on dealing with encampments, they result in
complaints from members of the public, especially were repeat encampments occur in
the same location.

5. Summary

5.1 [Itis clear from the above that due to the lack of suitable sites, travellers do not have
opportunities for short-term stay in Wiltshire when passing through the county. The
lack of sites also reduces the ability of the Council and the Police to manage
unauthorised encampments effectively. Assessing and meeting the accommodation
needs of travellers is a national policy requirement for local authorities. The evidence
shows that a network of ESPs would be an effective means of addressing this need in
Wiltshire and to aid in managing unauthorised encampments. The following chapters
set out how such a network will be brought forward.

6. Geographical Scope

6.1 This Strategy picks up the recommendations of the GTAA and considers the evidence
gathered by the Council on the number and location of unauthorised encampments at
Appendix A. Based on the Council’s evidence a single stopping site should ideally be
provided at or near Trowbridge, Devizes, Amesbury, Marlborough, and Chippenham.
Again, the GTAA provides that the area around Trowbridge could be a broad location
of an emergency stopping site.

6.2 The GTAA proposes provision of three emergency stopping sites in broad locations in
Wiltshire (North; South; West) taking into account stakeholder evidence and key
travelling routes in the county.

6.3 Based on the above this Strategy directs provision of a site in the north, south and
west of the county as per 2014 GTAA in the first instance. The Strategy does not
restrict site provision solely to these broad areas however as it needs to account for
site availability constraints for example. So if additional sites at other locations are
available and deliverable then they could be considered further. This also allows for
more sites to come forward in the future should the need arise.

6.4 The suitability of sites will be tested using the methodology set out in Table 1 in the
next Chapter.

Paée 39



7. Strategy implementation

Emergency stopping site requirements

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

There is currently no guidance available on requirements for emergency stopping
places. Previously, local planning authorities were able to refer to ‘Designing Gypsy
and Traveller Sites Good Practice Guide®. This document was rescinded by the
Coalition Government but it can still provide a useful benchmark in the absence of any
newer guidance. With this in mind, Wiltshire Council relies on its own interpretation of
what is required. It also considers the recommendations in the 2014 GTAA.

Emergency stopping sites have different requirements to permanent sites in that
access to essential services is not a priority. The 2008 DCLG Guidance states that
emergency stopping sites should provide safe and convenient access to road networks
and be located so as to cause minimum disruption to surrounding communities. When
considering the suitability of different sites, the potential presence of young children
and any risks that may arise due to adjoining land uses must be considered. This
means that locations within easy reach of the main travelling routes will be preferred,
and that they should be located outside settlements.

In terms of on-site infrastructure ESPs should be relatively basic in order to serve the
purpose of a short stay for travellers. They should not be designed to encourage long
stay. Effectively this would require equipping ESPs with hardstanding, fence and a skip
for rubbish disposal.

In terms of spacing requirements, an emergency stopping pitch should be at least
250m2 which is a suitable transit site pitch size evidenced in the Council’s 2010 Gypsy
& Traveller DPD site selection methodology, in the absence of any newer guidance.

There is no evidence about an appropriate number of pitches per site. The DCLG
guidance advises that transit sites should not exceed 15 pitches to remain
manageable. A similar figure could be applied to ESPs but a nhumber of smaller sites
would aid better in the management of large groups. Consequently a figure of 4-6
pitches would be more realistic.

In terms of total site size this would result in 1,500m2 sites to host a maximum of 6
pitches, although additional space would normally be provided for landscaping and
other requirements.

In terms of site selection the following methodology will be applied to find emergency
stopping sites. Given the temporary nature of the sites, matters such as access, traffic,
highway and health and safety are particularly relevant.

8 DCLG (2008)

Pagé040



Criterion

Policy and
environmental
constraints

Table 1: Site Selection Methodolog

Detail

Sites should avoid any adverse
impact on local/national
designations (such as conservation
areas and Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty). Sites should avoid
any hazardous areas (such as
flood zones, contaminated land).

Justification

Candidate sites ought to

be safe for users, and
free of hazardous areas.
Sites should avoid
causing adverse impacts
on local, national and
international
designations.

Planning Policy
and other
evidence
Gypsy and
Traveller Site
Allocations DPD
Consultation
Report 2010;
Wiltshire Core
Strategy Core
Policy 47; PPTS
Policies B, C, E

Site size The site must meet space There are no standards DCLG Guidance
requirements for internal road(s) for emergency stopping | on Site Design
and parking and circulation space, | site size. A transit pitch (2008); Gypsy
and fire safety standards. The site | accounts for 250m2 and | and Traveller Site
should have additional space for therefore represents the | Allocations DPD
facilities such as waste disposal. only benchmark Consultation

Report 2010

Safe and The site should be near or Proximity to key Gypsy and

convenient adjacent to key travelling routes travelling routes is Traveller Site

access to the
road network

identified in the GTAA.

important as otherwise
the site would not be
easily accessible to
travellers passing
through Wiltshire.

Allocations DPD
Consultation
Report 2010;
Wiltshire Core
Strategy Core
Policy 47; 2014
GTAA

Impact on the
strategic
road/highway
network

The site should not have a
detrimental impact on the safe and
efficient operation of the
strategic/highway road network,
including junctions and land within
the ownership of Highways
England and/or Wiltshire Council
required for operational purposes.

DCLG Guidance
on Site Design
(2008)

Vehicular access

The candidate site must be
serviced by an independent
vehicular access point that adheres
to the Highway Authority’s

The highway leading up
to the site must be of
sufficient width and
standard to

Gypsy and
Traveller Site
Allocations DPD
Consultation

guidance and standards in terms accommodate heavy Report 2010;
of safe entry and egress. The road | vehicles. The site access | Wiltshire Core
to and from the site must be of must have sufficient Strategy Core
sufficient quality and size to visibility splays, and Policy 47
enable access onto and off the site | width to allow for safe
by heavy vehicles such as trailers. | access and exit.

The site causes | Access to candidate sites should The use of an Gypsy and

minimum

disruption to
surrounding
communities

avoid the need to use local roads
within industrial areas, recognised
commercial areas or housing
areas. The site should not give rise
to visual impacts or pollution on
surrounding land uses and other
receptors. Space for a clear barrier
around the site is required to
prevent unauthorised extension to

emergency stopping site
is assessed in terms of
its impact on the
character/ appearance of
the surrounding area,
along with the impact on
the residential amenity
of nearby properties.

Traveller Site
Allocations DPD
Consultation
Report 2010;
Wiltshire Core
Strategy Core
Policy 47; PPTS
Policy Band C

Page 41




the site.

Land quality Brownfield land is preferred over In the interest of Wiltshire Core
greenfield land. Where no protecting best and Strategy Core
brownfield land is available, versatile agricultural Policy 47; NPPF
greenfield land of poor agricultural | land. para. 111-112;
quality (Grade 3b or poorer) is PPTS Policy H
preferred.

Health and All routes for vehicles on the site, Wiltshire Core

safety and for access to the site, must Strategy Core
allow easy access for emergency Policy 47; DCLG
vehicles and safe places for Guidance on Site
turning vehicles. Design (2008)

Deliverability The ease of commitment to The timely delivery of -
bringing sites forward and the emergency stopping
timing of land release. sites is key to the overall

success of the strategy.

7.8

7.9

The above methodology is robust but flexible enough to enable a balanced view on
candidate ESPs as it is conceivable that not every selection criterion can be met; and
land availability may be problematic. Input from expert officers will be sought in the
assessments, and to establish how any identified harm caused by development can be
mitigated. Assessments should include the pre-application process as this would
enable a coordinated response and early engagement. The pre-application response
would enable project delivery to be based on a sound assessment of costs per item
required for candidate ESPs.

Appropriate consultation with gypsies and travellers will be undertaken as part of
Strategy implementation.

Notional costs of site provision

7.10

7.11

7.12

In order to test the deliverability of candidate ESPs the associated costs and revenues
need to be identified. As described above the sites would be relatively basic and
include hardstanding, fence and rubbish disposal. Development costs for candidate
sites will be established for sites on an individual basis and for this reason cost details
cannot be estimated in advance. The below gives a broad provisional indication.

One-off costs for initial provision of a 6 pitch site would typically involve:

e (Pre-) Planning application (where required) and consultation®
e Engineering works to prepare the site for development

e Construction of hardstanding, skip area, fencing

e Labour

Maintenance costs are difficult to estimate as this depends on how often a site is used
and if damages or fly-tipping occur. Keeping sites relatively basic and providing a
rubbish skip will aid in keeping costs manageable. In Dorset, an ESP has been

% This excludes officer time spent on the planning application process.

Page 42




7.13

operated for several years at Piddlehinton. The County Council confirmed that the
number of unauthorised encampments has now significantly decreased.

In order to ensure a return from the use of sites setting a weekly charge could be
considered. When the transit site was last open, the Council charged travellers £20
pound per week plus electricity (on a card meter). Dorset CC charges more for the use
of their site. Some councils also ask for an initial bond as well before the travellers can
move on to the site, for example £200.

Site delivery and management

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Emergency stopping sites would be delivered and managed by the Council in order to
ensure effective operation and management, and that sites are available when
needed. Private emergency stopping site provision is considered to be unrealistic
because of the experience of tensions between the permanent and temporary
residents and concerns about community cohesion at Odstock and Oak Tree Field.
There would also be uncertainty over pitch availability should private site owners
retain pitches for personal friends and family fettering the authorities’ ability to
respond to incidents of unauthorised encampments.

There is no guidance how long emergency stopping places remain open during the
year. The transit site at Odstock was open all year round. Dorset County Council’s site
at Piddlehinton is available from March-August but only used when travellers are
directed to it upon discretion by the Traveller Liaison Service in collaboration with the
Police. Staffs within the Traveller Liaison Team hold the keys for the site. Travellers
need to sign a basic ‘transit site agreement’ which restricts stay to 28 days.

Based on the above, emergency stopping sites will be available between 1 April and 30
November (8 months) and open when required — i.e. when a group is moved onto a
site or for travellers who voluntarily want to use sites as they travel through the area.

Suitable ESP sites will be delivered by the Council’s Properties (Estates) Team and
appointed contractors, as sites will be in Council ownership. Other teams involved in
the planning and delivery of sites will be Finance, Planning and Legal Services. A
cross-departmental project delivery group will be established to plan and implement
sites.

ESP operation and maintenance will be undertaken by the Council’s Highway
Enforcement Team in cooperation with the Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Team, to

provide the ESPs to travellers quickly when the need arises, and deal with any issues.

A project budget will be identified and allocated to the Council’s Properties Team.

Palé’e 43



8. Monitoring and Strategy Revision

8.1 This Strategy will be ‘owned’ by the Traveller Reference Group and an annual
monitoring report will be provided with input from Housing, Highways Enforcement
and Planning officers. A report will be presented to Environment Select Committee as
an annual update or upon request.

Page 44



Appendix A — Number and location of encampments in Wiltshire (2016)

Tablel: Unauthorised encampments by location 2012-16

Ames- | Salis- Chippen- | Marl- Devizes | Trowbridge | All Total
bury bury ham borough (incl. other
Rowde)
2012 6 19 0 3 11 3 22 64
2013 3 16 6 3 6 1 25 60
2014 4 7 4 4 7 6 20 52
2015 4 8 9 0 8 1 14 44
2016 |1 2 5 1 4 1 6 20
no 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 4
date
Total 20 52 24 11 36 12 89 244
2012-
16

Source: Wiltshire Council Highway Enforcement Monitoring 2012-16

Settlements where more than 10 encampments were recorded in 2012-16 are listed above.

Figure 1: Encampments by ethnicity (all encampments = 244)

M Irish

B Economic
B New Age
B Romany
B Other

W Bargee
 Holiday

= Unknown

10 No monitoring data available for September-December 2016.
11 4 encampments were recorded with no date so they are not included here.

Palgse 45




Number of Encampments per month
2012-16

60

50 A

o /\

. [\

20

10 - \\,/ \/\\

0 T T T T T T T T T T T )
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

No of visits

Source: Wiltshire Council Highway Enforcement Monitoring 2012-16

Pagé646



Agenda Item 7

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Site Disposal

Cabinet Member: Councillor Clir Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for
Planning and Strategic Asset Management

Key Decision: Yes

Executive Summary

The Council owns 5 permanent gypsy and traveller sites and one transit site, a
total of 100 permanent pitches and 12 transit pitches. These are as follows;

Thingley, near Chippenham — 31 permanent pitches (remodelled 2016/17)
Fairhaven, Dilton Marsh — 7 permanent pitches (remodelled 2016/17)
Lode Hill, Downton — 12 permanent pitches (remodelled 2016/17)

Oak Tree Field, Salisbury — 32 permanent pitches
Dairy House Bridge, Salisbury — 18 permanent pitches
Odstock transit site (adjacent to Oak Tree Field) — 12 temporary pitches.

The Thingley, Fairhaven and Lode Hill sites have been improved and it is
proposed that these sites will remain in Council ownership. They provide a total
of 50 permanent pitches.

The Oak Tree Field and Dairy House Bridge sites along with the transit site
adjacent to Oak Tree Field (Odstock transit site) are in need of investment to
enable them to continue in use as gypsy and traveller sites.

A number of options have been considered for these sites including closure,
refurbishment and disposal.

The purpose of this paper is to consider the option of transferring the ownership
of the Oak Tree Field, Dairy House Bridge and Odstock sites including any
expenditure required to achieve transfer and maintain health and safety to
enable them to receive the investment they need to continue to remain in use as
gypsy and traveller sites.

> Page 47



Proposals
It is recommended that;

Approval is given to:
1. Dispose of the Council’s freehold interests in the two gypsy and traveller
sites at Oak Tree Field and Dairy House Bridge including the Odstock
transit sites to enable them to stay as gypsy and traveller sites; and

2. Delegate to the Director for Housing and Commercial Development
authority to agree the terms of the transfer of ownership in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Spatial Planning, Development
Management and Property, the Director of Finance and Procurement and
the Director of Legal and Governance Services.

Reason for Proposals

Dairy House Bridge, Oak Tree Field and the Odstock transit sites are in need of
substantial investment. Transfer of ownership of the sites to a new owner will
enable this investment to ensure the sites are able to remain in use as gypsy
and traveller sites.

Alistair Cunningham
Corporate Director

> Page 48




Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Site Disposal

Cabinet Member: Councillor Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for
Planning and Strategic Asset Management

Key Decision: Yes

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this paper is to consider the option of transferring the
ownership of the Oak Tree Field, Dairy House Bridge and Odstock sites
including any expenditure required to achieve transfer and maintain health
and safety to enable them to receive the investment they need to continue
to remain in use as gypsy and traveller sites.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan
2. The transfer of sites relates to the following business plan priorities and goals;
a. Growing the economy — I live in a good home | can afford
b. Commercialism — consider innovative funding options and
opportunities
c. One Public Estate — a strategic and commercial approach to
managing assets.

Background

3. Relevant history including previous decisions

3.1 In September 2013 Wiltshire Council secured £4.419m from the Homes and
Communities Agency (HCA), now called Homes England to redevelop the
32 pitches at Oak Tree Field and the 18 pitches at Dairy House Bridge — A
total of 50 pitches, within the 2011-15 HCA programme with a requirement
to complete the project by the end of March 2015. This proposal involved
temporary closure of the transit site to use as decant accommodation, with
the transit site reopening on completion of the remodelling works to the 50
permanent pitches.

3.2 Planning permission for both sites was achieved in spring 2014, followed by
a tendering process to appoint a contractor. However, the prices quoted for
the works far exceeded initial expectations, thus requiring additional
funding. As the funding was not available within the Council’s capital

> Page 49



3.3

programme, the work was unable to progress and the government grant
allocation was handed back.

There is Homes England grant funding available to bid for to redevelop
gypsy and traveller pitches as part of the Shared Ownership and Affordable
Homes Programme 2016-21. However, grant rates are significantly lower
than they were at the time of bidding for funding in 2013 and as a result the
council will have to find a capital budget for this project to proceed.

4. Policy issues

4.1

4.2

Planning Policy for Travellers Sites (August 2015), requires local planning
authorities to set pitch targets for gypsies and travellers and plot targets
for travelling showpeople which address the likely permanent and transit
site accommodation needs of travellers in their area, working
collaboratively with neighbouring local planning authorities. More
specifically local planning authorities should;

- ldentify and annually update a supply of specific deliverable sites
sufficient to provide five years’ worth of sites against their locally set
targets.

- ldentify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations for
growth, for years 6-10 and, where possible, for years 11-15.

The Wiltshire Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment
completed in December 2014 recognised the contribution the 100
permanent pitches and 12 transit pitches in council ownership made to the
overall supply of pitches in Wiltshire. It recommended that in addition to
these pitches and the existing private pitches, there was a need for an
additional 90 pitches in Wiltshire between 2014-2029. This figure also
assumed that the council transit site would be converted to provide 4
permanent pitches. Regarding transit accommodation the report
recommends implementation of a network of emergency stopping sites
rather than operating a single transit site in the extreme south of the
county.

5. Statutory requirements

5.1

5.2.

The Equality Act 2010 does not define race; however case law has
established that Roma gypsies and Irish travellers are covered by the
protected characteristic of race for the Equality Act 2010. Therefore, the
Council has a duty actively to seek to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity and promote good race relations.

Eliminating discrimination and harassment - When a public body, like
a local council or a government department (for example the Department
of Work and Pensions) makes a decision it must have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination and harassment of Gypsies, Travellers
and Roma people.

Page 50



5.3Advancing equality of opportunity - The public body must also have due
regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity for Gypsies, Travellers
and Roma people. That means thinking about:

5.4

the disadvantages they face and how to remove or minimise those
disadvantages;

how the needs of Gypsies, Travellers and Roma people are different to
the needs of other groups; and

how to encourage Gypsies, Travellers and Roma people to participate in
activities which they often do not participate in, including public life.

Fostering good relations - Public bodies must have due regard to the

need to foster good relations between Gypsies, Travellers and Roma people and
others. When fostering good relations, a public body must think about the need to
tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

5.5

Mobile Homes Act 2013 — this requires that the site owner of a site not
owned by a local authority is a fit and proper person and offers some
protection to site residents relating to pitch fee increases and unfair
eviction and harassment.

6. Consultation

6.1

6.2

There is no statutory requirement to carry out public consultation
regarding transfer of ownership of gypsy and traveller sites.

Hampshire, Buckinghamshire and Somerset councils have all disposed of
their gypsy and traveller sites. Officers and Members have consulted with
these authorities to ensure understanding of the implications of site
disposal.

Main Considerations for the Council

7. Site conditions and investment required

7.1

Site surveys have been carried out to estimate the extent of works
required to appropriately maintain the sites in the future. There are works
required to bring the sites up to a licensable standard, although it is
considered that no additional work (over and above responsive repairs)
should be carried out prior to sale.

8. Resident engagement outcome

8.1

Engagement with residents on the two sites commenced on 23 April
2018. A number of site visits have been held to discuss the proposal with
groups of residents and individual households and listen to any concerns.
A survey form has been given to every household on site and the results
of these surveys are collated at Appendix 1.

Page 51



8.2 The key concerns and issues raised by residents regarding a change of
site ownership are;

- increased rents and service charges

- requirement to rent mobile homes from the new owners

- less security of tenure and threats of eviction

- less open and transparent management policies

- possibility of discrimination against and victimisation of some
residents which, due to culture of the residents, isn’t reported

- mixing of different gypsy and traveller ethnic or cultural groups on
one site could lead to issues of community cohesion

9. Marketing advice

9.1 An agent has been appointed to advise on a marketing strategy and to
provide initial disposal advice.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

10. A briefing was held with the Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 5th
June 2018

Safeguarding Implications

11.An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out to assess the
implications of the proposal. This is attached at Appendix 2.

12.There are a number of families living on the two sites with children. There are
also some adults who could be considered vulnerable. However, the
residents’ agreements are, and will continue to be, governed by the Mobile
Homes Act 1983 (as amended by the Mobile Homes Act 2013) which provides
the residents security of tenure and requires any site owner to comply with the
provisions of the Mobile Homes Acts and Regulations made under those Acts.

13. A caravan site outside of council ownership is required to hold a licence which
sets out how the operation of the site should be managed in terms of health
and safety of the occupiers and good practice. Any new owner would need to
make an application for a licence. If during the application process potential
breaches of the Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites for England are
identified then the licence would set out the time period within which these
potential breaches should be remedied. Not holding a licence or breaching
licence conditions could lead to a criminal prosecution of the site owner. In
light of the current condition of the sites, it is proposed that an indication of the
conditions likely to be attached to any licence to a private owner will be
provided to any potential buyer.

Public Health Implications

14.A Health Impact Assessment has been carried out and is attached at
Appendix 3.

> Page 52



Procurement Implications

15. As this will be a land sale, there are no current procurement implications to
this proposal. The appointed agent has been competitively tendered and the
sale will be conducted in the open market.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal (detailing conclusions identified from
Equality Analysis, sections 4 and 5)

16.An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and will continue to be
monitored, reviewed and updated throughout the resident engagement and
transfer process. This is attached at Appendix 2.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

17. The transfer proposal will involve retaining the current sites as gypsy and
traveller sites. However, as part of the proposal, the intention is that the new
owner will be able to invest in the sites to improve the site conditions, in
particular site drainage.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken

18.1f the sites are not transferred, due to the lack of capital funding available to
invest in improving site conditions, it is likely that the sites will need to close
which will reduce the number of pitches available to meet the accommodation
needs of gypsies and travellers in Wiltshire and require the relocation of a
number of families and households.

19.This in turn will create greater pressure on the local plan to identify additional
gypsy and traveller pitches to meet needs.

20. Alternatively around £3m of capital funding would need to be identified within
the Council’s capital budget to fund the works required.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

21.A risk assessment has been completed and is attached at Appendix 4.

Financial Implications

22.There is insufficient capital within the current Council capital programme to
invest in the Oak Tree Field and Dairy House Bridge gypsy and traveller sites.

Legal Implications

23.The sale of the sites will need to comply with the Equality Act 2010, the Mobile
Homes Act 2013 and the Council’s financial and procurement regulations.

> Page 53



24.Whilst there is no statutory requirement to consult regarding this proposal,
there is an obligation to treat people fairly and this has been addressed by
engagement with the residents and their families.

25.Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council to seek
best value for any disposal or for such disposal to fall within The Local
Government Act: General Disposal Consent (England) 2003, which can
include the consideration of the value of social and environmental benefits as
well as economic or purely financial benefits. If not, the consent of the
Secretary of State will need to be sought and obtained.

Options Considered

26.A number of options have been considered in relation to the Oak Tree Field
and Dairy House Bridge sites. These are as follows;

Do nothing

Minimal refurbishment and drainage improvements
Improvement of the pitches

Transfer ownership of both sites

HAIW|IN| P

27.An assessment of each option is attached at Appendix 5.
Conclusions

28.The two sites are in need of investment to enable them to continue in use as
gypsy and traveller sites. There is a need to maintain the number of gypsy
and traveller pitches in Wiltshire and to ensure they are safe and sustainable.
The option that will enable this is the option to transfer ownership to a new
owner to enable that investment.

Alan Richell (Interim Director - Housing and Commercial Development)

Report Author: Janet O'Brien, Head of Housing Strategy and Assets,
j[anet.obrien@wiltshire.gov.uk, Tel: 01249 706550

29th May 2018
Appendices

Appendix 1 — Outcome of resident engagement
Appendix 2 — Equality Impact Assessment
Appendix 3 — Health Impact Assessment
Appendix 4 — Risk Assessment

Appendix 5 — Options appraisal

Background Papers

The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report:
None

> Page 54



Appendix 2
RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT FEEDBACK

Total pitches Occupied Forms returned
Oak Tree Fields 32 26 12
Dairy House 18 13 2
Bridge
Gender
Male Female
Oak Tree Fields 5 7
Dairy House 0 2
Bridge
Age
Under 19 Under 40 Under 60 60+
Oak Tree 0 7 3 2
Fields
Dairy House 0 1 1 0
Bridge
Ethnic Origin
White British | Asian / Roma/ Traveller or | Not stated
British Gypsy Irish
heritage
Oak Tree 2 0 4 2
Fields
Dairy House 0 0 0 0
Bridge
How they would like to be consulted
Personal Visits Letter / Newsletter Group / Site
meeting
Oak Tree Fields 2 1 9
Dairy House 2 0 0
Bridge
Concerns

Being evicted from their homes

The sites being sold as development land

Page 55




Will they be able to keep and stay on their current pitches and are the number of
pitches on the sites likely to reduce

Concerns about the rents and services charges being increased

A private site owner with a G&T background could be scary and concerns have been
raised about how they can be protected from victimisation. They mentioned that the
Gypsy and Traveller community are not able to use normal measures such as
reporting issues to the police as this is not how it works in this community

Some have said that if the sites are sold to Irish Travellers then this will be the end
for them on these sites as it won’t be tenable for them to stay for safety reasons.

Concerns in regard to the allocation of vacant pitches after the sites are sold. The
current sites are mainly Roma Gypsies and concerns were raised about other
traveller groups being allowed on site as this won’t work and will cause huge site
issues.

Huge concerns about how the sites in Hampshire have been sold and now managed
with rumours of increased rent and service charges, and the requirement new
occupiers to purchase the site owners caravans

The future landlord not accepting travellers on Housing Benefit
Will they invest and improve the sites and how will this be guaranteed

Unless the landlord is the Local Authority the residents have confirmed they would
feel unsafe and uncomfortable

No concern regarding the transfer as we would want the standard of the sites to
improve, especially the drainage and sheds. We would like the site to be maintained
as a gypsy and traveller site and some guarantee on rents and services charges not
increasing

Options
For the residents to purchase there on pitches and work together to maintain the site

The Local Authority to stay as the landlord and the residents will maintain their own
pitches and work together to improve the site

Consider selling Dairy House Bridge and use the money to invest and refurbish Oak
Tree Fields. The transit site could be utilised to accommodate the remaining
residents on Dairy House Bridge

They don’t want a full refurbishment just to sort the drains / sewerage and the day
rooms they will manage

Request for funding from others, like MPs or Lottery funding

To stop the rat lady and the refuge truck as this work can be done by the residents

Page 56



If the Local Authority isn’t going to be the landlord then the residents will leave and
create homes in car parks and along the highway, this is not ideal but this is what
they will do

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire

~——————=_ Where everybody matters

Equality Analysis Evidence Document

Title: Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree Field Gypsy and Traveller Sites

The cabinet have asked for an assessment of the option to dispose of these two sites but on the
basis that they are retained as G&T sites and continue to provide accommodation to the existing
residents

Why are you completing the Equality Analysis? (please tick any that apply)

Proposed New Policy Change to Policy or MTFS Service Review
or Service Service (Medium Term Financial
v Strategy)
v

Version Control

Version Date Reason for To appraise the option for
control 1.1 14th May 2018 | review (if transfer of ownership of two
number appropriate) Gypsy and Traveller Sites

Risk Rating Score (use Equalities Risk Matrix and guidance)

**f any of these are 3 or above, an Impact Assessment must be completed.
Please check with equalities@wiltshire.gov.uk for advice

Criteria Inherent risk score on Residual risk score after
proposal mitigating actions have been
identified

Legal challenge

Financial costs/implications
People impacts
Reputational damage

Section 1 — Description of what is being analysed

The Cabinet has asked officers to bring forward the implications of an option to consider the transfer the
ownership of the Gypsy and Traveller Sites at Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree Field in and near
Salisbury.

Recent discussions with Homes England have highlighted that some new external grant funding might
be available for these sites but that the Council would need to find the remaining funding. At a time
when the Council needs to find substantial savings and cut back on some service provision, finding the
funding required for these sites was always going to be difficult to achieve. However, this new funding
would only be available for the redevelopment of the existing sites, therefore, it is likely that the Council
would need to find something in the realm of £3m to progress this work, subject to successful bids to
obtain the balance in grant funding.

In a paper taken forward with the options for investment into these sites, officers were asked to examine
the option for transferring the ownership to be layered in as an additional and potentially favoured
solution, given the financial constraints placed on the Council.

This Equality Impact Assessment is therefore geared to consider the implications of this one solution of
transferring the ownership

Version 1:0 February 2018 Page 59 1


mailto:equalities@wiltshire.gov.uk

Section 2A — People or communities that are currently targeted or could be affected
by any change (please take note of the Protected Characteristics listed in the action table).

The community / people who are impacted by this proposal are:

e The existing residents on both sites, who for many years have been informed that
redevelopment of these sites was the proposal of the Council. The remaining 3no Gypsy and
Traveller sites owned by the Council have had this work completed and, due to the investment
made, are not being considered for transfer due to the need to generate income to help pay off
the investment made by the Council.

e The wider Gypsy and Traveller Community as conditions on Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree
Field mean that vacant units on these sites are not suitable to be offered as accommodation
until at least some investment is made. It is questionable that conditions comply with the
government’s Model Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England.

As aresult, it could be construed that that Council is not acting in a fair manner to these groups who, up
to this point, have been led to believe that the Council would invest in the redevelopment and creation of
sustainable housing solutions on these sites. As a result of this previous decision, the council has held
off some repairs and only carried out repairs of a temporary nature to keep facilities going rather than
spend money on things that would originally been down for complete replacement.

At present there are now 10 plots on these sites that are no longer fit for letting due to fly-tipping,
vandalism and poor site conditions, and this means both a loss of rental income and an under provision
of accommodation to the wider Gypsy & Traveller community.

What is becoming obvious is that the option to transfer the ownersip will not come without some
expense on the part of the Council and so it comes down to a comparison of all the options into to reach
a sustainable decision.

Any decision not to proceed with the redevelopment option could be considered to be discriminatory
towards the Gypsy and Traveller community without a full and proper explanation that clearly
demonstrates a transparent decision making process.

Section 2B — People who are delivering the policy or service that are targeted or could be affected
(i.e. staff, commissioned organisations, contractors)

Council staff, particularly the Gypsy & Traveller Manager in Housing, have been subject to constant
questioning about these two sites and when the proposed works were to proceed. The staff in the
current Gypsy & Traveller project team give an indication of the level of impact a decision to dispose
would have on the Council. The following services are part of team:

Housing — lead officers

Strategic Assets

Legal Services

Finance

Strategic Procurement

Public Health

Public Protection

Corporate Services

Planning

Communications
Therefore, the implications of any decision are likely to have a call on officers within these teams and at
a cost to the Council.

In addition, it is likely that we will have to make use of external consultants to undertake a variety of
services, such as stock condition surveys, valuations and marketing of the sites as we do not have the
resources available in the timeframes required to make a clear decision

Note: Throughout this Project it is vitally important the Council takes care over our communications and
that we ensure there is no discrimination towards the Gypsy & Traveller Community

Version 1:0 February 2018 Page 60 2




Section 3 —The underpinning evidence and data used for the analysis (Attach documents where
appropriate)

Prompts:

What data do you collect about your customers/staff?

What local, regional and national research is there that you could use?

How do your Governance documents (Terms of Reference, operating procedures) reflect
the need to consider the Public Sector Equality Duty?

What are the issues that you or your partners or stakeholders already know about?

What engagement, involvement and consultation work have you done? How was this carried
out, with whom? Whose voices are missing? What does this tell you about potential take-up
and satisfaction with existing services?

Are there any gaps in your knowledge? If so, do you need to identify how you will collect
data to fill the gap (feed this into the action table if necessary)

At this present time we are still assembling this information but the following is a summary of the facts
that have been put together:

Age
14 -
12 A
10 -
8 -
6 -
4 -
2 - - -9
0 T T T T T
Age under 16-24 25-44 45-64 65+
16
Sex
20 -
15 -
10
5 -
A
O T T 1
Sex Male Sex Female  Sex Other

Version 1:0 February 2018 Page 61




Status
6
5
4
3
2
% 1 T T T T T - 1
.\e,b ,&\0% Q(?\ N Q}‘\“’ Q}{“
& & L@ &
X Q Q Q Q
& & & &F
o 2 &
() ) )
&
(:’\Q

Meetings have been held with Hampshire County Council and Buckinghamshire County Council and
we are seeking to meet with Somerset County Council, which have transferred all of their sites to a
third party outside of the Council to manage this housing provision.

In support of this project, the following documents have been prepared:
o Risk Register
¢ Equality Impact Assessment
o Health Impact Assessment
e Consultation Plan
e Communications Plan
o Transfer proposal - outline the approach towards marketing and seeking to maximize value for
money
e Legal Proposal — to outline all the legal constraints that might apply to the transfer option

It is acknowledged that until the consultation with residents commences, we cannot fully appraise all
the issues that could arise from this proposal. As a result, this document along the others listed above
will be kept under review by the Project Team on a regular basis.

*Section 4 — Conclusions drawn about the impact of the proposed change or new service/policy

Prompts:

e What actions do you plan to take as a result of this equality analysis? Please state them
and also feed these into the action table

e Be clear and specific about the impacts for each Protected Characteristic group (where
relevant)

e Can you also identify positive actions which promote equality of opportunity and foster good
relations between groups of people as well as adverse impacts?

e \What are the implications for Procurement/Commissioning arrangements that may be
happening as a result of your work?

e Do you plan to include equalities aspects into any service agreements and if so, how do you
plan to manage these through the life of the service?

e |f you have found that the policy or service change might have an adverse impact on a
particular group of people and are not taking action to mitigate against this, you will need to
fully justify your decision and evidence it in this section

As stated previously, this document will be kept under review by the Gypsy & Traveller Project Team and
as matter become clearer, a set of conclusions can be drafted and included in this section

Version 1:0 February 2018 Page 62 4




*Section 5 — How will the outcomes from this equality analysis be monitored, reviewed and

communicated?

Prompts:

e Do you need to design performance measures that identify the impact (outcomes) of your
policy/strategy/change of service on different protected characteristic groups?

e What stakeholder groups and arrangements for monitoring do you have in place? Is equality
a standing agenda item at meetings?

o Who will be the lead officer responsible for ensuring actions that have been identified are
monitored and reviewed?

e How will you publish and communicate the outcomes from this equality analysis?

e How will you integrate the outcomes from this equality analysis in any relevant

Strategies/Polices?

The details within the document will be kept under review by the Gypsy & Traveller Project Team
assembled to undertake the review of the transfer option. The Project Team meets monthly but this
document will be placed on the agenda on a quarterly basis and kept under constant review to ensure
that decisions are reached in a transparent manner.

*Copy and paste sections 4 & 5 into any Committee, CLT or Briefing papers as a way of
summarising the equality impacts where indicated

Please send a copy of this document to Equalities@wiltshire.gov.uk

Completed by:

e Tim Bruce — Strategic Asset Manager — Housing
e Emily Higson — Corporate Services

Date 14th May 2018
Signed off by: e Janet OBrien — Head of Strategy and Assets — Housing
e Alistair Cunningham - Corporate Director Growth, Investment &
Place
Date 14th May 2018

To be reviewed by:

e Janet OBrien, together with the G&T Project Team

Review date: Quarterly basis as Project Team Meetings
For Corporate Equality Use | Compliance sign off date: tbc
only

Version 1:0 February 2018 Page 63



mailto:Equalities@wiltshire.gov.uk

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

Equality Impact Issues and Action Table (for more information on protected characteristics, see page 7)

Smith

Project Team
Meetings

Identified issue drawn from Actions needed — can you | Who is When will the | How will it be| What is the expected outcome from the
your conclusions (only use mitigate the impacts? If responsible for action be monitored? | action?
those characteristics that are you can how will you the actions? completed?
relevant) mitigate the impacts?
Age
Based on the demographics of  [The key action is to seek to | Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
the existing residents, there are a jmaintain the sites in sufficient [Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
number of young children living [condition that warrants the Meetings occupation.
on these sites and therefore, maintenance of existing No acts or statements that could be construed as
keeping them and their families |homes discrimination towards this group
safe must be a priority
..EPisabiIity
ased on the demographics of  |None at this present time Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
e existing residents, there are Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
&9 particular concerns in this area Meetings occupation.
I No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group
Gender Reassignment
Based on the demographics of  |None at this present time Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
the existing residents, there are Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
no particular concerns in this area Meetings occupation.
No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group
Marriage and Civil Partnership
Thc Thc Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
Meetings occupation.
No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group
Pregnancy and Maternity
Thc Thc Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that

all existing residents are able to remain in
occupation.

No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group




Race (including ethnicity or national origin, colour, nationality and Gypsies and Travellers)

o~

Low income on most residents

refers to ‘Protecting those
who are most vulnerable’ and
many of the residents living
and seeking this housing
provision fall within this
category. Care and support
must be given to our residents
to ensure that the impact of
decisions is minimized

Team and Members

Project Team
Meetings

This is the area of most concern |All Officers and Members The Whole Project | Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
as we are dealing with a specific |need to understand how Team and Members Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
cultural and racial group within  |decisions reached may Meetings occupation.
the Gypsy and Traveller impact on this community, No acts or statements that could be construed as
Community which is why consultation and discrimination towards this group
involvement is so vital
Religion and Belief
Based on the demographics of  [None at this present time Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
the existing residents, there are Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
no particular concerns in this area Meetings occupation.
No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group
Sex
Based on the demographics of  [None at this present time Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
the existing residents, there are Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
no particular concerns in this area Meetings occupation.
No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group
__nSexuaI Orientation
Pased on the demographics of  [None at this present time Mike Davies/ Nicole| Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that
e existing residents, there are Smith Project Team |all existing residents are able to remain in
0 particular concerns in this area Meetings occupation.
?I No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group
Other (including caring responsibilities, rurality, low income, Military Status etc)
Cultural Awareness The Corporate Business Plan| The Whole Project | Ongoing Through the | That the impact on residents is minimized and that

all existing residents are able to remain in
occupation.

No acts or statements that could be construed as
discrimination towards this group




You will need to calculate a risk score twice:

1. Onthe inherent risk of the proposal itself (without taking into account any mitigating
actions you may identify at the end of the Equality Analysis (EA) process)
2. On the risk that remains (the residual risk) after mitigating actions have been identified

This is necessary at both points to:
e Firstly, identify whether an EA needs to be completed for the proposal and;

e Secondly, to understand what risk would be left if the actions identified to mitigate
against any adverse impact are implemented

Stage 1 - to get the inherent risk rating:
1. Use the Equalities Risk Criteria Table below and score each criterion on a scale of 1 - 4 for the
impact and 1 — 4 on their likelihood of occurrence. Multiply these 2 scores together (Likelihood x
Impact) to get a score for that criterion (this will range from 1 — 16).
2. Record each of these scores in the table at the beginning of this document
3. Assess whether you need to carry out an EA using the guidance box below (stage 2).

Stage 2 - to identify whether an EA needs to be carried out:
If your inherent risk score (for any criteria) is:

12 — 16 or Red = High Risk. An Equality Analysis must be completed. Significant risks which have to
be actively managed; reduce the likelihood and/or impact through control measures.

6-9or = Medium Risk. An Equality Analysis must be completed. Manageable risks,
controls to be put in place; managers should consider the cost of implementing controls against the
benefit in the reduction of risk exposure.

3 -4 or Green = Low Risk. An Equality Analysis must be completed

1-2 or Green = Low Risk. An Equality Analysis does not have to be completed

Stage 3 - to get the residual risk rating:

1. Repeat the process above when mitigating actions have been identified and evidenced in
the table on page 3 to calculate the residual risk

2. Make a note of the residual risk score in the table on the first page of the EA template

Page 66




Equalities Risk Criteria Table

Impact

Criteria

Low

Moderate

2

Substantial 3

Legal challenge to the
Authority under the Public
Sector Equality Duty

Complaint/initial challenge
may easily be resolved

Internal investigation
following a number of
complaints or challenges

Ombudsman complaint
following unresolved complaints
or challenges

Financial
costs/implications

Little or no additional
financial implication as a
result of this decision or

Medium level implication with
internal legal costs and
internal resources

High financial impact - External
legal advice and internal
resources

@eople impacts
\l

impact on isolation, quality
of life, achievement, access
to services. Unlikely to
result in harm or injury.
Mitigating actions are
sufficient

issues i.e. Achievement,
access to services. Minor to
significant levels of harm,
injury. mistreatment or abuse
OR, low level of impact that is
possible or likely to occur with
over 500 people potentially
affected

U proposal

QO

(O

(9] No or Low or level of Significant quality of life Serious Quality of Life issues

i.e. Where isolation increases
or vulnerability is greatly
affected as aresult. Injury
and/or serious mistreatment or
abuse of an individual for
whom the Council has a
responsibility OR, a medium
level of impact that is likely to
occur with over 500 people
potentially affected

Reputational damage

Little or no impact outside
of the Council

Some negative local media
reporting

Significant to high levels of
negative front page
reports/editorial comment in




89 abed

Impact

Critical

(4)

Substantial

®3)

Moderate (2)

Low

1)

Equalities Risk Matrix

Acceptable

Very unlikely (1) Unlikely
2)

Likelihood of occurrence

©)

Actively managed

Very likely (4)




The protected characteristics:

Age - Where this is referred to, it refers to a person belonging to a particular age (e.g. 32 year olds) or
range of ages (e.g. 18 - 30 year olds). This includes all ages, including children and young people and
older people.

Disability - A person has a disability if s/he has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial
and long-term adverse effect on that person's ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities.

Gender reassignment - The process of transitioning from one gender to another.

Race - Refers to the protected characteristic of Race. It refers to a group of people defined by their race,
colour, and nationality (including citizenship) ethnic or national origins.

Religion and belief - Religion has the meaning usually given to it but belief includes religious and
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g. Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life
choices or the way you live for it to be included in the definition.

Marriage and civil partnership - Marriage is defined as a 'union between a man and a woman'.
Same-sex couples can have their relationships legally recognised as 'civil partnerships' and from 29t
March 2014, same-sex couples can also get married at certain religious venues. Civil partners must
be treated the same as married couples on a wide range of legal matters.

Pregnancy and maternity - Pregnancy is the condition of being pregnant.
Maternity refers to the period of 26 weeks after the birth, which reflects the period of a woman's ordinary
maternity leave entitlement in the employment context.

Sex (this was previously called ‘gender’) - A man or a woman.

Sexual orientation - Whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex
or to both sexes

You are also protected if you are discriminated against because you are perceived to have, or are
associated with someone who has, a protected characteristic. For example, the Equality Act will
protect people who are caring for a disabled child or relative. They will be protected by virtue of their
association to that person (e.qg. if the Carer is refused a service because of the person they are caring
for, this would amount to discrimination by association and they would be protected under the Equality
Act)

Version 1.2 August 2015 Page 69 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Rapid Health Impact Assessment

for
Possible Disposal of
Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree Field
Gypsy and Traveller Sites
at

Salisbury.

Page 71



Purpose of report

1.

To determine the health impacts upon the affected population should the
Council proceed with the disposal of the Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree
Field gypsy and traveller sites at Salisbury.

Background

2.

Travellers (including Gypsies) are usually visibly identified with caravans, but
mobility is not their defining characteristic. Travellers comprise of many groups,
each with their own lifestyle, culture and traditions. Only Gypsies and Irish
Travellers are recognised as distinct ethnic groups under the Race Relations
Act 1989. However, the experiences of second or third generation new
Travellers, although not a distinct ethnic group, are believed to be like those of
Gypsies and Irish Travellers. Other Travellers include show-people and people
living on boats (boaters).

The precise number of Travellers in England and Wiltshire is unclear. The most
recent ONS analysis released in 2014 (using 2011 Census data) recorded
58,000 in England and Wales who identified themselves as a Gypsy or Irish
Traveller (this doesn’t include those who identify themselves as other forms of
Traveller); suggesting Travellers as the smallest ethnic group accounting for
0.1% of the population in England and Wales. According to the 2011 Census,
757 people in Wiltshire identified themselves as being of Gypsy or Irish
Traveller ethnicity; 0.2% of the population. Appendix 1 shows the distribution of
gypsies in Wiltshire by Output Area. According to the latest Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) for Wiltshire, in 2014, there were 200
traveller families on permitted traveller sites in the county, totalling 634 people.

The Housing Act 2004 and the PPTS6, put in place a framework which means
every local authority must identify land for the Gypsy and Traveller sites that are
needed in its area. Wiltshire Council has responded to the Government’s policy
changes by adopting its Core Strategy which is compliant with national policy.
Core Policy 47 sets out pitch and plot targets for permanent gypsy and traveller
pitches, show people plots and transit pitches. The policy is also applied when
assessing the locational effects of traveller sites coming forward via planning
applications.

In addition, the Council is in the process of preparing a Gypsy and Traveller
Development Plan Document (DPD) which will allocate sufficient land to meet
the housing needs of gypsies and travellers and travelling show people. The
latest housing need figures are set out in the 2014 GTAA which was prepared
independently. According to that document, there is a need for 90 Gypsy and
Traveller pitches and 7 show-people plots in Wiltshire between 2014 and 2029.
The study also recommended the development of a network of emergency
stopping places.

The Housing Act 2004 requires local housing authorities to include Gypsies and
Travellers in their accommodation assessments and to take a strategic
approach, including drawing up a strategy demonstrating how the
accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers will be met, as part of their
wider housing strategies.

Wiltshire Council currently owns and/or operates 5 residential Gypsy and
Traveller sites around the county, providing a total of 100 pitches for their semi-

Page 72



permanent residents. A further 12 (As stated in Site disposal doc) pitches are
available at an established transit site in Salisbury. Gypsies and Travellers can
stay on the transit site for up to 28 days whilst they are travelling through the
county. There are currently no emergency stopping places where Gypsies and
Travellers could stop for very short periods determined by the Local Authority.

This current level of | Number of local Numbers of pitches
provision is: Area of | authority sites in in each area
the county each area
North Wiltshire Thingley 31
(1 site)
East Wiltshire 0 0
(O sites)
South Wiltshire Lode Hill 12
(3 sites) Dairy House Bridge | 18
Oak Tree Field 32
West Wiltshire Fairhaven 7
(1 site)
Odstock 1 site 12
(Transit Site)
Total 6 112

Findings from national research highlights the impact of environmental and
social conditions upon Travellers and their families who are more likely to
experience poorer general health when compared to the wider population. Poor
health is reflective of poor and inappropriate accommaodation. Site conditions
can lead to poorer mental health and insecurities. Poorer health is seen at a
younger age compared to the wider population. Research suggests that
privately owned sites tend to be healthier sites.

The sites of interest in this Rapid Health Impact Assessment (HIA) are Dairy
House Bridge and Oak Tree Field which are in the south of the county in and
around Salisbury.

Background on Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree Field Gypsy and Traveller Sites

10.

11.

Dairy House Bridge plot covers 1.16 acres. The site has 18 pitches with 13
licensees, 5 void pitches (vandalised). There are currently 35 people on site
including 14 aged under 16 years old, 2 aged between 16-24 years old, 10
aged 25-44 years old, 7 aged 45-64 years old and 2 aged 65 plus. 42% of the
population are male. Families are defined as 1 married couple, 6 couples
cohabiting, 3 single occupancies and 2 single parent families. There is also a
concern about the proximity of the homes as a potential risk to health. See
appendix 2 and appendix 4.

Oak Tree Field site covers 7.61 acres (9.58 acres including transit site). The
site comprises of 32 pitches, 26 licensees, 6 voids (3 of which are vandalised),
29 of the 32 pitches are lettable. There are currently 56 people on site, of which
48% are male; 18 are aged under 16 years old, 7 are aged 16-24 years old, 15
aged 25-44 years old, 13 aged 45-64 years old, and 3 aged over 65. Family
status includes 19 cohabiting, 12 in single occupancy and 1 married couple.
See appendix 3.

Page 73



12.

13.

It is noted that the lack of investment and repairs on these two sites are leading
to conditions which could be detrimental to the health and wellbeing of
residents. Conditions on site are extremely poor and the drains are becoming
unsustainable, resulting in constant blockages and contributing to rat
infestations. See appendix 4

The Fire Safety and Layout requirements set out in the Government's Model
Standards 2008 for Caravan Sites in England are not being met on Dairy House
Bridge. Units are either too close to each other or the boundaries to comply with
the Design Standards. Even if repairs/ remedial action is carried out on the
sites, the layout and access to the site would still be non-compliant without
substantial investment.

The Rapid Health Impact Assessment

14.

15.

16.

17.

The International Association for Impact Assessment (2006) defines a Health
Impact Assessment (HIA) as “a combination of procedures, methods and tools
that systematically judges the potential, and sometimes unintended, effects of a
policy, programme or project on both the health of a population and the
distribution of those effects within the population. HIA identifies appropriate
actions to manage those effects.”

WHO suggests that by completing the HIA it allows decision-makers to “make
choices about alternatives and improvements to prevent disease/injury and to
actively promote health” (WHO, 2011).

Although a comprehensive HIA methodology has been selected, due to the
information, time and resources available, a ‘rapid’ HIA (RHIA) has been
undertaken. A RHIA begin defined as a HIA method has been adapted to a
‘desk-top’ activity based on the time, intelligence and resource available and
completed within a short time scale. A full HIA, which would be recommended,
requires sufficient planning involves not only data gathering but extensive
engagement with partners, stakeholders and the population affected.

This RHIA is to use the Department of Health HIA approach to assess the
proposed disposal of Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree Field Gypsy and
Traveller Sites and identify the positive and adverse effects on the health of
those that might live in these communities.

Description of what is being assessed

18.

19.

The Wiltshire’s Cabinet have requested officers to bring forward the implications
of an option to consider the disposal of the Gypsy and Traveller Sites at Dairy
House Bridge and Oak Tree Field in and near Salisbury. This follows the loss of
external funding originally intended for the redevelopment of both sites.

Recent discussions with Homes England have highlighted that some new
external grant funding might be available for these sites but that the Council
would need to find the remaining funding. At a time when the Council needs to
find substantial savings and cut back on some service provision, finding the
funding required for these sites was always going to be difficult to achieve.
However, this new funding would only be available for the redevelopment of the
existing sites, which came to a total of some £5m, therefore, it is likely that the
Council would need to find something in the realm of £3m to progress this work,
subject to successful bids to obtain the balance in grant funding.

Pagea 74



20. In a paper taken forward with the options for investment into these sites, officers
were asked to examine the option for disposal to be layered in as an additional
and potentially favoured solution, given the financial constraints placed on the
Council. This HIA is therefore to consider the implications of this one solution of
disposal

21. It could be construed that that Council is not acting in a fair manner to the
existing residents, who up to this point have been led to believe that the Council
would invest in the redevelopment and creation of sustainable housing solutions
on these sites. Due of this previous decision, the council has held off some
repairs and patched to keep facilities going rather than spend additional funds
on areas that would originally have been down for complete replacement.

22. At present, there are now 10 plots on these sites that are no longer fit for letting
due to fly-tipping, vandalism and poor site conditions. This means both a loss of
rental income to the Council and an under provision of accommodation to the
wider traveller community.

23. What is becoming obvious is that the option to dispose will not come without
some expense on the part of the Council and so it comes down to a comparison
of all the options to reach a sustainable decision. Any decision not to proceed
with the redevelopment option could be discriminatory towards the traveller
communities affected without a full and proper explanation that clearly
demonstrates a transparent decision-making process.

24. A Gypsy and Traveller project team have been established to give an indication
of the level of impact a decision to dispose would have on the Council. The
team includes officers from Housing (lead officers), Strategic Assets, Legal
Services, Finance, Strategic Procurement, Public Health, Public Protection,
Corporate Services, Planning and Communications.

What is not being assessed

25. Other options include a variety of alternative funding arrangements to improve
these sites and maybe subject to the council obtaining external funding for
these options to be feasible. Other options Council management of these sites
including the repair, refurbishment and/or redesign of these sites. These
alternative options have not been considered as part of this RHIA.

Rapid Health Impact Assessment Methodology
26. Based on the Department of Health’s Health Impact Assessment Tools - Simple

tools for recording the results of the Health Impact Assessment process has
been followed (see figure 1 overleaf).

Page 75


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/216008/dh_120106.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/216008/dh_120106.pdf

Figure 1 - Health Impact Assessment Tools - Simple tools for recording the
results of the Health Impact Assessment (DoH, 2006)

STAGE 1
Screening.

Answer yes
to screening
questions

STAGE 2
Identify health

impacts.

¥

STAGE 3
Prioritise important
health impacts.

¥

STAGE 4
Analysis: quantify
or describe
health impacts.

v

STAGE S
Recommendations
to improve policy.

//F’Inlsh HIA. Include
findings In
'\I\n_'lpal:t Assessment.

Answer no
to screening
questions.

Finish HIA. Include

Mo Important
L findings In
Impact Assessment.

health Impacts
Identifled

,/lf:—l_nlsh HIA. Include
findings In
\\I:npact Assessment.

Page 76



Stage 1 — Screening

Screening Question

Proposal: To Consider the implications of an option to dispose of the Gypsy and Traveller
Sites at Dairy House Bridge and Oak Tree Field in and near Salisbury.

Will the proposal have a
direct impact on health,
mental health and wellbeing?

Yes.

Uncertainly and stress for residents will impact
on mental health and wellbeing.

Disappointment of residents as Council has
changed its approach to managing these two
sites

Current conditions of sites do not comply with
government design standards for caravan sites
Drainage on both sites is cause for concern

Two sites are reflecting lack of responsive
repair, if action is not undertaken subsequent
non-action will be potentially harmful to human
health

Should redesign or refurbishment be undertaken
by current or new site owners there is a potential
this may require displacement of the population
which will have implications for residents,
including children (consider schooling options
etc).

Will the proposal have an
impact on social, economic
and environmental living
conditions that would
indirectly affect health?

Yes.

As above

However, a solution is being sought as a result
of potential disinvestment.

Selling the sites could have positive and / or
negative impact on the health of residents. One
of the conditions of sale will include that the land
of the site will be for traveller use. The new land
owner will be obligated to improve site
conditions, in line with national and local
regulations — we are selling them as non-
compliant.

Will the proposal affect an
individual’s ability to improve
their own health and
wellbeing?

Yes.

Whilst work is being undertaken, there will be
disruption, which could contribute to a negative
impact on health and wellbeing (e.g. noise,
access to facilities).

Will there be a change in
demand for or access to
health and social care
services?

Yes -

Potential

Potential impact on social services, education
services, health care services (e.g. seeking
mental wellbeing support).

Page 77




g,) abed

Stage 2 & 3 - Identify and prioritise the potential health impacts

Stage 2 - identify the health impacts

Stage 3 - health

impacts

prioritise

Will the health impacts
affect the whole population
or will there be differential
impacts within the
population?

Will the health
impacts be
difficult to remedy
or have an
irreversible
impact?

Will health be impacted
in the medium to long
term?

Are the health impacts
likely to generate public
concern?

Combining the answers, on balance
will the health impacts have an
important positive or negative
impact on health.

Provide a brief overview of the
reason for your decision on
prioritization.

The impact on one site may
differ from another site.
Residents will be consulted
with and supported through
the process. The whole
population of both sites will
be affected.

Consider that this proposal
can disproportionally affect
the young. Out of the 85
travellers located across
both sites, nearly 48% of
the residents are 24 or
under, if you include those
aged up to 44 years old this
accounts for nearly 78% of
the population.

Selling the land
may cause initial
uncertainty in the
existing
population.

Council will do
short term work to
mitigate against
risks to health
and wellbeing.
Short-term

Medium to long term,
with an emphasis that
health and wellbeing
will be improved in the
long term.

Possibly. Some negative
publicity for the council is
likely, however wider
population may have less
concerns.

Local impact (G&T
families), wider population
is likely to support the
council approach.

Current living conditions put
physical and mental health at risk.
The proposed way forward may
cause some initial anxiety and
impact on mental wellbeing but the
long-term outcome should have
positive benefits for those living on
both sites.




Stage 4 Analysis

27. Consideration needs to be given to the disproportionally effect on young
populations across these sites. Out of the 85 travellers located across both
sites, nearly 48% of the residents are 24 or under, if you include those aged up
to 44 years old this accounts for nearly 78% of the population.

28. Current living conditions put physical and mental health at risk. The proposed
way forward may cause some initial anxiety and impact on mental wellbeing but
the long-term outcome should have positive benefits for those living on both
sites.

Stage 5 Recommendations

29. Given the council current financial status and the requirements of the sites, it is
important that we consider all the options available to us. The option to dispose
of the site is but one of those solutions. It is accepted that the current state of
both sites will have a potential to negatively impact upon health. Therefore,
whichever situation is chosen will have to be carefully managed to mitigate
against any major health or wellbeing issues within the affected populations.

30. If time and resource allowed then a full HIA would be recommended, noting this
requires sufficient planning and implementation that involves not only data
gathering but extensive engagement with partners, stakeholders and the
population affected.

31. If time and resource allows, it would be worthwhile considering the health
impacts of the other options, should they be feasible and viable.

Conclusions

1. Findings from national research highlights the impact of environmental and
social conditions upon Travellers and their families who are more likely to
experience poorer general health when compared to the wider population. Poor
health is reflective of poor and inappropriate accommodation. Site conditions
can lead to poorer mental health and insecurities. Poorer health is seen at a
younger age compared to the wider population. Research suggests that
privately owned sites tend to be healthier sites.

2. Itis noted that the lack of investment and repairs on these two sites are leading
to conditions which could be detrimental to the health and wellbeing of
residents.

3. It is recommended that all options be explored fully within appropriate
timescales, including the financial impact of these options, if any, on the council,
and in doing so to ensure that the final option chosen is balanced with the
health and wellbeing of the residents in the short and long term.

Author Steve Maddern, Public Health Consultant, Wiltshire Council

February 2018

Page 79



Appendix 1 — Traveller locations across Wiltshire

Source: Office for National Statistics, 2011 Census

Pageo80



Appendix 2 - Dairy House Bridge Site

Source: To be added

Page 81



Appendix 3 - Oak Tree Field

Salisbury
District Hospital

Source: To be added

Page282



Appendix 4: Examples of site conditions

Picture 1: Dairy House Bridge Site Picture 2: Dairy House Bridge Site,
showing close proximity of homes

Picture 3: Oak Tree Field Site, Picture 4: Oak Tree Field Site, Shower
Bathroom room

Picture 5: Oak Tree Field Site, Kitchen

Source: To be added

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Gg abed

APPENDIX 7

Options Appraisal Summary — Oak Tree Field and Dairy House Bridge

Option | Description No. pitches | Financial Financial Safeguarding Health & Health & Equalities Place Comments
in use Implications — | Implications | & Education Wellbeing Safety Shaping/Planning
Capital - Revenue Implications Implications
1. Do nothing. No 30 £0 £1.08m Reduction in Significantly Collapsing Gypsies and Core strategy Not recommended.
capital investment. permanent deficit over pitches will reduced drainage at travellers are a | requirement for
Ongoing minimum reducing to 25 years mean reduced provision for DHB would protected pitches not met. Although financially the
responsive repairs. | 5 by 2035. opportunity for | this minority require minority under impact is the lowest,
vulnerable ethnic group closure of the | equalities The 50 permanent and | the implications for
0 transit gypsy and therefore more | site. legislation. The | 12 transit pitches are | gypsies and travellers
pitches traveller families | likelihood of Poor current sites do | counted in existing are significant.
to find transience of drainage at not provide provision in the core
affordable this community | OTF creates | equitable strategy. Taking these | In addition the lack of a
accommodation | with less stable | issues with standards to out of use will create a | transit site in Wiltshire
affecting safety, | accommodation | rats & drain those in housing | pressure for additional | leads to limited options
security and affecting family | blockages including pitches to meet need. | for enforcement in
educational & health and and lack of council housing. relation to
employment wellbeing. investment It is difficult to find and | unauthorised
opportunities would lead to develop new pitches development or
gradual both for private and encampment
closure of public sector owners.
pitches over
time. Also
electrical
infrastructure
outdated and
in need of
renewal
2. Refurbishment of 50 £3.25m £4.7m deficit | Retains the full | Improved Fire risk Refurbishment | Core strategy Not recommended.
existing amenity permanent over 25 years | number of conditions of would remain | of existing requirement for pitch Ongoing financial
buildings, renewing | pitches permanent and | amenity due to poor facilities would numbers met (ie. Not | pressures due to
drainage and transit pitches. buildings and pitch spacing | greatly improve | making the position outgoings exceeding
reopening transit 12 transit This ensures drainage not conditions for worse) income.
site pitches there is infrastructure addressed. this minority Expensive option in
accommodation | will improve However, group. terms of initial capital
available for health and improved input.
gypsies and wellbeing for drainage Although conditions
travellers and residents. infrastructure would be much
that standards would improved this option
and conditions improve does not address the
are reasonable. conditions. following issues;
(Communal utility
metering
(i)Poor pitch spacing
(iif) Small, single skin
amenity blocks.
(iv) Unable to increase




98 obed

rents as this would just
be repairing what
exists (planned
maintenance) rather
than improving so
costs will continue to
exceed income.

3a. Demolish and build | 45 £3.03m £1.23m Improved site Improved site Removes Improved site Slight reduction in Recommended for
new amenity permanent | (assuming deficit over conditions, conditions and | health and layouts as well | availability of consideration.
buildings providing pitches grant funding 25 years modern facilities | modern safety as renewing permanent and transit
new infrastructure of £3.15m*) enabling a good | facilities will concerns drainage, pitches. Significant capital
and individual utility standard of ensure better created by utilities, investment is required.
metering and affordable health and poor pitch electrical A reduction of However, the annual
reopening transit 4 transit accommodation. | wellbeing for spacing, poor | infrastructure permanent and transit | revenue deficit is
site with reduced pitches Slightly reduced | residents with drainage and | and providing pitches available will reduced after
number of pitches number of both | heated amenity | electrical new, larger create a pressure for | repayment of the initial
permanent and | blocks suitable | infrastructure | amenity blocks | additional pitches to investment over 25
transit pitches. for bathing and | and poor will ensure meet need. years after which time
However, good | cooking as well | condition of gypsies and the sites start to
quality of as larger amenity travellers It is difficult to find and | generate higher
pitches will pitches to blocks. In receive a high develop new pitches income than
enable families | enable space addition, new | standard of both for private and outgoings. Also, rents
to have an for children to provision will | accommodation | public sector owners. | are able to increase
affordable home | play safely. enhance and high quality significantly to help
which will help amenity service. Reduced transit meet the costs of the
with safety, space and provision will also lead | investment.
security and use of that to difficulties with By completely
ability to access space. enforcement. renewing the
education and infrastructure, this
employment enables individual
water and electricity
meters to be installed
so that the council is
no longer responsible
for individual pitch
utilities.
3b. Demolish and build | 54 £3.68m £1.51m Improved site Improved site Removes Improved site Increase in availability | Recommended for
new amenity permanent | (assuming deficit over conditions, conditions and | health and layouts as well | of permanent pitches | consideration.
buildings providing | pitches grant funding 25 years modern facilities | modern safety as renewing and retention of transit
new infrastructure of £3.78m%*) enabling a good | facilities will concerns drainage, pitches therefore Significant capital
and individual utility standard of ensure better created by utilities, contributes additional | investment is required.
metering and affordable health and poor pitch electrical provision to meet the However, the annual
reopening the transit | 12 transit accommodation. | wellbeing for spacing, poor | infrastructure needs identified revenue deficit is
site maximising pitches Slightly reduced | residents with drainage and | and providing through the core reduced after
number of pitches number of both | heated amenity | electrical new, larger strategy. repayment of the initial
permanent and | blocks suitable | infrastructure | amenity blocks investment over 25
transit pitches. for bathing and | and poor will ensure years after which time
However, good | cooking as well | condition of gypsies and the sites start to
quality of as larger amenity travellers generate higher
pitches will pitches to blocks. In receive a high income than




/g abed

enable families

enable space

addition, new

standard of

outgoings. Also, rents

to have an for children to provision will | accommodation are able to increase
affordable home | play safely. enhance and high quality significantly to help
which will help amenity service. meet the costs of the
with safety, space and investment.
security and use of that By completely
ability to access space renewing the
education and infrastructure, this
employment enables individual
water and electricity
meters to be installed
so that the council is
no longer responsible
for individual pitch
utilities.
Dispose of both 50 pitches | £0 — may £0 New owners With little or no | There is a There is a risk The same number of | Possible consideration.
sites on the open achieve capital may not control by the risk that that the new permanent pitches
market as gypsy 0 transit receipt but manage the site | Council of the health and owners would would be maintained. | There will be capital
and traveller sites & | pitches unlikely due to in a fair, open sites there may | safety issues | not operate an | However, it is likely works required by the

close transit site

current
conditions on
the sites

and transparent
way and may
not allow access
for all.
Therefore
vulnerable
households may
be excluded
from accessing
these sites by
the owners.
Also families
who are able to
stay on the sites
may be subject
to more
stringent site
conditions that
could create a
safeguarding
concern.

be additional
health and
wellbeing
concerns for
residents as
site conditions
would be
subject to the
owner’s ability
to make
improvements.
However, a
new owner may
be prepared to
invest to enable
improvements
and therefore
site conditions
would improve.
The concern
would be for
those unable to
access the
sites due to
restrictive
allocations
procedures or if
the new owner
required a
substantial
deposit and

would not be
adequately
addressed.
With sites in
private
ownership
responsibility
for monitoring
this falls to
the private
sector
housing
team. There
may be
enforcement
issues if sites
are handed
over by the
council in a
poor
condition.

equitable
allocations
policy. As
private owners
this would be
within their
control.

Gypsies and
travellers unable
to access the
sites or those
evicted may be
left with limited
options for
alternative
accommodation.

Due to the close
location of the
transit site to
OTF, it would be
difficult for the
council to
continue to
retain and
operate the
transit site as
there would be
an inevitable
shifting of blame
with shared

that an alternative site
would need to be
found to run the transit
site provision.

Lack of a transit site
can lead to
enforcement issues
where there are
unauthorised
encampments across
the county.

new owner to get the
sites to an acceptable
standard which will
Impact on the site
value.

Transferring ownership
removes the ongoing
revenue deficit created
by the sites.

However, the Council
also loses control over
use of the permanent
pitches and there are
risks around how the
sites would be
allocated, managed
and maintained in the
future.

The possible need to
close the transit site

would also impact on
enforcement activity.




high rents to

responsibility for

enable access and
residents to utilities for
stay on the example.
sites.

*Assumed £70K grant per permanent pitch.

8g abed




Link to
Risk Ref JRisk Risk Cor?orate Owner
Category |Business
Plan
[ 1 T 1T 1
1 Residents go to Media to dispute | Reputation An Mike
the Council's approach, increase in innovative |Davies/
complaints, MP letters and and Nicole
petitions effective |Smith
council
2 Increase in rent arrears and high Financial An Mike
voids innovative |Davies/
and Nicole
effective |Smith/
council JLeanne
Sykes
3 Potential increase in fly tipping / Health & | Protecting |Mike
damage Safety those who |Davies/
are most |Nicole
vulnerable |Smith/
Leanne
Sykes
4 The lack of investment and repairs | Health & | Protecting |Tim
on these two sites are leading to Safety those who [Bruce/
conditions which could be are most |Janet
prejuducial to health vulnerable |OBrien/
Leanne
Sykes
5 Dairy House Bridge is fast Reputation An Tim
becoming unsustainable with only innovative |Bruce/
13 of the 18 units in occupation and Janet
and the overall layout is non- effective ]OBrien
compliant. Increased fly tipping, council
vandalisation and loss of rental
income and unmet housing need

Page 89




6 The current Transit site which is Legislative | Protecting [Tim
next to Oak Tree Field has been those who |Bruce/
closed for 4+ years and there are are most |lanet
no suitable facilities on site to vulnerable |OBrien
bring it back into use without
investment. This is a breach of
planning obligations

7 Attracting contractors to carry out | Financial An Tim
the remedial works innovative |Bruce/

and Janet
effective ]OBrien
council

8 Contract delivery will require All An Tim
constant supervision which will innovative |Bruce/
have resource implications for the and Janet
Council effective ]OBrien

council

9 Disruption to marketing process All Strong  |Mike

communitie |[Dawson
S
10 Inability to dispose of the site Legislative | Protecting |Mike
those who |Dawson/
are most |Leanne
vulnerable |Sykes

Page 90




11 No financial value generated Financial [Growing the|Mike
economy [Dawson/
Leanne
Sykes
12 Resrictions on sale of land. All Protecting |Graham
those who |Garrett
are most
vulnerable
13 Preferred bidder is unable to All Protecting |Graham
secure a site licence. those who |Garrett
are most
vulnerable
14 The cost of surveys, remedial Financial | Protecting JLeanne
works and disposal process to be those who |Sykes
met from G & T revenue budget. are most
Not yet fully determine but could vulnerable
range from £20k to £120k
19 Residents end up on the road or Reputation | Protecting [Highways
double up on private sites. those who [Enforcem
are most |entand
vulnerable |planning
services.
20 Increased difficulty meeting Financial Strong  |Planning
identified need through site communitie |&
allocations in the Local Plan. S Property
Services

Page 91




21 Increased need for affordable Financial Strong  |Planning
pitches to be made available communitie J& Housing
through Local Plan allocations. s

22 Unable to guage resident's Reputation Strong  |Spatial
accommodation needs communitie [Planning

S

Page 92



Cause Primary Impact Secondary Impact Likelihood| - Impact
(1-4) (1-4)
R A R
Residents consider the |Adverse publicity and Officer time dealing with
Council has failed to Local members placed |media enquiries and
deliver promises made, |under pressure members having to make
residents are angry and statements 4 2
frustarted with the
Council
Residents discontinue Financial - loss of Health & Safety due to
paying rent. Residents [income incraese fly tipping and
move to different damage to voids
location and voids 4 3
increase
Loss of respect for site, |Health & Safety to Finanical impact to
decide to residents, remove hazardous waste
3 3
For a number of years Conditions on site are  |The residents on site have
these sites were extremely poor and the |been patient but this
intended for drains in particular are |patience is now running
redevelopment however, |becoming unsustainable |out as the Council have
the source of funding for |and causing rat not delivered on
this investment has since |infestations and redevelopment of both
been withdrawn. Bids for |constant blockages these sites 4 4
external funding will not
be available to carry out
repairs and remedial
works.
The Fire Safety and Units are either too Even if we were carry out
Layout requirements set |close to each other or  |repairs/ remedial action to
out in the Government's [the boundaries to the site, the layout and
Model Standards 2008 |comply with the Design |access to the site would 3 4
for Caravan Sites in Standards still be non-compliant
England are not being without substantial
met on Dairy House investment.
Bridge

Page 93




The use of current transit
site was always included
the original
redevelopment
proposals but the Council
has been unable to
identify any alternative
sites.

Having a transit site next
to a permanent site is
unlikely to be sussessful
or sustainable and will
lead to disputes and
excessive management
time to keep all
residents satisfied

Resident dissatisfaction
whether we invest or not
as there will be an impact
on them which ever
decision is reached

Contractors are likely to
increase their costs on
any works that are seen
to not fully address the
needs of the community.
Residents refusing to
accept the Council's
decisions may refuse
access to complete the
required works

Any prices are likely to
include high risk
allowances for
undertaking and
completing the work
unless an effective
partnership can be
created between the
contractor, the Council
and the residents.

Time delays as attracting
suitable and sufficient
contractors may prove
difficult unless grounds
can be found a more
negotiated contract.

Unless the residents are
onboard and there is the
understanding that
flexibility will be required
to deliver the works, the
contract may be
extremely difficult to
effectively deliver within
a reasonable timeframe

Tendered or agreed
prices do not reflect the
actual cost of delivering
the works and either the
contractor has difficulty
in delivering the works
or the Council ends up
paying considerably
more for the works

The works will
inconvenient and may
prevent residents having
access to batheing or
cooking facilities for times
of the day on an individual
basis whilst works to the
drains could effect many
residents

Residents on site
refusing access and other
forms of disruption

Inability to market site
effectively

Lask of site access

Title issues

Defective title results in
legal impedement on
sale of site

Delay to sale of site

Page 94




Market perceives no
value in the sites

Disposal of site would
be at a loss to the
Council

0

Restrications placed on
title preventing or
limiting the ability to sell

Properties cannot be
sold or can only be sold
with the consent of a
third party.

Delay due to seeking the
consent of a third pary and
additional costs in meeting
requirements of a third

party.

The preferred bidder is
either incapable or
unlikely to be granted a
site licence

Properties cannot be
sold.

Properties are retained by
the council.

Lack of investment over
the last few years with
redevelopment having
been the proposed
route. Withdrawal of
government funding

Having to met from a
budget which is unlikely
to cover everything
required and so
overspentinaime
where savings are
required

Resident dissatisfaction
with this course of action

Residents are forced to
leave the site after sell-
off or struggle to pay
rents.

Increase in unauthorised
encampments or
overcrowding on private
sites. Residents end up
homeless.

Additional enforcement
cases. More applicants on
Council register.

Residents leaving the site
are officially in 'need' as
they become homeless.

Insufficient supply to
meet need through land
allocations. Council to
purchase additional land
for allocation.

Additional costs to
purchase land on the open
market to ensure
sufficient suitable land is
allocated in the Local Plan.

Page 95




As a follow on risk from
the above. Residents
leaving the site cannot
afford
purchasing/renting a
pitch on existing or new
sites.

Council to ensure
affordable pitches are
available on new sites
allocated in the Plan
given the evidence on
increased need/demand
following sell-off.

Increased risk to Local Plan
robustness as RSL or
Council may have to step
in to bring forward a
proportion of new sites
with affordable pitches
that remain so in
perpetuity.

Residents being upset
about the prospect of
change of site
ownership.

Residents unwilling to
cooperate when
approached for
interviews as part of the
next Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation
Assessment (likely to be
this year).

Incomplete 'needs' data
for Local Plan review and
site allocations.

Page 96




Inherent

K Controls
Risk

1. Develop a
Communications Plan to
ensure there is a joined
up process for dealing
with enquiries

Likelihood
(1-4)

Impact
(1-4)

Residual
Risk

1. Clear communication
2. Robust action on
arrears process

3. Regular estate visits

1. Clear communication
2. Regular estate visits

1. Commission up to
date condition surveys
to determine the level of
investment required to
maintain the existing
tenancies

2. Obtain funding to
undertake essential and
emergency works to
ensure the safety and
well being of the existing
residents

1. Consider closure on
Dairy House Bridge

2. Focus investment on
to a single site, but this
would reduce the
Council's overall
provision for the G&T
Community

Page 97



1. The Council needs to
find alternative sites to
use as temporary
accommodation
(Transit) within the
County

2. Maintain the site at
Oak Tree Field as a
permanent Transit Site is
unlikely to be successful

1. Consider issuing a
notice of intention to
carry out works and
interview prospective
contractors to
determine if a
negotiated contract may
prove more successful.
2. Accept that traditional
tendering, which places
the majority of the risk
with the contractor, will
be unlikely to deliver
value for money

Creation of an effective
partnership to complete
the works will take a
great deal of trust and
negotiation, but
investing in creating this
platform will be
resource demanding on
the Council

1. Communication
strategy to be reobust
2. Clear time line issued
to residents

3. Complementary
means of issuing site
information

1. Clear due diligence on
site prior to marketing

Page 98




1. Estimate of site value
obtained from outset
2. Cabinet decision
accepts may not yield a
significant value

3. Determine whether
any works would
enhance the site value

1. Undertake title
investigation at an early
stage to identify any
possible issues.

1. Bidders should be
required to engage with
the Licencing Team
before submitting bids
or such information as
will be required for an
application for a site
licence should form part
of all bids.

Difficult to avoid the
need to keep people
safe but
decommisioning of one
site may reduce the
potential overspend but
create other difficulties

Free pre-application
advice to travellers;
development plan
policies guiding new
development if residents
wish to develop private

Seek approval from
members to purchase
additional land
otherwise failure to get
Local Plan through
examination.

Page 99




As above. Allocate sites
for delivery of affordable
pitches. Seek delivery
partner but judged to be
difficult at this point as
repeat of current
exercise basically.

Communications
Strategy underpinning
GTAA project.

Page 100




Agenda Iltem 8

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

15 May 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Development Plan
Document - Proposed Submission

Cabinet Member: Councillor Toby Sturgis - Planning and Strategic Asset
Management

Key Decision: Yes

Executive Summary

The Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted January 2015) plans for housing to come
forward through several sources including: strategic site allocations,
neighbourhood planning, planning applications and site allocations plans. The
Council’s Local Development Scheme presents a commitment to prepare two
site allocations plans, as anticipated by the Wiltshire Core Strategy. The
Chippenham Site Allocations Plan was adopted by Council on 16 May 2017
and plans for the delivery of homes and employment opportunities at
Chippenham. The Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is being prepared for
the rest of Wiltshire.

Consultation has now been undertaken on the ‘Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan - Pre-submission draft plan (June 2017)’ (the draft Plan),
following approval by Cabinet on 20 June 2017. This draft Plan has been
prepared to:

(1) Allocate new sites for housing to ensure the delivery of the Wiltshire
Core Strategy housing requirement of at least 42,000 dwellings
(2006-2026) and maintain a five-year housing land supply in each of
Wiltshire’s three Housing Market Areas over the period to 2026; and

(i) Review, where necessary, settlement boundaries (or ‘limits of
development’) in relation to the Principal Settlements of Salisbury
and Trowbridge, Market Towns, Local Service Centres and Large
Villages.

The formal consultation stage, where representations are invited on the
soundness of the Plan, ended on 22 September 2017. At the close of
consultation approximately 3,370 comments had been received approximately
970 consultees. In broad terms, most of the comments were concerned with
the purpose of the plan and its methodology for selecting sites. A considerable
proportion of the representations focussed on the proposed site allocations in
Trowbridge and Salisbury. A more limited response related to the settlement
boundary review proposals.

Page 101



Having reviewed the comments received, Officers consider there are none
which raise fundamental issues of soundness that would preclude the
submission of the Plan to the Secretary of State for Examination. As explained
in the report they generally present different interpretations of the evidence
base or raise concerns regarding individual sites which is to be expected at this
stage of the process.

The National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 216) anticipates that
‘unresolved objections’ will need to be addressed through the Examination
process. To inform and assist the Examination process a number of ‘changes’
are proposed to the draft Plan that respond to representations received for
consideration by the appointed Inspector. These ‘Proposed Changes’ are
categorised as either being ‘minor’ - i.e. not affecting the substance of the draft
Plan, or ‘main’ - i.e. they affect the content of the draft Plan and hence will be
considered through the Examination.

The next stage involves the submission of the draft Plan and other documents
prescribed by legislation to the Secretary of State, who will appoint an
Inspector. The Plan and all submitted evidence, including the representations
received through the formal consultation undertaken in 2017, will then be
independently and robustly examined in terms of legal compliance and
soundness.

Subject to Cabinet endorsement and Council approval, submission of the draft
Plan, together with the Proposed Changes, will be possible by end June 2018.
This accords with the latest Local Development Scheme (September 2017)
and will ensure that the Council continues to make timely progress with its
Local Plan and improve the supply of housing land.

Endorsement of the Proposed Changes is therefore sought along with
delegated authority to proceed with the next stages to enable the Plan to move
through the submission and Examination stages as efficiently as possible.

Proposals
That having considered the outcome of the formal consultation, Cabinet:

() Endorses the draft Plan as sound and legally compliant, as set out
Appendix 1;

(i)  Endorses the schedule of Proposed Changes to the draft Plan in
Appendix 1, as set out in Appendix 2, for submission to the Secretary of
State for Housing, Communities and Local Government to inform and
assist the Examination process;

(i) Recommends that Council approves the draft Plan together with the
Proposed Changes and supporting information for submission to the
Secretary of State to commence the independent Examination process
subject to amendment in (iv);

Page 102




(iv) Authorises the Director of Economic Development and Planning in
consultation with the Director of Legal and Democratic Services and the
Cabinet Member for Planning and Strategic Asset Management to:

(a) make any necessary changes to the Plan and supporting documents
in the interests of clarity and accuracy before it is submitted to the
Secretary of State;

(b) make appropriate arrangements for submission of all documents
relating to the Plan, including the supporting evidence (including the
Equalities Impact Assessment required by Section 149 of the
Equalities Act 2010 at Appendix 6), to the Secretary of State;

(c) make all the necessary arrangements for Examination including - the
appointment of a Programme Officer, the undertaking and/or
commissioning of other work necessary to prepare for and participate
at the Examination; and the delegation to officers and other
commissioned experts to prepare and submit evidence to the
Examination and where necessary, appear at any hearing sessions
and represent the Council;

(d) authorise that officers request that the Secretary of State recommends
modifications to make the Plan sound in accordance with Section 20
(7C) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as
amended); and

(e) implement any consequential actions as directed by the Inspector
relating to the Examination, including undertaking any consultation
where necessary, in order to respond to matters raised through the
Examination.

Reason for Proposal(s)

To ensure that progress continues to be made on maintaining an up-to-date
development plan for Wiltshire, in line with the timetable set out in the Council’s
Local Development Scheme and statutory requirements.

In accordance with legislative requirements, the proposed resolution enables
the submission of a sound Plan. The Council will need to approve the
submission of the Plan to the Secretary of State for Examination.

| Alistair Cunningham - Corporate Director, Growth Investment and Place

Page 103



Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

15 May 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Development Plan

Document - Proposed Submission

Cabinet Member: Councillor Sturgis - Planning and Strategic Asset

Management

Key Decision: Yes

Purpose of Report

1.

To:

0] Update Cabinet on the outcome of the formal consultation on the
‘Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - Pre-submission draft plan
(June 2017)'.

(i) Seek Cabinet’s recommendation to Council that the Plan, together
with the schedule of Proposed Changes, should be approved for
the purposes of submission to the Secretary of State and
commencement of the independent Examination process.

(i)  Seek delegated authority to make appropriate arrangements for
submitting the prescribed documents and supporting materials to
the Secretary of State; and respond to any consequential actions
as directed by the Inspector relating to the Examination.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2.

Progression of the Plan through the Examination process and on towards
adoption will enable the sustainable delivery of new homes in line with the
Wiltshire Core Strategy and overarching aims of the Business Plan 2017-
2027 ‘Forward Thinking’. One of the four priorities, ‘Growing the
Economy’, recognises the importance of improving housing supply.
Progression of the Plan will help deliver the Council’s aim to ensure
“‘Development where it is needed” under the “Housing and Environment
(sustainable development)” goal in the Business Plan.

Background

3.

The Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted January 2015) sets out a strategic
approach to the delivery of sustainable development over the period 2006-
2026. It anticipates that housing will come forward through a variety of
sources, including: strategically important sites (e.g. Ashton Park,
Trowbridge); neighbourhood plans; planning applications (e.g. windfall
development); and site allocations development plan documents. In

Page 104



addition, the Wiltshire Core Strategy recognised that ‘settlement
boundaries’ (or ‘limits of development’) would need to be reviewed to
ensure that they are up-to-date.

4, The need to bring forward new homes through site allocations plans was
identified to provide a surety of housing land supply across Wiltshire’s
three Housing Market Areas over the period to 2026. The ‘Wiltshire
Housing Site Allocations - Pre-submission draft Plan (June 2017)’ (the
draft Plan) has been prepared in conformity with the Wiltshire Core
Strategy and seeks to:

() Allocate new sites for housing to ensure the delivery of the Wiltshire
Core Strategy housing requirement of at least 42,000 dwellings
(2006-2026) and maintain a five-year housing land supply in each
of Wiltshire’s three Housing Market Areas over the period to 2026;
and

(i) Review, where necessary, settlement boundaries (or ‘limits of
development’) in relation to the Principal Settlements of Salisbury
and Trowbridge, Market Towns, Local Service Centres and Large
Villages.

5. The Settlement Strategy (Core Policy 1) and the Delivery Strategy (Core
Policy 2) together with the relevant Area Strategy Core Policies (Section
5) of the Core Strategy guide where and how much development should
take place to provide a sustainable pattern of growth over the period 2006-
2026.

6. Core Policy 2 sets out housing requirements on the basis of Housing
Market Areas (HMAs) and indicative requirements are provided in the
Area Strategy Policies for: Wiltshire’s Community Areas; the Principal
Settlements and Market Towns; and, in the South Wiltshire HMA, the
Local Service Centres. These figures are not intended to be prescriptive
minima or maxima and instead are meant to be viewed as an indication of
the general scale of growth appropriate for each area and settlement
during the period up to 2026. The figures are therefore expressed as
‘approximate’ or ‘about’. In accordance with Core Policy 2, sites for
housing development may come forward through new allocations on the
edge of settlement boundaries where they are identified in neighbourhood
plans or site allocations plans.

7. On 16 May 2017, Council adopted the Chippenham Site Allocations Plan,
which reviewed the settlement boundary of Chippenham and allocates
land for 2,050 homes at the town. The draft Plan complements the
Chippenham Site Allocations Plan in reviewing settlement boundaries and
providing land for additional homes, where needed, elsewhere in the
County consistent with the Core Strategy and its spatial strategy.

Main Considerations for the Council

8. As a subsidiary document to the Core Strategy, the draft Plan has a
specific purpose, namely, to support the delivery of the housing

Page 105



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

requirements and furtherance of the Area Strategies, including the review
of settlement boundaries. Therefore, the draft Plan does not provide an
opportunity to revisit the strategic policies within the Core Strategy, for
example the status of settlements, or the broad disaggregation of housing
requirements.

Work on the draft Plan commenced in March 2014 when the Regulation
18! consultation on the proposed scope of the draft Plan was carried out.
At the same time, there was an open ‘call for sites’ to enable interested
parties to put forward land for consideration through the draft Plan.
Informal, targeted consultation was undertaken on: draft proposals for
amending settlement boundaries (July to September 2014); a draft site
selection methodology and initial site options (February to March 2015);
and further consultation on the approach to Large Villages (June to August
2015). Details of these consultations together with the representations
received and Council’s response is set out in the report on the Council’s
website via this link.

Cabinet on 20 June 2017 considered and approved the ‘Wiltshire Housing
Site Allocations Plan - Pre-submission draft plan (June 2017)’ (draft Plan)
for the purpose of undertaking a formal stage of consultation.

The overall level of growth proposed for allocation in the draft Plan is
2,465 homes; with 1,205 homes in the North and West HMA (14 sites),
350 homes in the East HMA (4 sites) and 910 homes in the South HMA (6
sites). Where appropriate, it also proposed revisions to settlement
boundaries to ensure they properly reflect development that has occurred
since they were first established and a consistent approach is taken
across Wiltshire. This was except for those boundaries that had recently
been reviewed through sufficiently advanced neighbourhood plans and did
not require further updates to take into consideration implemented
development. Methodologies underpinned both the site assessment
process and settlement boundary review, which have been published
alongside the Agenda (see Topic Papers 1 and 2 provided as supporting
documents to this report).

Consultation took place on the draft Plan, as set out in Appendix 1, for a
period of 10 weeks, commencing 4 July 2017 and ending 22 September
2017. During the first two weeks of the consultation four public exhibitions
were held at Chippenham, Salisbury, Devizes and Trowbridge.

Full details of this consultation, together with a summary of the
representations received and the Council’s response is set out in the
consultation statement, which has been published alongside the Agenda.
This is known as the Regulation 22 (1) (c) Statement?.

At this stage in the process, if the Council wishes to make any changes to
the draft Plan to address matters arising from the Regulation 19
consultation, the (Procedural Practice in the Examination of Local Plans,

! Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended)
2 Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended)

Page 106


http://wiltshire.objective.co.uk/portal/spatial_planning/sites_dpd/draftwhsap?tab=info

15.

The Planning Inspectorate, June 2016) gives the Council a choice as to
how to proceed:

(i) The changes could be prepared as an addendum to the draft Plan. Any
such modifications would be subject to further consultation and
Sustainability Appraisal before submission to the Secretary of State for
Examination in order that the Inspector appointed to Examine the draft
Plan can consider these as part of the submitted plan. This further
consultation would lead to a delay to the submission of the draft Plan
at a time when the Government are urging Local Planning Authorities
to make timely progress on their Local Plans and to boost the supply of
housing. The Local Development Scheme anticipates submission of
the draft Plan in June 2018; or

(i) The Council can submit to the Secretary of State a schedule of
Proposed Changes to inform and assist the Examination process. By
virtue of Section 20(7C) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
(as amended) the Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State to
Examine the draft Plan can recommend that these modifications and
any other modifications that arise through the Examination process are
made in order to resolve matters of legal compliance and soundness.
However, the Council must make a formal request under Section
20(7C) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as
amended) for this to happen. In these circumstances, any
modifications that arise through the Examination process and
recommended by the Inspector would then be the subject to
consultation and Sustainability Appraisal before the Inspector can
make his or her final recommendations through a report to the Council
and close the Examination. Following this process and submitting the
draft Plan in June 2018 for Examination would be in accordance with
the Council’s current Local Development Scheme.

It is considered that the second option would provide the most pragmatic
option to ensure timely progress can be made.

Representations on the draft Plan

At the close of the consultation on the draft Plan, approximately 3,370
comments had been received from approximately 970 people or separate
organisations. One petition consisting of 5 ‘e-signatures’ relating to the
proposed housing allocations at Netherhampton Road, Salisbury was
received during the consultation period. A further 237 paper-copy
signatures were added to this petition after the consultation period closed.
In the weeks following the close of the consultation period, approximately
30 additional comments were also received. These comments were
logged separately and marked as ‘unduly made’ representations as they
were not submitted within the consultation period. Whilst these
representations were submitted late, they will nonetheless be sent to the
Secretary of State along with all other submission documents to ensure
that the appointed Inspector has a record of all representations.

Page 107



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

In broad terms, most of the comments were concerned with the purpose of
the draft Plan and its methodology for allocating land for

housing. Moreover, a considerable proportion of the representations from
local communities focussed on the proposed site allocations in Trowbridge
and Salisbury. These tended to focus on detailed technical matters such
as flood risk, surface water drainage, landscape, ecology and highways;
which have been addressed through the Council’s evidence

base. Highway’'s England were particularly concerned about the impact of
further development on A36. The Council has now prepared draft
transport strategies for Trowbridge and Salisbury, which outline the
approach to mitigation to support the site allocations. These are provided
as supporting documents to this report.

In terms of other matters raised, a more limited, but nonetheless
important, number of responses concentrated on the settlement boundary
review proposals. The settlement boundary review is discussed in more
detail at Paragraph 45 below.

As provided by legislation® the Council is required to submit a statement

setting out, amongst other matters, the ‘main issues’ raised in this formal
stage of consultation*. As the Council is not required to respond to every
individual comment or objection raised through the consultation, the main
issues are in effect a summary of comments submitted.

The main issues raised through the consultation, including the public
exhibitions, ranged from: wholesale objections to the methodology
employed to identify sites and address the review of settlement
boundaries; through to detailed site-specific concerns with individual site
proposals. These are set out in Section 7 and Appendix M of the
consultation statement, which is published as a supporting document to
this report. Some of the more substantive main issues outlined in the
representations that challenge the soundness of the draft Plan relate to
the following issues and are discussed further below:

0] Proposed level and distribution of housing within the draft Plan
(i) Omission sites

(i)  Ecological matters

(iv)  Heritage matters

Paragraphs 44 and 45 then go on to set out the updated position with
regard to the Council’s housing land supply position and the effect of the
draft Plan.

The proposed level and distribution of housing within the Plan
A considerable number of responses queried the level and distribution of

housing proposed in the draft Plan. In general, these came from the
development industry. They call for greater consistency, flexibility and

3 Regulation 22 (1) (c), Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
(as amended),

4 Regulation 19, Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as
amended)

Page 108



22.

23.

24.

25.

choice in terms of the identification of broad ‘areas of search’; and
allocation of sites. At the heart of this issue is the concern that the draft
Plan is not identifying enough land for housing through allocations and
therein failing to deliver the surety of supply it is intended to deliver.
These comments therefore challenge the methodology employed to
identify ‘areas of search’ and individual sites.

Allied to these concerns, comments received from housebuilders and
promoters of the sites proposed for allocation called for the Council to
make best and most efficient use of the land. The concern here revolves
around the fact that the evidence used to support the proposals in the
draft Plan was based on the delivery of 30 dwellings per hectare and then
applying mitigation measures to address environmental concerns. The
National Planning Policy Framework (e.g. paragraph 17 - Core planning
principles) advocates the effective use of land. Indeed section 11 of the
latest consultation draft of the National Planning Policy Framework
reinforces the need to continue to do so. It is therefore clear that in line
with national policy, increased densities on sites should be encouraged,
provided the character and infrastructure capacity of local areas can
accommodate such proposals.

Having reviewed the densities in the light of the consultation responses, it
is considered that there is the potential to increase the overall housing
numbers on certain sites whilst ensuring the provision of necessary
mitigation measures. Therefore, it is considered that Proposed Changes
relating to the deliverable quantum are recommended in respect of the
following site allocations:

. H2.1, EIm Grove Farm, Trowbridge (potential increase of 50
dwellings);

. H2.2, Land off A363 at White Horse Business Park, Trowbridge
(potential increase of 75 dwellings);

o H2.3, Elizabeth Way, Trowbridge (potential increase of 150
dwellings); and

o H2.5, Upper Studley, Trowbridge (potential increase of 25
dwellings).

Additional information will be prepared in support of the increased
densities to illustrate to the Inspector how they can be achieved. The
potential increase in units at site allocation H2.1 is proposed to reflect an
opportunity that has arisen in relation to the inclusion of land owned by
Wiltshire Council (ElIm Grove Field) in the site area. It is considered that
the inclusion of this land would facilitate the timely delivery of a new
primary school and improved recreation land in the local area. This is
discussed further in Appendix 3 and reflected in the Proposed Changes.

The approach taken to identifying sites in the rural areas also raised
concerns. Comments were made that Large Villages and Local Service
Centres across Wiltshire’s three HMAs should have been identified as
potential ‘areas of search’ to help address housing supply, irrespective of
whether (or not) the indicative housing requirements for the Community
Area Remainders had been met. As an adjunct to this point, concerns

Page 109



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

were raised that Large Villages need additional homes to ensure people
have access to affordable homes in rural areas; and communities continue
to benefit from viable local services and facilities.

The relationship between the draft Plan and neighbourhood plans was
also questioned particularly by the development industry. The concern
being that too much reliance is being placed on neighbourhood plans to
deliver housing when the availability and achievability of such sites is not
rigorously tested through the basic conditions test. Conversely, responses
from Market Lavington Town Council and Crudwell Parish Council
considered that sites should be removed from the draft Plan and instead
identified through the neighbourhood plan process.

In response to the above points, the key consideration relates to the
relationship between the draft Plan and the Core Strategy. As explained in
paragraphs 5 and 6, the overall housing requirement and its distribution is
set by the Core Strategy. The draft Plan has been prepared in general
conformity with it and seeks to deliver housing allocations in areas where
the Core Strategy indicative requirements are yet to be met. This is to
ensure a sustainable distribution of development consistent with strategic
policies and the spatial strategy.

With regard to Large Villages, the draft Plan respects the Delivery
Strategy (Core Policy 1) and Settlement Strategy (Core Policy 2) of the
Core Strategy. The draft Plan only identifies sites where there is the
strategic imperative to do so and supply should be supplemented. Whilst
sites have been identified with the Local Service Centre of Market
Lavington, there is no need to follow a similar approach in Cricklade, or
other Local Service Centres due to either there being no indicative
requirement to meet, or a sufficiently advanced® neighbourhood plan in
the area which identifies sites for housing.

The relationship between the draft Plan and neighbourhood plans is
underpinned by a cogent and consistent methodology. Moreover,
neighbourhood plans are independently examined to a standard
consistent with legislative requirements. In this regard, they are a
legitimate and reliable component of the overall housing land supply
position. However, as set out in the site selection methodology, it is
considered that only plans that are reasonably advanced* can provide
sufficient confidence that housing sites will be delivered. Therefore, while
the neighbourhood planning process across Wiltshire is fully supported,
the proposed allocation of sites for housing in Market Lavington and
Crudwell is considered appropriate to provide certainty of housing supply
and facilitate delivery of the relevant Area Strategies.

Omission sites

A considerable number of responses proposed alternative land for
allocation in the draft Plan and challenged the assessment of sites. These

5 Where a neighbourhood plan has at least reached the Regulation 16 stage (Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended)) i.e. publicised by Wiltshire Council for
consultation

Page 110



sites are classified as ‘omission sites’ (i.e. they are not included as
allocations within the draft Plan) and having assessed each site, they
broadly fall into three categories:

0] they are situated within areas of search that were ultimately
dismissed because it was considered there was no need to allocate
land to help deliver the policy requirements set out within the Core
Strategy; or

(i) they fell within areas of search where the Council is seeking to
deliver housing but had not been previously assessed through the
site selection process; or

(i) they are sites that have been assessed and rejected through the
site selection process where further evidence has been provided to
support some of the sites and challenge the Council’s assessment.

31. With regard to sites falling under (ii) or (iii), new sites were taken through
the assessment process or the information submitted challenging the
Council’'s assessment of sites (e.g. in relation to Sustainability Appraisal
scoring or technical information on matters such as drainage or
archaeology) reviewed to see whether any changes would be justified.
Having completed the further assessment work, it is considered that there
is only one site that would score favourably against the site selection
methodology meriting allocation. This is a small site for 14 homes at The
Yard, Hampton Park, Salisbury. It is therefore proposed that this site forms
a Proposed Change. The further assessment work undertaken is reflected
in the updates of the Sustainability Appraisal and relevant Community
Area Topic Papers by way of tracked changes, which have been
published as papers supporting this report.

Ecological matters

32. Inresponse to the consultation, Natural England and the Environment
Agency raised concerns about the soundness of the draft Plan and the
potential impact of proposed growth on the River Avon Special Area of
Conservation (SAC), an internationally important wildlife site. They
considered there to be insufficient evidence and certainty that
development is unlikely to have an adverse effect on concentrations of
phosphates within the River Avon SAC. In this regard, concerns were
raised with the Habitats Regulations Assessment accompanying the draft
Plan, which is published as a supporting paper to this report. This
identified issues with the implementation of the Nutrient Management Plan
(NMP)® but concluded that with mitigation there are unlikely to be any
adverse effects.

33.  Phosphates in relation to the River Avon SAC is a complex and technical
issue, as recognised by Core Policy 69 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy that
relates to the Protection of the River Avon SAC and refers to the role of

6 River Avon Special Area of Conservation Nutrient Management Plan for Phosphorus (April
2015) - developed in partnership by Environment Agency, Natural England and Wiltshire Council

Page 111



the Nutrient Management Plan (NMP) in managing phosphate levels. In
simple terms, the reduction in phosphates anticipated through catchment
sensitive farming practices has not been achieved. Since making their
response to the draft Plan, Natural England and Environment Agency
have confirmed that they will be reviewing some of the underlying
assumptions in the NMP. As such, they have simplified their advice and
require that development should be designed to be phosphate neutral.

34. Since the close of the consultation the Council has been working
constructively with all relevant parties: Natural England, Wessex Water,
the Environment Agency and neighbouring authorities (e.g. New Forest
District Council) on the phosphates issue. Progress is being made on a
‘Memorandum of Understanding’ (‘the MoU’), which has been drafted to
set out the approach to identifying effective and proportionate measures to
remove or off-set the phosphate load from qualifying developments and
how the Council and all parties will work together. This will give greater
certainty with respect to nutrient management, sufficient for the Council to
conclude that the draft Plan will support phosphate neutral development
that is unlikely to have adverse effects upon the integrity of the SAC.
Significant and constructive progress has been made towards finalising
the MoU. This will include a commitment to preparing additional work to
identify in more detail the measures that will be required to offset
phosphate inputs, in Wiltshire to be paid for by the Community
Infrastructure Levy. A proposed change is recommended to the draft Plan
to reflect the requirements of the MoU and ensure development proceeds
in a compliant way. This is reflected in the Addendum to the HRA provided
at Appendix 4.

35. Natural England also objected to the draft Plan through the consultation in
respect of the proposals at Trowbridge on the grounds that a mitigation
strategy to protect the integrity of the Bath and Bradford on Avon Bats
SAC was not in place. Again, work has been progressed in respect of this
matter and constructive dialogue with Natural England has taken place.

36. The issues at the heart of Natural England’s objection relate to Core
Policy 29 of the Core Strategy in terms of ensuring the impacts associated
with further development at Trowbridge (loss of habitat and increased
recreational pressure) are addressed. To this end, the Council
commissioned work in July 2017 to investigate the nature of recreational
pressure on large, publicly accessible open spaces including important bat
habitats around the town. The findings led to a series of
recommendations that are now being considered along with measures for
offsetting loss of habitat, to provide a coherent, strategic approach to
safeguarding the bats associated with the SAC.

37.  Work is progressing on developing the Trowbridge Bat Mitigation Strategy
in consultation with Natural England. It is anticipated that this will form part
of the submission documents to support the draft Plan. It has been
agreed that the Strategy will be delivered in two phases. Phase 17 will
focus on development coming forward within the timescale of the draft

7 A second phase will follow to provide a longer term strategy to support the Local Plan Review,
which Plans for the period 2016 to 2036.

Page 112



38.

39.

40.

41.

Plan, including both allocated land and windfall sites, identifying the nature
of mitigation required mostly within the allocations themselves. It will
collate all relevant ecological evidence available on bats at the town and
provide recommendations to satisfy the Competent Authority (the
Council), in consultation with Natural England, that the proposals in the
draft Plan would not put at risk the integrity of the Bath and Bradford on
Avon Bats SAC. To this extent, there are proposals already set out within
the draft Plan for how development intends to mitigate its effects on bats
including details on how it will bolster green infrastructure and maintain
‘dark corridors’ to provide continued permeability for bats in the urban/rural
landscape; and requirements to contribute to the Trowbridge Bat
Mitigation Strategy.

The Addendum to the HRA considers that together with the proposals
included in the draft Plan to protect and buffer existing bat habitat, Phase
1 of the Trowbridge Bat Mitigation Strategy will be sufficient to ensure that
adverse impacts to the SAC features will be avoided and the integrity of
the SAC maintained.

Heritage Matters

Whilst the draft Plan has been prepared in the light of relevant legislation®
and national policy, Historic England submitted representations through
the consultation that identified concerns with the Council’s evidence on
how development affecting designated and non-designated heritage
assets had been justified. Whilst no ‘show-stopper’ concerns were raised
in heritage terms Historic England was concerned about the potential
scale of effects attributable to development and therefore the risk of harm
to heritage assets. They considered that an impact assessment could not
be deferred to a future planning application stage.

It was agreed with Historic England that a full, but nonetheless
proportionate assessment of six of the proposed allocations would be
undertaken to provide greater certainty to the evidence base. Consultants
were commissioned to undertake a Heritage Impact Assessment, which is
provided as a supporting paper to this report. The report adds to the
Council’'s understanding of the various heritage assets associated with the
six sites that were appraised.

The Heritage Impact Assessment produced for the Council naturally
reflects statutory® and national planning policy advice and takes a
precautionary approach to the assessment of heritage assets and the
degree to which their significance would be harmed by development
proceeding. However, the assessment nonetheless concludes for all sites
that the scale of harm would be less than substantial and for two site
allocations (H2.3 Elizabeth Way, Trowbridge; H2.4 Church Lane,
Trowbridge) there were low risks associated with development and can
proceed as allocations. The report identifies more significant risks with
proceeding with the H2.6 Southwick Court (Trowbridge), H2.2 Land off
A363 at White Horse Business Park (Trowbridge), H2.7 East of Dene

8 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Sections 66(1) and Section 72(1)
9 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Sections 66 and 72

Page 113



42.

43.

44.

45.

(Warminster) and H3.3 Land North of Netherhampton Road (Salisbury)
site allocations that merit further consideration.

As defined by paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework,
where a proposed development would lead to ‘less than substantial harm’
to the significance of a designated heritage asset (which can be of varying
degrees of severity), should be weighed against the public benefits of
development proceeding. This, together with an explanation of less than
substantial harm, is discussed in more detail in the ‘Heritage Note’ at
Appendix 5.

Having carefully considered the evidence and options it is considered that
there is no justification for recommending deletion of the proposed sites on
heritage grounds. However, in the light of the HIA and comments by
Historic England, it is considered that Proposed Changes should be made
that emphasise the special regard that needs to be applied to conserving
heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance. These are
set out in Appendix 2.

Updated Housing Land Supply Figures

The draft Plan refers to housing supply figures that, although with a base
date of 1 April 2017, were estimated. Since then the ‘Housing Land Supply
Statement, Base date: April 2017 (March 2018)’ has been published. It is
therefore proposed that changes are made to show the most up to date
figures alongside those that informed the draft Plan (See Annex to
Appendix 2 and the Addendums to Topic Papers 3 and 4). These
updated figures show that the five year land supply position has changed
and that, for the South Wiltshire HMA only a five year land supply with
appropriate buffer (5%) can be demonstrated up to 2022. This change is
mainly attributed to the mixed use strategic site at Churchfields for 1,100
dwellings (Core Policy 20, Wiltshire Core Strategy) no longer being
considered deliverable in the period to 2026 and a lower density delivered
on the Kings Gate site at Amesbury. The proposed increased densities at
the allocation sites, as set out in the Proposed Changes (see paragraph
23 above), would contribute an additional 300 homes to the housing land
supply in the North and West Housing Market Area, helping improve
supply at Trowbridge consistent with the Core Strategy.

As is recognised in paragraph 4.32 of the draft Plan, additional allocations
can be identified to supplement supply through the Wiltshire Local Plan
Review, which is underway and plans for the period 2016 to 2036. This is
programmed for adoption early 2021. Whilst it is considered that the Plan
as submitted is sound, the examination process enables the Inspector to
make such recommendations to the Council as he or she considers
necessary under Section 20 (7C) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), which may include adding sites to the

supply.

Settlement Boundary Review

Page 114



46.

47.

48.

The comments received in respect of the draft proposals for reviewing
settlement boundaries focussed largely on the rationale for including, or
excluding land. Having considered the representations, the overall method
remains sound. However, it is considered that some changes should be
made to the proposed settlement boundaries to address inconsistencies
with the application of the methodology, as set out in Topic Paper 1:
Settlement Boundary Review Methodology (June 2017), where
appropriate to do so in the light of the representations received. Appendix
A of Topic Paper 1 has been updated to reflect where settlement
boundaries have now been reviewed through a sufficiently advanced
neighbourhood planning process (Christian Malford, Cricklade and West
Lavington). In line with the latest published housing land supply data, the
Proposed Changes also include the most up-to-date position in respect of
housing completions and commenced development at settlements as at
April 2017. The Proposed Changes to the boundaries arising from the
consultation are explained as tracked changes to the Community Area
Topic Papers, which are published as supporting documents to this report.

Summary

Having considered the representations received through the formal
consultation, a number of ‘main issues’ have been identified that are
considered likely to form the basis of the Examination process. It is
considered that a schedule of Proposed Changes should be submitted
alongside the draft Plan to inform and assist the Examination process.
This schedule of Proposed Changes can be considered by the Inspector
through the Examination process as changes to the draft Plan under
section 20(7C) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as
amended)

In addition to the Proposed Changes outlined above, other changes are
proposed in Appendix 2 that are generally in response to representations
received and include the following:

. Amendments to plan text to address factual updates submitted
through representations;

o Amendments to site boundaries to reflect comments received
through consultation; and

. Amendments to policies and text to reflect representations from

statutory consultees (e.g. Environment Agency in relation to
providing greater clarity on how flood risk will be addressed).

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

49.

The draft Plan has not been subjected to the Council’s Overview and
Scrutiny function. It has been agreed that as the Environment Select
Committee has not prioritised this item highly as a topic of interest, no
Overview and Scrutiny engagement is to be undertaken at present.

Safeguarding Implications

Page 115



50.

Whilst there are no safeguarding implications as a direct result of this
proposal, as anticipated by the Council’'s Business Plan, the delivery of
new homes will likely lead to wider social benefits as a function of building
strong and resilient communities.

Public Health Implications

51.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 39(2) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), planning for sustainable
development seeks to address the housing, infrastructure and
employment needs of communities, thereby helping to foster social well-
being, encourage healthier lies and tackle inequalities. Well planned,
accessible developments contribute to improving public health, for
example through the provision of green infrastructure, as well as
encouraging cycling and walking via sustainable transport initiatives.

Procurement Implications

52.

The Examination of the draft Plan will entail the need to procure the
services of a suitably experienced Programme Officer to help support the
appointed Inspector. The role of the Programme Officer is to act as a
conduit for information sharing between the Council, Third Party
representors and the Inspector. The appointment of a Programme Officer
is mandatory. The financial implications include provision for this
appointment.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

53.

54.

55.

The draft Plan aims to positively manage growth in accordance with the
Wiltshire Core Strategy and thereby ensure sufficient homes are available
to meet housing needs.

Statutory requirements?® governing the submission stage of plan
preparation determine that the draft Plan be supported by an Equalities
Impact Assessment. A copy of this Assessment is attached at Appendix 6
for Members’ consideration.

The Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equalities Act to have
due regard to the need to:

o eliminate discrimination;

o advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
“relevant protected characteristic” and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a “relevant

protected characteristic” and persons who do not share it.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

10 Section 149, Equality Act 2010; Section 20, Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004;
Regulation 22, Town and Country (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

Page 116



56.

57.

58.

Spatial planning has implications for the natural, economic and social
environment. A Sustainability Appraisal, incorporating Strategic
Environmental Assessment, has been undertaken as an integral element
of the plan making process and thereby seeks to ensure that the
potentially negative environmental impacts associated with the
development of the proposals on the face of the draft Plan are avoided, or
appropriately mitigated. The updated Sustainability Appraisal Report (see
paragraph 31 above) is published as a supporting document to this report
and the Non-Technical Summary attached at Appendix 7. These
incorporate an assessment of the implications for the Sustainability
Appraisal of the schedule of Proposed Changes. A Habitats Regulations
Assessment and Addendum have also been undertaken to support the
draft Plan.

Managing climate change is one of the cross-cutting themes of the
Wiltshire Core Strategy and therefore a principle that has been woven into
the methodology for this draft Plan. The evidence relied upon to support
this draft Plan has sought to identify the most sustainable options by
addressing issues such as: flood risk from all sources; accessibility to
services and facilities; bolstering green infrastructure; managing direct
phosphate generation; and minimising, where practicable at the plan
making stage, potential amenity issues relating to the generation of noise,
dust and light pollution.

Once adopted, the draft Plan will become part of the development plan for
Wiltshire. Therefore, specific policies of the Wiltshire Core Strategy that
seek to protect and enhance the environment; as well as those that
protect against the risks associated with climate change will be relevant in
the consideration of planning applications relating to the development of
the proposed site allocations.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken

59.

60.

If the proposed decision is not taken the Council would fail to meet the
obligations it set itself through the Local Development Scheme. In
addition, any delay in submitting the draft Plan could leave the Council
open to speculative planning applications for housing schemes.

Progression of the draft Plan will therefore help reduce this risk by
ensuring that the Council is able to boost housing supply across each of
its Housing Market Areas.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

61.

The draft Plan is a sound plan but nonetheless to manage any risk that the
submitted draft Plan could be found to be unsound through the
Examination process and hence recommended for withdrawal by the
Inspector the Council can manage this risk by:

o Ensuring that it provides all the documents prescribed by statute
(see Legal Implications);

Page 117



62.

o Submitting a schedule of Proposed Changes to inform and assist
the Examination process in response to representations made to
the draft Plan (see paragraph 14 above);

. Requesting that the Inspector recommend modifications to the
submitted draft Plan that would effectively make it sound. This can
be achieved through a direct request to the appointed Inspector in
accordance with the provisions set out in Section 20 (7C) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended); and

o Ensuring any detailed matters that need to be subject to refinement
are finalised prior to adoption as part of an iterative process. The
management of phosphates, which is considered within the
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), is one such example. An
Addendum to the HRA has been prepared to reflect the current
position and the Memorandum of Understanding under
development between various parties, which will set out the
approach to identifying effective and proportionate measures to
remove or off-set the phosphate load from qualifying developments.
There is a risk that it will not be possible to devise sufficient
mitigation measures to off-set development. However, Natural
England and Environment Agency consider this is possible.
Constructive progress is being made, as set out in paragraph 34,
and there is every reason to be confident that satisfactory mitigation
can be achieved which will enable a sound plan to proceed to
adoption.

There remains a reputational risk to the Council if it proceeds with the draft
Plan. This would likely arise from local people who do not want to see
development occurring close to where they live, or areas they value.
Whilst this risk is real, the Council is nonetheless charged with making
difficult, often controversial decisions in the interests of ensuring it
maintains an up to date Local Plan and a planned approach to
development.

Financial Implications

63.

Legal

64.

Provision will be made from the Economic Development and Planning
2018/19 budget for costs associated with the Submission and Examination
of the draft Plan. This is forecast to be circa £130,000 and includes the
cost of the Inspector and Programme Officer.

Implications

In accordance with Section 20 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004 (as amended) (‘the 2004 Act’), the Council has a statutory duty
to prepare planning policies and maintain an up-to-date development plan.
This is further reinforced through the National Planning Policy Framework.
The draft Plan has therefore been prepared in compliance with primary
legislation.

Page 118



65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

Secondary legislation relating to the preparation of development plan
documents is set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012 (‘the Regulations’). In preparing the Plan, the
Council has complied with the statutory duty to co-operate and engaged
with a list of prescribed bodies!?, local communities and other
stakeholders throughout the plan making process in accordance with its
Statement of Community Involvement.

With particular regard to the legal duty to co-operate, the draft Plan is
essentially a product of the Core Strategy and hence the scope of the
matters considered to be relevant to the prescribed bodies is more limited
than would be the case if the Council were embarking on a new plan.
That said, the Council has engaged constructively, actively and on and on-
going basis with the prescribed bodies as relevant during the preparation
of the draft Plan. A draft statement highlighting how the Council had
fulfilled the duty to cooperate up to the publication of the draft Plan was
made available to support the consultation documents at the Regulation
19 stage of the plan making process (see Appendix 8). This statement
has been updated to reflect dialogue since the publication stage and
thereby support the submission materials (see Appendix 9).

Reflecting on the entire process to date, it is considered that the Council
has discharged its functions in respect of Regulation 18 (Preparation of a
local plan) and Regulation 19 (Publication of a local plan).
Representations relating to the draft Plan submitted at the Regulation 19
consultation stage have been duly recorded in accordance with Regulation
20.

According to Section 20(3) of the 2004 Act and Regulation 22 (1), the next
stage of the process involves the Council submitting a prescribed list of
documents to the Secretary of State, alongside the draft Plan. These
documents are:

the sustainability appraisal report;

a submission policies map (i.e. changes to the policies map);

a statement setting out how the draft Plan has been prepared??;
copies of the representations received through the Regulation 19
consultation; and

o such supporting documents considered relevant to the preparation
of the draft Plan (e.g. the Habitats Regulations Assessment)

The ‘supporting documents’ include those published as supporting
documents to this report together with the appropriate Appendices.

The next stage of the process following the consultation on the draft Plan
is submission to the Secretary of State. Once submitted to the Secretary
of State the draft Plan will be Examined by an independent Inspector

11 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, Regulation 4;
and Section 33A of the 2004 Act

12 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, Regulation
22(1) (c)

Page 119



71.

72.

73.

whose role is to consider compliance with section 20(5) of the 2004 Act.
The Council has complied with requirements of section 19 of the 2004 Act
(as amended), and the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012 pursuant to section 20(5)(a) 2004 Act. Further
in respect of section 20 (5)(c) the Council considers that it has complied
with its duty to cooperate under section 33A 2004 Act.

In respect of section 20(5)(b) of the 2004 Act and soundness of the draft
Plan, the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 182) also
requires the Council submits a plan for examination which it considers is
“sound”, namely that it is:

o Positively prepared - the plan should be prepared based on a
strategy which seeks to meet objectively assessed development
and infrastructure requirements, including unmet requirements from
neighbouring authorities where it is reasonable to do so and
consistent with achieving sustainable development;

. Justified - the plan should be the most appropriate strategy, when
considered against all reasonable alternatives, based on
proportionate evidence;

. Effective - the plan should be deliverable over its period and based
on effective joint working on cross-boundary strategic priorities; and

. Consistent with national policy - the plan should enable the
delivery of sustainable development in accordance with the policies
in the NPPF.

Although there are outstanding issues to resolve in respect of the Habitats
Regulations Assessment. The parties who are relevant to the resolution
of these matters are confident that all outstanding technical issues can be
satisfactorily resolved during the Examination process. As such there is
no impediment to submitting the draft Plan and all supporting documents.
Therefore, having considered all matters carefully, the Council considers
the draft Plan to be sound in accordance with Section 20(5) (b) of the
2004 Act

Once adopted, the draft Plan will form part of the statutory development
plan for the area and be used as such for the purpose of determining
relevant planning applications

Options Considered

74.

The draft Plan has been through an iterative and inclusive process. Each
stage of that process has followed legislative requirements. The
proposals within the draft Plan have been rigorously tested through
various appraisals, including the Sustainability Appraisal, and an extensive
formal consultation process at the Regulation 19 Publication stage.

Page 120



75.

76.

Progression of the draft Plan to the formal submission and Examination
stage will ensure that the Council maintains the commitment it gave
through the published Local Development Scheme. Moreover,
progressing the draft Plan will help ensure the Council maintains a plan-
led approach to housing development in areas that support the delivery of
the Core Strategy.

In considering the comments submitted during the consultation period, the
option of not proposing changes to the draft Plan was considered. Indeed,
there is no requirement in the Regulations to propose such changes prior
to submission. Such matters are ordinarily addressed through the
Examination process with the appointed Inspector ultimately determining
the scope and scale of any changes to the draft Plan before
recommending such changes be made. However, a schedule of Proposed
Changes has been produced to inform and assist the Examination
process.

Conclusions

77.

78.

79.

Having completed all statutory steps in the plan making process, it is
considered that there are no fundamental issues of soundness that would
preclude the Council from submitting the draft Plan. The appointed
Inspector will review all the representations received through the
Regulation 19 consultation and the evidence relied upon by the Council in
preparing the draft Plan. The Examination will then focus on soundness
matters that the Inspector considers need to be tested thoroughly through
open hearing sessions before determining whether the draft Plan should
be:

. Withdrawn (i.e. it would fail the tests of soundness and is incapable
of addressing such matters); or

o Adopted without modification; or

. Adopted subject applying a schedule of main modifications.

In the spirit of the letter dated 21 July 2015 from the former Department of
Communities and Local Government to the Chief Executive at the
Planning Inspectorate (attached at Appendix 10), which is now common
practice, it will be within the Inspector’s remit to work pragmatically and
positively with the Council to deliver the draft Plan. This will involve an
iterative process with the Inspector. At this stage, it is considered that the
draft Plan remains a sound document that is based on a credible evidence
base and benefits from an inclusive process of consultation and
engagement at the Regulation 18 and Regulation 19 stages.

The Council has engaged constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis
with the bodies prescribed in the 2004 Act (as amended) and Regulations
during the process of preparing the draft Plan. Indeed, much of this
engagement built upon the work undertaken through the preparation of the
Core Strategy. As such, the challenges faced by the Council in terms of
delivering a steady and reliable supply of homes across the County have

Page 121



been well rehearsed through evidence gathering over a considerable
period.

80.  Whilst the comments received through the Regulation 19 consultation
challenge the soundness of the draft Plan, the matters raised are
considered to be capable of resolution through the Examination process.
A schedule of Proposed Changes has been prepared to assist the
appointed Inspector.

81. Cabinetis asked to endorse the draft Plan and schedule of Proposed
Changes and recommend to Council that these, together with the wider
prescribed submission documents®® be submitted to the Secretary of State
as set out in paragraph 1 above.

82. In conclusion, it is considered that the draft Plan remains a sound plan
and therefore appropriate to submit to the Secretary of State to commence
the Examination process. Subject to Council approval submission of the
draft Plan together with the schedule of Proposed Changes in June 2018
will accord with the timescale within the approved Local Development
Scheme.

Tim Martienssen
Director, Economic Development and Planning

Report Authors:

Georgina Clampitt-Dix, Head of Spatial Planning
georgina.clampitt-dix@wiltshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01225 713472

Geoff Winslow, Manager, Spatial Planning
geoff.winslow@wiltshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01225 713414

Date of report: 4 May 2018

Appendices

Appendix 1: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - Pre-submission Draft Plan
(June 2017)

Appendix 2: Schedule of Proposed Changes to the Pre-submission Draft Plan
(May 2018)

Appendix 3: Note on Elm Grove Field and implications for asset transfer
Appendix 4: Addendum to the ‘Assessment under the Habitat Regulations, June
2017’ (May 2018)

13 As defined by Regulation 22(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)
Regulations 2012

Page 122


mailto:geoff.winslow@wiltshire.gov.uk

Appendix 5: Note on Heritage

Appendix 6: Equalities Impact Assessment

Appendix 7: Non-Technical Summary, Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan
Sustainability Appraisal Report (Updated May 2018)

Appendix 8: Duty to Co-operate Statement, June 2017

Appendix 9: Addendum to ‘Duty to Cooperate Statement June 2017’ (May 2018)
Appendix 10: Letter from Secretary of State to Chief Executive of Planning
Inspectorate (July 2015)

Supporting Documents
The following documents have been published in support of this report:

Regulation 22 (1) (c) Report (May 2018) - Consultation Statement
Regulation 22 - Appendices 1 (May 2018)

Regulation 22 - Appendices 2 (May 2018)

Regulation 22 - Appendices 3 (May 2018)

Sustainability Appraisal Report, Atkins, Updated May 2018

Assessment under the Habitat Regulations, June 2017

Landscape Assessment - Part 3 (May 2018)

Heritage Impact Assessment, LUC, March 2018

Draft Trowbridge Transport Strategy Refresh, Atkins, May 2018

Draft Salisbury Transport Strategy Refresh, Atkins, May 2018

Topic Paper 1 - Settlement Boundary Review Methodology (May 2018)
Topic Paper 2 - Site Selection Methodology Minor Factual Update (May 2018)
Topic Paper 3 - Housing Land Supply (June 2017)

Addendum to ‘Topic Paper 3 - Housing Land Supply, June 2017’ (May 2018)
Addendum to ‘Topic Paper 4 - Developing Plan Proposals, June 2017’ (May
2018)

Assessment of Viability, BNP Paribas, June 2017

Community Area Topic Papers (Updated May 2018)

. Amesbury Community Area Topic Paper

. Bradford on Avon Community Area Topic Paper

. Calne Community Area Topic Paper

. Chippenham Community Area Topic Paper

. Corsham Community Area Topic Paper

. Devizes Community Area Topic Paper

. Malmesbury Community Area Topic Paper

. Marlborough Community Area Topic Paper

. Melksham Community Area Topic Paper

. Mere Community Areas Topic Paper

. Pewsey Community Area Topic Paper

. Royal Wootton Bassett Community Area Topic Paper
. Salisbury Community Area Topic Paper

. Southern Wiltshire Community Areas Topic Paper
. Tidworth Community Area Topic Paper

. Tisbury Community Area Topic Paper

. Trowbridge Community Area Topic Paper

. Warminster Community Area Topic Paper

. Westbury Community Area Topic Paper

. Wilton Community Area Topic Paper

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan

Submission draft plan
Equalities Impact Assessment

May 2018

Wiltshire Council

~————"—-_ Where everybody matters




Wiltshire Council

Information about Wiltshire Council services can be made available on request in other
languages including BSL and formats such as Iarge print and audio. Please contact
the council on 0300 456 0100, by textphone on 01225 712500 or by email on
customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk.

WISHAT TR A T DA F A 2C (A - KSR e S iy ) el S A ) R AT
SRRSO & S BRI PERR, - BEHSLE S - FERS 1 0300 456 0100 - AR ¢ (01225)
712500 » s #8045 : customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk

claly (Aelow ol yaz e Jady clagles) JS2h @llsy juialy Al Gdlae cilass Jga Cilaglan o Jgmand) ccallall die ¢Sy
B e (0 i) el QL DA e g cTerEe T v B e Al (e JuaY ela ) LAilisa
customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk : Jull o siadl e g 5SNV1 3,00 S (VYYE) VYo,

et 3T $ 1S G e S 1 pt s pS et e L L s 2§ (Wiltshire Council) S,
Ly Sy (01225)712500 = i efey S 1s, 03004560100 AV SApLE IS gl S
- \_,[,"-D’J‘-f' 5] Iz customerservices@uwiltshire.gov.uk

Na zyczenie udostepniamy informacije na temat ustug oferowanych przez wladze samorzadowe
hrabstwa Wiltshire (Wiltshire Council) w innych formatach (takich jak duzym drukiem lub w wersji
audio) i w innych jezykach. Prosimy skontakiowac sie z wladzami samorzadowymi pod numerem
telefonu 0300 456 0100 lub telefonu tekstowego (01225) 712500 badz za posrednictwem poczty
elektronicznej na adres: customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 126



Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

Equality Analysis Evidence Document

Title: What are you completing an Equality Analysis on?

Submission Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan (the draft Plan)

Why are you completing the Equality Analysis? (please tick any that apply)

Proposed New Palicy or
Service

Yes — new planning policies.

Change to Policy or Service

Service Review

Version Control

Version 3 Date 276 17 Reason for

control review (if

number appropriate)

Version 4 Date 30-4-18 Reason for Further work has been carried out to

control review (if produce a submission version draft

number appropriate) Plan which will be submitted to the
Secretary of State for Examination.

Risk Rating Score (use Equalities Risk Matrix and guidance)

**|f any of these are 3 or above, an Impact Assessment must be completed.
Please check with equalities@wiltshire.gov.uk for advice

Criteria Inherent risk score on Residual risk score after
proposal mitigating actions have been
identified
Legal challenge 4 1
Financial costs/implications 3 1
People impacts 2 1
Reputational damage 3 1

Version May 2018

Page 127



mailto:equalities@wiltshire.gov.uk

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

Section 1 — Description of what is being analysed

A planning policy document, the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan (hereafter
referred to as the draft Plan), is being prepared for the purposes of maintaining and
ensuring both surety and continuity of housing land supply across Wiltshire, and thereby is
supporting the implementation of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS). A separate and
complimentary document, the Chippenham Site Allocations Plan, addresses the
identification of land for strategically important housing and employment sites at
Chippenham. The draft Plan sits directly under the Wiltshire Core Strategy. The draft Plan
has now reached submission stage and subject to endorsement by Cabinet and approval
by Council will be submitted to the Secretary of State for Examination. The duty to carry
out an Equalities Impact Assessment is set out in the Equality Act 2010. The Equalities
Impact Assessment is classified under Regulation 22 (1) (e) as a supporting document
which in the Council’s opinion is relevant to the preparation of the local plan.

The National Planning Policy Framework? sets out the following requirements which have

been met by the draft Plan:

e Paragraph 50. To deliver a wide choice of high quality homes, widen opportunities for
home ownership and create sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities, local
planning authorities should plan for a mix of housing based on current and future
demographic trends, market trends and the needs of different groups in the community
(such as, but not limited to, families with children, older people, people with disabilities,
service families and people wishing to build their own homes).

e Paragraph 69. The planning system can play an important role in facilitating social
interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities. Local planning authorities
should create a shared vision with communities of the residential environment and
facilities they wish to see. To support this, local planning authorities should aim to
involve all sections of the community in the development of Local Plans.

e Paragraph 155. Early and meaningful engagement and collaboration with
neighbourhoods, local organisations and businesses is essential. A wide section of the
community should be proactively.

It is the purpose of this draft Plan to implement the framework set by the WCS by
allocating additional housing sites across Wiltshire in accordance with the settlement
strategy as outlined in Core Policy 1. In this respect it should be noted that the draft Plan
is only seeking to address the indicative housing requirement of 36,950 dwellings
(excluding Chippenham Town and West Swindon) as expressed in Table 1 of Core Policy
2 of the WCS through allocating housing sites across the Wiltshire in accordance with the
spatial strategy for the period up to 2026. In addition, the draft Plan assesses the existing
“settlement boundaries” or “Limits of Development” as they are referred to in Core Policy
2.

In planning for future housing numbers the proposals of this draft plan will be in line with

the Wiltshire Core Strategy suite of policies and will seek to:

e Provide for the most sustainable pattern of development that minimises the need to
travel and maximises the use of sustainable transport.

e Align residential development to the employment growth planned for in the WCS, in
order to achieve a greater self-containment of communities and not intensify out
commuting.

1 Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010.
2 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2

Version May 2018

Page 128



Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

¢ Manage development to ensure the timely delivery of supporting infrastructure to
mitigate the impact of growth on local services and facilities.

e Protect, and where possible enhance, the natural, historic and built environment within
and surrounding settlements whilst recognising development on the periphery of
settlements is inevitable.

e Respect the individual identities of villages, towns and cities within the landscape
setting and their relationship to one another through careful site selection and requiring
high quality design and landscaping.

o Deliver affordable housing as a proportion of the housing development in line with
Core Policy 42 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy which requires 30-40% of housing to be
affordable.

Section 2A — People or communities that are currently targeted or could be affected by
any change (please take note of the Protected Characteristics listed in the action table).

The overarching strategy of the WCS is to deliver homes, infrastructure, services and
employment opportunities to meet the needs of all who live, work and visit Wiltshire and
the draft Plan will help to deliver that strategy.

The draft Plan has been developed in an open and collaborative manner in line with the
Council’'s Statement of Community Involvement?:

A record of the consultation that has taken place can be found in the Statement of Early
Community Engagement June 2017, and associated reports and the Regulation 22 (1) (c)*
Report®. To date is has included the following consultations:

Consultation

Date

Who was consulted

Formal Regulation 18
consultation on the scope.

24™ March — 51" May 2014

All listed below

Informal consultation draft
proposals for amending
settlement boundaries.

28t July — 22" September
2014

Town and parish councils

Informal consultation on the
site assessment
methodology and initial site
options.

23 February — 315t March
2015

Town and parish councils
Developers
Specialist bodies

Informal consultation on the

30" June — 12" August

Town and parish councils

approach to large villages. | 2015 Developers
Specialist bodies
Landowner Deliverability 21st August — 2" October Landowners

Consultation.

2015

Formal consultation on the
draft Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations DPD.

14 July — 22 September
2017

All listed below

Examination.

TBC

TBC

3 http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/statementofcommunityinvolvement.htm.

4 Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
5> The consultation statements can be found on the following link:

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planningpolicydocuments.htm?directory=Wiltshire%20Housing%20Site%20Allocations%20DP

D

Version May 2018

Page 129



http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/statementofcommunityinvolvement.htm

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

The consultations are based on the Wiltshire Council spatial planning database, national
legislation and national policy advice, and specialist knowledge within the organisation.
This includes:

e All citizens who have requested ¢ Bodies which represent the
contact interests of different racial, ethnic
e Local town and parish councils or national groups in the local
o All elected representatives planning authority’s area
e The Environment Agency ¢ Bodies which represent the
e English Heritage interests of different religious
¢ Natural England groups in the local planning
o Network Rail authority’s area
e Highways England ¢ Bodies which represent the
¢ Relevant health providers interests of disabled persons in the
e Relevant water and sewerage local authority’s area
providers e Bodies which represent the
e Homes and Communities Agency interests of persons carrying on
e Voluntary bodies some or all of business in the local planning
whose activities benefit any part authority’s area
of the local planning authority’s
area

As well as the standard local, regional and national consultees, for the draft Plan the
following hard to reach groups were consulted:

¢ Young Persons Council

e Friends Families and Travellers

e The Showman’s Guild of Great Britain

e Selwood Housing Society

e SCOPE - Partnership & Community Development Division

¢ Kennet and Avon Boating Community

¢ Diabetes UK Wiltshire

All the above groups can be directly affected by the volume, location and design of new
homes in Wiltshire. The techniques used to ensure effective engagement are covered in
Section 3 below.

Section 2B — People who are delivering the policy or service that are targeted or could
be affected (i.e. staff, commissioned organisations, contractors)

The draft Plan contents were discussed at various meetings with the Council’s
development management officers and specialist areas such as conservation, highways
and archaeology. Those elsewhere in the Council affected by or involved in the delivery of
the draft Plan were primarily involved in the preparation of relevant evidence papers on
site selection by providing information and by establishing requirements for policies and
proposals.

Section 3 —The underpinning evidence and data used for the analysis (Attach
documents where appropriate)

Prompts:
e What data do you collect about your customers/staff?

Version May 2018

Page 130



Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

e What local, regional and national research is there that you could use?

e How do your Governance documents (Terms of Reference, operating
procedures) reflect the need to consider the Public Sector Equality Duty?

e What are the issues that you or your partners or stakeholders already know
about?

e What engagement, involvement and consultation work have you done? How
was this carried out, with whom? Whose voices are missing? What does this
tell you about potential take-up and satisfaction with existing services?

Are there any gaps in your knowledge? If so, do you need to identify how you will collect
data to fill the gap (feed this into the action table if necessary)

The context for the evidence and data used to inform this process is set within the
National Planning Policy Framework at paragraph 158:

Each local planning authority should ensure that the Local Plan is based on
adequate, up-to-date and relevant evidence about the economic, social and
environmental characteristics and prospects of the area. Local planning
authorities should ensure that their assessment of and strategies for housing,
employment and other uses are integrated, and that they take full account of
relevant market and economic signals.

All parts of the draft Plan are based on the collation and analysis of evidence, including
the evidence base studies that underpin the WCS and an evidence base dealing
specifically with the delivery of housing.

The draft Plan is based on sound research and analysis to identify the challenges faced in
site allocation. All conclusions reached in the draft Plan are founded on analysis of the
evidence, which is available for scrutiny.

The evidence behind the site allocation process is published for each Community Area in
the form of Community Area Topic Papers. A number of other evidence based topic
papers are published alongside the community area topic papers and include:

e Topic Paper 1 - Settlement Boundary Review Methodology (Updated May
2018)

Topic Paper 2 — Site Selection Process Methodology June 2017

Topic Paper 3 — Housing Land Supply June 2017

Addendum to Topic Paper 3 - Housing Land Supply May 2018

Topic Paper 4 — Developing Plan Proposals June 2017

Addendum to Topic Paper 4 - Developing Plan Proposals May 2018
Assessment of Viability, BNP Paribas, June 2017

Sustainability Appraisal Report, Atkins, updated May 2018

Assessment under the Habitat Regulations June 2017

Duty to Cooperate Report June 2017

Addendum to the Duty to Cooperate Report May 2018

Statement of Early Community Engagement June 2017, and associated
reports

Regulation 22 (1) (c) Report of Pre-Submission Consultation Summer 2017
Heritage Impact Assessment, LUC, March 2018

Draft Trowbridge Transport Strategy Refresh 2018

Draft Salisbury Transport Strategy Refresh 2018

Addendum Assessment under Habitats Regulations

Version May 2018

Page 131



Wiltshire

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

The draft Plan is supported by a Sustainability Appraisal (as referred to above) prepared
by Atkins which is an evidence tool to assess and inform the development of the draft
Plan. The Sustainability Appraisal promotes sustainable development by assessing the
extent to which the emerging Plan, when judged against reasonable alternatives, will help
to achieve relevant environmental, economic and social objectives.

*Section 4 — Conclusions drawn about the impact of the proposed change or new
service/policy

Prompts:

e What actions do you plan to take as a result of this equality analysis?
Please state them and also feed these into the action table

e Be clear and specific about the impacts for each Protected Characteristic group
(where relevant)

e Can you also identify positive actions which promote equality of opportunity and
foster good relations between groups of people as well as adverse impacts?

e What are the implications for Procurement/Commissioning arrangements that
may be happening as a result of your work?

¢ Do you plan to include equalities aspects into any service agreements and if
so, how do you plan to manage these through the life of the service?

e If you have found that the policy or service change might have an adverse
impact on a particular group of people and are not taking action to mitigate
against this, you will need to fully justify your decision and evidence it in this
section

The actions necessary to be delivered as part of this equality assessment are those
enshrined within the strategy. The strategy will have a significant positive impact on the
large majority of the communities in Wiltshire. The draft Plan attempts to tackle existing
inequalities highlighted in the evidence base, including in the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment, through the delivery of the following outcomes:

e Enabling the delivery of a significant amount of affordable housing and increased
access for all to a decent affordable home. The housing sites delivered will include
a proportion of affordable housing in line with Core Policy 42 of the Core Strategy
which requires 30-40% of housing to be affordable.

e Enabling the delivery of improved and accessible services and infrastructure for
the benefit of all members of the community. This includes the provision of new
primary school provision to support new housing where necessary.

e Undertaking consultation exercises which engages minority and hard to reach
groups.

e Protection and enhancement of the built heritage and natural environment, in line
with the WCS.

e Protection of open space, public rights of way and recreation facilities through the
site selection process and within policy. There are requirements for further open
space provision within the draft Plan.

¢ Buildings that provide access for all.

e Viable communities that are robust and resilient, and able to retain important local
services.

e Provision of meaningful transport choices for those who are marginalized due to
not having a private motor car.

e To ensure that the elderly have good access to vital services.

e To ensure rural communities are able to retain locally valued services and
facilities.

Version May 2018

Page 132



Wiltshire

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

e To ensure that larger scale development in Wiltshire is complemented by smaller
scale and appropriately managed development in rural areas to ensure that
benefits are felt across Wiltshire as a whole.

e Ensuring development is of high quality design that creates a strong sense of
place.

The draft Plan involves allocating new development sites in Wiltshire, and there will be
people who feel disadvantaged by the development that will take place. This is expressed
through representations in response to public consultations which object to new
development. The strategy has been devised to address such concerns where possible,
and represents a proportionate response to the need to deliver the housing requirement
for Wiltshire while protecting the quality of life of existing residents. Furthermore, potential
environmental impacts will be mitigated through careful master planning.

Development could lead to pressure on existing services in smaller rural settlements, and
could have an impact on access to services in more rural locations. One of the challenges
will be retaining existing and valued services in the smaller settlements, and the WCS,
which the draft Plan sits with, includes protective policies which seek to aid the retention of
local services in Core Policies 48 and 49.

The ongoing continuous improvement of the service in producing all planning policies and
future documents will be supported by the following measures:

e Ensure an in depth understanding of the diversity of the community and discuss
with experts from a national and local level on how best to engage hard to reach
groups.

e Target easy to understand and participatory activity sessions, such as 'planning for
real' more widely and at specific groups.

e Ensure lead-in and frontloading is designed into the process, to give the time to
identify and set up positive dialogue and partnerships with under-represented
groups.

e Training of communication skills best suited to each audience.

e Ensuring that time, costs and resources are properly planned for and that
consultation is not reduced to a 'tick-box’ exercise.

It is important to seek balanced views and where there is conflict a forum which
promotes debate between parties with differing views is extremely beneficial in seeking
compromise.

*Section 5 — How will the outcomes from this equality analysis be monitored,
reviewed and communicated?

Prompts:

e Do you need to design performance measures that identify the impact
(outcomes) of your policy/strategy/change of service on different protected
characteristic groups?

¢ What stakeholder groups and arrangements for monitoring do you have in
place? Is equality a standing agenda item at meetings?

e Who will be the lead officer responsible for ensuring actions that have been
identified are monitored and reviewed?

e How will you publish and communicate the outcomes from this equality analysis?

How will you integrate the outcomes from this equality analysis in any relevant
Strategies/Polices?

Version May 2018

Page 133



Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

This assessment will sit alongside other key documents such as the Sustainability
Appraisal and Assessment under the Habitats Regulations and form part of a toolbox that
has informed the development of the draft Plan. The outcomes of the draft Plan will be
reviewed and monitored through the Authority’s Monitoring Report (formerly the Annual
Monitoring Report).

It will be ensured that changes in law, guidance and best practice are identified and
incorporated wherever relevant.

This Equality Impact Assessment forms an important supporting document to the draft
Plan. It will be published and be available as part of a suite of documents supporting the
submission draft Plan.

The draft Plan aims to positively manage growth in accordance with the Wiltshire Core
Strategy and seeks to ensure sufficient homes are available to meet housing needs.
The public consultations have been designed to help ensure that everyone has the
opportunity to comment on the draft Plan.

When the draft Plan is submitted to the Secretary of State for examination, it will be
accompanied by this Equalities Impact Assessment undertaken as part of a process to
help the Council ensure that it discharges its duties under section 149 under the Equality
Act 2010 to have due regard to the need to: eliminate discrimination; advance equality of
opportunity between persons who share a “relevant protected characteristic” and persons
who do not share it; foster good relations between persons who share a “relevant
protected characteristic” and persons who do not share it.

Completed by: Dave Milton
Date 20.9.16
Signed off by Georgina Clampitt-Dix
Reviewed by: (to support the pre- Jane Wilkie
submission draft Plan)
Date 27.6.17
Reviewed by: (to support the submission Jane Wilkie
draft Plan)
Date 30.4.18
For Corporate Equality Use only Compliance sign 02.05.18
off date
Published on
internet date

Version May 2018

Page 134



GeT obed

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

Equality Impact Issues and Action Table (for more information on protected characteristics, see definitions at the end of this document)

Identified issue drawn
from your
conclusions (only use
those characteristics
that are relevant)

Actions needed — can
you mitigate the
impacts? If you can
how will you mitigate
the impacts?

Who is responsible
for the actions?

When will the action
be completed?

How will it be
monitored?

What is the expected
outcome from the
action?

Age

Sites identified in the
draft Plan will deliver
sustainable
communities that will
be delivered in line with
the adopted polices of
the WCS, which have
been designed to
safeguard all sectors of
the community.

The draft Plan provides
for policies which will
provide equal
opportunities for all,
including younger
people.

New education
provision is planned to
support the additional
demand that growth in
housing numbers will
bring.

WCS Core Policy 46
sets out the strategy for
meeting the needs of
Wiltshire’s vulnerable
and older people.

Partnership working
between Wiltshire
Council, developers

and local communities.

Up to 2026

Authority’s Monitoring
Report

Delivering the homes
necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).®

& http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/housing-local-housing-needs

Version May 2018




o¢T abed

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

Groups representing
young people have
been targeted through
the consultation
including:
¢ Young Persons
Council
¢ Youth Action (Wilts)
Youth Development
Centres

Disability

Strategic sites identified
in the draft Plan will
deliver sustainable
communities that will
be delivered in line with
the adopted polices of
the WCS, which have
been designed to
safeguard all sectors of
the community.

Disabled groups have
been targeted through
the consultation
including:
¢ Transport for the
Disabled and
Pensioner's Voice
¢ The Multiple
Sclerosis Society
¢ Royal National
Institute of Blind
people
¢ Diabetes UK
Wiltshire

The new development
proposed by the draft
Plan will be required to
meet the relevant
nationally set access
standards (part M of
the Building
Regulations) and will
not result in
discrimination of people
with disabilities.

Partnership working
between Wiltshire
Council, developers
and local communities.

Up to 2026

Authority’s Monitoring
Report

Delivering the homes
necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).

Version May 2018




/€T abed

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

Gender Reassignment

The draft Plan provides
for policies which will
provide equal
opportunities for all,
regardless of gender.

Implementation of the
draft Plan to provide
the homes necessary
to meet future needs of
Wiltshire.

Partnership working
between Wiltshire
Council, developers

and local communities.

Up to 2026

Authority’s Monitoring
Report

Delivering the homes
necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).

Marriage and Civil Partnership

The draft Plan provides
for policies which will
provide equal
opportunities for all,
regardless of marital
status.

Implementation of the
draft Plan to provide
the homes necessary
to meet future needs of
Wiltshire.

Partnership working
between Wiltshire
Council, developers

and local communities.

Up to 2026

Authority’s Monitoring
Report

Delivering the homes
necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).

Pregnancy and Maternity

The draft Plan provides
for policies which will
provide equal
opportunities for all,
regardless of this issue.

Implementation of the
draft Plan to provide
the homes necessary
to meet future needs of
Wiltshire.

Partnership working
between Wiltshire
Council, developers

and local communities.

Up to 2026

Authority’s Monitoring
Report

Delivering the homes
necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).

Race (including ethnicity or national origin, colour, nationality and Gypsies and Travellers)

Version May 2018




g¢T obed

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

The draft Plan provides | WCS Core Policy 47 Spatial Planning 2016 Authority’s Monitoring Providing adequate
for policies which will deals with providing for Report pitches and facilities for
provide equal Gypsies and Travellers. the Gypsy and
opportunities for all, A Gypsy and Traveller Traveller needs within
regardless of race. Development Plan Wiltshire.
Document is also under
Ethnic groups have preparation. The draft
been targeted through Plan will complement
the consultation the policies of both
including: documents.
e Friends Families
and Travellers
e The Showmans
Guild of Great
Britain
e Turkish
Community Union
e Friends of
Romania's Horses
e The Romany
Gypsy Council
e Gypsy Council
e Racial Equality
Council
Religion and Belief
The draft Plan provides | Implementation of the Partnership working Up to 2026 Authority’s Monitoring Delivering the homes

for policies which will
provide equal
opportunities for all,
regardless of religion.

Faith groups have been
engaged throughout
the consultation
process. The Plan does
not propose any form of
development that would

draft Plan to provide
the homes necessary
to meet future needs of
Wiltshire.

between Wiltshire
Council, developers
and local communities.

Report

necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).

Version May 2018




6ST abed

Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

obstruct faith groups
functioning as normal.

Religious groups have
been targeted through
the consultation

including:
e Sikh Missionary
Society
e Dauntsey Church.
Sex
The draft Plan provides | Implementation of the Partnership working Up to 2026 Authority’s Monitoring Delivering the homes
for policies which will draft Plan to provide between Wiltshire Report necessary, including
provide equal the homes necessary Council, developers affordable and lifetime
opportunities for all, to meet future needs of | and local communities. homes to meet
regardless of sex. Wiltshire. objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).
Sexual Orientation
The draft Plan provides | Implementation of the Partnership working Up to 2026 Authority’s Monitoring Delivering the homes

for policies which will
provide equal
opportunities for all,
regardless of sexual
orientation.

draft Plan to provide
the homes necessary
to meet future needs of
Wiltshire.

between Wiltshire
Council, developers

and local communities.

Report

necessary, including
affordable and lifetime
homes to meet
objectively assessed
housing needs as
assessed in the
Strategic Housing
Market assessment
(SHMA).

Version May 2018




Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters
| : liti is|

You will need to calculate a risk score twice:

1. On the inherent risk of the proposal itself (without taking into account any mitigating
actions you may identify at the end of the Equality Analysis (EA) process) 7

2. On the risk that remains (the residual risk) after mitigating actions have been identified

This is necessary at both points to:
e Firstly, identify whether an EA needs to be completed for the proposal and;

e Secondly, to understand what risk would be left if the actions identified to mitigate
against any adverse impact are implemented

Stage 1 - to get the inherent risk rating:

1. Use the Equalities Risk Criteria Table below and score each criteria on a scale of 1 - 4 for the
impact and their likelihood of occurrence. Multiply these 2 scores together (Likelihood x Impact)
to get an overall score (this will range from 1 — 16)

2. Consider the scores and if any one aspect scores a 4 then this is likely to outweigh all others. On
this basis determine the appropriate score for the risk. (Do not average scores since this will
almost always produce a low — average scored risk)

3. Assess whether you need to carry out an EA using the guidance box below (stage 2)

4. If an EA is needed (i.e. your score is above 3) make a note of your inherent score using
the red, amber, green colour rating on the first page of the EA template

Stage 2 - to identify whether an EA needs to be carried out:
If your inherent risk score is:

12 - 16 or Red = High Risk. An Equality Analysis must be completed. Significant risks which have to
be actively managed; reduce the likelihood and/or impact through control measures.

6-9or = Medium Risk. An Equality Analysis must be completed. Manageable risks,
controls to be put in place; managers should consider the cost of implementing controls against the
benefit in the reduction of risk exposure.

3 -4 or Green = Low Risk. An Equality Analysis must be completed

1 -2 or Green = Low Risk. An Equality Analysis dgoes not have to be completed

Stage 3 - to get the residual risk rating:
1. Repeat the process above when mitigating actions have been identified and evidenced in
the table on page 3 to calculate the residual risk
2. Make a note of the residual risk score using the red, amber, green colour rating on the first
page of the EA template

Page 140




Equalities Risk Criteria Table

Wiltshire

~——————=_ Where everybody matters

Impact

Criteria

Low

Moderate

2

Substantial 3

Legal challenge to the
Authority under the Public
Sector Equality Duty

Complaint/initial challenge
may easily be resolved

Internal investigation
following a number of
complaints or challenges

Ombudsman complaint
following unresolved complaints
or challenges

Financial
costs/implications

Little or no additional
financial implication as a
result of this decision or

Medium level implication with
internal legal costs and
internal resources

High financial impact - External
legal advice and internal
resources

to services. Unlikely to
result in harm or injury.
Mitigating actions are
sufficient

o proposal

QO

(@]

(9] No or Low or level of Significant quality of life Serious Quality of Life issues
HReople impacts impact on isolation, quality | issues i.e. Achievement, i.e. Where isolation increases
IE of life, achievement, access | access to services. Minor to or vulnerability is greatly

significant levels of harm,
injury. mistreatment or abuse
OR, low level of impact that is
possible or likely to occur with
over 500 people potentially
affected

affected as a result. Injury
and/or serious mistreatment or
abuse of an individual for
whom the Council has a
responsibility OR, a medium
level of impact that is likely to
occur with over 500 people
potentially affected

Reputational damage

Little or no impact outside
of the Council

Some negative local media
reporting

Significant to high levels of
negative front page
reports/editorial comment in




Inpact

Wiltshire Council

~—=——————=_ Where everybody matters
Equalities Risk Matrix

Acceptable Actively managed

Critical (4)

gy bstantial
1(3)

Moderate
)

Very Likely (4)

Very Unlikely

) Unlikely (2) Likely (3)

Likelihood of occurrence

Page 142



Wiltshire

~————=_ Where everybody matters

The protected characteristics:

Age - Where this is referred to, it refers to a person belonging to a particular age (e.g. 32 year olds) or
range of ages (e.g. 18 - 30 year olds). This includes all ages, including children and young people and
older people.

Disability - A person has a disability if s/he has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial
and long-term adverse effect on that person's ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities.

Gender reassignment - The process of transitioning from one gender to another.

Race - Refers to the protected characteristic of Race. It refers to a group of people defined by their race,
colour, and nationality (including citizenship) ethnic or national origins.

Religion and belief - Religion has the meaning usually given to it but belief includes religious and
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g. Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life
choices or the way you live for it to be included in the definition.

Marriage and civil partnership - Marriage is defined as a 'union between a man and a woman'.
Same-sex couples can have their relationships legally recognised as ‘civil partnerships' and get
married (from 29 March 2014) at certain religious venues. Civil partners must be treated the same as
married couples on a wide range of legal matters.

Pregnancy and maternity - Pregnancy is the condition of being pregnant.
Maternity refers to the period of 26 weeks after the birth, which reflects the period of a woman's ordinary
maternity leave entitlement in the employment context.

Sex (this was previously called ‘gender’) - A man or a woman.

Sexual orientation - Whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex
or to both sexes

You are also protected if you are discriminated against because you are perceived to have, or are
associated with someone who has, a protected characteristic. For example, the Equality Act will
protect people who are caring for a disabled child or relative. They will be protected by virtue of their
association to that person (e.g. if the Carer is refused a service because of the person they are caring
for, this would amount to discrimination by association and they would be protected under the Equality
Act)

Page 143



Page 144



This document was published by the Spatial Planning team, Wiltshire Council,
Economic Development and Planning Services.

For further information please visit the following website:

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshsgsiteallocationsplan.htm

Information about Wiltshire Council services can be made available in other formats (such as large
print or audio) and languages on request. Please contact the council on 0300 456 0100,
by textphone on (01225) 712500 or by email on customerservices@wiltshire.gov.uk.




This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Report on consultation with Wiltshire Councillors and town and parish councils
on the proposed changes to the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan
15t May -11"" June 2018

1.0 On 15 May 2018, Wiltshire Council’'s Cabinet deferred making a decision on the draft
Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan (the draft Plan), which was then due to go to
Full Council on 22 May 2018. The decision to defer was taken to provide Wiltshire
councillors with more time to fully consider the documents prepared by officers, and
specifically, the Schedule of Proposed Changes to the draft plan. Cabinet considered
that this offer should also be made available to parish and town councils. Comments
on the Schedule of Proposed Changes were invited to be received by Noon Monday
11 June 2018.

1.1 The papers presented to Cabinet on 15 May 2018 will be considered, alongside
comments received in respect of the Schedule of Proposed Changes as set out in
this Addendum, at Cabinet on 3 July 2018 and then Full Council on 10 July 2018.
For ease of reference the papers can be accessed via the following link:
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=1393&MId=12117

1.2 This Addendum will inform additional changes to the schedule of Proposed Changes
as set out at Appendix 2 of the report originally presented to Cabinet on 15 May
2018.

2.0 Representations Received

2.1 In total representations were received from 20 respondents. Responses were
received from 2 Wiltshire Councillors, 15 parish and town councils (of which two
Parish Councils — Market Lavington and North Bradley submitted a joint response)
and 3 Neighbourhood Plan Steering Groups (of which two steering groups — Market
Lavington and North Bradley submitted a joint response). A summary of each
response along with an officer response can be found in Table 1 below. Full, verbatim
transcripts of every response received can be found at Appendix 1 to this Addendum
document.

2.2 Whilst the consultation was for Wiltshire Councillors and parish and town councils 18
representations were received from members of the public. These responses from
individual members of the public were not purposefully invited, as the consultation
was specifically undertaken with town/parish councils and Wiltshire Council
councillors only. However, in the interests of inclusivity, they have nonetheless been
faithfully recorded as duly made. Details of each response and the response of
officers can be found in Table 2 below. Full, verbatim transcripts of every response
received can be found at Appendix 2 to this Addendum document.

2.3 Some changes are proposed for the settlement boundaries of Seend, Winterslow and
Codford. Maps showing these proposed changes can be found at Appendix 3.

>>>

Page 147


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1393&MId=12117

81T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Table 1: Summary of representations received from Wiltshire Councilors, town and parish councils and neighbourhood plan steering
groups, and the Council’s response

timetable, rapid progress has been made
and there is public support got the
neighbourhood plan. It should therefore
be treated in a similar way to Market
Lavington and North Bradley.

There is no strategic need to allocate
housing sites in Malmesbury Community
Area and the allocation of housing should
be left to the neighbourhood plan

Strategy for 70 dwellings. Since the
publication of the draft Plan the indicative,
strategic housing requirement has now been
met and hence there is a case for
recommending that the proposed allocation at
Ridgeway Farm be deleted from the draft Plan
in order to allow the Qualifying Body to
expedite their neighbourhood plan and
thereby deliver housing to meet locally
defined need. Whilst the draft neighbourhood
plan is yet to reach the Regulation 14 stage, it
is acknowledged that good progress has been
made. However, in the interests of ensuring
that the overall housing land supply position
across the North and West Housing Market
Area is sustained it is recommended that the
proposed allocation be retained at this stage.
The Council will continue to work with the
Qualifying Body to progress their
neighbourhood plan through to the Regulation

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or

parish

council
land la Crudwell Crudwell Parish Council note that it was In accordance with the Council’s site selection | No change at this
(Crudwell Parish stated at the Cabinet meeting on the 15" | methodology the Large Village of Crudwell fell | stage, the position
Parish Council May that Wiltshire Council will work with within the draft Wiltshire Housing Site will be kept under
Council Market Lavington and North Bradley Allocations Plan (draft Plan) remit to help review and
submitted Parish Councils to help them reach their support the delivery of housing within the considered in detall
two Regulation 16 stage before the Malmesbury Community Area and thereby through the
responses) Examination into the WHSAP. Crudwell address the then indicative housing examination of the

Neighbourhood Plan has a similar requirement set by the Wiltshire Core draft Plan.

>>>




61T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
16/examination stage. In addition, the
housing land supply position will continue to
be monitored to inform the examination of the
draft Plan. Should the emerging Crudwell
neighbourhood plan continue to progress
rapidly and soundly, then a decision as to
whether to proceed with the proposed
Ridgeway Farm site can be debated through
the examination of the draft Plan.
2 Codford The Codford Parish Council is happy with | Proposed Settlement Boundary Map Make Proposed
Parish the current proposals for the village. Reference: G5, H5, Bury Farm Changes to include
Council However, they would also like to include the built residential

the following amendments to the
proposed settlement boundary before the
draft Plan is submitted for examination:
¢ Include G5, H5 Bury Farm as this
site has already been built on.
o Propose D4 Ivy Cottage as a site
for redevelopment.

The exclusion of the built residential
development at Bury Farm is a mapping error,
as the methodology includes built residential
development that is physically related to the
settlement. The adjacent farm buildings are
part of the curtilage of Bury Farm/ built
employment development that relates more to
the built environment and, so should be
included under the methodology. In any case,
they are currently undergoing conversion to
residential development.

Proposed Settlement Boundary Map
Reference: D4, lvy Cottages

Officers acknowledge the Parish Council’s
desire to see land at lvy Cottages allocated
for development by bringing it within the
proposed settlement boundary line. However,

development at
Bury Farm and
adjacent farm
buildings within the
proposed
settlement
boundary for
Codford (See
Appendix 3)

>>>




0GT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

the land in question is considered to be some
distance from the settlement boundary and
the urban edge of Codford. Therefore, it
would be impractical to include this land within
the settlement boundary, particularly when
assessed against the Council’s methodology
on such matters.

The Core Strategy includes ‘exception
policies’ (see paragraph 4.25 of the Wiltshire
Core Strategy) that, depending upon the type
of redevelopment proposed, could be
considered as a way forward. Alternatively,
redevelopment of this site could be something
that the community might wish to pursue
through a future neighbourhood plan.

Westbury
Town
Council

Westbury Town Council does not have
any adverse comments but note that
excessive development has taken place
in Westbury previously due to the
absence of a 5-year plan and identified
sites which made speculative projects.
They welcome the recognition that
Westbury has seen over development
and at this time no further development is
desirable or necessary although we would
point out as previously that there has
been no infrastructure improvements to
help sustain such development.

Comments noted.

No changes

>>>




TGT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
The draft plan fails to appreciate or
address the fact that surrounding towns
although not identified as providing more
housing other than that in the pipeline will
be affected by building in adjacent
parishes. For example, the additional
dwellings in Bratton are likely to impact on
Westbury without any subsequent benefit
to Westbury.
4 Seend Parish | Seend Parish Council propose the Proposed Settlement Boundary Map Make Proposed

Council

following settlement boundary changes:
On the western boundary at F8/G8,
Seend Parish Council do not agree that
the site on the western boundary at
F8/G8 should be included within the
settlement boundary as the site is more
related to the open countryside,
especially in relation to the expansive
views it provides.

On H8/18 more of the frontage of Seend
House has been included which was not
included in our original response of
September 2017. Seend Parish Council
would like the boundary line drawn back
to the trees and the properties as per our
previous submission.

Reference: Western boundary at F8/G8

Officers agree that this car park represents
the extended curtilage of a property that
relates more to the open countryside, in terms
of its setting.

Proposed Settlement Boundary Map
Reference: H8/18 frontage of Seend House

Officers agree to amend the settlement
boundary in this area in the interests of
consistency as this would be in line with
previous amendments to the settlement
boundary for Seend that have excluded large
dwellings/ curtilages or part thereof.

Changes to:

(i) Exclude the car
park on the western
boundary F8/G8
from within the
proposed
settlement
boundary for
Seend.

(il) Retain the line
of the existing
settlement
boundary in this
area, except to
include the strip of
amenity land
adjacent to the

>>>




ZGT obed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
High Street, which
relates more
closely to the built
environment.
(See Appendix 3.)
5 and 5a Trowbridge Trowbridge Town Council reconsidered A. The windfall allowance for Wiltshire is No changes.
Original Town the draft Plan at an extraordinary meeting presented at a Housing Market Area (
response Council of the Policy and Resources Committee HMA) level. Bringing forward brownfield
and held on Tuesday 5" June. The sites is rarely straightforward due to the
proposed committee, having considered the matter legacy of previous uses and the additional
changes resolved the following: costs associated with redevelopment.

A. Trowbridge Town Council supports
Wiltshire Council’s allocation of 1000
of the Windfalls allowance for the
North & West Housing Market Area
to Trowbridge CA as expressed by
Councillor Sturgis at the Trowbridge
Area Board on Thursday 24" May
2018.

B. Trowbridge Town Council therefore
agrees with Wiltshire Council that the
shortfall in supply for the Trowbridge
Community Area is 843 houses in the
period up to 2026.

C. Trowbridge Town Council supports
Wiltshire Council in seeking to

Consequently, in housing land supply
terms, brownfield sites without planning
permission are not considered to be a
reliable source of supply on a small
geographical scale such as the settlement
level.

The Brownfield Register published on the
Wiltshire Council website identifies sites in
Trowbridge with a total capacity of 212
dwellings, of which 112 are allocated in
the development plan and 100 have the
benefit of planning permission. These
sites are therefore already included in the
housing land supply and will not contribute
to the windfall allowance.

>>>




€GT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

allocate a surplus in order to ensure
that the five-year land supply can be
met in the HMA and that this is met
through identifying sites for 1100
houses.

D. Trowbridge Town Council supports
Wiltshire Council in the allocation of
the following sites to meet part of the
shortfall:

Spring Meadow SHELAA site 3260
(45 dwellings)

EIm Grove Farm SHELAA sites
248/613 (250 dwellings)

Church Lane SHELAA site 1021 (45
dwelling) and; Trowbridge Town
Council supports the allocation of the
following alternative sites to meet
part of the shortfall:

Additional allocation at Wain Homes’
part of Ashton Park (21 dwellings)
Biss Farm SHELAA site 3247 (267
dwellings)

E. Trowbridge Town Council does not
support the following sites which are
contrary to the Wiltshire Core
Strategy:

South of Elizabeth Way (355
dwellings)

Furthermore, previous experience has
shown that relying on brownfield sites
allocated in a development plan can result
in a shortfall in housing land supply. This
approach was adopted in the North
Wiltshire Local Plan for Chippenham.
Significant delays in bringing forward the
allocated brownfield sites led to a
substantial drop in housing delivery for the
town over a sustained period. This had a
negative impact on the demonstrable
housing land supply, and contributed to
unplanned speculative development
coming forward across the housing
market area.

Given that there is less than 8 years of the
plan period remaining, there would need
to be robust and credible evidence to
support the allocation of previously
developed land in a local plan with such a
short time horizon.

The approach to windfall development
developed for assessing housing land
supply has been tested numerous times at
planning appeal and found to be robust.
The allowance is based on historic
delivery rates for each HMA, smoothing
out any peaks and troughs in delivery
generally seen at the settlement level.

>>>




vGT obed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

White Horse Business Park (225
dwellings)
Southwick Court (180 dwellings)

F. Trowbridge Town Council agrees
with Wiltshire Council, that the WCS
figures are indicative only and should
not be adhered to rigidly and
therefore supports the reallocation of;
72 houses to the neighbouring
villages, in order to ensure that they
continue to maintain sustainability
and local infrastructure; and 400
houses to other towns in the HMA
such as Melksham, Calne and
Westbury, to ensure that they can
continue to sustain economic growth
and the viability and vitality of their
town centres, throughout the plan
period.

G. Trowbridge Town Council supports
Wiltshire Council in meeting the
longer-term growth for Trowbridge
through a review of the WCS and in
particular a review of the Green Belt.

H. Trowbridge Town Council does not
support the redevelopment of the
QEIl ‘Fields in Trust’ EIm Grove
Recreation Ground as part of a

As explained in Topic Paper 2 (paragraph
4.9) a separate windfall allowance is
included in the housing land supply for
each of the HMAs. The delivery of
brownfield sites in Trowbridge up to 2026
has therefore already been accounted for
in the evidence base for the WHSAP.

There is no doubt that brownfield sites will
make a significant contribution to the
supply across the HMA as a whole. The
evidence to support the HSAP indicates
that 2,209 dwellings on such sites will be
delivered in the North and West HMA
between 2017 and 2026. This figure is
based on a robust and defensible
methodology and will no doubt be met to
some extent through the delivery of
brownfield sites in Trowbridge.

B. Officers do not agree that the shortfall for
Trowbridge is 843 dwellings. There is no
evidence to indicate that Trowbridge
would be able to deliver 1,000 dwellings
from windfall sites that have not already
been accounted for in the supply, by
2026. This would equate to 45% of the
windfall allowance in the North and West
HMA at a single settlement, which is
significantly above historic rates, and is

>>>




GGT obed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

housing site allocation or school
development and requests that the
Spatial Planning Team identify the
justification for a new 2 form entry
primary school in this part of the town
and also considers use of any land in
this area in the ownership of
Coulston Estates or Wiltshire Council
that could accommodate a new site
for Larkrise School. And that
alternative arrangements to
accommodate the school and
housing development are brought
forward which retain the EIm Grove
Recreation Ground as a focal centre
for the community, linking the existing
and new developments.

I.  Thatregarding the sites put forward by
Wiltshire Council, Trowbridge Town
Council views with great concern the
lack of transparency in respect of
Spatial Planning’s dealings with site
owners and promoters. Additionally,
Spatial Planning have failed to
observe the protocol whereby ward
councillors are fully briefed, at an early
stage, of any major proposals for their
area.

not considered to be realistic or justified. A
windfall allowance has already been taken
into account for the HMA in the evidence
base for the WHSAP. It is important the
WHSAP provides surety of supply,
something which cannot be achieved by
relying on windfall development with less
than 8 years of the plan period remaining.
The shortfall for Trowbridge is therefore
2,230 dwellings.

. As shown in table 3.1 of the addendum to

Topic Paper 3 the indicative remaining
requirement for the Principal Settlement of
Trowbridge has increased in recent years,
mainly due to the delays in bringing
forward the allocated site at Ashton Park.
The indicative remaining requirement for
the town as at April 2017 is 2,230
dwellings. This is significantly below the
amount of development envisaged. It
should be noted that the sites proposed
for allocation at Trowbridge in the HSAP
will not address the full shortfall of 2,230
but goes some way to correcting the
current imbalance. The site selection
process undertaken is robust and
thorough, eliminating any sites that are
currently not considered suitable for
development. The reasons behind the
selection of sites for the WHSAP can be

>>>




9GT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

In light of the above Trowbridge Town
Council recommend a number of detailed
changes which can be found in their full
representation in Appendix 1.

found in the Trowbridge Community Area
Topic Paper.

D. Support noted.

Biss Farm is located on an existing
employment allocation associated with
Ashton Park. As explained in the
Community Area Topic paper for
Trowbridge, the allocation of this site for
housing development would be contrary to
the Wiltshire Core Strategy and was
therefore excluded from further
consideration.

Officers were not aware of a proposed
extension to the site proposed by Wain
Homes. Should this proposal become
apparent in due course it will be
considered in the housing land supply
calculations.

E. None of the sites allocated in the WHSAP
will impact unacceptably upon the
character and identity of the villages of
Hilperton, Southwick, North Bradley or
West Ashton. This has been
demonstrated in the significant level of
assessment undertaken for each of the
sites proposed. Moreover, the policies of
the Wiltshire Core Strategy would be

>>>




/ST abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

applied to the consideration of any
subsequent planning application and
thereby limit such impacts.

. Where there is a shortfall in one location it

does not follow that should be met by over
delivery in another. Trowbridge is a
Principal Settlement and so reallocating
the shortfall to other Market Towns and
Large Villages would result in an
imbalance in the sustainable pattern of
development planned for Wiltshire.
Furthermore, Market Towns such as
Melksham, Calne and Westbury have
sufficient existing commitments to provide
a steady supply of housing to the end of
the plan period and potentially beyond.
Every effort should therefore be made to
identify sites at Trowbridge sufficient to
ensure surety of supply for the North and
West HMA.

The Wiltshire Core Strategy sets out the
strategic policies for the delivery of
sustainable development across Wiltshire.

Taken together CP1 and CP2 provide the
context for the selection of sites for the
WHSAP. Clearly it is important that the
WHSAP seeks to avoid any imbalance in
delivery of housing in Wiltshire. Table 4.2

>>>




8GT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

of Topic Paper 3: Housing Land Supply
shows the indicative remaining
requirement for each of the Community
Areas, taking into account housing
completions and developable
commitments. The table illustrates that the
majority of Community Areas are on track
to meet or exceed their indicative
requirements. However, the Principal
Settlement of Trowbridge immediately
stands out with a housing shortfall of
2,230 against the indicative requirement
for the town. The Trowbridge Community
Area Topic Paper notes this and highlights
in paragraph 2.13 that the shortfall is
predominantly due to delays in the
delivery of the strategic allocation at
Ashton Park and this remains the same
today, despite Outline planning
permission having been granted for the
development of 2,500 homes in 2018.

The status of Trowbridge in the settlement
hierarchy means that the displacement of
housing from the town to lower tier
settlements would be likely to result in
undermining the sustainable pattern of
development for Wiltshire. This is
something that should therefore be
avoided wherever possible, particularly
where other settlements have already met

>>>




6GT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

or exceeded their own indicative
requirements. The WHSAP has sought to
test the capacity of the town to
accommodate growth through the
identification of additional site allocations,
whilst being mindful of housing delivery
across the housing market area.

It should be noted that the sites proposed
for allocation at Trowbridge in the WHSAP
will not address the full shortfall but go
some way to correcting the current
imbalance. The site selection process
undertaken is robust and thorough,
eliminating any sites that are currently not
considered suitable for development. The
reasons behind the selection of sites for
the WHSAP can be found in the
Trowbridge Community Area Topic Paper.

G. Areview of the Green Belt may be
undertaken as part of the Local Plan
Review, although the need to do so is yet
to be determined. The NPPF states that
“Greenbelts should only be altered in
exceptional circumstances”. This means
that all other reasonable alternative
options should be considered in the first
instance.

>>>




09T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

The Wiltshire Core Strategy Examining
Inspector concluded that the council
should prepare a housing site allocations
plan to ensure security of supply to the
end of the plan period. Trowbridge is a
principal settlement and it is therefore
entirely appropriate to seek to allocate
land as proposed in the WHSAP. The
proposed sites have all been rigorously
assessed as part of the site selection
process, and the evidence indicates that
they are suitable for development.

H. There is an existing need for a two-form
entry mainstream primary school in
Trowbridge. Whilst it is appreciated that
there is also a need to accommodate
pupils with special needs as well, the
debate for special school provision does
not fall under the remit of this draft Plan.
The draft Plan seeks to bring forward a
new mainstream two-form entry primary
school site as part of site allocation H2.1
EIm Grove Farm as no other alternative
site has been identified within the plan
period to meet the need of the town.
There is provision of an alternative site
within the development for a replacement
playing field which could be dedicated as
a replacement and provide betterment for
the local community. See Appendix 3 —

>>>




T9T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
Note on ElIm Grove Field that went to
Cabinet May 2018.
I. Comments noted.
6 Durrington Durrington should be reclassified as a Officers acknowledged the comment that No changes
Town Large Village, not be part of the Market Durrington should be classified as a Large
Council town of Amesbury, Bulford and Village, which was also raised through

Durrington.

Only housing site allocations for
Durrington alone have been put forward
to this stage, there is no allocation for
Bulford or Amesbury. Durrington Town
Council are aware of a potential freehold
site belonging to Lincoln College on the
London Road in Amesbury that has
proposals for circa 73 homes, this was
initially assessed as less sustainable due
to noise concerns and potential A303
plans and should be reassessed based
on new evidence.

Army rebasing: There is no ‘master-
planned approach’ for Durrington based
on Army Rebasing, despite it
incorporating Larkhill within its Parish and
being sandwiched between Larkhill and
Bulford. Wiltshire Council’s requirement
to find land and build more houses in line
with Government directives is not working

Durrington Town Council’s representation
during the Summer 2017 pre-submission
consultation. The draft Plan is based on the
current Wiltshire Core Strategy, which
classifies Durrington as part of a group of
settlements making up a Market Town, with
Amesbury and Bulford. The matter of re-
designation can be considered through the
Local Plan Review, but it is beyond the scope
of this Plan to re-classify settlements.

Land to the north of London Road, Amesbury
has been assessed. As set out in the
Amesbury Community Area Topic Paper this
site (SHLAA reference 3379) was re-
assessed on the basis of updated evidence
that confirmed that the land is not needed in

relation to the proposed A303 dualling project.

Even with this information, the site is still
assessed as being a ‘less sustainable’ option
due to the potential impacts on future
residents associated with noise and air
pollution from the A303 as well as the

>>>




29T obed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

in tandem with Army Rebasing to
completely understand the impact that
Rebasing will have on Durrington.
Building 440 houses within the Parish,
along with another 225 on the outskirts in
Bulford will already have a significant
impact on Durrington without Wiltshire
Council allocating another 60 houses in
Durrington itself. The impact on
Durrington’s roads and facilities has not
been thoroughly considered.

The Plan is unsound; it is not justified to
make a decision at this time on extra
houses being built in Durrington whilst the
full impact of Army Rebasing on
Durrington is unknown.

Allocation H2.5 Clover Lane: When the
Avon Fields Site on Clover Lane was
planned it was only accepted by Salisbury
District Council on a Master Plan that
designed the roads and access to the site
within strict criteria, it was never designed
to cope with the newly proposed
numbers. The impact of a further 45
houses linking into the Avon Fields Estate
needs addressing from a Highways
perspective not that of the site promoters.

adjacent industrial uses on the Solstice
Business Park. Despite the submission of a
proposed layout during the Summer 2017
consultation that was informed by a noise
assessment, our conclusions consider that
the effects of vehicular noise would still be
problematic to mitigate due to the topography
of the site, resulting in a development that
would be suboptimal for its residents. It is
considered that there are more sustainable
options available in the area of search, and
these are at Durrington. Due to the role of
Amesbury as a larger settlement, the ‘less
sustainable’ option at Amesbury was
considered, however it was concluded that
the benefits of developing the site would not
outweigh the negative effects.

Army rebasing: As stated in the Regulation
22 Consultation Report, the Army Basing
Programme is recognised as being a factor
likely to put pressure on local services and
facilities. The programme has considered the
impacts of additional Service Family
Accommodation (SFA) in the area.
Assessments have been carried out (based
on a worse case basis in relation to potential
numbers). Necessary infrastructure and
services are being put in place, such as
additional road junction, cycle paths and
pedestrian footpaths to encourage people to

>>>




€97 abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

travel by means other than car. On the whole,
the programme aims to increase the self-
containment of military personnel on the
bases. However, it is acknowledged that
actual future traffic movements and use of
facilities at Durrington cannot be known for
certain at this stage. The allocations within the
draft Housing Sites Allocations Plan, have
been assessed in terms of their potential
impact on Durrington. The impact on the local
highway network is considered to be low, and
it is considered that the local services and
facilities are able to cope with the additional
population and/or planning proposals will be
subject to requirements to provide or
contribute to necessary improvements.
Therefore, the Army Basing Programme and
the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan
process have each assessed their impacts
carefully. Any further queries regarding the
implications of the Army Basing Programme
should be directed through the appropriate
channels to that programme. Cumulative
impacts on environmental effects and
European habitats designations (for example
impacts on the River Avon SAC) have been
assessed through the SEA and HRA of the
WHSAP.

Allocation 2.5 Clover Lane: Highways
Officers have commented on the allocation at

>>>




9T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

Clover Lane and not raised any objection from
a highways perspective. As an aside, it should
be noted that the Clover Lane allocation is for
approx. 34 dwellings in addition to the existing
Avon Fields outline planning permission — the
land linking site S98 and site 3154 was
already included within the Avon Fields
proposals for approximately 11 larger
dwellings. As stated in the Reg 22 statement
“Development should be delivered according
to the policy and taking account of issues
raised during site assessment and
consultation, including impacts on the River
Avon SAC and SSSI, water infrastructure and
drainage. The planning application process
will also require that any necessary
assessment is carried out and informs the
proposals so that requirements can be met.”
and “Considerations such as the impacts on
highways, landscape, flooding and local
services were taken into account during the
site assessment process. None of the
potential impacts were thought to be
insurmountable based on evidence available
at the time of assessment.”

This means that all the relevant issues —
raised through our own sustainability
assessment as well as through the Summer
2017 consultation — were considered and
necessary requirements have been included
in the policy to supplement the usual

>>>




GoT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
requirements that take place during the
planning application process, such as flood
risk assessment, transport assessment.
7 Yatton The following amendments are requested | The ability to provide a fresh water supply No changes
Keynall to be made to the schedule of proposed system and foul water system to cope with a
Parish changes. development on this site is considered
Councll e Proposed Change 68 — Paragraph capable of being satisfactorily resolved

5.109

Insert additional wording to improve
clarity and to reflect the Parish
Council’s concerns expressed in their
submission of 18th September with
regards to the ability of the fresh
water supply system and foul water
system to cope with a development of
30 houses.

Proposed Change 69 — Paragraph
5.110. Access directly from the B4039
was identified as the preferred access
point in the Parish Council’s
submission dated 18th September
2017, this was supported by ClIr
Baroness J Scott who advised
Wiltshire Council’s officers
accordingly. Cllr Baroness J Scott has
reconfirmed the above on the 4" of
June in a telephone conversation with
our Chairman. Therefore the final
sentence should be changed to
remove reference to vehicular access
being through Farrells Fields to read

through the development management
process and does not need to be reiterated
within policy. It is stated in the Chippenham
Community Area Paper that there this is a
wider consideration and measures will be
needed to address this issue, as follows:

“In Yatton Keynell there is limited capacity
available from local mains for water supply.
An assessment of capacity for water supply
would need to be undertaken in order to
support any subsequent planning
applications. Infrastructure upgrades may be
required and agreed through dialogue with the
relevant water utilities company.”

With regard to access arrangements, it is
important to stress that Farrells Field is an
adopted road, that was clearly designed in
such a way as to allow for future extension of
Farrells Field. On the basis of evidence
gathered to date, the proposal to access via
Farrells Field would be the solution preferred
by our Highway engineers.

>>>




99T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
“Access would be taken directly from | Officers acknowledge that access could be
the B4039 with provision for achieved directly off the B4039. However,
pedestrian only access through this would likely be costlier to achieve and
Farrells Field.” therefore the viability of delivering a small-
scale development on the site may not be
capable of yielding other community benefits,
such as affordable housing. These matters
would need to be addressed in detail at any
subsequent planning application stage.
8 Joint North North Bradley and Market Lavington As anticipated by primary and secondary No changes
response Bradley and | Parish Councils (the Parish Councils) fully | legislation, Wiltshire Council fully supports
Market accept the need to deliver strategic neighbourhood planning. In this regard, it is
Lavington housing for Wiltshire and are committed acknowledged that good progress has been
Parish to neighbourhood plans which aim to do made in respect of both the Market Lavington
Councils just this. However, a choice exists in plan | and North Bradley Neighbourhood Plans.

making terms between a top-down
approach undertaken by unelected
officers; or with the help and support of
the community via neighbourhood plans.

The Parish Councils do not want to create
conflict between traditional and newer
community based plans. The emerging
neighbourhood plans for both Market
Lavington and North Bradley have similar
aims to the draft Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan and should therefore be

The weight to be attached to emerging plans,
including neighbourhood plans, is ultimately a
matter for the decision maker to conclude,
based upon the advice set out in paragraph
216 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Indeed, this position has been well rehearsed
through appeal decisions® and the Courts.
Planning Inspectors are clearly and
consistently applying the advice in paragraph

1 Mr Gary Russell of Mulberry Homes (Ropley) Limited v East Hampshire District Council (17th April 2018); Mr J Wells (Studious Building (Falmouth) Ltd) v
Cornwall Council (20th December 2017); Mr Richard Shires (R&S Shires(Farmers) Ltd) v Milton Keynes Council

>>>




/9T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

supported by Wiltshire Council in
preference over a top down imposition of
site allocations that communities do not
favour.

Moreover, Wiltshire Council are incorrect
in their assessment of the weight to be
attached to emerging neighbourhood
plans. Weight should be applied to
emerging neighbourhood plans at all
stages of their preparation, not just at the
Regulation 16/examination stage.
Therefore, where an emerging
neighbourhood plan identifies sites for
housing development it should be
supported to deliver what the community

consider is an acceptable level of growth.

A joint approach is needed whereby
strategic housing need is met in the first
instance by neighbourhood plans and
only where this is insufficient should
strategic sites be imposed on
communities.

Comments in respect of Wiltshire
Council’s Proposed Changes (PC)

PC13: The Council’s claim that 1247
homes at Ashton Park will not be built
until after 2026 is baseless. The Council

216 and concluding that only limited weight
can be ascribed to emerging neighbourhood
plans, particularly where such documents
have not reached a sufficiently advanced and
robustly tested stage — i.e. the Regulation
16/examination stage.

In line with the advice set out in the Planning
Practice Guidance, officers respect the
evidence prepared to date by both Parish
Councils. Each neighbourhood plans is either
at, or working towards the Regulation 14
stage. At this moment in time, it is not certain
that they will go on to support the strategic
priorities set out within the adopted Wiltshire
Core Strategy through the delivery of housing
to meet local needs. Indeed, in this regard, it
is clear from the Planning Practice Guidance
that neighbourhood planning should not seek
to undermine the strategic policies/priorities of
the Core Strategy.

Whilst it is accepted that the indicative
housing requirement for the Devizes
Community Area has been met, the Council
must present a rolling 5-year housing land
supply position at the Housing Market Area
level. The proposed allocations at Market
Lavington have been robustly assessed and
are considered to be deliverable, developable
and thereby capable of supporting the supply

>>>




89T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

cannot use this as a justification for
increasing the density of certain sites and
maintaining support for strategic sites in
locations that are preparing
neighbourhood plans.

PC18: Policy H1 introduces sites that
Market Lavington Parish Council are
opposed to the allocation of the Underhill
Nursery site which is too large and would,
if developed, create significant
environmental effects. It should therefore
be removed from the draft Wiltshire
Housing Site Allocations Plan. In order to
support the Localism Agenda, the Parish
Council’s preferred sites at Longfield (The
Spring, 20 homes) and Spin Hill (25
homes) should be carried forward
instead. Notwithstanding the Parish
Council’s intention to bring forward
housing sites through the Neighbourhood
Plan, it is noted that the indicative
housing requirement for the Devizes
Community Area has already been met.
This therefore adds further weight to the
argument that the allocations proposed by
Wiltshire Council should be withdrawn in
order to allow the community of Market
Lavington to determine the scale and
location of development they consider is
appropriate.

of housing in the East Wiltshire Housing
Market Area.

At Trowbridge, the indicative housing
requirement to be delivered is very far from
being addressed. Indeed, even with the
recent resolution to grant planning permission
for the Ashton Park Strategically Important
Site Allocation, the overall remaining
requirement stands at 2,230 dwellings.
Therefore, in order to deliver the expected
level of housing set out within the Wiltshire
Core Strategy, further strategically important
areas of land around the town need to be
allocated, as anticipated by Core Policy 29.
Indeed, without such land coming forward,
there is a significant risk that the Council will
fail to demonstrate it can maintain a 5-year
housing land supply position within the North
and West Housing Market Area, leading to the
potential risk of speculative planning
applications and appeals.

The proposed allocation H2.2 (Land off the
A363 at White Horse Business Park) has
been identified and assessed in the light of
the policies of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. In
this regard, the text within the draft Plan that
supports the proposed allocation clearly
anticipates that any subsequent development
proposals would: retain visual separation of

>>>




69T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

PC18: In addition, the proposal to
increase housing numbers on a range of
sites is not supported by evidence and
should therefore be withdrawn.

PC18: With regard to Policy H2, North
Bradley Parish Council oppose the
allocation of H2.2 Land off the White
Horse Business Park and request it be
removed from the draft Wiltshire Housing
Site Allocations Plan. In lieu of the H2.2
site, the Parish Council are seeking to
allocate:

The Paddock (8 homes), Land at
Woodmarsh (25 homes), Park Farm (35
homes), Land off Westbury Road,
Yarnbrook (22 homes). A total of 90
homes would be allocated by the
neighbourhood plan and this should be
supported by Wiltshire Council in
preference to imposing strategic sites on
the parish that would effectively lead to
the coalescence of the town and village.

PC18: North Bradley Parish Council
support Wiltshire Council’s proposed
allocation of: Southwick Court (180
homes) and EIm Grove Farm (200
homes). When these sites are added to

the Town’s urban area from North Bradley
Village (paragraph 5.52); and protect the
integrity of North Bradley as a Village
(paragraph 5.56). Moreover, in order to
provide the necessary level of mitigation to
support protected bat species, existing
hedgerow and trees will need to be protected
to respect the setting of North Bradley Village
(paragraph 5.53)

Officers therefore recommend that the
Council proceeds to propose the allocation of
the Underhill Nursery site (H1.2) in Market
Lavington and site H2.2 (Land off the A363 at
White Horse Business Park) to help sustain a
5-year housing land supply position for the
East Wiltshire and North and West Wiltshire
Housing Market Areas respectively.

>>>




0.7 abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
the proposed neighbourhood plan sites a
total of 470 homes would come forward to
support the overall indicative
requirements for the town.
PC29: The proposed Underhill nursery
site should be withdrawn.
PC33: The evidence to support the
increase the housing numbers for the EIm
Grove Farm site is weak and indefensible.
PC38/39: The case for increasing the
housing numbers for the H2.2 (White
Horse Business Park) site is not
supported by evidence and hence should
revert to 150 dwellings
9 Joint North As above As above
response Bradley and | Same representation as submitted by the
Market respective parish councils. Please see
Lavington above.
Neighbourho
od Plan
Steering
Groups
10 Marlborough | Itis noted that the settlement boundary Paragraph 4.13 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy | No changes
Town may still be changed through the states that ‘it will also be the prerogative of
Council Neighbourhood Plan process currently the community to review settlement

being taken forward through the
Marlborough Area Neighbourhood Plan
Steering Group.

boundaries through a neighbourhood plan.’

>>>




T/ 9bed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
11 Warminster Remove change 24 to Warminster Item 24 from Warminster Town Council’s No changes
Town settlement boundary as Warminster Town | response to the pre-submission Wiltshire
Council Council are opposed to any change to the | Housing Site Allocations Plan consultation is
settlement boundary in the Grovelands as follows:
area.
“24: Settlement Boundary area E6 to G5
Item 24 from Warminster Town Council’s ,
response to the pre-submission Wiltshire _Th's area known an SHLAA_ 1007 G.rovglands
Housing Site Allocations Plan is subje_ct to a curr_ent planning appllgatlon
consultation is as follows: (exception site), vylth_17_acres set aside as
open space. If this site is approved the
“24: Settlement Boundary area E6 to G5 | settlement boundary will need to be adjusted
This area known an SHLAA 1007 accordingly.
Grovelands is subject to a current This area is the subject of planning
planning application (exception site), with | application 17/05360/OUT, which has now
17 acres set aside as open space. If this | been permitted. The area is not included
Site iS approved the Settlement boundary W|th|n the pI’OpOSEd submiSSion Settlement
will need to be adjusted accordingly.” boundary for Warminster. Unimplemented
planning permissions are excluded from
settlement boundaries under the revised
settlement boundary review methodology
(June 2017).
12 Marlborough | It was not clear why Manton, part of the Paragraph 4.16 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy | No changes
Area parish of Marlborough rather than a (adopted January 2015) states that ‘any
Neighbourho | standalone village, was not included existing settlement boundaries for Small
od Plan within the settlement boundary for Villages and other small settlements not
étr%irr')”g Marlborough. identified in the settlement strategy will be

Mildenhall is again not listed as a village
in the table at 2.3 of the Community Area

removed (these are listed in Appendix F), and
there is a general presumption against
development outside the defined limits of

>>>




2/ T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

Topic Paper for Marlborough -
2018. (Mildenhall is not listed anywhere
in the current WCS either).

The Settlement Boundary may change
through the Neighbourhood Plan process.

development of the Principal Settlements,
Market Towns, Local Service Centres and
Large Villages.’

Manton is classified separately from
Marlborough as a small village under Core
Policy 14 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy
(adopted January 2015) and, therefore, no
longer has a settlement boundary.

Mildenhall is a small settlement that is not
identified in the settlement strategy and,
therefore, does not have a settlement
boundary.

Paragraph 4.13 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy
states that ‘it will also be the prerogative of
the community to review settlement
boundaries through a neighbourhood plan.’

13

Laverstock
and Ford
Parish
Council

Inclusion of OMO003 The Yard, Hampton
Park

The Parish Council believes that it is un-
reasonable to consider any further
development within the parish boundaries
and is disappointed to note the inclusion
of OM003 The Yard, Hampton Park in the
May 2018 amendment. The Parish
Council objects to its inclusion.

Comments noted. This site came forward as a
new site in the Summer 2017 Pre-submission
consultation and was subject to assessment
of the potential effects of developing the site.
The site is reasonably small, is previously
developed with a large disused agricultural
building and sits between Hampton Park and
the Country Park. The site scored well in the
site assessment and there are considered to

No changes

>>>




¢/ T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

Settlement Boundary in the vicinity of
Old Sarum and Longhedge.

The developed areas both north and
south of The Portway are identified as
part of the Salisbury Settlement Area. The
Council objected in its submission to the
Pre-submission Draft Housing Site
Allocation Plan in September 2017 to the
inclusion of the Old Sarum area within the
Salisbury Settlement Area. It is felt that
this cannot be correct as this settlement
falls both within the Parish of Laverstock
and Ford as well as the Southern
Wiltshire Community Area. Old Sarum
forms an ‘island’ which is well separated
from the main body of Salisbury
Settlement Area and, therefore, it is not
logical for it to form part of this.

The recent proposed changes now
include Longhedge in this ‘island’. This
overall settlement should be identified
within the Southern Wiltshire Community
Area Topic paper. The document already
identifies boundaries for 7 separate
settlements and an Old
Sarum/Longhedge settlement should form
the 8". Therefore, the Council objects to
both Old Sarum and Longhedge being

be no significant constraints that would
prevent the site from being allocated.

As set out in the Wiltshire Core Strategy
(adopted January 2015) and the Housing
Land Supply Statement (Updated March
2018), the Southern Wiltshire Community
Area remainder and Southern Wiltshire
Community Area exclude any development at
Old Sarum or extensions to Salisbury into this
Community Area, as these are classified as
Salisbury Principal Settlement.

>>>




v/ T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

consultation.

Hilperton Parish Council object to the
following allocations:

SHELAA site 263/297/293 (part) —
Hilperton Gap, located in Hilperton
parish. Hilperton Parish Council policy is
to oppose development in the Hilperton
Gap in order to prevent its coalescence
with Trowbridge.

SHELAA site 298 North Bradley Gap,
located in North Bradley parish.

at this site ‘is largely shaped by the urbanising
effect of Elizabeth Way, development
proposals would need to be carefully
designed so as to protect the character and
appearance of existing residential stock to the
west and north, some of which is Listed and
within a Conservation Area. In addition, any
subsequent development proposals would
need to provide Green Infrastructure
connections to existing features on site.
Footpaths/Bridleway and areas of open space
would need to be included within any
masterplan/planning application. These
considerations are considered capable of
successful mitigation.’

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
included within the Salisbury Settlement
Area.
Corrections to Appendix D to the
Salisbury Community Area Topic
Paper.
The Council is pleased to note that the
errors in the data for 2 SHLAAs (S119 -
Old Sarum and 3381 - Land at Manor
Farm Road, Ford), which were identified
by the Council in its September 2017
submission, have now been corrected.
14 Hilperton Hilperton Parish Council endorses the The WHSAP recognises the issue of No changes.
Parish resolutions agreed by Trowbridge Town coalescence and states in the Trowbridge
Council Council and submitted to this Community Area (page 91) that development

>>>




G/ T obed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

SHELAA site 3565 Southwick Court
Gap, located in Southwick and North
Bradley parishes.

None of these suggestions would
maintain open countryside between the
town and the villages, nor would they
protect the character and identity of
these villages as separate communities.

Hilperton Parish Council is confused as to
why the capacity of land west of Elizabeth
way has increased.

The document (page 116) goes on to draw a
distinction between land to the west of
Elizabeth Way and states:

‘the land to the east of the road is considered
to exhibit a strong relationship in landscape
and heritage terms with the village of
Hilperton. These matters are considered to be
problematic to mitigate, particularly in terms of
protecting the separate identity of Hilperton.
Therefore, it is recommended that the parcel
of site 293 that lies to the east of Elizabeth
Way be removed from further consideration.
This would leave land to the west of road
intact and capable of being annexed to
SHLAA sites 263/297 and thereby progressed
for the purposes of plan making as an
allocation.’

The increased number at Elizabeth Way is a
result of efficient use of land, as prescribed in
the NPPF, which came through
representations made on the WHSAP in
Summer 2017, from members of the public,
the parish council and promoters of the site. It
is also because of further evidence to support
an increase in units combined with the
mapping error for the site whereby the site is
not appropriately mapped to the road
(Elizabeth Way) which also results in a larger
area for consideration.

>>>




9/, T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or

parish

council
15 Salisbury Salisbury City Council (SCC) has The response from Salisbury City Council is No changes

City Council | responded in relation to the Revised welcomed and relates to the Salisbury proposed.

Salisbury Transport Strategy Refresh, to
express disappointment that earlier
representations to previous versions of
the Transport Strategy appear not to have
been considered. SCC requests a
number of amendments to the Transport
Strategy Refresh, including in relation to:

Delays in the development of the
Churchfields site

Increasing pedestrianisation
Creating walking and cycling links
Better utilisation of the park and
ride systems

Improvement of air quality and
noise pollution

Exploring opportunities for light rail
infrastructure to support
neighbouring towns

An economic recovery plan

Other concerns include:

The Transport Strategy Refresh
does not adequately assess the
effects of the Netherhampton
Road development on the
transport system and
infrastructure

Transport Refresh. It contains some aspects
where the Strategy will be amended
accordingly, some aspects which we believe
the Strategy already addresses, and some
aspects which we do not believe will be
implementable within the planned period (up
to 2026), however we will look to incorporate
these in a wider narrative where possible.

The draft Salisbury
Transport Strategy
Refresh will be
finalised alongside
the draft Wiltshire
Housing Site
Allocations Plan.

>>>




/1T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
- Insufficient time allowed for
comment on the consultation, and
not enough access to evidence
- Need to cover Sustrans National
Cycle Network cycle routes
through Salisbury
- Inaccuracies in housing numbers.
16 ClIr Ernie Wiltshire Council has increased the The proposed allocation at Elizabeth Way is No changes
Clark capacity of the site the justification for adjacent to the settlement boundary of
(Hilperton) the original figure was due to the Trowbridge and whilst it is in the parish of

amount of work that would be needed to
make the proposed houses acceptable,
hence the low density. The submissions
of various developers to increase the
allocation have been accepted whilst
ignoring the many cogent reasons put
forward by other parties to remove the
policy altogether.

Objects to the allocation of SHELAA
263/297/293 (part) — Hilperton Gap,
located in Hilperton parish. It should be
noted that Hilperton Parish Council
policy is to oppose development in the
Hilperton Gap in order to prevent its
coalescence with Trowbridge.

The allocation would not maintain open
countryside between the town and the
village, nor would it protect the character

Hilperton it is serving the needs for
Trowbridge town.

The proposed increase in the deliverable
housing quantum at Elizabeth Way represents
the desire to ensure that land for development
is used efficiently, as prescribed b the NPPF
and outlined in representations made on the
WHSAP in Summer 2017, from members of
the public, the parish council and promoters if
the site. In addition, in resolving a mapping
error, it is evident that more land is available
to the immediate west of Elizabeth Way which
can be utilised to deliver a comprehensive
development scheme that includes an
increased number of dwellings.

The WHSAP recognises and seeks to
address the issue of coalescence and states
in the Trowbridge Community Area (page 91)

>>>




8/ T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response
number

Councillor/
Town or
parish
council

Summary of response

Officer response

Proposed change

and identity of the village as a separate
community.

that development at this site ‘is largely shaped
by the urbanising effect of Elizabeth Way,
development proposals would need to be
carefully designed so as to protect the
character and appearance of existing
residential stock to the west and north, some
of which is Listed and within a Conservation
Area. In addition, any subsequent
development proposals would need to provide
Green Infrastructure connections to existing
features on site. Footpaths/Bridleway and
areas of open space would need to be
included within any masterplan/planning
application. These considerations are
considered capable of successful mitigation.’

The document (page 116) goes on to draw a
distinction between land to the west of
Elizabeth Way and states:

‘the land to the east of the road is considered
to exhibit a strong relationship in landscape
and heritage terms with the village of
Hilperton. These matters are considered to be
problematic to mitigate, particularly in terms of
protecting the separate identity of Hilperton.
Therefore, it is recommended that the parcel
of site 293 that lies to the east of Elizabeth
Way be removed from further consideration.
This would leave land to the west of road
intact and capable of being annexed to
SHLAA sites 263/297 and thereby progressed

>>>




6.1 abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

entrance to the country park. The parish
council and landowner agree to a re-sited
entrance on Roman Road, rather than
use the existing entrance. This will
provide better vision in both directions.

application for this site shows access as being

via Roman Road.

Response | Councillor/ | Summary of response Officer response Proposed change
number Town or
parish
council
for the purposes of plan making as an
allocation.’
17 Purton Considered at Council meeting. No Noted. No changes.
Parish comments made.
Council
18 Clir lan Support for the allocation of The Yard at | Your full support for the allocation of ‘The No changes.
McLennan HamptonPark/Bishopdown Farm. Yard'’ site is noted. Wiltshire Council
(Laverstock, Highways team have given support for the
Ford and Old | The entrance to the site should be via the | access to this site to be via Neal Close but it
Sarum) shared road which will also be the is acknowledged that the existing planning

>>>




DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Table 2: Summary of representations received from members of the public and Wiltshire Council response

Response | Summary of response Wiltshire Council response Proposed change
number
1-10 Winterslow proposed settlement boundary The extension to the settlement boundary in No changes
reference (K6, L6) this area has been included in all previous
consultations on settlement boundaries, i.e. the
Retain existing settlement boundary around 1 Witt informal consultation with town and parish
Road, Winterslow. The proposed extension to the councils in summer 2014 and the public
settlement boundary in this area includes agricultural consultation on the pre-submission draft
buildings and land that are not part of the curtilage of 1 | Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan
Witt Road. Development of this area/ inclusion within consultation between July and September
the settlement boundary would be inappropriate 2017. No previous objections have been
because of, among other issues, access and flooding received to the extension of the settlement
o concerns and is not supported by the parish council, boundary in this area. The Council is aware
Q neighbourhood plan steering group and local residents. | that a planning application has recently been
Q The site is being promoted by the landowners/ submitted for five houses on this site, to which
@ developers for inappropriate development. most, if not all, of these comments appear to
5 be in response. The site has historically been
o part of the curtilage of 1 Witt Road. The parish
council have not raised objections to the
principle of development upon this site. The
emerging Winterslow Neighbourhood Plan,
which does identify this site as a second
priority site, is still at an early stage. An area
designation has been granted (August 2017),
however a draft Plan has not been submitted to
the Council. Consequently, it can carry no
weight in planning decision making.
11 Winterslow settlement boundary (F5, G5, F6, G6) The exclusion of the entirety of the garden Make Proposed
curtilage of this property from within the Change to include
Include the entirety of the garden of the property settlement boundary appears to have been an | the entirety of the
known as Beechwood, Winterslow, within the proposed | error. Its inclusion can be supported by the garden of
settlement boundary. The inclusion would be methodology. Beechwood within

>>>




T8T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

consistent with the methodology that includes ‘the

the proposed

curtilage of a property that relates more closely to the settlement
built environment (e.g. a garden) or has limited boundary for
capacity to extend the built form of the settlement in Winterslow. (See
terms of scale and location.” The garden, while large, is Appendix 3.)
of a similar size to those of other properties in
Winterslow that have been included in their entirety
within the proposed settlement boundary. The garden
is also registered as a SHLAA site (3408) and is
supported as a priority site for allocation in the
emerging Winterslow Neighbourhood Plan.

12 The draft Plan is not sound for the following reasons. Iltem 2 — The draft Plan will be presented to No changes

Item 2 - The Housing Plan should be a document
understood and decided upon by the whole of the
Council, not just by Cabinet. The document has not
been subjected to the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
function.

Item 3 - The Plan does not take sufficient account of
the “Consultation”. The report to Cabinet is 395 pages
long. Comments were received from almost 1000
people and organisations. The section on the results of
consultation amounts to 8 pages. Considerable weight
is given to comments from developers, ecological and
heritage aspects. Almost nothing is reported about
comments from town and parish councils and
members of the public.

Item 4 - There is no mention in the plan about the
character of Wiltshire that the community wishes to
see. There should be a discussion about site density,
ie homes per hectare. Members should have a say in

both Cabinet and Full Council in July 2018.
The draft plan must have full Council resolution
to proceed to submission.

Item 3 — The Regulation 22 (1) (c) Report (May
2018) - Consultation Statement provides a full
statement of all representations made. Each
comment is considered on an individual basis
and have been fully taken into account in the
preparation of the submission draft plan.
However, not all comments submitted will
result in a change to the plan.

Item 4 — The draft Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan (WHSAP) sits as a daughter
document of the adopted Wiltshire Core
Strategy (WCS). The WCS sets out how the
County will develop in the plan period which is
up to 2026, providing detailed descriptions for
each community. Any decisions made on
planning applications will need to be in
conformity with the development plan as a

>>>




28T obed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

this. The site density in many cases has increased by
up to 65% (PC43) with minimal explanation.

There is no discussion about the density of population
in community areas; no discussion about the
percentage of undeveloped land within community
areas that should be left undeveloped to provide an
interesting and attractive environment. One might
expect that both of these measures would help to
assess the future quality of Wiltshire. One should
expect an environment designed on the principles of
the Garden Cities.

Item 5 - Support the protection of Bechstein and other
bats. However, the hedgehog appears to have been
forgotten. Many existing houses have gardens large
enough to allow some space to be unkempt and
provide for hedgehogs. With a very high density
development there will be minimal opportunities offered
for hedgehog movement through them. The results of
surveys carried out in 2015 showed a worrying decline.
Hedgehogs are a protected species. The ecological
aspects of the housing proposals should explain how
hedgehogs will be safeguarded.

Item 6 - One of the he biggest problems facing the
country is handling the extension in life

expectancy. Accommodation for the elderly should be
a significant part of this report. It is seriously lacking.

Item 7 - In the case of several sites around Trowbridge,
development is proposed in direct contradiction of the
Core Strategy policy to keep open space between
Trowbridge and its surrounding villages.

whole. It is therefore unnecessary for the
WHSAP to repeat the content of the WCS.

The WHSAP provides an estimate of the
number of dwellings that could be
accommodated on each of the sites. This takes
into account site specific constraints. Core
Policy 57 of the WCS will ensure that
proposals achieve a high quality of design,
including appropriate housing densities.

Item 5 —The sites in question within the draft
WHSAP are in close proximity to the Bath and
Bradford on Avon SAC and therefore mitigation
must be made for the bats, specifically as the
bat species of concern in Trowbridge are
Annex Il species, which are afforded protection
by the SAC European legislation.

Hedgehogs are protected under the
Countryside and Wildlife Act but not to the level
that European Protected Species are. Each
site will be subject to an ecological survey at
the planning application stage. The ecological
survey will identify necessary mitigation
measures for relevant protected species to be
incorporated into the development.

Item 6 — The development plan should be
applied as a whole. Core Policy 46 of the WCS
specifically addresses meeting the needs of
Wiltshire’s vulnerable and older people. Core
Policy 45 of the WCS requires provision to be
made for mix type and tenure and meeting the

>>>




€8T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Item 8 - The increase in numbers on many sites is so
large that the proposals should go out again for
consultation.

ElIm Grove Farm
1 PC33 and 34 are such extensive changes that this
site should go out again for consultation.

2 From the point of view of North Bradley residents a
woodland buffer should be planted against the A363 to
mask the side of Matalan in the Spitfire Retail Park.

Land off A363 at White Horse Business Park
1 PC39 is such an extensive increase in numbers that
it should go out again to consultation.

2 Discussions should take place with North Bradley
Parish Council to reach a compromise that will allow
the North Bradley Neighbourhood Plan to proceed with
its ambition to leave a green landscape gap between
North Bradley village and the WHBP.

3 The redevelopment of the ex-Virgin car park (brown
site) should be promoted to replace the use of the
fields (green site).Flats could be considered with a high
density to match the proposed change of use from
office to residential.

4 The parish Council clearly knows the area well,
possibly better than the officers and consultants who
only make site visits. The Parish Council’s expertise
should be used.

5 Para 3.3 should be explained in terms of a plan,
rather than just words.

needs of Wiltshire’s vulnerable and older
people.

Item 7— WCS Core policy 29 (referencing
paragraph 5.150) requires that open
countryside should be maintained between the
town and surrounding villages. With sensitive
mitigation and design the draft WHSAP will
maintain the status quo.

Item 8 — An increase in numbers reflects the
requirement as set out in the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) to maximise
densities and provide efficient use of the land.
The principle of development for the proposed
allocations has not changed. The changes to
the estimated capacity of the sites are not
considered significant to warrant further
consultation.

ElIm Grove Farm

1 — The changes to the estimated capacity of
the sites are not considered significant to
warrant further consultation.

2 — Policy H2.1 of the WHSAP and the
supporting text provides appropriate guidance
for developers on this issue. Landscape
screening will be taken into account at the
planning application stage.

Land off A363 at White Horse Business
Park

1 - The changes to the estimated capacity of
the sites are not considered significant to
warrant further consultation.

>>>




8T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Ecology

The Plan is clearly premature. It is anticipating a
suitable Mitigation Strategy but this presumably will be
subject to consultation and a suitable result is not
ensured. For example, the effects of the plan on the
hedgehog population in the Wiltshire Council area has
not been considered.

Heritage

Whether the proposals are considered less than
substantial depends on the viewpoint. To an authority
anxious to boost housing numbers “less than
substantial” is satisfactory. However, local residents
might well argue that the effect will be very
substantial. Surely it is the viewpoint of the local
resident who lives with the situation day after day
rather than the consultant who might spend an hour or
less on site which should take precedent.?

Road Conditions

Highways England has commented that there could be
a cumulative impact of traffic increase on A36. There
does not appear to be any similar comment from the
Highways section of Wiltshire Council on the effects of
traffic generated by EIm Park Farm and the A363
WHBP development on A363 and other roads in the
Trowbridge network. Is the Council not interested in
potential worsening of congestion along Bradley
Road?

2 — The WHSAP has been under preparation
since 2014. This has given neighbourhood
planning groups sufficient time to prepare a
Neighbourhood Plan for their area.

3 — The conversion of office to residential has

been granted under permitted development or
‘prior approval’ rights. Further development of

the land for housing would result in the further

loss of important employment land for the area
and therefore is currently not supported.

4 — the parish councils have been consulted at
various times during the process of formulating
the draft WHSAP.

5 — Paragraph 3.3 references the use of a
consistent methodology across Wiltshire to
determine the definition of and extent of built
up areas in the county.

Ecology

The Trowbridge Bat Mitigation Strategy
(TBMS) is being developed to address the
requirements of the Habitats Regulations
Assessment. The TBMS will form part of the
evidence base for the WHSAP specifically to
deal with this issue. The evidence base does
not indicate that a specific mitigation strategy is
required for hedgehogs.

Heritage
The test of substantial harm is established in
paragraphs 132 and 133 of the NPPF.

>>>




GgT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Ultimately the it is the responsibility of the
decision maker to judge whether or not harm
would be substantial, in consultation with
Historic England, Conservation Officers, parish
councils and other statutory consultees.

Highways

A transport Assessment for Trowbridge was
commissioned and undertaken, and published
as part of the supporting documents of the
draft WHSAP.

13 Objects to planned development at The Yard having Your comments are noted. The ‘Schedule of No changes
any access or egress onto Roman Road (Ford Lane). It | Proposed Changes’ to the Plan include this
is a rural lane already heavily used by modern traffic new site allocation ‘The Yard’ and it is stated
and is unsuited for a large volume of modern traffic. that ‘Access to the site would be achieved via
Access should be through Neal Close where access is | Neal Close.’ The site assessment noted that
best afforded. access is possible through Neal Close and this
was supported by Wiltshire Council Highways.
The Plan is not proposing that access to this
site is onto Roman Road (Ford Lane).
14 SHLAA site 3268 - The Spring, Market Lavington The site has been subject to extensive site No changes

Submission of a site assessment prepared by the
owner of site and how this fits with the strategy of the
Neighbourhood Plan.

It rebuts the arguments set out by the Council for
excluding the site on the grounds of site storm water
drainage, level of the B3098 public highway and public
support.

assessment, the outcomes of which have been
published as part of the Devizes Community
Area Topic Paper. The conclusion not to
allocate The Spring (SHELAA site 3268) at
Market Lavington is because the costs are not
thought to be outweighed by the potential
benefits. It is thought that a limited number of
dwellings would be deliverable at this site due
to the constraints and as such it is likely that it
would not contribute to provision of affordable
housing.

>>>




0gT abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

15

[Full response can be found in Appendix
2. Summary of key points raised is provided
below]

Original comments submitted to the Council were not
retained verbatim but were split into separate
comments which did not reflect the content and
arguments set out in the letter.

Further consultation should be undertaken to allow
comments to be submitted on the use of the Queen
Elizabeth 1l Grove Field which was dedicated as a
Queen Elizabeth 1l filed in 2012, as part of a scheme to
celebrate the Queens diamond jubilee and to create a
grassroots legacy after the London Olympics. The
papers reported that “Coultson Estates are looking to
build 200 homes at EIm Grove Farm, off Drynham
Lane, and Wiltshire Council’s strategic planning
officers have recently been talking to them about
buildings a school on the nearby Elm Grove field, to
help with the town’s primary school shortage”. EIm
Tree Farm is Site 613 in the Draft Housing Site
Allocations Plan. This use of EIm Grove Field right next
to Site 613 was not mentioned in the Draft Plan,
therefore no public consultation has occurred, even
though it should clearly have been included at that
time.

This playing field was dedicated in perpetuity as a
playing field, yet within a mere 6 years of the signing of
the Deed of dedication your department is considering
allowing it to be built upon, without public consultation,

The draft WHSAP and all comment received to
date have been published in full and reported
on within the Regulation 22 (1) (c) Report (May
2018) - Consultation Statement provides a full
statement of representations made verbatim
and also in a summary of the issues raised.

The Inspector appointed to undertake the
Independent Examination of the submitted
WHSAP will be provided with the full content of
all comments received, including the
comments submitted in response to this
consultation. The Examining Inspector will refer
to the comments received determining the
matters to be debated at the hearing sessions.

There is an existing need for a two-form entry
main stream primary school in Trowbridge. The
draft Plan seeks to bring this forward at site
allocation H2.1 EIm Grove Farm as no other
alternative site has been identified to meet the
need of the town within the plan period.

No changes

>>>




/8T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

and in clear defiance of the original intention. This is
disgraceful.

As a local resident in the Drynham Ward | object
strongly to this even being considered. There are 7
schools already within a one-mile radius of this site, so
it is highly questionable whether yet another school is
needed on this side of Trowbridge. Wiltshire Council
would need consent from Fields in Trust for this to go
ahead, and must also provide an alternative piece of
land with equivalent or better facilities in the same
area.

We do not need or want a school on this site, which is
dedicated playing field, and large open green area for
Drynham residents, the only one of any size left in our
area.

I would like this letter to go before the Cabinet or
Council meeting in July when the Draft Plan is
considered.

16

Response given in Appendix M of the Regulation 22
Consultation Statement require further detail.

The responder commented on the following proposed
changes:

Proposed Change 15/16 - It is unclear why the entirety
of the Churchfields site is being deferred to ‘beyond
2026'. It is a prime candidate for a high-density
development.

Proposed Change 74 - the Salisbury Transport
Strategy refresh is not completed. The final version

The council is not obligated to provide detailed
responses to all representations made. The
purpose of the Regulation 22 (1) (¢) Report
(May 2018) - Consultation Statement is to
summarise the main issues of concern for the
draft WHSAP. Some issues raised do not fall
under the remit of the draft WHSAP and cannot
be addressed by this document.

PC15/PC16 — the Churchfields site is allocated
as a strategic site in the Wiltshire Core
Strategy but the WHSAP acknowledges the
complexity of bringing this site forward for

No changes

>>>




88T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

needs to be available to see whether the proposed
interventions have been successful.

The right is reserved to make further comments when
there is an appropriate opportunity for the public to do
So.

mixed-use development within the Plan period
(to 2026). The location of this site in proximity
to the railway station and city centre are
acknowledged but alternative sites for housing
have had to be allocated in Salisbury in the
WHSAP to meet housing needs in the absence
of housing delivery at Churchfields.

PC74 — Your comments in respect of the draft
Salisbury Transport Strategy Refresh are duly
noted. As the Plan progresses through the
Examination process, so the draft Transport
Refresh will be progressed. It is still in draft
form at the current time until the Examination
process is completed. The concerns expressed
in your submission are acknowledged and we
will endeavour to find practical solutions
wherever practicable.

Your comments regarding making further
comments in the future when there is
opportunity to do so are noted.

17

The proposed changes provided the Council with an
opportunity to address the fundamental conflict
between the draft Market Lavington Neighbourhood
Plan and the draft Plan, a conflict that we had drawn
attention to in our pre-submission representations.
That conflict has been amplified since the pre-
submission consultation because of the considerable
progress that the neighbourhood plan has made and
the delay in progressing the draft Plan.

The site has been subject to extensive site
assessment, the outcomes of which have been
published as part of the Devizes Community
Area Topic Paper.

With regard to the proposed allocation H1.2
(Underhill Nursery) (PC30) officers
recommended that only the site area be
increased. This was recommended to
accommodate a substantial green
infrastructure buffer and provision for
access/egress. Itis recognised that the

No changes

>>>




68T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

Response objects to the proposed increase in the size
of Housing Site Allocation H1.2 (Underhill Nursery)
(PC30) for the following reasons:

1. The pre-submission draft plan (July 2017)
proposed that the Underhill Nursery site
allocation should accommodate 50 dwellings
(Policy H1). The Plan at Annex A of the Draft
Plan shows that the Proposed Change (PC30)
increases the size of the allocated site area by
about 50% - and yet Table 4.4 (at Paragraph
4.28) still indicates that the allocation will
accommodate approximately 50 dwellings

2. The increase in the size of this proposed
allocation is directly contrary to the clearly
expressed views of the Community; namely that
further growth at Market Lavington should be
accommodated in a few small sites dispersed
around the village. Increasing the size of the
Underhill Nursery Allocation will also
exasperate further the environmental impact
that will be caused by an urban extension in this
area.ln particular, in our opinion the larger site
will result in a “high to medium adverse”
landscape and visual impact. We note that the
Stage 4a Site Landscape Assessment (June
2017) did not assess the impact of developing
the larger site that is now proposed. The larger
site will also result in greater traffic impact on
the village centre.

3. The revised proposed site access (now to be
achieved by demolishing one half of a pair of
semi-detached dwellings fronting on to Stirling
Road) will have a severe and unacceptable
impact on the residential amenity of the
retained dwellings on either side. The proposed

proposed additional area of the site could
increase the dwelling capacity. However,. any
new dwelling capacity figure would need to be
addressed through the Examination process
and based upon robust evidence. Therefore,
at this stage, officers would recommend that
we retain the phrase: ‘approximately 50
dwellings’ as per the Pre-submission draft
Plan. Any significant and substantial changes
to the Plan that flow from the Examination
process will be subject to public consultation,
which be directed by the Inspector

Both sites at Fiddington Hill (SHLAA 530 and
2055) were subject to sustainability appraisal
which include an assessment of landscape
impacts. The potential impacts associated with
development at these sites were considered to
be capable of being successfully mitigated
through careful mitigation and environmental
enhancement strategies.

Access either at Fiddington Hill or Stirling Road
were assessed to be acceptable in Highways
terms.

>>>




06T abed

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

change to the Draft Plan, to provide an
alternative access, is a clear acknowledgement
that the site cannot be satisfactorily accessed
from Fiddington Hill (as had been originally
proposal). Whilst the revised access may be
acceptable in terms of highway engineering, it
would have an unacceptable impact on
neighbouring dwellings. A satisfactory access
cannot be provided to the Underhill Nursery
site.

We assume that the Council is satisfied that this
site is deliverable (ie is achievable and
available now) with the revised access
arrangement

18

Upavon settlement boundary reference (15, J5, 16,

J6)

The whole of Vicarage Lane should be included within
the settlement boundary for Upavon. Vicarage Lane is

part of the village and has been for some time.

Residents pay Council Tax. We were unaware of the
consultation; otherwise we would have submitted a

response. The exclusion of Vicarage Lane is
anomalous and reasonable a dwelling in such a
location would be acceptable.

No responses relating to the settlement
boundary review of Upavon were received
during the pre-submission consultation.

Vicarage Lane consists of a small number of
dwellings separated by the River Avon from the
main settlement of Upavon and is some
distance from a more substantial area of
residential development, which includes the
primary school, off Andover Lane.

Vicarage Lane is not within the existing
settlement boundary.

Its inclusion would not be supported by the
revised settlement boundary review
methodology (June 2017), which excludes
‘isolated development that is physically
detached from the settlement’.

No changes

>>>




T6T abed

>>>

DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT



DRAFT WILTSHIRE HOUSING SITE ALLOCATIONS PLAN — ADDENDUM TO CABINET REPORT

>>>

Page 192



Response number: 1
Page 1 of 3

From: Parish Clerk

To: Clampitt-dix, Georgina

Cc: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: Re. Cabinet Meeting on 15th May / Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan *REF: 1 - printed*
Date: 27 May 2018 10:42:23

Attachments: Spatial Planning.pdf

Dear Ms Clampitt-Dix,

Crudwell Parish Council has as a matter of urgency compiled the attached response following the

Cabinet Meeting held on 15t May 2018. We feel the emerging neighbourhood plan should
allow our community, both those that live and work in Crudwell Parish, to have their views heard
and taken into account with regards to Wiltshire Site Allocation Plan and we respectfully request
your response to the items raised.

This letter has also been posted to you and e-mailed and posted to Baroness Scott and Clirs
Sturgis and Berry.

We also note receipt of the a Briefing Note on the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan
and will respond to this in due course.

Yours

Lisa Dent
Clerk - Crudwell Parish Council

Page 193


mailto:parish.clerk@crudwell-pc.gov.uk
mailto:georgina.clampitt-dix@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk

Crudwell Parish Council
76 Dyer St
Cirencester
Gloucs
GL7 2PF
Georgina Clampitt-Dix
Head of Spatial Planning
Economic Development and Planning
Wiltshire Council
County Hall
Trowbridge
BA14 81D

24" May 2018
Dear Ms Clampitt-Dix
Re: Cabinet Meeting on 15" May / Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan

We regret that no member of Crudwell Parish Council or Neighbourhood Plan (NP) Steering
Group was able to attend the Cabinet Meeting on 15% May, during which the draft Wiltshire
Site Allocations Plan was extensively discussed. We would have welcomed the opportunity
to make representations to Cabinet and to provide an update on progress with Crudwell’s
Neighbourhood Plan. Unfortunately, we were only made aware of the meeting the previous
evening and, at that late stage, nobody was available. We note with interest that
representatives from the Market Lavington NP Steering Group and North Bradley Parish
Council were present to comment on progress with their Neighbourhood Plans.

However, we have viewed the webcast of the Cabinet meeting and wish to raise a number
of points. With regard to the issue of timing, we are pleased that the decision has been
taken to defer endorsement of the draft Site Allocations Plan and its subsequent submission
to the Secretary of State for examination. This will provide a window to enable
consideration of potential changes arising from representations by Ward Members and
town and parish councils.

It was clear from the Cabinet Meeting that Clir. Scott is concerned that the Site Allocations
Plan may be over-riding the “localism” agenda in some cases. For this reason, she
recommended, and Cabinet resolved, that officers should work with Market Lavington and
North Bradley to give them every opportunity to reach regulation 16 before the Site
Allocations Plan goes to examination. We are assuming that deferment of Cabinet’s
endorsement of the Site Allocations Plan is likely to result in it reaching examination in early
2019, taking account also of the Christmas / New Year break.

Whilst we were encouraged by this resolution, we were extremely disappointed that the
Crudwell NP process was referred to dismissively by Clir. Sturgis. We would submit that the
Crudwell NP is at roughly the same stage of development as North Bradley’s and therefore
should be treated in the same way. We would expect a similar level of support to be offered
to Crudwell to help us to reach regulation 16 by the examination date.

Progress that has been made with Crudwell’s NP to date is as follows:





e Initial community engagement survey undertaken

e Over 300 parishioners on our mailing list

e Housing Needs Assessment completed

e C(all for Sites undertaken, resulting in 11 sites identified

e Consultations with infrastructure providers ongoing

e General Meeting open to all parishioners and interested parties held (attendance:

about 80)

® Focus Groups set up to make recommendations on policies and site / housing
allocations

® Joint Focus Groups Exhibition and consultations with parishioners held (attendance:
about 70)

e Focus Groups’ recommendations due to be submitted to Steering Group 1%t week in
June, to include housing site allocation(s)

® Regulation 14 document to be released for consultation in Autumn 2018

e Regulation 16 submission in early 2019

* Please visit our website for more information on our progress http://www.my-
crudwell.org/plan/

On that basis, there is likely to be very little time between our Neighbourhood Plan reaching
regulation 16 and the examination of your Site Allocation Plan. This makes it even more
pressing that we should be provided with every assistance to reach regulation 16 as early as
possible, as advocated by Clir. Scott.

It is noteworthy that our fundamental case with regard to the Housing Site Allocations Plan
is very similar to that expressed by Cllr. Gamble at the Cabinet Meeting, i.e . that there is no
strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations Plan to allocate any sites in Crudwell because
there is already sufficient housing identified in both the North and West Wiltshire Housing
Market Area and the Malmesbury Community Area. On that basis, any allocations in
Crudwell should be made to meet local housing needs and this is precisely what the
Crudwell NP aims to deliver. We have found no evidence explaining why officers feel that
this view, and therefore the Government’s “localism” agenda, should be disregarded.

We wholeheartedly support the “localism” agenda and understand the need for
communities to provide homes to meet local needs. What we are asking is that Crudwell
should be given the same opportunity as others to help shape the future of its community
by being in a position to deliver a Neighbourhood Plan that truly reflects local needs and
expectations.

We are very conscious that decisions made now will have long-term implications for the
future of our community. Therefore, we believe that it is both prudent and appropriate that
the views of those who live and work within the parish of Crudwell should be taken into
account in the policies formulated in the Wiltshire Site Allocations Plan.

This letter has also been sent to Clir Baroness Scott at Wiltshire Council and copied to Clir
Sturgis and Clir Berry.
Yours sincerely,

Peter Gilchrist — Chairman, Crudwell Parish Council
Mike Credicott — Crudwell Parish Council, Neighbourhood Plan Lead






Response number: 1
Page 2 of 3

Crudwell Parish Council
76 Dyer St
Cirencester
Gloucs
GL7 2PF
Georgina Clampitt-Dix
Head of Spatial Planning
Economic Development and Planning
Wiltshire Council
County Hall
Trowbridge
BA14 81D

24" May 2018
Dear Ms Clampitt-Dix
Re: Cabinet Meeting on 15" May / Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan

We regret that no member of Crudwell Parish Council or Neighbourhood Plan (NP) Steering
Group was able to attend the Cabinet Meeting on 15% May, during which the draft Wiltshire
Site Allocations Plan was extensively discussed. We would have welcomed the opportunity
to make representations to Cabinet and to provide an update on progress with Crudwell’s
Neighbourhood Plan. Unfortunately, we were only made aware of the meeting the previous
evening and, at that late stage, nobody was available. We note with interest that
representatives from the Market Lavington NP Steering Group and North Bradley Parish
Council were present to comment on progress with their Neighbourhood Plans.

However, we have viewed the webcast of the Cabinet meeting and wish to raise a number
of points. With regard to the issue of timing, we are pleased that the decision has been
taken to defer endorsement of the draft Site Allocations Plan and its subsequent submission
to the Secretary of State for examination. This will provide a window to enable
consideration of potential changes arising from representations by Ward Members and
town and parish councils.

It was clear from the Cabinet Meeting that Clir. Scott is concerned that the Site Allocations
Plan may be over-riding the “localism” agenda in some cases. For this reason, she
recommended, and Cabinet resolved, that officers should work with Market Lavington and
North Bradley to give them every opportunity to reach regulation 16 before the Site
Allocations Plan goes to examination. We are assuming that deferment of Cabinet’s
endorsement of the Site Allocations Plan is likely to result in it reaching examination in early
2019, taking account also of the Christmas / New Year break.

Whilst we were encouraged by this resolution, we were extremely disappointed that the
Crudwell NP process was referred to dismissively by Clir. Sturgis. We would submit that the
Crudwell NP is at roughly the same stage of development as North Bradley’s and therefore
should be treated in the same way. We would expect a similar level of support to be offered
to Crudwell to help us to reach regulation 16 by the examination date.

94
Progress that has been made with Cruﬁvglgse Ng'to date is as follows:



Response number: 1
Page 3 of 3
e Initial community engagement survey undertaken
e Over 300 parishioners on our mailing list
e Housing Needs Assessment completed
e C(all for Sites undertaken, resulting in 11 sites identified
e Consultations with infrastructure providers ongoing
e General Meeting open to all parishioners and interested parties held (attendance:

about 80)

® Focus Groups set up to make recommendations on policies and site / housing
allocations

® Joint Focus Groups Exhibition and consultations with parishioners held (attendance:
about 70)

e Focus Groups’ recommendations due to be submitted to Steering Group 1%t week in
June, to include housing site allocation(s)

® Regulation 14 document to be released for consultation in Autumn 2018

e Regulation 16 submission in early 2019

* Please visit our website for more information on our progress http://www.my-
crudwell.org/plan/

On that basis, there is likely to be very little time between our Neighbourhood Plan reaching
regulation 16 and the examination of your Site Allocation Plan. This makes it even more
pressing that we should be provided with every assistance to reach regulation 16 as early as
possible, as advocated by Clir. Scott.

It is noteworthy that our fundamental case with regard to the Housing Site Allocations Plan
is very similar to that expressed by Cllr. Gamble at the Cabinet Meeting, i.e . that there is no
strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations Plan to allocate any sites in Crudwell because
there is already sufficient housing identified in both the North and West Wiltshire Housing
Market Area and the Malmesbury Community Area. On that basis, any allocations in
Crudwell should be made to meet local housing needs and this is precisely what the
Crudwell NP aims to deliver. We have found no evidence explaining why officers feel that
this view, and therefore the Government’s “localism” agenda, should be disregarded.

We wholeheartedly support the “localism” agenda and understand the need for
communities to provide homes to meet local needs. What we are asking is that Crudwell
should be given the same opportunity as others to help shape the future of its community
by being in a position to deliver a Neighbourhood Plan that truly reflects local needs and
expectations.

We are very conscious that decisions made now will have long-term implications for the
future of our community. Therefore, we believe that it is both prudent and appropriate that
the views of those who live and work within the parish of Crudwell should be taken into
account in the policies formulated in the Wiltshire Site Allocations Plan.

This letter has also been sent to Clir Baroness Scott at Wiltshire Council and copied to Clir
Sturgis and Clir Berry.
Yours sincerely,

Peter Gilchrist — Chairman, Crudwell Parish g 195
Mike Credicott — Crudwell Parish Council, Neighbourhood Plan Lead



Response number: 1a

Page 1 of 13

From: Lisa Dent
To: Sturgis. Toby
Cc: Tucker, Paula; Clampitt-dix, Georgina; Spatial Planning Policy; Scott, Jane; Henry, Darren; Berry, Chuck
Subject: Crudwell Parish Council - Response to Briefing Note / following cabinet Meeting 15.05.18 *REF: 1a -

printed*
Date: 10 June 2018 16:37:26
Attachments: 18 06 08 Response to Briefing Note.pdf

Dear Cllr Sturgis,

Crudwell Parish Council is pleased to submit the attached response to the Briefing Note which

followed the Cabinet Meeting held on 15t May 2018.

This report was written based on the housing supply situation as at the May Cabinet meeting. At
that date, there was no strategic need to identify any housing sites in Crudwell because there
was sufficient housing supply in the Housing Market Area and the Malmesbury Community Area
already. Since then, we understand that another 48 new dwellings (net) have been approved in
the Malmesbury Community Area, at the Cotswold Community. This means that the housing
supply situation is even more favourable, so there is even less strategic need for the Housing Site
Allocations Plan to allocate any housing sites at Crudwell.

Wiltshire Council’s own documentation emphasises the importance of leaving neighbourhood
plans to identify the level of local housing need and to determine the best location to meet that
need. This recent planning decision only increases the strength of our argument that the
Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan should be left to do just that.

Yours

Lisa Dent
Clerk - Crudwell Parish Council

Page 196


mailto:parish.clerk@crudwell-pc.gov.uk
mailto:Toby.Sturgis@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:Paula.Tucker@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:georgina.clampitt-dix@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jane.Scott@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:Darren.Henry@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:Chuck.Berry@wiltshire.gov.uk

VISION

PLANNING |

v

" Wiltsh

B o 5 4
: -

sp‘o Sc : ' g Note 355 on behalf of
~ crudwell Parish Council

JuneQO] 8 . .

L PrOJeCt Reference: 00001





M

VISION

PLANNING

Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan

Response to Briefing Note 355 on behalf of
Crudwell Parish Councill

Document Issue Record

Version: 1 2

Description/ Status: | Draft Client amends

Date: 7/6/2018 8/6/2018

Produced by: Stuart Miles BEng MA | Stuart Miles BEng MA
MRTPI MRTPI

June 2018

Project Reference: 00001






11

1.2

1.3

14

Introduction

Vision Planning is instructed by Crudwell Parish Council to respond to
Briefing Note 355, which followed the Cabinet’s deferral of a decision to
endorse the Wiltshire Site Allocations Plan for submission on 15" May 2018.

Crudwell Parish Council continues to object to Wiltshire Council's
proposed allocation of the Ridgeway Farm site (H213) in the context of the
good work, rapid progress and strong public support for the emerging
Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan.

Our fundamental point remains that the housing land supply position is
such that there is no strategic need for Wiltshire Council to allocate any
sites at any large villages in the Malmesbury Community Area, and no
direct response to this point has been provided in the papers presented to
Cabinet in May.

We welcome the Cabinet’s support for the Localism agenda, and ask to be
given the time to produce our own Neighbourhood Plan.

Response to Briefing Note 355

Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page PLANNING





2]

22

23

Proposed Housing Site Allocations Plan

The proposed Submission Draft Housing Site Allocations Plan presented to
Cabinet in May 2018 continues to propose the allocation of the Ridgeway
Farm site (Site H213) for 50 dwellings, including the 10 recently built on the
site’s frontage.

The justification for the choice of this site, given in paragraph 5112 of the
Site Allocations Plan itself, include:

It is in a location that has the capacity to accommodate change from an
environmental and landscape perspective.”

It would provide wider benefits for the local community by scope to
provide for affordable housing and by supporting the expansion of the
local primary school.”

‘The school is currently full but expansion could be possible through
funding contributions toward additional capacity to cater for pupils
arising from development. This would remove a particular constraint to
the long term prospects of the village and support its role in the spatial
strategy.”

Proposed mitigation, set out in paragraphs 5.113 and 5.114 include:

"Addlitional screening at the site boundaries would be required to preserve
and maintain the landscape’s quality, particularly on the northern and
eastern boundaries. This would retain views of a wooded framework in
longer distance views and minimise the visibility of the development in the
wider landscape.”

‘Development along Tetbury Lane should be sensitively designed to
ensure it integrates with the existing semi-rural frontage and supports the
distinctiveness of the village.”

"‘Access will be from Tetbury Lane and will require highway improvement
works to the junction of Tetbury Lane/ A429 and improvements for
pedestrians along Tetbury Lane and, elsewhere where feasible, in order to
iImprove accessibility to the centre of the village.”

‘An extension of public footpath CRUD9 would be required, to the west of
the Dawneys, linking with Tetbury Lane to allow for wider improvements to
be delivered in relation to the local public rights of way network.”

Response to Briefing Note 355
Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page 2 PLANNING





24 Since the June 2017 draft of the Housing Site Allocations Plan was released,
an additional omission site has come forward in Crudwell, at Tuners Lane,
and been considered through the Housing Site Allocations process.

25 This site is not proposed for allocation for the following reasons, described
in the “Community Area Topic Paper — Malmesbury™

It is considered that the site appears reasonably well-located to village
services however there is uncertainty that the carriagewaly is suitable for
increased numbers of vehicles and that comprehensive and attractive
routes for pedestrians and cyclists are deliverable. There are also potential
/ssues with respect to heritage and proximity to the conservation area.”

26 Topic Paper 2: Site Selection Process Methodology (Minor factual update)
continues to emphasise, at paragraph 3.8, that:

It is only necessary for this Plan to allocate land for housing development
where it is a strategic priority to do so. WCS Core Policy 1 proposes that
development at Large Villages should be limited to that needed to help
meet the housing needs of settlements and to improve employment
opportunities, services and facilities. Unless there is a strategic priority to
deliver the homes needed in an HMA, then the most appropriate means
to assess local needs and plan growth at each Large Village is through
the neighbourhood planning process.” (My emphasis)

Response to Briefing Note 355

Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018 Page 3 PLANNING





3  Strategic Priority for Wiltshire to allocate
housing sites at Crudwell

31 Topic Paper 3 - Addendum: Housing Land Supply Text, included in the
papers to Cabinet, includes housing supply data for the North and West
Wiltshire Housing Market Area and the Malmesbury Community Area, both
of which include Crudwell.

32 The tables below are from the Topic Paper 3 Addendum. They exclude
allocations proposed in the Housing Site Allocations Plan.
Table 3.3: Confirmed 2017 Housing Land Supply for the Wiltshire HMAs (April 2017
base date) excluding the Plan’s proposed allocations.
Five year Number of
Housing Housing housing Deliverable years of
requirement | completions | requirement supply deliverable
Area 2006-2026 2006-2017 2017-2022 | 2017-2022 supply"’
East Wiltshire HMA 5,940 3,624 1,287 2,164 8.41
North & West
Wiltshire HMA 24740 13,025 6,508 7,680 5.90
South Wiltshire
HMA 10,420 5,388 2,796 3,014 5.39
Wiltshire HMAs 41,100 22,037 N/A 12,858 N/A
Swindon (within
Wiltshire) 900 622 N/A 201 N/A
Wiltshire Total 42,000 22,659 N/A 13,059 N/A
Table 3.1: Residual indicative requirements 2014-2017 by Area*
Qverall Residual Residual Residual Residual
indicative indicative indicative indicative indicative
requirement | requirement | requirement | requirement | requirement
Area 2006-2026 2014 2015 2016 2017
Malmesbury 885 0 0 0 0
Malmesbury CA
remainder 510 151 116 86 0
Malmesbury CA 1,395 151 116 86 0
NORTH & WEST
WILTSHIRE
HMA® 24,740 3,603 2,489 1,967 1,109
33 Table 3.3 indicates that there is currently 5.90 years housing supply in the

North and West Wiltshire Housing Market Area, against a target of 5.25
years. There is, therefore, no strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations
Plan to identify any housing sites at Crudwell in order to deliver sufficient
homes in the housing market area.

Response to Briefing Note 355
Project Ref: 00001
June 2018

VISION

Page 4 PLANNING





34

35

3.6

Table 3.1 indicates that no new homes are needed in the Malmesbury
Community Area as a whole, nor in the Malmesbury Community Area
remainder, in order to meet the Community Area’s housing requirements
up to 2026.

Sothere is no strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations Plan to identify
any housing sites at Crudwell. In the words of Topic Paper 2, this means
that “the most appropriate means to assess local needs and plan growth
at each Large Village is through the neighbourhood planning process’.

This was the basis of the case made on behalf of Crudwell Parish Council
in representations to the June 2017 draft of the Housing Site Allocations
Plan. No response to this fundamental issue is provided in any of the
paperwork provided to the Cabinet in May 2018.

Response to Briefing Note 355

Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page 5 PLANNING





Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan

4] The Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan is progressing well.

42 A number of rounds of consultation have already taken place, a Vision and
a set of Objectives have been drafted, Focus Groups have been set up and
recommended draft policies, and a draft neighbourhood plan will soon be
produced.

4.3 In terms of potential housing, a Housing Needs Assessment has
determined that 20 to 25 new homes are needed. Wiltshire Officers have
seen this report.

4.4 A call for sites has been undertaken which resulted in the sites shown on
the map below coming forward. These sites include Ridgeway Farm and
Tuners Lane, the two sites that got furthest through the Wiltshire Housing
Site Allocations process.

o
Parish
Neighbourhood 3w ) o b
Plan Devevgrren Sam

45 Our Design and Development Focus Group has assessed all the above

Response to Briefing Note 355

Project Ref: 00001 V I S I O N

June 2018 Page 6 PLANNING





4.6

47

48

49

410

41

412

sites thoroughly, informed by public consultation. Of the sites large
enough to deliver an element of affordable housing, the Tuners Lane site
is the most popular with the public.

It is clear that the officer recommendation to continue to allocate
Ridgeway Farm over the Tuners Lane site was a matter of tight planning
judgement. The recommendation not to allocate Tuners Lane refers to
‘uncertainty” about the suitability of the carriageway and “potential”
heritage impacts. The same comments could easily be applied to the
Ridgeway Farm site, and other issues with both sites have been raised
during public consultation.

Equally, the benefits and mitigations attributed to the Ridgeway Farm site
relating to landscape impacts, screening and design, affordable housing
provision, impact on the primary school and impact on existing junctions
with the A429 could equally apply to the Tuners Lane site.

The Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group agreed on 7™ June 2018
to ask the Design and Development Focus Group to consider these issues
further before deciding which site to propose for allocation in the
Neighbourhood Plan. It also debated the merits of identifying a reserve
site in the Plan.

This should give an indication of the depth of consideration and rapid
progress of the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan to date, and the good work
already undertaken by the Steering Group and Focus Groups

At the May Cabinet meeting, the Council Leader, Baroness Scott, made
clear her intention to ensure that emerging Neighbourhood Plans such as
Crudwell’'s should be given every opportunity to succeed.

Inevitably, if Wiltshire Council continues to pursue any allocations at
Crudwell when there is no strategic need to do so and when the local
community is forming its own opinion about future growth, this will bring
the process into disrepute.

The Cabinet agreed that emerging Neighbourhood Plans should be
helped by Council officers to reach regulation 16 draft stage as quickly as
possible. Crudwell Parish Council has written separately to request that
help.

Response to Briefing Note 355

Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page 7 PLANNING





5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Weight to be given to Wiltshire and
Crudwell's emerging plans

The debate at the May Cabinet meeting was heavily influence by Clir
Sturgis’ assertion that only neighbourhood plans that were likely to reach
regulation 16 stage before Wiltshire’s Site Allocations Plan reached
examination could be taken into account. This is partly why Clir Scott
asked for neighbourhood plans to be helped to reach regulation 16 stage.

However, this is an oversimplification of the inter-relationship between
emerging neighbourhood and local plans.

Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the
weight to be given to emerging development plans in planning
applications. Both the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan and the Wiltshire Site
Allocations Plan are “emerging plans” in this context, and no distinction is
made between the two types of development plan.

Paragraph 216 reads:

*.. decision-takers may also give weight to relevant policies in emerging
plans according to:

e the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced
the preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

e the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the
weight that may be given)- and

e thedegree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan
to the policies in this Framework (the closer the policies in the
emerging plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight
that may be given).”

Furthermore, the Planning Practice Guidance (Reference ID: 41-007-
20170728) provides the following guidance under the heading “What
weight can be attached to an emerging neighbourhood plan when
determining planning applications?”

‘Planning applications are decided in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. It is for the

Response to Briefing Note 355

Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page 8 PLANNING





5.6

5.7

decision maker in each case to determine what is a material
consideration and what weight to give to it

An emerging neighbourhood plan may be a material consideration.
Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the
weight that may be given to relevant policies in emerging plans in decision
taking. Factors to consider include the stage of preparation of the plan
and the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies. Whilst a referendum ensures that the community has the final say
on whether the neighbourhood plan comes into force, as part of the
development plan, decision makers should respect evidence of local
support prior to the referendum when seeking to apply weight to an
emerging neighbourhood plan. The consultation statement submitted
with the draft neighbourhood plan should reveal the quality and
effectiveness of the consultation that has informed the plan proposals.
And all representations on the proposals should have been submitted to
the local planning authority by the close of the local planning authority s
publicity period.” (My emphasis)

It is therefore clear that the strength of support or objection to a plan
proposal influences the weight that the plan proposal should be given.

A regulation 14 draft of the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan will be released
well before the Housing Site Allocations Plan reaches examination. If, at
this stage, any housing allocation receives a greater degree of support
and a lesser degree of objection than the allocation proposed in the
Housing Site Allocations Plan, then this influences the weight to be given to
the respective proposals.

Response to Briefing Note 355
Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page 9 PLANNING



https://gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/annex-1-implementation/#para216

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#draft-neighbourhood-plan-meets-requirement



6 Conclusion

6.1 Crudwell Parish Council continues to object to the proposed allocation of
Ridgeway Farm for 50 dwellings (or 40 additional dwellings) on the basis
that:

there is no strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations Plan to
identify any housing sites in the Malmesbury Community Area;

in that context, Wiltshire Council’'s own documentation states that ‘the
most appropriate means to assess local needs and plan growth at
each Large Village is through the neighbourhood planning process”

the emerging Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan is advancing rapidly and
has already been the subject of a number of rounds of public
consultation and exhibitions;

the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan will identify a housing site or sites to
meet its local housing needs as defined by a housing needs
assessment produced to inform it;

the collaborative and inclusive approach adopted in producing the
Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan is intended to achieve public support to
a far greater extent than Wiltshire’s Housing Site Allocations Plan has
achieved;

the weight to be given to the emerging Housing Site Allocations Plan
and Neighbourhood Plan is not only a matter of the stage they have
each reached; itis also a function of the level of support and objection
to each document.

6.2 On that basis, we request that the Housing Site Allocations Plan removes
any proposed allocations in Crudwell, and allows the Crudwell
Neighbourhood Plan to make the decision about Crudwell’s growth.

Pl QLUCJ

Peter Gilchriest

Chair Crudwell Parish Council

Response to Briefing Note 355
Project Ref: 00001 V I S I 0 N

June 2018

Page 10 PLANNING






Response number: 1a
Page 2 of 13

VISION

PLANNING '

v

b sh

¥ 4R
"

~ R
. ‘f .

B8

"Response to B : : g Note 355 on behalf of
~ crudwell Parish Coupcil

June2018

i ij‘qjéqt Reference: 00001



Response number: 1a

M

VISION

PLANNING

Page 3 of 13

Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan

Response to Briefing Note 355 on behalf of

Crudwell Parish Council

Document Issue Record

Version: 1 2
Description/ Status: | Draft Client amends
Date: 7/6/2018 8/6/2018

Produced by:

Stuart Miles BEng MA
MRTPI

Stuart Miles BEng MA
MRTPI

June 2018

Project Reference: 00001

Page 198




11

1.2

1.3

14

Response number: 1a
Page 4 of 13

Introduction

Vision Planning is instructed by Crudwell Parish Council to respond to
Briefing Note 355, which followed the Cabinet’s deferral of a decision to
endorse the Wiltshire Site Allocations Plan for submission on 15" May 2018.

Crudwell Parish Council continues to object to Wiltshire Council's
proposed allocation of the Ridgeway Farm site (H213) in the context of the
good work, rapid progress and strong public support for the emerging
Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan.

Our fundamental point remains that the housing land supply position is
such that there is no strategic need for Wiltshire Council to allocate any
sites at any large villages in the Malmesbury Community Area, and no
direct response to this point has been provided in the papers presented to
Cabinet in May.

We welcome the Cabinet’s support for the Localism agenda, and ask to be
given the time to produce our own Neighbourhood Plan.

VISION

Page 199 PLANNING



2]

22

23

Response number: 1a
Page 5 of 13

Proposed Housing Site Allocations Plan

The proposed Submission Draft Housing Site Allocations Plan presented to
Cabinet in May 2018 continues to propose the allocation of the Ridgeway
Farm site (Site H213) for 50 dwellings, including the 10 recently built on the
site’s frontage.

The justification for the choice of this site, given in paragraph 5112 of the
Site Allocations Plan itself, include:

It is in a location that has the capacity to accommodate change from an
environmental and landscape perspective.”

It would provide wider benefits for the local community by scope to
provide for affordable housing and by supporting the expansion of the
local primary school.”

‘The school is currently full but expansion could be possible through
funding contributions toward additional capacity to cater for pupils
arising from development. This would remove a particular constraint to
the long term prospects of the village and support its role in the spatial
strategy.”

Proposed mitigation, set out in paragraphs 5.113 and 5.114 include:

"Addlitional screening at the site boundaries would be required to preserve
and maintain the landscape’s quality, particularly on the northern and
eastern boundaries. This would retain views of a wooded framework in
longer distance views and minimise the visibility of the development in the
wider landscape.”

‘Development along Tetbury Lane should be sensitively designed to
ensure it integrates with the existing semi-rural frontage and supports the
distinctiveness of the village.”

"‘Access will be from Tetbury Lane and will require highway improvement
works to the junction of Tetbury Lane/ A429 and improvements for
pedestrians along Tetbury Lane and, elsewhere where feasible, in order to
iImprove accessibility to the centre of the village.”

"An extension of public footpath CRUD9 would be required, to the west of
the Dawneys, linking with Tetbury Lane to allow for wider improvements to
be delivered in relation to the local public rights of way network.”

VISION

Page 200 PLANNING



24

25

26

Response number: 1a
Page 6 of 13

Since the June 2017 draft of the Housing Site Allocations Plan was released,
an additional omission site has come forward in Crudwell, at Tuners Lane,
and been considered through the Housing Site Allocations process.

This site is not proposed for allocation for the following reasons, described
in the “Community Area Topic Paper — Malmesbury™

It is considered that the site appears reasonably well-located to village
services however there is uncertainty that the carriagewaly is suitable for
increased numbers of vehicles and that comprehensive and attractive
routes for pedestrians and cyclists are deliverable. There are also potential
/ssues with respect to heritage and proximity to the conservation area.”

Topic Paper 2: Site Selection Process Methodology (Minor factual update)
continues to emphasise, at paragraph 3.8, that:

It is only necessary for this Plan to allocate land for housing development
where it is a strategic priority to do so. WCS Core Policy 1 proposes that
development at Large Villages should be limited to that needed to help
meet the housing needs of settlements and to improve employment
opportunities, services and facilities. Unless there is a strategic priority to
deliver the homes needed in an HMA, then the most appropriate means
to assess local needs and plan growth at each Large Village is through
the neighbourhood planning process.” (My emphasis)

VISION

Page 201 PLANNING



31

3.2

3.3

Table 3.3: Confirmed 2017 Housing Land Supply for the Wiltshire HMAs (April 2017

housing sites at Crudwell

base date) excluding the Plan’s proposed allocations.

Response number: 1a

Page 7 of 13

Strategic Priority for Wiltshire to allocate

Topic Paper 3 - Addendum: Housing Land Supply Text, included in the
papers to Cabinet, includes housing supply data for the North and West
Wiltshire Housing Market Area and the Malmesbury Community Area, both
of which include Crudwell.

The tables below are from the Topic Paper 3 Addendum. They exclude
allocations proposed in the Housing Site Allocations Plan.

Five year Number of
Housing Housing housing Deliverable years of
requirement | completions | requirement supply deliverable
Area 2006-2026 2006-2017 2017-2022 2017-2022 supply™
East Wiltshire HMA 5,940 3,624 1,287 2,164 8.41
North & West
Wiltshire HMA 24740 13,025 6,508 7,680 5.90
South Wiltshire
HMA 10,420 5,388 2,796 3,014 5.39
Wiltshire HMAs 41,100 22,037 N/A 12,858 N/A
Swindon (within
Wiltshire) 900 622 N/A 201 N/A
Wiltshire Total 42,000 22,659 N/A 13,059 N/A
Table 3.1: Residual indicative requirements 2014-2017 by Area*
Qverall Residual Residual Residual Residual
indicative indicative indicative indicative indicative
requirement | requirement | requirement | requirement | requirement
Area 2006-2026 2014 2015 2016 2017
Malmesbury 885 0 0 0 0
Malmesbury CA
remainder 510 151 116 86 0
Malmesbury CA 1,395 151 116 86 0
NORTH & WEST
WILTSHIRE
HMA® 24,740 3,603 2,489 1,967 1,109

Page 202

Table 3.3 indicates that there is currently 5.90 years housing supply in the
North and West Wiltshire Housing Market Area, against a target of 5.25
years. There is, therefore, no strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations
Plan to identify any housing sites at Crudwell in order to deliver sufficient
homes in the housing market area.

VISION

PLANNING



34

35

3.6

Response number: 1a
Page 8 of 13

Table 3.1 indicates that no new homes are needed in the Malmesbury
Community Area as a whole, nor in the Malmesbury Community Area
remainder, in order to meet the Community Area’s housing requirements
up to 2026.

Sothere s no strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations Plan to identify
any housing sites at Crudwell. In the words of Topic Paper 2, this means
that “the most appropriate means to assess local needs and plan growth
at each Large Village is through the neighbourhood planning process’.

This was the basis of the case made on behalf of Crudwell Parish Council
in representations to the June 2017 draft of the Housing Site Allocations
Plan. No response to this fundamental issue is provided in any of the
paperwork provided to the Cabinet in May 2018.

VISION

Page 203 PLANNING



Response number: 1a

Page 9 of 13
4  Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan
4] The Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan is progressing well.
42 A number of rounds of consultation have already taken place, a Vision and

a set of Objectives have been drafted, Focus Groups have been setup and
recommended draft policies, and a draft neighbourhood plan will soon be
produced.

4.3 In terms of potential housing, a Housing Needs Assessment has
determined that 20 to 25 new homes are needed. Wiltshire Officers have
seen this report.

4.4 A call for sites has been undertaken which resulted in the sites shown on
the map below coming forward. These sites include Ridgeway Farm and
Tuners Lane, the two sites that got furthest through the Wiltshire Housing
Site Allocations process.

Key Map

Cructamil

o ] 7, Crudwell

~e — s e e
- .
n_'-/ N st rhood [ropeea .

45 Our Design and Development Focus Group has assessed all the above

VISION

Page 204 PLANNING



Response number: 1a
Page 10 of 13

sites thoroughly, informed by public consultation. Of the sites large
enough to deliver an element of affordable housing, the Tuners Lane site
is the most popular with the public.

4.6 It is clear that the officer recommendation to continue to allocate
Ridgeway Farm over the Tuners Lane site was a matter of tight planning
judgement. The recommendation not to allocate Tuners Lane refers to
‘uncertainty” about the suitability of the carriageway and “potential”
heritage impacts. The same comments could easily be applied to the
Ridgeway Farm site, and other issues with both sites have been raised
during public consultation.

47 Equally, the benefits and mitigations attributed to the Ridgeway Farm site
relating to landscape impacts, screening and design, affordable housing
provision, impact on the primary school and impact on existing junctions
with the A429 could equally apply to the Tuners Lane site.

4.8 The Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group agreed on 7™ June 2018
to ask the Design and Development Focus Group to consider these issues
further before deciding which site to propose for allocation in the
Neighbourhood Plan. It also debated the merits of identifying a reserve
site in the Plan.

49 This should give an indication of the depth of consideration and rapid
progress of the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan to date, and the good work
already undertaken by the Steering Group and Focus Groups

410 At the May Cabinet meeting, the Council Leader, Baroness Scott, made
clear her intention to ensure that emerging Neighbourhood Plans such as
Crudwell’'s should be given every opportunity to succeed.

4 Inevitably, if Wiltshire Council continues to pursue any allocations at
Crudwell when there is no strategic need to do so and when the local
community is forming its own opinion about future growth, this will bring
the process into disrepute.

412 The Cabinet agreed that emerging Neighbourhood Plans should be
helped by Council officers to reach regulation 16 draft stage as quickly as
possible. Crudwell Parish Council has written separately to request that
help.

VISION

Page 205 PLANNING



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Response number: 1a
Page 11 of 13

Weight to be given to Wiltshire and
Crudwell's emerging plans

The debate at the May Cabinet meeting was heavily influence by Clir
Sturgis’ assertion that only neighbourhood plans that were likely to reach
regulation 16 stage before Wiltshire’s Site Allocations Plan reached
examination could be taken into account. This is partly why Clir Scott
asked for neighbourhood plans to be helped to reach regulation 16 stage.

However, this is an oversimplification of the inter-relationship between
emerging neighbourhood and local plans.

Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the
weight to be given to emerging development plans in planning
applications. Both the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan and the Wiltshire Site
Allocations Plan are “emerging plans” in this context, and no distinction is
made between the two types of development plan.

Paragraph 216 reads:

*.. decision-takers may also give weight to relevant policies in emerging
plans according to:

e the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced
the preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

e the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the
weight that may be given)- and

e thedegree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan
to the policies in this Framework (the closer the policies in the
emerging plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight
that may be given).”

Furthermore, the Planning Practice Guidance (Reference ID: 41-007-
20170728) provides the following guidance under the heading “What
weight can be attached to an emerging neighbourhood plan when
determining planning applications?”

‘Planning applications are decided in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. It is for the

VISION

Page 206 PLANNING



5.6

5.7

Response number: 1a
Page 12 of 13

decision maker in each case to determine what is a material
consideration and what weight to give to it

An emerging neighbourhood plan may be a material consideration.
Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the
weight that may be given to relevant policies in emerging plans in decision
taking. Factors to consider include the stage of preparation of the plan
and the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies. Whilst a referendum ensures that the community has the final say
on whether the neighbourhood plan comes into force, as part of the
development plan, decision makers should respect evidence of local
support prior to the referendum when seeking to apply weight to an
emerging neighbourhood plan. The consultation statement submitted
with the draft neighbourhood plan should reveal the quality and
effectiveness of the consultation that has informed the plan proposals.
And all representations on the proposals should have been submitted to
the local planning authority by the close of the local planning authority s
publicity period.” (My emphasis)

It is therefore clear that the strength of support or objection to a plan
proposal influences the weight that the plan proposal should be given.

A regulation 14 draft of the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan will be released
well before the Housing Site Allocations Plan reaches examination. If, at
this stage, any housing allocation receives a greater degree of support
and a lesser degree of objection than the allocation proposed in the
Housing Site Allocations Plan, then this influences the weight to be given to
the respective proposals.

VISION

Page 207 PLANNING


https://gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/annex-1-implementation/#para216
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#draft-neighbourhood-plan-meets-requirement

6.

6.2

Response number: 1a
Page 13 of 13

Conclusion

Crudwell Parish Council continues to object to the proposed allocation of
Ridgeway Farm for 50 dwellings (or 40 additional dwellings) on the basis
that:

e there is no strategic need for the Housing Site Allocations Plan to
identify any housing sites in the Malmesbury Community Area;

¢ inthat context, Wiltshire Council's own documentation states that the
most appropriate means to assess local needs and plan growth at
each Large Village is through the neighbourhood planning process”

e the emerging Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan is advancing rapidly and
has already been the subject of a number of rounds of public
consultation and exhibitions;

e the Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan will identify a housing site or sites to
meet its local housing needs as defined by a housing needs
assessment produced to inform it;

e the collaborative and inclusive approach adopted in producing the
Crudwell Neighbourhood Plan is intended to achieve public support to
a far greater extent than Wiltshire’s Housing Site Allocations Plan has
achieved;

e the weight to be given to the emerging Housing Site Allocations Plan
and Neighbourhood Plan is not only a matter of the stage they have
each reached; itis also a function of the level of support and objection
to each document.

On that basis, we request that the Housing Site Allocations Plan removes
any proposed allocations in Crudwell, and allows the Crudwell
Neighbourhood Plan to make the decision about Crudwell’s growth.

Pl QLUCMQ(

Peter Gilchriest

Chair Crudwell Parish Council

VISION

Page 208 PLANNING



Response number: 2
Page 1 of 1

From: Karungi Grant

To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan *REF: 2 - printed*
Date: 29 May 2018 08:24:55

Re: The Codford proposals for revised settlement boundaries (HSAP submission May 2018). Parish
Council is happy with the current proposal;

could you also include :
G5, H5, Bury Farm this site is already being built on and the Parish Council feels this should now be

included, and
D4, lvy Cottages, propose to consider this site for redevelopment.

regards

Karungi Grant
Clerk, Codford Parish Council

Tel: 01985 850523
21A Cherry Orchard, Codford
Warminster BA12 OPN

Page 209


mailto:karungigrant.codfordparish@yahoo.com
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk

Response number: 3

~ Westbury Town Counicil

The Laverton, Bratton Road, Westbury
Wiltshire BA13 3EN Tel: 01373 822232
E-mail: info@westburytowncouncil.gov.uk
www.westburytowncouncil.gov.uk

Spatial Planning

Economic Development and Planning
County Hall

Trowbridge

Wiltshire

BA14 8JD

4t June 2018

Reference: Briefing Note on Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan No. 355

Westbury Town Council does not have any adverse comments although we note that
excessive development has taken place in Westbury previously due to the absence
of a 5-year plan and identified sites which made speculative projects.

We welcome that it has been recognised that Westbury has seen over development
and at this time no further development is desirable or necessary although we would
point out as previously that there has been no infrastructure improvements to help
sustain such development.

The draft plan fails to appreciate or address the fact that surrounding towns although
not identified as providing more housing other than that in the pipeline will be
affected by building in adjacent parishes. For example, the additional dwellings in
Bratton are likely to impact on Westbury without any subsequent benefit to
Westbury.

Mike Sutton

Chair
Highways Planning and Development

Page 210

Town Clerk and Responsible Financial Officer: Deborah Urch
VAT no. 984 3745 74



Response number: 4
Page 1 of 1

SEEND PARISH COUNCIL

Parish Clerk: Mrs Sue Bond

61 Seend Cleeve

Melksham

Wiltshire

SN12 6PX

Email: clerk@seendparishcouncil.co.uk
Tel: 07706 850859

5" June 2018

To: spatialplanning@wiltshire.gov.uk

Seend Parish Council’s response to Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan in relation to the proposed changes to Seend Parish’s Settlement
Boundary June 2018.

The newly revised draft Seend Settlement Boundary was discussed at
Seend Parish Council’s meeting on 29" May, and by the Seend
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group. All are in agreement with the
following submission.

We are pleased to see that many of our recommended amendments
following the first draft circulated last September 2017 have been taken
into consideration. However, we would still like to see the following
amendment made as per our previous submission.

On the western boundary at F8/G8, we do not agree that this site should
be included within the settlement boundary as the site is more related to
the open countryside, especially in relation to the expansive views it
provides.

On H8/18 we see you have included more of the frontage of Seend
House which was not included in our original response of September
2017, and we would like the boundary line drawn back to the trees and
the properties as per our previous submission.

We request that we are kept informed at each stage and reserve the

right to be involved with the progress of the policy on the settlement
boundaries until its adoption in Winter 2018.

Page 211


mailto:clerk@seendparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:spatialplanning@wiltshire.gov.uk

Response number: 5
Page 1 of 1

The following resolutions were approved at the extraordinary meeting of the Policy & Resources
Committee of Trowbridge Town Council held on Tuesday 5" June 2018.

A.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council’s allocation of 1000 of the Windfalls
allowance for the N&W HMA to Trowbridge CA as expressed by Councillor Sturgis at the
Trowbridge Area Board on Thursday 24t May 2018.

Trowbridge Town Council therefore agrees with Wiltshire Council that the shortfall in supply
for the Trowbridge Community Area is 843 houses in the period up to 2026.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council in seeking to allocate a surplus in order to
ensure that the five-year land supply can be met in the HMA and that this is met through
identifying sites for 1100 houses.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council in the allocation of the following sites to
meet part of the shortfall:

Spring Meadows 3260 45
Elm Grove Farm 248/613 250
Church Lane 1021 45

and; Trowbridge Town Council supports the allocation of the following alternative sites to meet

part of the shortfall:
Additional allocation at Wain Homes’ part of Ashton Park 21
Biss Farm 3247 267

Trowbridge Town Council does not support the following sites which are contrary to the
Wiltshire Core Strategy:

S of Elizabeth Way 355
W H BP 225
Southwick Court 180

Trowbridge Town Council agrees with Wiltshire Council, that the WCS figures are indicative
only and should not be adhered to rigidly and therefore supports the reallocation of; 72 houses
to the neighbouring villages, in order to ensure that they continue to maintain sustainability
and local infrastructure; and 400 houses to other towns in the HMA such as Melksham, Calne
and Westbury, to ensure that they can continue to sustain economic growth and the viability
and vitality of their town centres, throughout the plan period.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council in meeting the longer term growth for
Trowbridge through a review of the WCS and in particular a review of the Green Belt.

Trowbridge Town Council does not support the redevelopment of the QEIl ‘Fields in Trust’ EIm
Grove Recreation Ground as part of a housing site allocation or school development and
requests that the Spatial Planning Team identify the justification for a new 2 form entry
primary school in this part of the town and also considers use of any land in this area in the
ownership of Coulston Estates or Wiltshire Council that could accommodate a new site for
Larkrise School. And that alternative arrangements to accommodate the school and housing
development are brought forward which retain the EIm Grove Recreation Ground as a focal
centre for the community, linking the existing and new developments.

That regarding the sites put forward by Wiltshire Council, Trowbridge Town Council views with
great concern the lack of transparency in respect of Spatial Planning’s dealings with site
owners and promoters. Additionally, Spatial Planning have failed to observe the protocol
whereby ward councillors are fully briefed, at an early stage, of any major proposals for their
area.

Page 212



Response number: 5a
Page 1 of 6

Trowbridge Town Council

HSAP Proposed Amendments 8" June 2018 Working with the Community

Introduction

Trowbridge Town Council has considered the proposed Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan
on a number of occasions. Following deferral of further consideration by Wiltshire Council at its
Cabinet meeting on 15 May, the town council reconsidered the matter at an extraordinary
meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee held on Tuesday 5% June. The committee, having
considered the matter resolved the following:

A.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council’s allocation of 1000 of the Windfalls allowance for
the N&W HMA to Trowbridge CA as expressed by Councillor Sturgis at the Trowbridge Area Board on
Thursday 24" May 2018.

Trowbridge Town Council therefore agrees with Wiltshire Council that the shortfall in supply for the
Trowbridge Community Area is 843 houses in the period up to 2026.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council in seeking to allocate a surplus in order to ensure
that the five-year land supply can be met in the HMA and that this is met through identifying sites for
1100 houses.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council in the allocation of the following sites to meet part
of the shortfall:

Spring Meadows 3260 45
Elm Grove Farm 248/613 250
Church Lane 1021 45

and; Trowbridge Town Council supports the allocation of the following alternative sites to meet part of
the shortfall:
Additional allocation at Wain Homes’ part of Ashton Park 21
Biss Farm 3247 267

Trowbridge Town Council does not support the following sites which are contrary to the Wiltshire Core
Strategy:

S of Elizabeth Way 355
W H BP 225
Southwick Court 180

Trowbridge Town Council agrees with Wiltshire Council, that the WCS figures are indicative only and
should not be adhered to rigidly and therefore supports the reallocation of; 72 houses to the
neighbouring villages, in order to ensure that they continue to maintain sustainability and local
infrastructure; and 400 houses to other towns in the HMA such as Melksham, Calne and Westbury, to
ensure that they can continue to sustain economic growth and the viability and vitality of their town
centres, throughout the plan period.

Trowbridge Town Council supports Wiltshire Council in meeting the longer term growth for Trowbridge
through a review of the WCS and in particular a review of the Green Belt.

Trowbridge Town Council does not support the redevelopment of the QEIl ‘Fields in Trust’ EIm Grove
Recreation Ground as part of a housing site allocation or school development and requests that the
Spatial Planning Team identify the justification for a new 2 form entry primary school in this part of the
town and also considers use of any land in this area in the ownership of Coulston Estates or Wiltshire
Council that could accommodate a new site for Larkrise School. And that alternative arrangements to
accommodate the school and housing development are brought forward which retain the EIm Grove
Recreation Ground as a focal centre for the community, linking the existing and new developments.

That regarding the sites put forward by Wiltshire Council, Trowbridge Town Council views with great
concern the lack of transparency in respect of Spatial Planning’s dealings with site owners and
promoters. Additionally, Spatial Planning have failed to observe the protocol whereby ward councillors
are fully briefed, at an early stage, of any major proposals for their area.

Page 213



Response number: 5a
Page 2 of 6

Trowbridge Town Council
HSAP Proposed Amendments 8" June 2018 Working with the Community

Proposed amendments

Further to the resolutions above, the town council now presents the following amendments to the
Schedule of Proposed Changes, as required by the procedure outlined in Briefing note 355 published on
[7th May 2018.

Policy H2

The starting point Policy H2 is:

Policy H2

Land is allocated for residential development at the following sites, as shown on the
policies map:

Table 5.3 North and West Wiltshire Housing Market Area

Community | Reference Site Name No of
Area dwellings
Trowbridge | H2.1 Elm Grove Farm, Trowbridge 200
H2.2 Land off the A363 at White Horse Business 150
Park, Trowbridge
H2.3 Elizabeth Way, Trowbridge 205
H2.4 Church Lane, Trowbridge 45
H2.5 Upper Studley, Trowbridge 20
H2.6 Southwick Court, Trowbridge 180

The changes to Policy H2 proposed by Wiltshire Council are:

Policy H2
Land is allocated for residential development at the following sites, as shown on the
policies map:

Table 5.3 North and West Wiltshire Housing Market Area

Community Reference | Site Name No of
Area dwellings
Trowbridge H2.1 Elm Grove Farm, Trowbridge 250
H2.2 Land off the A363 at White Horse Business Park, 225
Trowbridge
H2.3 Elizabeth Way, Trowbridge 355
H2.4 Church Lane, Trowbridge 45
H2.5 Upper Studley, Trowbridge 45
H2.6 Southwick Court, Trowbridge 180

Page 214



Response number: 5a
Page 3 of 6

Trowbridge Town Council
HSAP Proposed Amendments 8" June 2018 Working with the Community

The amended changes to Policy H2 proposed by Trowbridge Town Council are:

Policy H2

Land is allocated for residential development at the following sites, as shown on the
policies map:

Table 5.3 North and West Wiltshire Housing Market Area

Community Area | Reference | Site Name No of dwellings
Trowbridge H2.1 Elm Grove Farm, Trowbridge 250

H2.2 Deleted

H2.3 Deleted

H2.4 Church Lane, Trowbridge 45

H2.5 Upper Studley, Trowbridge 45

H2.6 Deleted

H2.7 Biss Farm, Trowbridge 267
Policy H2.1

The starting point Policy H2 is:

Policy H2.1

Approximately 14.33ha of land at EIm Grove Farm, as identified on the Policies Map, is
proposed for mixed use development comprising the following elements:

Approximately 200 dwellings;

At least 1.8ha of land for a two form entry primary school along with playing pitches;

A multi-purpose community facility;

A consolidated public open space area incorporating and augmenting the existing

Queen Elizabeth Il Field;

¢ Aroad from the A363 through to an improved junction of Drynham Lane and Wiltshire
Drive; and

. New cycling and walking routes through the site to link into the existing network and

the proposed Ashton Park Strategic Allocation site.

Development will take place in accordance with a masterplan for the site approved by the
Council as part of the planning application process.

Page 215



Response number: 5a
Page 4 of 6

Trowbridge Town Council
HSAP Proposed Amendments 8" June 2018 Working with the Community

The changes to Policy H2.1 proposed by Wiltshire Council are:

Policy H2.1
Approximately 17.78ha of land at EIm Grove Farm, as identified on the Policies Map, is
proposed for mixed use development comprising the following elements:

o Approximately 250 dwellings;

o At least 1.8ha of land for a two form entry primary school along with playing pitches
on land owned by the Council, but held in Trust (the existing Queen Elizabeth I
Field);

A multi-purpose community facility;

o A significantly improved and consolidated public open space area adjacent to the
existing Queen Elizabeth Il Field to provide a play area and junior level sports
pitches for local community teams to utilise;

e Aroad from the A363 through to an improved junction of Drynham Lane and
Wiltshire Drive; and

e New cycling and walking routes through the site to link into the existing network and
the proposed Ashton Park Strategic Allocation site, and the White Horse Business
Park.

Development will take place in accordance with a masterplan for the site approved by the
Council as part of the planning application process.

The amended changes to Policy H2.| proposed by Trowbridge Town Council are:

Policy H2.1
Approximately 17.78ha of land at EIm Grove Farm, as identified on the Policies Map, is
proposed for mixed use development comprising the following elements:

Approximately 250 dwellings;

At least 1.8ha of land for a two form entry primary school along with playing pitches;

A multi-purpose community facility;

A significantly improved and consolidated public open space area, a focal centre for

the community, linking the existing and new development at the existing Queen

Elizabeth Il Field to provide a play area and junior level sports pitches for local

community teams to utilise;

e Aroad from the A363 through to an improved junction of Drynham Lane and
Wiltshire Drive; and

¢ New cycling and walking routes through the site to link into the existing network and

the proposed Ashton Park Strategic Allocation site, and the White Horse Business

Park.

Development will take place in accordance with a masterplan for the site approved by the
Council as part of the planning application process.

In addition Trowbridge Town Council proposes that any consequential amendments to the supporting text,
reflecting the above, should also be made to paragraph 5.46.

Page 216



Response number: 5a
Page 5 of 6

Trowbridge Town Council
HSAP Proposed Amendments 8" June 2018 Working with the Community

Policy H2.2

Trowbridge Town Council’s proposal is that Policy H2.2 is deleted in its entirety.

Policy H2.3

Trowbridge Town Council’s proposal is that Policy H2.3 is deleted in its entirety.

Policy H2.4

Trowbridge Town Council proposes no amendments to Policy H2.3 in addition to those already made by
Wiltshire Council.

Policy H2.5

Trowbridge Town Council proposes no amendments to Policy H2.5 in addition to those already made by
Wiltshire Council.

Policy H2.6

Trowbridge Town Council’s proposal is that Policy H2.6 is deleted in its entirety.

Policy H2.7

Trowbridge Town Council proposes an amendment to add a new policy H2.7

Policy H2.7
Approximately 14.00ha of land at Biss Farm, as identified on the Policies Map, is
proposed for mixed use development comprising the following elements:

Approximately 267 dwellings;

At least 1.6ha of land for a two form entry primary school along with playing pitches;
Approximately 0.7ha for an extra-care facility, use class C2;

Approximately 0.5ha for use class A3/A4

Public open space; and

Cycling and walking routes through the site to link into the existing network and

the proposed Ashton Park Strategic Allocation site.

Development will take place in accordance with a masterplan for the site approved by the
Council as part of the planning application process.

Page 217



Response number: 5a
Page 6 of 6

Trowbridge Town Council
HSAP Proposed Amendments 8" June 2018 Working with the Community

Other amendments

Trowbridge Town Council does not fully understand how, given the nature of the work already
undertaken, or not undertaken, it is possible to make proposals for amendments, in respect of the
following:

An increase in the number of houses allocated to Ashton Park from 2600 to 2621.

The reallocation from Trowbridge to the villages in the Trowbridge Community Area of 72 houses.
The reallocation from Trowbridge to other towns in the N&WHMA of 400 houses.

The apportionment of the N&WHMA ‘Windfalls’ figure of 2209 to include 1000 windfalls within
the Trowbridge total.

Trowbridge Town Council seeks to achieve some of this by the following amendment to paragraph 4.53

The starting point Paragraph 4.53 is:

4.53 One main reason for a shortfall in land supply is the complexity and consequent delay
developing Ashton Park, a south eastern extension to the town. 1,600 dwellings will be built
on this site in the plan period and a further 1,000 post 2026; rather than first envisaged that
the whole of the allocation would have been completed in the plan period. This can be seen
to account for 1,000 of the 1,220 dwelling shortfall.

The amended changes to Paragraph 4.53 proposed by Trowbridge Town Council are:

4.53 One main reason for a shortfall in land supply is the complexity and consequent delay
developing Ashton Park, a south eastern extension to the town. 1,600 dwellings will be built

on this site in the plan period and a further 1,000 post 2026; rather than first envisaged that

the whole of the allocation would have been completed in the plan period. This can be seen

to account for 1,000 of the 1,220 dwelling shortfall. Recognising the flexibility of the WCS figures
as expressed in Paragraph 4.35 it is now appropriate to reallocate some of the housing numbers
from Trowbridge town to other places in the HMA which have shown an ability to develop
sustainably at a quicker rate than previously envisaged and that may, without such additional
development, not be able to adequately sustain facilities and infrastructure in their communities.
These reallocations are; 72 houses to other large villages in the Trowbridge Community Area and
400 houses to other towns in the N&WHMA. These reallocations should be the subject of further
consideration during the examination. A reduction of the Trowbridge guantum from 6810 to 6338
still leaves Trowbridge as the largest single location for development in Wiltshire and does NOT
detract from the WCS primary focus for development at the Principal Settlements.

Page 218



Response number: 6
Page 1 of 2

lurrington
—~ own
‘ouncil

Serving Durrington & Larkhill

A cOomimun v

that cares

Durrington Town Council would like to comment further on the Draft Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan following the deferral of a decision by Cabinet on the 15" of May 2018 to take it to
Council on the 22" of May 2018.

The Town Council has considered Wiltshire Council’s responses under Regulation 22, Appendix M
relating to Durrington and provides the following update for consideration:

21.108/109/110
Large Villages

Wiltshire Council has not addressed the issue of Durrington being included as the Market Town of
Amesbury (including Bulford and Durrington), it should be re-classified on its own as a Large Village.

Only housing site allocations for Durrington alone have been put forward to this stage, there is no
allocation for Bulford or Amesbury within the same Market Town. Durrington Town Council are
aware of a potential freehold site belonging to Lincoln College on the London Road in Amesbury that
has proposals for circa 73 homes, this was initially assessed as less sustainable due to noise concerns
and potential A303 plans. Planners indicate that tests have been conducted and measures could be
put in place to mitigate noise. With updated A303 plans, could this site be re-assessed?

Army Rebasing

There is no ‘master-planned approach’ for Durrington based on Army Rebasing, despite it
incorporating Larkhill within its Parish and being sandwiched between Larkhill and Bulford. Wiltshire
Council’s requirement to find land and build more houses in line with Government directives is not
working in tandem with Army Rebasing to completely understand the impact that Rebasing will have
on Durrington. Building 440 houses within the Parish, along with another 225 on the outskirts in
Bulford will already have a significant impact on Durrington without Wiltshire Council allocating
another 60 houses in Durrington itself.

The impact on Durrington’s roads and facilities has not been thoroughly considered. There is no
planned investment by Wiltshire Council or Army Rebasing to improve roads within Durrington,
despite the potential for thousands more road users travelling through the village. The original
Traffic Assessment within Army Rebasing is outdated with a requirement for a new assessment to be
conducted prior to the increase in service personnel and their families arriving at Larkhill/Bulford.
This needs to include roads within Durrington (Particularly Larkhhill Road/Bulford Hill), it would also
benefit from an Assessment post arrival to fully determine the impact of the extra few thousand
personnel in the area.

Page 219



Response number: 6
Page 2 of 2

Army Rebasing in Larkhill will provide 440 homes and approximately 1500 single service personnel
will move to the area. The only improvements to infrastructure are a new road layout (roundabout)
on The Packway, a new medical and dental centre for both military and civilian patients (although
capacity/quotas for civilians is unknown) and a new primary school including pre-school places. Of
note, this will be the relocated St Michael’s School from Figheldean. Residents will still use
Durrington for local facilities such as shops, schools, leisure, garages and an access route to the A303
Eastbound. The Town Council is informed by MOD staff at Larkhill Garrison that only service
personnel and their families working in Larkhill will be allocated housing in Larkhill, potentially
mitigating some traffic movements in the area on a daily basis. In reality, this is not achievable due
to Larkhill Garrison not owning the outsourced housing allocation system in place pan Armed Forces.
Likewise, Army Rebasing in Bulford will provide 225 new homes just outside the boundary of
Durrington. With limited facilities in Bulford itself, it is anticipated that more traffic will access
Durrington from Bulford particularly using Bulford Hill and Larkhill Road as access routes to/from the
A303 and A345.

21.127/128/129
Clover Lane

When the Avon Fields Site on Clover Lane was planned it was only accepted by Salisbury District
Council on a Master Plan that designed the roads and access to the site within strict criteria, it was
never designed to cope with the newly proposed numbers. The impact of a further 45 houses
linking into the Avon Fields Estate needs addressing from a Highways perspective not that of the site
promoters.

Conclusion

The Plan is unsound; it is not justified to make a decision at this time on extra houses being built in
Durrington whilst the full impact of Army Rebasing on Durrington is unknown. The evidence will
only be available once Army Rebasing has taken place. Whilst the Plan may be consistent with
national policy, there is a conflict with Army Rebasing. Wiltshire Council is driving forward with its
requirement to find land and build houses with the view that Core Policy 37 of the Wiltshire Core
Strategy has dealt with everything required for Army Rebasing, when this is not the case. Larkhill
cannot possibly provide everything that service personnel and their families require within the limits
of Larkhill itself, therefore residents will be very reliant on Durrington.

Cllr JP Todd - Chairman

Page 220



Response number: 7
Page 1 of 1

Yatton Keynell Parish Council

23 John Aubrey Close
Yatton Keynell
Chippenham

SN14 7EG

Spatial Planning

Economic Development & Planning
Wiltshire Council, County Hall
Bythesea Road

Trowbridge

BA14 8JN

8th June 2018

Dear Sir,

Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - Changes to the Schedule of Proposed
Changes

Yatton Keynell Parish Council request that the following amendments are made to the schedule of
proposed changes.

Proposed Change 68 — Paragraph 5.109

Insert additional wording to improve clarity and to reflect the Parish Council’s concerns expressed
in their submission of 18t September with regards to the ability of the fresh water supply system
and foul water system to cope with a development of 30 houses.

Proposed Change 69 — Paragraph 5.110

Access directly from the B4039 was identified as the preferred access point in the Parish Council’s
submission dated 18t September 2017, this was supported by Cllr Baroness J Scott who advised
Wiltshire Council’s officers accordingly. Cllr Baroness J Scott has reconfirmed the above on the 4t
of June in a telephone conversation with our Chairman.

Therefore the final sentence should be changed to remove reference to vehicular access being
through Farrells Fields to read “Access would be taken directly from the B4039 with provision for
pedestrian only access through Farrells Field.”

Yours faithfully

Ian J Plowman
Clerk to Yatton Keynell Parish Council

Chairman: Alistair Parker, Khips House, The Street, Yatton Keynell, SN14 7BA
Email: cler © ell.com



1.0

11

1.2

1.3

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 1 of 22

Briefing Note 355

Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan

Response by North Bradley and Market Lavington Parish Councils

Introduction

Wiltshire Council is currently preparing its Housing Site Allocations Plan (HSAP).
Section 1.2 of the above briefing note invites further comments on the proposed
schedule of changes by noon on 11" June 2018. This document is such a response,
with detailed comments being made in section 3.

Both Market Lavington and North Bradley Parish Councils are coincidentally midway
through preparing neighbourhood plans (NDP’s) and are alarmed and concerned that
the HSAP as written and as modified by the proposed schedule directly conflicts

with the Localism Agenda on which neighbourhood planning is based and which
Wiltshire Council is bound by. Specifically, Localism is intended to enhance
community involvement in planning whereas the HSAP process has led to ignoring a
great deal of work undertaken selflessly by community volunteers and aimed at
helping Wiltshire deliver necessary housing with community support.

Notwithstanding statements made by Wiltshire Council’'s officers, members should be
aware that the above two neighbourhood plans have received professional advice
and it is clear to them that the HSAP, as written, risks being found to be unsound at
Examination, for the reasons that follow. As presently drafted, both Parish Councils
will have no alternative but to object at the EIP and argue that the HSAP be rejected
as unsound. They also intend to approach the Secretary of State directly about the
HSAP and with specific and general comments about the failings of the present
neighbourhood planning service provided by Wiltshire Council to NDP groups. The
results of these exchanges will be published in the local press via the NDP groups’
media officer. They will also approach their local MP’s to ask that questions be
raised at higher levels. You should not underestimate the anger and disappointment
that is currently being felt, nor the determination that exists to put the situation right.

Conflicts in terms of site allocations exist between the HSAP and both the above
neighbourhood plans, and these unfortunately stem from a fundamental
misinterpretation of the Regulations by Wiltshire Council. This has resulted in a
deeply flawed planning process, likely to undermine the HSAP. Members need to be
aware of this, because it conflicts with what they are being told by officers. It has also
caused the volunteer groups, giving up their time to produce the neighbourhood
plans, to conclude that Wiltshire Council still prefers a traditional pre-localism, top-
down planning approach rather than one based on co-operation and co-ordination
with neighbourhood planning in Wiltshire.

Page 222



1.4

15

1.6

1.7

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 2 of 22

As a result of the Wiltshire approach, there is now an emerging conflict between
many neighbourhood plans and Wiltshire policy. This is completely unnecessary and
most regrettable — but there is still time to put this right and deliver the housing we
need with community consent.

Numerous attempts have been made to begin a dialogue for example:
North Bradley:

¢ Response to HSAP — August 2017 (detailed explanation of emerging conflict)
e Letter to Spatial Planning — March 2018

Market Lavington:

Letter of Concern 28" June 2017

Response to HSAP — August 2017 (detailed explanation of emerging conflict)
Letter 29th August 2017

Letter 26" September 2017

However, Wiltshire Council shows little interest in genuine partnership working.

The slow and inadequate responses to these urgent pleas to co-operate in

planning Wiltshire’s future, together with poor levels of support in general (see below)
indicate that Wiltshire Council still prefers traditional top-down planning and does not
want real engagement between neighbourhood plans and their own strategies.

The consequences for this flawed approach, if not corrected, are likely to include:

e The rejection of the HSAP at Examination

e Damage to the image of Wiltshire Council if seen to be ignoring Localism and
the rights of the community to have a fair say in planning their future (the
debate will extend into the local press).

e Considerable loss of public money and time (the Parish Council’s intend to
submit a freedom of information request to determine how much has been
spent by Wiltshire Council. Grant payments to the NDP groups are also likely
to have been wasted if the plans continue to be ignored.

¢ Significant extra work for neighbourhood plan groups and widespread
damage to the reputation of neighbourhood planning in Wiltshire (the two
PC’s are in contact with other groups who also have concerns they are
considering bringing to the EIP and the Secretary of State).

e Delays in delivering the necessary housing for Wiltshire

It is essential that members realise that conflict between neighbourhood planning and
the HSAP is not what the NDP groups want. They are not opposed to providing the
necessary housing for Wiltshire; the disagreement is ONLY over whether this should
be met — at least partly - through the democratic, community-based approach of
neighbourhood planning or whether sites should be imposed in a top-down manner
by Wiltshire Council. The latter approach is what the HSAP uses.

Page 223



1.8

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 3 of 22

Both NDP’s have good strategies, based on factual professional evidence that
command public support. However, they, like all neighbourhood plans in Wiltshire,
have been effectively ignored by the HSAP process. The statement at 3.3 in the
Briefing Note that a comprehensive approach to neighbourhood planning has been
taken is false. The actual approach, contrary to Government guidance, has been to
deliberately ignore all neighbourhood plans until near their final stages (Reg 16). This
delay in engaging with local groups has created the present conflict and could easily
have been avoided. The Wiltshire approach contrasts with more enlightened
approaches elsewhere — for example at East Cambridgeshire Council -
Neighbourhood planning does not have to be done this way.

Background to Reasoned Justification

Section 3 following contains detailed responses to the Schedule contained within the
Briefing Note. However it is considered essential for members to realise just how
flawed the HSAP process has been and so it is first necessary to present some basic
arguments to set the comments in context.

The present approach of the HSAP is to take note of neighbourhood plans only after
they reach a very advanced stage (Regulation 16 stage — i.e. submission). This is far
too late, and it means that NDP groups may in some cases have been patiently
working up proposals for years only to have them overridden at the last minute by the
HSAP, with huge waste of effort and money resulting (it should be remembered that
the NDP groups are funded by Government grants, so this is tax-payer's money that
is being thrown away on abortive work).

In fact, Annex 1. Paragraph 216 of the NPPF says:

From the day of publication, decision-takers may also give weight to relevant policies
in emerging plans according to:

» the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

» the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be
given); and

+ the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).

Wiltshire Council’'s approach is far too crude in giving no weight at all before the
Reg.16 stage and only after that considering it relevant. The NPPF implies a much
more nuanced and gradual approach.

In fact, Planning Practice Guidance explicitly requires decision makers to ‘respect
evidence of local support prior to referendum’ — that is BEFORE Reg.16 has been
reached.

Page 224



24

2.5

2.6

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 4 of 22

Planning Practice Guidance Neighbourhood Planning para 07 says:

‘An emerging neighbourhood plan may be a material consideration. .......... Factors
to consider include the stage of preparation of the plan and the extent to which
there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.... Decision makers should
respect evidence of local support prior to referendum when seeking to apply weight
to an emerging neighbourhood plan. ............ It is for the decision maker in each
case to determine what a material consideration is and what weight to give it.’

In summary, the Wiltshire approach relies on a very narrow view of the Regulations
and ignores three main things:

e The wider regulatory context including planning practice guidance
e Best practice elsewhere
e Recent judgements in the Courts.

The above points will be explored below.

The wider regulatory context.
Consultation.

The statement at 3.3 of the Briefing Note that a ‘comprehensive assessment

of neighbourhood plan’s across Wiltshire has also been undertaken’ is simply not
true. A rough census of plans has been compiled but the approach has been to
ignore their actual proposals until Regulation 16 and this falls far short of what is
required by the Regulations.

Additionally, while Parish Council’'s were consulted, there was no direct consultation
with Neighbourhood Plan Steering Groups — these are semi-autonomous and simply
consulting the Parish Council is not sufficient. Both North Bradley and Market
Lavington Steering Groups communicated their ideas to Wiltshire Council at an early
stage but these were brushed aside and an attempt made to impose the HSAP
against community wishes.

Duty to co-operate

The duty to co-operate in relation to planning of sustainable development is
enshrined in law through Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 (PCPA) (inserted by Section 110 of the Localism Act 2011). It is also included
within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The NPPF Paragraph 157
states: ‘Crucially, Local Plans should ... be based on co-operation with

neighbouring authorities, public, voluntary and private sector organisations’.

PPG adds:

‘The local planning authority should work with the qualifying body to produce
complementary neighbourhood and Local Plans. It is important to minimise any
conflicts between policies in the neighbourhood plan and those in the emerging Local
Plan, including housing supply policies. This is because section 38(5) of the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that the conflict must be resolved by
the decision maker favouring the policy which is contained in the last document to
become part of the development plan.

Page 225



2.7

2.8

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 5 of 22

Neighbourhood plans should consider providing indicative delivery timetables, and
allocating reserve sites to ensure that emerging evidence of housing need is
addressed. This can help minimise potential conflicts and ensure that policies in the
neighbourhood plan are not overridden by a new Local Plan’. Paragraph: Planning
Practice Guidance, Neighbourhood Plans, 009 Reference ID: 41-009- 20160211.

Regarding the duty to co-operate, PPG says:

‘The duty requires active and sustained engagement. Local planning authorities and
other public bodies must work together constructively from the outset of plan
preparation to maximise the effectiveness of strategic planning policies. It is unlikely
that this could be satisfied by consultation alone. Local planning authorities that
cannot demonstrate that they have complied with the duty will fail the independent
examination process’. Paragraph: 009 Reference ID: 9-009-20140306

while a list of prescribed organisations is set out in Regulation 4 of the Town &
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 as amended (the
Regulations), it is not generally realised that this list is NOT EXHAUSTIVE. It does
not specifically list parish councils or neighbourhood plan groups. However the
Regulations DO stress the need for co-operation in the preparation of plans and its
seems essential therefore than such close co-operation exists where Wiltshire
Council is preparing a Local Plan and well-established neighbourhood plan groups
are likewise engaged. How can good, efficient and democratic planning happen
otherwise?

In fact, attempts by the NDP teams to work with the LPA have been rebuffed, with
local proposals over-ridden by Wiltshire Council. There has been none of the
collaborative working required by PPG . Wiltshire Council has decided to ignore the
actual content all plans until a very late stage — despite the years of unpaid voluntary
work and tens of thousands of tax pounds that that have gone into them by that point.
This wastage of community effort, goodwill and public money cannot be either

wise or correct.

Let’s see what PPG has to say about the nature of the co-operation required:

‘Cooperation should take place throughout Local Plan preparation — it is important
not to confine cooperation to any one point in the process.

Local planning authorities and other public bodies need to work together from the
outset at the plan scoping and evidence gathering stages before options for the
planning strategy are identified. That will help to identify and assess the implications
of any strategic cross boundary issues on which they need to work together and
maximise the effectiveness of Local Plans. After that they will need to continue
working together to develop effective planning policies and delivery strategies.
Cooperation should continue until plans are submitted for examination and beyond,
into delivery and review.

Local planning authorities should bear in mind that failure to demonstrate compliance
with the duty at the Local Plan examination cannot be corrected after the Local Plan
has been submitted for examination. The most likely outcome of a failure to
demonstrate compliance will be that the local planning authority will withdraw the
Local Plan’. PPG Paragraph: 012 Reference ID: 9-012-20140306

Page 226



2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 6 of 22

In connection with the NDP’s of North Bradley and Market Lavington, there has been
no:

Early pre-HSAP-publication discussion of sites

No joint working groups established

No detailed responses given to very detailed submissions

No attempt to create a joint, as opposed to Wiltshire Council strategy, by
combining or ‘trading’ sites to reflect local wishes.

Wiltshire Council’s approach seems to be to take no note of emerging polices or sites
in neighbourhood plans until Regulation 16 — right near the end of the NDP process.
How can this be working ‘fogether from the outset (emphasis ours) at the plan
scoping and evidence gathering stages before options for the planning strategy are
identified? How can over-riding years of work by community volunteers be helping
to minimise ‘any conflicts between policies in the neighbourhood plan and those in
the emerging Local Plan, including housing supply policies’ (PPG)? Simply providing
some very basic support yet making no effort to take on board emerging NDP ideas
or respond to requests to harmonise the merging HSAP strategy with that of
emerging NDP’s cannot be meaningful co-operation or consultation.

By eschewing effective and meaningful partnership working in favour of quicker,
cheaper but far less democratic top-down planning, it is impossible to deliver what
Government guidance requires — see PPG 009 Reference ID: 41-009-  20160211;

‘The local planning authority should work with the qualifying body to produce
complementary neighbourhood and Local Plans. It is important to minimise any
conflicts between policies in the neighbourhood plan and those in the emerging Local
Plan, including housing supply policies’

The present Wiltshire approach of ignoring emerging neighbourhood plan sites until
the plan submission stage makes conflict inevitable. What should have happened
was that Wiltshire Council should have done an audit of emerging NDP sites before
producing the HSAP and then seen if any of these could be taken forward in a joint
planning process. THIS CRUCIAL STAGE WAS OMITTED.

Localism

The Localism Act 2011 was designed to give local communities more control over
what happens in their areas. The NPPF emphasises this, clearly indicating that giving
local communities a say in planning is crucial; indeed, this forms one of the Core
Planning Principles set out in paragraph 17 of the Framework:

‘Within the overarching roles that the planning system ought to play, a set of core
land use planning principles should underpin both plan-making and decision-taking.
These principles are that planning should:

be genuinely plan-led, empowering local people to shape their surroundings,
with succinct local and neighbourhood plans setting out a positive vision for
the future of the area. Plans should be kept up-to-date, and be based on joint
working and co-operation to address larger than local issues. They should provide a
practical framework within which decisions on planning applications can be made
with a high degree of predictability and efficiency;’

Page 227



2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 7 of 22

Since the Localism Act, the direction of travel of Government policy towards
neighbourhood planning has been clear; successive measures have strengthened it
— including the 2017 Neighbourhood Planning Act. Wiltshire Council officers seem
unwilling to acknowledge this changed context, but it is clear from ministerial
statements and court judgements (of which more later). Other authorities are

also responding more positively.

What the parish councils would have liked would have been an early review of
emerging sites and an agreed joint approach. It is quite in order form an NDP to
propose alternative sites to an emerging Local Plan — yet this cannot take place
unless the LPA is willing to co-operate. The NDP teams feel that they have been
denied this ability.

‘A neighbourhood plan can propose allocating alternative sites to those in a Local
Plan, but a qualifying body should discuss with the local planning authority why it
considers the Local Plan allocations no longer appropriate. In rural areas, all
settlements can play a role in delivering sustainable development.” PPG Paragraph:
044 Reference ID: 41-044-20160519

PPG continues:

‘If a local planning authority is also intending to allocate sites in the same
neighbourhood area the local planning authority should avoid duplicating planning
processes that will apply to the neighbourhood area. It should work constructively
with a qualifying body to enable a neighbourhood plan to make timely progress’. PPG
Paragraph: 043 Reference ID: 41-043-20140306

It might be argued that involving NDPs could slow down delivery of strategic needs,
but this need not be the case. Both the NDP’s the subject of this Response and the
HSAP are at similar stages. NDPs are also generally faster than traditional local
plans.

Nationally, two studies by the DCLG have conclusively demonstrated that NDP’s
actually delivery MORE housing and do it faster than do traditional Local Plans.
(https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/notes

Best practice elsewhere

Wiltshire Council officers argue that they are impelled to take their present approach
due to the pressing need to deliver strategic housing. However, this is false. Not only
are the timescale of NDPS and the HSAP similar, other authorities are pursuing more
enlightened approaches, where neighbourhood planning and local planning co-
operate much more closely and efficiently.

Page 228


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/notes

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 8 of 22

For example, East Cambridgeshire District Council, gives weight to emerging NDP’s
at this stage. East Cambs., talking about their Local Plan on their website states:

“To support Neighbourhood Planning, the East Cambs Local Plan (which is at an
early stage of preparation as at January 2016) will:

* Be prepared expediently to ensure an up-to-date Local Plan is in place;
» Address clearly and fully the strategic priorities for the district;
« Clarify which policies are “strategic” (and which are “non-strategic”);

» Acknowledge the ambitions of any emerging neighbourhood plans, ensuring Local
Plan policies are carefully worded to avoid any future conflict with Neighbourhood
Plan policies; and

* Leave ‘space’ for Neighbourhood Plans — some (non-strategic) issues may be more
effectively dealt with through Neighbourhood Plans”. (E Cambs Website).

This is a far more positive and pro-active stance than is being taken by Wiltshire
Council.

Recent Government Statements and the Courts.

The direction of travel for neighbourhood planning is clear — the Government
supports it and considers that it has a firm place in the planning system. The Courts
are also starting to interpret Planning Law and Regulations insofar as they relate to
neighbourhood planning and these show an increasing tendency to support the early
consideration (and attribution of weight to) emerging neighbourhood plans.

Take for example the case of Crane V Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (2015) EWHC 425. In his judgement, on Monday 23rd February 2015,
Mr Justice Lindblom stressed that Neighbourhood plans are seen by the Government
as an important part of its “localism agenda”. He quotes the Secretary of State in a
decision letter dated 17 April 2014, which places great weight on the polices of a
neighbourhood plan because of paragraphs 183 to 185 of the NPPF, which
‘underlines the Government’s commitment to neighbourhood planning as a process
in which communities are able “fo develop a shared vision for their neighbourhood”
..and to “shape and direct sustainable development in their area”

Justice Lindblom also quoted the “Core Planning Principle” set out in paragraph 17 of
the NPPF that planning should “be genuinely plan-led, empowering local people to
shape their surroundings, with succinct local and neighbourhood plans setting out a
positive vision for the future of the area”

The effect of this and other judgements must be to emphasise that weight should be
given earlier in the process to neighbourhood plans and in particular that
communities should have power and influence in planning for their areas. What this
means and indicates in relation to the case of the North Bradley and Market
Lavington NDPs, is that the ability of a community to influence development in their
area is being accorded much greater weight in the courts and by the Secretary of
State than it is by Wiltshire Council.

Page 229



2.22

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 9 of 22

Resources

It is understood that the Council is facing staffing problems and that resources for
Plan production are tight. However this is not a good enough reason to ignore
obligations under the law. Wiltshire Council in fact receives over £30,000 in
Government support specifically ear-marked for each neighbourhood plan. However
the money does not appear to be getting through and appears to be diverted onto
other causes. Market Lavington and North Bradley Parish Councils therefore intend
to submit a Freedom of Information Request to demonstrate how the funds have
been used.

In North Bradley residents and volunteers have been working for free for almost two
years to create their neighbourhood plan.

Page 230



3.0

3.1

3.2

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 10 of 22

Comments on the Schedule

Comments on the Schedule are presented in two tables, one for Market Lavington
and one for North Bradley, below. However by way of some general observations:
The schedule of changes in the Briefing Note refers to neighbourhood plans hardly at
all — and then only in connection with boundary changes. Both North Bradley and
Market Lavington Parish Councils submitted extensive responses — yet these remain
unacknowledged in the schedule. This seems indicative of Wiltshire Council’s
general attitude to neighbourhood planning and is of very great concern.

Market Lavington

Market Lavington Parish Council has been developing a plan for over 3 years, and
has attempted to maintain a dialogue with Wiltshire Council throughout NDP
production. While this has been somewhat one-sided, a letter was received from
Alistair Cunningham (Director, Economic Development and Planning) dated 3™ July
2017 that seemed to offer some hope;

‘If the Market Lavington NP can now be progressed quickly, it could very well
overtake the draft Housing Site Allocations Plan and thereby remove the need for this
Council to progress proposals at the village. As anticipated by legislation, national
and local planning policy, we will of course continue to support the Steering Group in
developing the NP. However, | ask that you, or your consultant, arrange to provide
officers with a clear timetable for the next steps in preparing the document. This will
help determine whether there is a need to amend the draft HSAP in due course’.

A timetable was promptly provided, but the sites suggested by the NDP have been
ignored in the recent schedule of changes this commitment seems not to have been
honoured.

Specific comments regarding to the Schedule are given in the table below. What is
sought is, as implied in the letter from the Director, a ‘trading’ of sites, whereby the

strategic need for Market Lavington is met through the sites of the NDP which have
local support rather than through the imposed strategy of Wiltshire Council.

Reference | Description Comment

PC 13 Claim that 1247 homes at Ashton park will

not be built until after 2026

Evidence supporting this is weak and
the statement should be revised. See
North Bradley section below.

PC 18 Policy H1 proposes allocating: Underhill nursery is OPPOSED by the

NDP and should be withdrawn in

e Underhill Nursery (50 homes)
e Southcliffe (15 homes)
e East of Lavington School ( 15 homes)

In Market Lavington parish

favour of sites that have community
support. SEE APPENDIX 1.

Southcliffe (15 homes) is allocated by
the NDP and East of Lavington School
has been re-allocated following Reg 14
Consultation at an increased 20
homes.

In lieu of Underhill Nursery, the NDP
allocates:

Longfield( 20 homes)

Spin Hill (25 homes)

The total number of homes proposed
by the HSAP in Market Lavington is
80, and by the NDP 80.

In order to deliver the Localism Agenda
the NDP sites should replace those
proposed by the HSAP.

PC 29

Policy H1

Underhill nursery is OPPOSED by the
NDP and should be withdrawn

Page 231




3.3

3.4

3.5

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 11 of 22

Market Lavington would also like to raise again their concerns at the poor standard of
co-ordination and support provided by Wiltshire Council. For example there have
been long periods of time when we have not had an allocated link officer. Eventually,
following repeated requests for a Link Officer, Kate Sullivan (Planning Officer) was
appointed. Kate made the effort to attend one of our Steering Group meetings, and
has been very helpful in obtaining maps etc. however, by her own admission, we
were the first Neighbourhood Plan she had worked with, and she struggled with
initially getting to grips with the process, and often had to seek further advice before
being able to answer any of our questions. The point we would like to make

however is that Wiltshire Council receive in excess of £30,000 for each
Neighbourhood Plan produced, very little of which it would appear is currently used
to directly support Steering Groups, through what is a complex and highly regulated
process.

In fact, there have been a number of occasions that Wiltshire Council have
themselves caused delays in the progress of the plan. For instance, there was very
little communication regarding the on-going submission of SHLAA sites, which
resulted in new sites coming to light later in the process, which then needed to be
included in consultation and site assessment analysis / the notification extremely late
in the process that a ‘Housing Needs Survey’ was required — arranging this and
waiting for the subsequent report caused a delay of approx. 7 months (we first
approached Wiltshire Council 15/8/16 to request a survey be undertaken,
subsequent report finally received 3/3/17).

That there is no attempt being made to co-ordinate the HSAP and the NDPs is very
clear from the fact that our Link officer had prepared for us detailed maps of our sites,
several months before the draft HSAP was published in summer 2017. If Wiltshire
Council knew of our sites, why was no attempt made to work with us to produce a co-
ordinated strategy? A map showing the NDP sites, which would deliver 80 homes —
the same as the HSAP —is given in Appendix 2.

¥ s The Market Lavington
. Community has spent

hundreds of hours

working on the NDP.

Page 232



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 12 of 22

North Bradley

The North Bradley DPD has in fact been developing since November 2016. Early
community engagement took place in February and March 2017 and sites
consultation took place in spring 2018. After conducting a considerable amount of
research and gathering community views, Regulation 14 consultation for the NDP is
now imminent and the NDP has been submitted for SEA and HRA Screening. The
sites proposed amount to some 90 homes and are given in Appendix 3.

Reference
PC 13 Claim that 1247 homes at Evidence supporting this is weak and
Ashton park will not be built until | the statement should be revised. See
after 2026 North Bradley section below.
PC 18 The original Policy H2 allocates NDP Opposes Land off WHBP and
within the NDP Area: this allocation should be dropped
Elm Grove Farm (200 homes) in favour of the overall NDP plan
Land off WHBP (150 homes) which has community support.
Southwick Court (180 homes)
This is as follows: The NDP accepts
Number of homes have been Elm Grove Farm and Southwick
raised and this should be Court.
reversed — see below.
In lieu of WHBP the NDP now
allocates:
The Paddock (8 homes)
54 Woodmarsh (25)
Park Farm (35 homes)
Land off Westbury Road, Yarnbrook
(22)
Total 90
The original HSAP housing numbers
in North Bradley parish were 530:
If the NDP strategy is adopted this
would (using original HSAP figures)
fall to:
Elm Grove Farm (200)
Southwick Court (180)
NDP sites as above (90)
Total 470 — but see below.
PC33 Elm Grove Farm has been Object — case for this much housing
increased to 250 homes. is weak — see below. The figures
should revert to those in the original
HSAP
PC38/ 39 White Horse Business park Object — case for this much housing
reduced to 19.96 ha but housing | is weak see- below.
numbers raised to 225 The figures should revert to those in
the original HSAP.

Page 233



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 13 of 22

It can be seen from the above that the North Bradley NDP allocates less housing
than that advocated by the HSAP. Government policy states that an NDP cannot
propose less development than the development plan. However;

the HSAP is not yet part of the development plan and the possibility of replacing the
proposed site at White Horse Business Park with the NDP sites is still an open
possibility.

the case of need for housing put forward by the HSAP is flawed for the following
reasons:

While the DPD states that there will be a shortfall of 1247 homes, this is disputed.
The figure is based on the un-verifiable assumption that the Ashton Park will be
much slower in delivery than anticipated (many homes not being delivered until after
2026) and that sites for additional homes therefore need to be identified to avoid a
shortfall in housing land supply later in the plan period.

The assumption is presented as fact, however, it relies, according to the HSAP
evidence base, simply on the word of the developers who supplied this information
(an intention not to develop all of the site until after 2026) to the LPA. An intention or
‘finger in the air’ estimate of this type cannot be considered to be reliable. The
developers may have a vested interest in encouraging the belief that delivery will be
slow (so as to get other land allocated in the DPD). They are certainly not equipped
with a crystal ball and cannot therefore accurately predict delivery ahead.

This is particularly relevant at the present time, which is one of great economic
uncertainty, as the UK struggles with negotiations on Brexit. The share prices of
housebuilders have been hard hit by Brexit (making it more difficult for them to

raise finance for new housing projects) and many have announced that they are
putting new projects on hold. Yet recent announcements by opposition parties in the
UK suggest that Brexit, least of all a Hard Brexit, may not even happen. The truth is
no one knows how Brexit will pan out, yet the DPD would have us believe that
housing developers can accurately predict delivery for up to 9 years ahead! This
seems very unlikely, if not impossible.

We then have to consider what would happen should the developers simply
change their minds if circumstances change. This is not at all unlikely; should the
Brexit logjam be suddenly released (for example if an agreement was reached to
stay in the EU or at least the customs union) then the circumstances and
attractiveness of development at Ashton Park could change dramatically and almost
overnight. This would pump 1000 homes into the housing supply far earlier that the
DPD predicts.

iii. 1t is likely that the NDP will allocate more sites in its first review (3 years).

iv. Windfalls are not likely to provide a large number of homes, but some will be
delivered on top of the NDP allocations.

v. The parish council is prepared to discuss site numbers at Park Farm and at the
Yarnbrook site if a larger number would be helpful.

iv. The NDP contains other pro-development policies (such as a general housing

policy)

Page 234



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 14 of 22

The main reason for opposing the proposed site off A 363 at White Horse Business
Park is because of the damage this will do to the landscape setting of North
Bradley. This has been clearly demonstrated in the Landscape and Visual

Analysis Report (that Wiltshire Council has been sent) - Yet this is completely
ignored — including by the HSAP SA — a potentially fatal omission for the HSAP.
Community engagement revealed a strong desire to preserve the identity and
setting of North Bradley village and to prevent it from losing its identity as a

suburb of the principal settlement. See Appendix 4 for maps showing the proposed
site and proposed protected area.

The WHBP allocation must also therefore be opposed because it conflicts with Core
Policy 29. A landscape protection policy in the NDP takes forward paragraph 5.150 of
Core Policy 29 the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS). This encourages the community
to develop a policy for the rural setting ‘gap’ between the village and Trowbridge in a
neighbourhood plan.

It is recognised that the villages surrounding Trowbridge, particularly Hilperton,
Southwick North Bradley and West Ashton, have separate and distinct identities as
villages. Open countryside should be maintained to protect the character and identity
of these villages as separate communities. The local communities may wish to
consider this matter in more detail in any future community-led neighbourhood
planning.’

However, now that the community has accepted their invitation and done this,
Wiltshire Council seems to want to ride rough-shod over the result.

While development must take place to provide necessary housing, this should not be
at the expense of destroying character and sense of place. If repeated across
Wiltshire this would lead to an anonymous sprawl with everywhere becoming

simply ‘somewhere on the way to somewhere else’. It is the individual character of
settlements that residents value and which underpin the county’s tourism and

leisure industries. Development which destroys this is not sustainable since it
involves handing on to our descendants something worse that what we ourselves
inherited.

Defective Sustainability Appraisal

Sustainability is something that was considered for the HSAP by the HSAP’s SA
report (dated June 2017). In the view of the PC, this report is flawed and the HSAP is
therefore unsound.

Objective 7 of the SA was ‘Conserve and enhance the character and quality of

Wiltshire’s rural and urban landscapes, maintaining and strengthening local
distinctiveness and sense of place.’

Page 235



3.16

3.17

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 15 of 22

Objective 7 should have enabled the plan makers to determine that the site off
White Horse Business park (H 2.2) would be harmful to the setting of North Bradley.
It is hard to see how they could have avoided this conclusion because paragraph
5.150 of Wiltshire Council’'s own Core Strategy Core Policy 29, clearly establishes
the importance of this area. However, in Section 7.10.74 of the SA itself (regarding
this site) we find no mention at all of the impact on the setting of North Bradley at all,
except for a statement that:

‘The site is situated to the immediate east of North Bradley village and west of the
White Horse Business Park. The land comprises a series of agricultural fields /
informal open space and, as such, would not maximise the use of previously
developed land’.

The score given for this site against Sustainability Objective 7 records only minor
adverse effects on landscape. This completely ignores the sensitivity of the area in
landscape setting terms as established by WCS paragraph 5.150, to which it fails to
refer, and is clearly wrong in terms of actual impact as is proven by the Landscape
Setting Report commissioned for the NDP (See map extract as Appendix 4). The
latter clearly demonstrates the importance of retaining this area. That the SA could
have made such a fundamental mistakes brings its entire credibility into question.
Clearly, the crucial importance of the area as a setting for North Bradley was not
considered and the SA is therefore flawed and the policies based on it are unsound.

Conclusion

North Bradley and Market Lavington Parish Councils (‘the Parish Councils’) fully
accept the need to deliver strategic housing for Wiltshire and are committed to
neighbourhood plans which aim to do just this. However we have a choice in the
County about how this is done; through traditional top-down planning by unelected
officers or with the help and support of the community they serve via neighbourhood
plans.

The Parish Councils do not desire conflict but harmony between the older traditional
and newer community based plans. The carefully crafted neighbourhood plans
present alternative strategies, with similar aims to the HSAP and are worthy of more
consideration than they have received so far.

The proposal from both Parish Councils is therefore than a meeting should take
place and that a joint approach should be adopted whereby strategic need is met first
by neighbourhood plans sites and only where this is insufficient should strategic sites
be imposed.

If this is not done then irreparable harm will be done to the reputation of Wiltshire
Council and neighbourhood planning in the county. Public money will be wasted at a
time when it is in short supply. The conflict will be carried over into the EIP for the
HSAP and into the wider political and public domains and this will delay the delivery
of much needed housing. These are consequences that the Parish Councils
sincerely want to avoid.

North Bradley Parish Council NDP Steering Group
Market Lavington Parish Council NDP Steering Group

31 May 2018

Page 236



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 16 of 22

APPENDIX 1:
Site name / Number Number Notes / Reasons
SHLAA no. of of
Dwellings | Dwellings
NDP DPD
Underhill N/A 50 This site was considered and was rejected for the
Nursery * following reasons:

e Itis larger than the preferred size expressed
in community engagement and tends to
undermine the agreed strategy of a number
of smaller sites located around the village
(See Appendix 6).

e The location is at the end of the village that
suffers the worst congestion problems
particularly bad pinch point, and mini-
roundabout with limited vision — even if
access were improved this would create a
lot more traffic at exactly the worst
location, especially on the High Street, and
in Fiddington Clay Road.

e The loss would represent a loss of
employment possibilities which the NDP is
trying to encourage. We would prefer the
site to be used for agriculture, horticulture
or suitable rural businesses.

e The site is prone to bad flooding, being
located at the bottom of a hill. This
problem is likely to grow due to climate
change. Development could add to the
problem.

e Soil contamination is likely to be present
after horticultural use

e Alternative sites are available (and
proposed) in the NDP which adequately
provide for the sustainable growth of
Market Lavington

If not removed, this site proposal will effectively
undermine the existing neighbourhood plan, which
seeks to ‘plan by consent’ — giving local people a
direct say in how and where Market Lavington
grows. If the site is imposed, regardless of the NDP,
then it could destroy confidence in neighbourhood
planning and Localism generally.

The Parish Council therefore respectfully requests
that this site be dropped from the DPD.

* also known as Fiddington Nursery

Page 237



Appendix 2: Market Lavington NDP Proposed Sites

Wiltshire Council

Market Lavington - Proposed sites to be included in the Plan

Response number: 8 and 9
Page 17 of 22

(¢
A} 4
G Vo
L

) Wick:‘ Farm
¥

Neighbourhood Area | =

NAME
D Market Lavington CP
\_1129%0 a5t Tavington

West Lavington CP

Easterton CP

Page 238



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 18 of 22

Appendix 3: North Bradley NDP Sites

The Paddock, Little Common Lane, (SHELAA 672)

Page 239



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 19 of 22

Park Farm, SHELAA 322

54
Woodmarsh, SHELAA 1040

Page 240



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 20 of 22

Land off Westbury Road, Yarnbrook

B \s@?e A

Page 241



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 21 of 22

Appendix 4: Landscape Protection Area proposed for North Bradley

North
_y Bradley °

KEY
I Parwh Councl i T FC area wech for
NORTH| D Boundary rowbeidge FC area ..:-‘ ""
METRES | A D Extenc of North Bradley Lindscape Gap shoukd the foocball lub be relocated in the future
Potential 1o reiatate public rght of way shoukd
Potential Southwack Landscape Gop <z the foohall dub be reboc sted o the huture
Potertial for Lindicape enhancement either within the
Possdbie stes for wmaflersCale devsopment sbpect to Landhcape Gap or delbvered 1o part of hture
decaied wte mressment devwlopereet e hadey P ows
™ ﬂu-w-m-‘

Page 242



Response number: 8 and 9
Page 22 of 22

Proposed HSAP site H 2.2 that will destroy the landscape setting of North Bradley.

Proposed housing Proposed Settlement : .
libeatio Boundary © Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100049050

Page 243



Response number: 10
Page 1 of 1

From: Shelley Parker

To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - Consultation *REF: 10 - printed*
Date: 11 June 2018 08:58:39

Dear Spatial Planning Team

Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - Consultation - Marlborough Town
Council

At its Planning Committee meeting on 29 May, Marlborough Town Council noted the
changes to the Plan and commented that the Settlement Boundary may still be changed
through the Neighbourhood Plan process currently being taken forward through the
Marlborough Area Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group.

With best regards

Shelley

Shelley Parker

Town Clerk

Marlborough Town Council

01672 512487

07931 996632
townclerk@marlborough-tc.gov.uk

www.marlborough-tc.gov.uk

Page 244


mailto:townclerk@marlborough-tc.gov.uk
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:townclerk@marlborough-tc.gov.uk
http://www.marlborough-tc.gov.uk/

Response number: 11
Page 1 of 10

From: Warminster Town Council
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: re-comments from Warminster Town Council *REF: 10 - printed*
Date: 11 June 2018 09:28:14
Attachments: image001.qif
image002.qif
image004.jpa

2018.06.01 Settlement Boundary.pdf
WHSA PSCONSO02 Representation Form June 2017 (1).docx

Good morning

Thank you for the opportunity to comment further on the Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan. We reiterate our previous comments made on 20t September 2017. Our
only comment is to remove item No.24 from the list as we strongly oppose any change to
the Settlement Boundary in the Grovelands Area.

Please see attached original comments

Many thanks

Judith

Warminster Town Council
Warminster Civic Centre
Sambourne Road
Warminster

Wilts

BA12 8LB

Tel 01985 214847

Email: admin@warminster-tc.gov.uk

Website: www.warminster-tc.gov.uk

2] 2] =

b% Please consider the envirc t. Do you need to print this E-mail?

If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender and delete the e-mail and all attachments immediately.

This e-mail (including any attachments) may contain confidential and/or privileged information, if you are not the intended recipient any reliance
on, use, disclosure, dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail or attachments is strictly prohibited. It has been checked for viruses but the
contents of an attachment may still contain software viruses, which could damage your computer system. We do not accept liability for any
damage you sustain as a result of a virus introduced by this E-mail or any attachment and you are advised to use up-to-date virus checking
software. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error free. This e-mail is not intended nor should it be taken to create any
legal relations, contractual or otherwise. Any views or opinions expressed within this e-mail or attachment are solely those of the sender, and do
not necessarily represent those of Warminster Town Council unless otherwise specifically stated. If verification is required, please request a hard

copy version. We are not bound by or liable for any opinion, contract or offer to contract expressed in any e-mail.

Page 245


mailto:admin@warminster-tc.gov.uk
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:admin@warminster-tc.gov.uk
http://www.warminster-tc.gov.uk/
http://facebook.com/warminstertowncouncil
http://twitter.com/CivicCentreWarm

Find uson

Facebook




Cwitker





R




ORI RS R R R ek S b RO, T RN VR R (TR
1 1
Warminster
> Proposals for Revised Settlement Boundaries 9,
2 2
— -
3 3
4 4
— —
5 5
) o [
6 L
b i
7 7
. A~
8 8
T < |
|
9 9 |
a A8 S
10 10
- H |
|
" 1" |
/ |
i _\ D Settlement Boundary (HSAP Submission May 2018) S ,
L}
# N D I ary (HSAP Pre Submission June 2017) L
| D Settlement Boundary (WCS January 2015)
Crown Copyright, All rights reserved. Wiltshire Council 100049050, 2018
A i 8 e c ik o i E 0 N B o 1 3 1 Q







[image: ]



	



Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan



Pre-submission Draft Representation Form and NotesRef:                                                                                                           (For official use only)





Please return to Wiltshire Council, by 5pm on Friday 22nd September 2017.



By post to: Spatial Planning, Economic Development and Planning, Wiltshire Council, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 8JN.



By e-mail to: spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk   

 

Tel: 01225 713223		

Website: http://wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshsgsiteallocationsplan 



This form has two parts:	



Part A – Personal details

Part B – Your representation(s). Please use a separate sheet for each representation.



Part A – Personal details



*if an agent is appointed, please fill in your Title, Name and Organisation but the full contact details of the agent must be completed.



		

		1. Personal details

		2. Agent’s details (if applicable)*



		Title



		Mrs

		



		First name



		Fiona

		



		Last name



		Fox

		



		Job title

(where relevant)

		Town Clerk

		



		Organisation

(where relevant)

		Warminster Town Council

		



		Address Line 1



		Warminster Civic Centre

		



		Address Line 2



		Sambourne Road

		



		Address Line 3



		Warminster

		



		Address Line 4



		

		



		Postcode



		BA12 8LB

		



		Telephone Number



		01985 214847

		



		Email Address



		townclerk@warminster-tc.gov.uk

		







[bookmark: _Hlk493673785]Part B – Please use a separate sheet for each representation



Please note your representation should cover succinctly all the information, evidence and supporting information necessary to support/ justify the representation and the suggested change, as there will not normally be a subsequent opportunity to make further representations based on the original representation to the pre-submission draft consultation.

  

After this stage, further submissions will be only at the request of the Inspector, based on the matters and issues he/ she identifies for examination.



		Name or organisation:

		Warminster Town Council







3. To which part of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan does this representation relate?



		Policy: H2.7

		Paragraph: 5.88

		Table:

		Figure: 5.11



		Site: East of the Dene

		Other: 







4. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is:



		 (i) Legally compliant

		Yes:

		

		

		No:

		



		 (ii) Sound

		Yes:

		

		

		No:

		x



		

If you have entered No to 4 (ii), please continue to Q5. In all other circumstances, please go to Question 6.









5. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is unsound because it is not:



		(1) Positively prepared

		



		(2) Justified

		x



		(3) Effective

		



		(4) Consistent with national policy

		







6. Please give details of why you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is not legally compliant or unsound. Please be as precise as possible.



If you wish to support the legal compliance or soundness of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan, please also use this box to set out your comments.



		

The Town Council feels this site meets the aspirations of the Warminster Neighbourhood Plan (section 4.2, third row), which aspires to: “A spread of new developments around the town to avoid imbalance caused by significant developments in any one area.” However, they believe this should not be brought forward before 2026, the period of the Neighbourhood Plan and Core Strategy, as the sites already allocated in the west should be developed first. This site could be included when considering the town’s future planning needs post 2026 when additional sites may need to be identified.





 (Continue on a separate sheet/  expand box if necessary)







7.   Please set out what change(s) you consider necessary to make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound, having regard to the test you have identified at 5 above where this relates to soundness. You will need to say why this change will make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound. It will be helpful if you are able to put forward your suggested revised wording of any proposal or text. Please be as precise as possible.



		

Defer any plans for this site until after the period of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and Warminster Neighbourhood Plan.





























 (Continue on a separate sheet/  expand box if necessary)









8.   If your representation is seeking a change, do you consider it necessary to participate at the oral part of the examination?



		



		No, I do not wish to participate at the

oral examination

		x

		Yes, I wish to participate at the oral examination









9.  If you wish to participate at the oral part of the examination, please outline why you consider this to be

     necessary.



		

Councillor Tony Nicklin has been nominated to speak on behalf of the Council and the Neighbourhood Plan Policy Review Group.























 (Continue on a separate sheet/  expand box if necessary)



		

Please note the Inspector will determine the most appropriate procedure to adopt to hear those who have indicated that they wish to participate at the oral part of the examination.











		Signature:

		Fiona Fox

		Date:

		20/09/2017










Part B – Please use a separate sheet for each representation



Please note your representation should cover succinctly all the information, evidence and supporting information necessary to support/ justify the representation and the suggested change, as there will not normally be a subsequent opportunity to make further representations based on the original representation to the pre-submission draft consultation.

  

After this stage, further submissions will be only at the request of the Inspector, based on the matters and issues he/ she identifies for examination.



		Name or organisation:

		Warminster Town Council







3. To which part of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan does this representation relate?



		Policy: H2.8

		Paragraph: 5.95, 5.96

		Table:

		Figure: 5.12



		Site: Bore Hill Farm

		Other: 







4. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is:



		 (i) Legally compliant

		Yes:

		

		

		No:

		



		 (ii) Sound

		Yes:

		

		

		No:

		x



		

If you have entered No to 4 (ii), please continue to Q5. In all other circumstances, please go to Question 6.









5. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is unsound because it is not:



		(1) Positively prepared

		



		(2) Justified

		x



		(3) Effective

		



		(4) Consistent with national policy

		







6. Please give details of why you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is not legally compliant or unsound. Please be as precise as possible.



If you wish to support the legal compliance or soundness of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan, please also use this box to set out your comments.



		

The Town Council feels this site is unsuitable for housing due to its proximity to the biodigester. It would destroy any buffer to the bypass and the air quality would be an issue. This would not fit with Neighbourhood Plan policy L1 which includes ‘Maintains a quality of life’. The site is inappropriate for residential properties and lends itself to commercial use.







 (Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)







7.   Please set out what change(s) you consider necessary to make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound, having regard to the test you have identified at 5 above where this relates to soundness. You will need to say why this change will make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound. It will be helpful if you are able to put forward your suggested revised wording of any proposal or text. Please be as precise as possible.



		

Remove this site for housing allocation.





























 (Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)









8.   If your representation is seeking a change, do you consider it necessary to participate at the oral part of the examination?



		



		No, I do not wish to participate at the

oral examination

		x

		Yes, I wish to participate at the oral examination









9.  If you wish to participate at the oral part of the examination, please outline why you consider this to be

     necessary.



		

Councillor Tony Nicklin has been nominated to speak on behalf of the Council and the Neighbourhood Plan Policy Review Group.



























 (Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)



		

Please note the Inspector will determine the most appropriate procedure to adopt to hear those who have indicated that they wish to participate at the oral part of the examination.











		Signature:

		Fiona Fox

		Date:

		20/09/2017










Part B – Please use a separate sheet for each representation



Please note your representation should cover succinctly all the information, evidence and supporting information necessary to support/ justify the representation and the suggested change, as there will not normally be a subsequent opportunity to make further representations based on the original representation to the pre-submission draft consultation.

  

After this stage, further submissions will be only at the request of the Inspector, based on the matters and issues he/ she identifies for examination.



		Name or organisation:

		Warminster Town Council







3. To which part of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan does this representation relate?



		Policy: 

		Paragraph:

		Table: 6.2

		Figure: 



		Site: 

		Other: Proposed amendments to the settlement boundary for Warminster







4. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is:



		 (i) Legally compliant

		Yes:

		

		

		No:

		



		 (ii) Sound

		Yes:

		

		

		No:

		x



		

If you have entered No to 4 (ii), please continue to Q5. In all other circumstances, please go to Question 6.









5. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is unsound because it is not:



		(1) Positively prepared

		



		(2) Justified

		x



		(3) Effective

		



		(4) Consistent with national policy

		







6. Please give details of why you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is not legally compliant or unsound. Please be as precise as possible.



If you wish to support the legal compliance or soundness of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan, please also use this box to set out your comments.



		1. The proposed lines now shown on the map, page 28 of the WCATP, do not show the current planning status accurately.  They exclude the Core Strategy, the proposed SHLAA sites referred to in our earlier comments, and extant planning and completed permissions.



2. The omission of the Core Strategy boundaries might prejudice the Appendix D Assessment Criteria, which are the basis for many of the SHLAA site selection process decisions.  These could declare the process flawed, if the settlement boundaries are not correct, in particular the exclusion criteria set out in table D2 stage 2A questions 1 & 2.

Further issues occur when assessing any SHLAA site on the basis of its separation from the boundary, or not being adjacent to it (see sites 2091, 1007 and 1030 for example)



3. The new Core Strategy Areas represents a considerable expansion of the Town and Settlement Boundary, and even if the exact line cannot be currently defined (due to house positions not being agreed) then due regard must be made as if the boundary line is the same as the Core Strategy’s allowance.  This line can then be tightened up later.



4. Refer to the schedule of specific comments in section 7 below, based upon the same grid reference table A1 on page 29 of the WCATP.  For convenience we have started at the same grid reference point G9, G10.  All proposals in the WCATP table are accepted, these are: 



· excluding existing recreational spaces

· following curtilages of existing properties

· excluding physical features such as roads, e.g. transferring the existing line to the other side of the road

· including newly built residential and commercial developments

· Including existing properties physically related but not necessarily directly attached to the existing settlement

· Excluding land more closely related to the countryside



We have also added our further comments where the principles used in the table have not been consistent throughout the boundary review.



We would invite WC to meet with WTC and review the proposals and discuss and assess each comment individually with larger scale drawings.



 (Continue on a separate sheet/expand box if necessary)







7.   Please set out what change(s) you consider necessary to make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound, having regard to the test you have identified at 5 above where this relates to soundness. You will need to say why this change will make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound. It will be helpful if you are able to put forward your suggested revised wording of any proposal or text. Please be as precise as possible.



				ITEM NO.

		MAP GRID

REFERENCE

		PROPOSED AMENDMENT OR CORRECTION



		

		

		



		1

		G9, G10

		Agree with exclusion of the Warminster Common and Allotments.



		2

		F11, G11

		Refer to section 1 of our response.  We do NOT accept the use of SHLAA sites 1032 and 302 for residential housing.



		3

		G11 AND 12

		The existing commercial Biogas site should be included as a detached site including its extant planning for commercial employment expansion.



		4

		J10

		The newly developed extension to Damask Way should be included within the boundary.



		5

		I8

		The proposed line should include the Football Club car park and clubhouse within the new green space.



		6

		N9

		The small area alongside Boreham Road and rear of Rock Lane houses is currently subject to a planning application for which WTC has recommended refusal, but not yet determined by WC.



		7

		09 & 010

		The SHLAA site refer 304 recently approved by Secretary of State and included in the WCATP should be included linked to the existing Boreham Road properties.



		8

		010

		The newly built housing development (ex. Bus Depot) should be included as a detached site.



		9

		P8 & P9

		The SHLAA site ref 603 included in the WCATP (accepted in section 1 of this response) should be included and attached to the existing line.



		10

		05

		Why is this MOD building included with a narrow access line?

Why has this MOD area been included, for the first time, together with all of the military barracks and ABRO workshops? This area has a barbed wire fence line and is not available to the public.



		11

		M5 to 03

		This area is all military residential areas and accessible to the public, hence accepted as a detached site.



		12

		L3 to M4

		This area is also an extensive military residential area and accessible to the public, and should also therefore be accepted as a detached site.



		13

		N4 to Q1

		[bookmark: _GoBack]All the military units (inc. residential housing) are much more extensive over the grid N4 to Q1, and we question what policy or logic has been applied in order to understand why only part of this considerable area has been identified for inclusion with the new settlement boundary and others not included.



		14

		K4 & K3

		The inclusion of the residential units along Elm Hill has been accepted, but the policy has not been applied consistently around the town boundary on similar properties.



		15

		G2, H2 & H3

		The far north east end of the Warminster Business Park (access from Furnax Lane) goes right up to the railway lines, and is mostly built on.  These are existing employment areas.



		16

		G4

		This site has also planning permission, and is part of the Warminster Business Park.



		17

		H5

		We recommend including the Minster Church car park with the churchyard boundary.



		18

		G5 & H5

		We believe that it would be beneficial to include the Warminster School main grounds including the pool, workshops and Furneaux House as well as the hard sports courts within the new boundary.  This would, however, exclude the green area sports field and pitches.



		19

		G4

		Include the perimeter of the recently approved Traveller settlement at the corner of Bath Road and Coldharbour Lane.



		20

		F3 & G4

		Include properties known as the White House and 109 Bath Road to be consistent with the policy of existing “built development physically related to the settlement”.  These properties are to be fully enclosed by the Core Strategy West Urban Extension.



		21

		E/F3 to B/C9

		The new Wiltshire Core Strategy – Warminster West Urban Extension (WWUE) extends from the Bath Road, grid F3 to B8, on the north side of Victoria Road.  This settlement boundary extension will need to be added at some time in the future when the full detailed site layout is approved. Noting that there will be extensive use of buffer zones along the A36 as well as internal to the new site.



		22

		B8 & D9

		The southern side of Victoria Road contains the remaining part of the WWUE, and consists of three separate sites: 

· The Redrow site (known as Tascroft Rise) is already with full approval and under construction.  The new boundary can therefore be extended from St Andrews Road and Folly Lane.



· The Persimmon Site (known as Bugley Farm) has not yet been approved, but an application is under review.  The site will enclose the Bugley Barton Farm House which therefore should be included within the new boundary.



· The remaining site (known as Folly Farm) does not as yet have any planning proposals, but remains within the designated WWUE.



		23

		C9

		The Rugby Club and grounds will be surrounded by the WWUE, but should be excluded from the settlement.



		24

		E6 to G5

		This area known an SHLAA 1007 Grovelands is subject to a current planning application (exception site), with 17 acres set aside as open space.  If this site is approved the settlement boundary will need to be adjusted accordingly.







 (Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)









8.   If your representation is seeking a change, do you consider it necessary to participate at the oral part of the examination?



		



		No, I do not wish to participate at the

oral examination

		x

		Yes, I wish to participate at the oral examination









9.  If you wish to participate at the oral part of the examination, please outline why you consider this to be

     necessary.



		

Councillor Tony Nicklin has been nominated to speak on behalf of the Council and the Neighbourhood Plan Policy Review Group.





 (Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)



		

Please note the Inspector will determine the most appropriate procedure to adopt to hear those who have indicated that they wish to participate at the oral part of the examination.









		Signature:

		Fiona Fox

		Date:

		20/09/2017







image1.png

Working in partnership with

Wiltshire

~—————=_ Where everybody matters







Response number: 11
Page 2 of 10

Wiltshire

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan

Pre-submission Draft Representation Form and Notes

Ref: (For official use only)

Please return to Wiltshire Council, by 5pm on Friday 22" September 2017.

By post to: Spatial Planning, Economic Development and Planning, Wiltshire Council,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 8JN.

By e-mail to: spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk

Tel: 01225 713223
Website: http://wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshsgsiteallocationsplan

This form has two parts:

Part A — Personal details
Part B — Your representation(s). Please use a separate sheet for each representation.

Part A — Personal details

*if an agent is appointed, please fill in your Title, Name and Organisation but the full contact details of the agent must be completed.

1. Personal details 2. Agent’s details (if applicable)*
Title Mrs
First name Fiona
Last name Fox
Job title Town Clerk
(where reIevant)
Organisation Warminster Town Council
(where reIevant)
Address Line 1 Warminster Civic Centre
Address Line 2 Sambourne Road
Address Line 3 Warminster
Address Line 4
Postcode BA12 8LB
Telephone Number | 01985 214847
Email Address townclerk@warminster-tc.gov.uk

Page 246


mailto:spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshsgsiteallocationsplan

Response number: 11
Page 3 of 10

Part B — Please use a separate sheet for each representation

Please note your representation should cover succinctly all the information, evidence and supporting
information necessary to support/ justify the representation and the suggested change, as there will not
normally be a subsequent opportunity to make further representations based on the original representation
to the pre-submission draft consultation.

After this stage, further submissions will be only at the request of the Inspector, based on the
matters and issues he/ she identifies for examination.

3. To which part of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan does this representation relate?

Policy: H2.7 Paragraph: 5.88 Table: Figure: 5.11
Site: East of the Dene Other:

4. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is:

(i) Legally compliant Yes: No:
(i) Sound Yes: No: X

If you have entered No to 4 (i), please continue to Q5. In all other circumstances, please go to Question 6.

5. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is unsound because it is not:

(1) Positively prepared

(2) Justified X

(3) Effective

(4) Consistent with national policy

6. Please give details of why you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is not legally compliant
or unsound. Please be as precise as possible.

If you wish to support the legal compliance or soundness of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan, please also use this box to set out your comments.

The Town Council feels this site meets the aspirations of the Warminster Neighbourhood Plan (section 4.2,
third row), which aspires to: “A spread of new developments around the town to avoid imbalance caused by
significant developments in any one area.” However, they believe this should not be brought forward before
2026, the period of the Neighbourhood Plan and Core Strategy, as the sites already allocated in the west
should be developed first. This site could be included when considering the town’s future planning needs
post 2026 when additional sites may need to be identified.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

7. Please set out what change(s) you consider necessary to make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan legally compliant or sound, having regard to the test you have identified at 5 above where this
relates to soundness. You will need to say why this change will make the Wiltshire Housing Site

Page 247



Response number: 11
Page 4 of 10

Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound. It will be helpful if you are able to put forward your suggested
revised wording of any proposal or text. Please be as precise as possible.

Defer any plans for this site until after the period of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and Warminster

Neighbourhood Plan.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

8. If your representation is seeking a change, do you consider it necessary to participate at the oral part of
the examination?

No, | do not wish to participate at the
oral examination

Yes, | wish to participate at the oral
examination

9. If you wish to participate at the oral part of the examination, please outline why you consider this to be
necessary.

Councillor Tony Nicklin has been nominated to speak on behalf of the Council and the Neighbourhood Plan

Policy Review Group.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

Please note the Inspector will determine the most appropriate procedure to adopt to hear those who have
indicated that they wish to participate at the oral part of the examination.

Signature:

Fiona Fox

Date:

20/09/2017

Page 248



Response number: 11
Page 5 of 10

Part B — Please use a separate sheet for each representation

Please note your representation should cover succinctly all the information, evidence and supporting
information necessary to support/ justify the representation and the suggested change, as there will not
normally be a subsequent opportunity to make further representations based on the original representation
to the pre-submission draft consultation.

After this stage, further submissions will be only at the request of the Inspector, based on the
matters and issues he/ she identifies for examination.

3. To which part of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan does this representation relate?

Policy: H2.8 Paragraph: 5.95, 5.96 Table: Figure: 5.12

Site: Bore Hill Farm Other:

4. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is:

(i) Legally compliant Yes: No:

(i) Sound Yes: No: X

If you have entered No to 4 (i), please continue to Q5. In all other circumstances, please go to Question 6.

5. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is unsound because it is not:

(1) Positively prepared

(2) Justified X

(3) Effective

(4) Consistent with national policy

6. Please give details of why you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is not legally compliant
or unsound. Please be as precise as possible.

If you wish to support the legal compliance or soundness of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan, please also use this box to set out your comments.

The Town Council feels this site is unsuitable for housing due to its proximity to the biodigester. It would
destroy any buffer to the bypass and the air quality would be an issue. This would not fit with
Neighbourhood Plan policy L1 which includes ‘Maintains a quality of life’. The site is inappropriate for
residential properties and lends itself to commercial use.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

7. Please set out what change(s) you consider necessary to make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan legally compliant or sound, having regard to the test you have identified at 5 above where this
relates to soundness. You will need to say why this change will make the Wiltshire Housing Site

Page 249



Response number: 11
Page 6 of 10

Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound. It will be helpful if you are able to put forward your suggested
revised wording of any proposal or text. Please be as precise as possible.

Remove this site for housing allocation.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

8. If your representation is seeking a change, do you consider it necessary to participate at the oral part of
the examination?

No, | do not wish to participate at the
oral examination

Yes, | wish to participate at the oral
examination

9. If you wish to participate at the oral part of the examination, please outline why you consider this to be
necessary.

Councillor Tony Nicklin has been nominated to speak on behalf of the Council and the Neighbourhood Plan

Policy Review Group.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

Please note the Inspector will determine the most appropriate procedure to adopt to hear those who have
indicated that they wish to participate at the oral part of the examination.

Signature:

Fiona Fox

Date:

20/09/2017

Page 250



Response number: 11
Page 7 of 10

Part B — Please use a separate sheet for each representation

Please note your representation should cover succinctly all the information, evidence and supporting
information necessary to support/ justify the representation and the suggested change, as there will not
normally be a subsequent opportunity to make further representations based on the original representation
to the pre-submission draft consultation.

After this stage, further submissions will be only at the request of the Inspector, based on the
matters and issues he/ she identifies for examination.

3. To which part of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan does this representation relate?

Policy: Paragraph: Table: 6.2 Figure:

Other: Proposed amendments to the settlement
boundary for Warminster

Site:

4. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is:

(i) Legally compliant Yes: No:
(i) Sound Yes: No: X

If you have entered No to 4 (i), please continue to Q5. In all other circumstances, please go to Question 6.

5. Do you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is unsound because it is not:

(1) Positively prepared

(2) Justified X

(3) Effective

(4) Consistent with national policy

6. Please give details of why you consider the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan is not legally compliant
or unsound. Please be as precise as possible.

If you wish to support the legal compliance or soundness of the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan, please also use this box to set out your comments.

1. The proposed lines now shown on the map, page 28 of the WCATP, do not show the current
planning status accurately. They exclude the Core Strategy, the proposed SHLAA sites referred to
in our earlier comments, and extant planning and completed permissions.

2. The omission of the Core Strategy boundaries might prejudice the Appendix D Assessment
Criteria, which are the basis for many of the SHLAA site selection process decisions. These could
declare the process flawed, if the settlement boundaries are not correct, in particular the exclusion
criteria set out in table D2 stage 2A questions 1 & 2.

Further issues occur when assessing any SHLAA site on the basis of its separation from the
boundary, or not being adjacent to it (see sites 2091, 1007 and 1030 for example)

3. The new Core Strategy Areas represents a considerable expansion of the Town and Settlement
Boundary, and even if the exact line cannot be currently defined (due to house positions not being
agreed) then due regard must be made as if the boundary line is the same as the Core Strategy’s
allowance. This line can then be tightened up later.

Page 251



Response number: 11
Page 8 of 10

4. Refer to the schedule of specific comments in section 7 below, based upon the same grid reference

table Al on page 29 of the WCATP. For convenience we have started at the same grid reference
point G9, G10. All proposals in the WCATP table are accepted, these are:

- excluding existing recreational spaces

- following curtilages of existing properties

- excluding physical features such as roads, e.g. transferring the existing line to the other
side of the road

- including newly built residential and commercial developments

- Including existing properties physically related but not necessarily directly attached to
the existing settlement

- Excluding land more closely related to the countryside

We have also added our further comments where the principles used in the table have not been
consistent throughout the boundary review.

We would invite WC to meet with WTC and review the proposals and discuss and assess each
comment individually with larger scale drawings.

(Continue on a separate sheet/expand box if necessary)

7. Please set out what change(s) you consider necessary to make the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan legally compliant or sound, having regard to the test you have identified at 5 above where this
relates to soundness. You will need to say why this change will make the Wiltshire Housing Site
Allocations Plan legally compliant or sound. It will be helpful if you are able to put forward your suggested
revised wording of any proposal or text. Please be as precise as possible.

ITEM MAP GRID PROPOSED AMENDMENT OR CORRECTION
NO. REFERENCE

1 G9, G10 Agree with exclusion of the Warminster Common and Allotments.

2 F11, G11 Refer to section 1 of our response. We do NOT accept the use of SHLAA sites 1032 and
302 for residential housing.

3 G11 AND 12 The existing commercial Biogas site should be included as a detached site including its
extant planning for commercial employment expansion.

4 J10 The newly developed extension to Damask Way should be included within the boundary.

5 18 The proposed line should include the Football Club car park and clubhouse within the
new green space.

6 N9 The small area alongside Boreham Road and rear of Rock Lane houses is currently
subject to a planning application for which WTC has recommended refusal, but not yet
determined by WC.

7 09 & 010 The SHLAA site refer 304 recently approved by Secretary of State and included in the
WCATP should be included linked to the existing Boreham Road properties.

8 010 The newly built housing development (ex. Bus Depot) should be included as a detached
site.

9 P8 & P9 The SHLAA site ref 603 included in the WCATP (accepted in section 1 of this response)
should be included and attached to the existing line.

10 05 Why is this MOD building included with a narrow access line?

Why has this MOD area been included, for the first time, together with all of the military
barracks and ABRO workshops? This area has a barbed wire fence line and is not
available to the public.

11 M5 to 03 This area is all military residential areas and accessible to the public, hence accepted as
a detached site.

12 L3 to M4 This area is also an extensive military residential area and accessible to the public, and
should also therefore be accepted as a detached site.

13 N4 to Q1 All the military units (inc. residential housing) are much more extensive over the grid N4
to Q1, and we question what policy or logic has been applied in order to understand why
only part of this considerable area has been identified for inclusion with the new
settlement boundary and others not included.

14 K4 & K3 The inclusion of the residential units along Elm Hill has been accepted, but the policy has
not been applied consistently around the town boundary on similar properties.

15 G2, H2 & H3 The far north east end of the Warminster Business Park (access from Furnax Lane) goes
right up to the railway lines, and is mostly built on. These are existing employment
areas.

Page 252




Response number: 11

Page 9 of 10
16 G4 This site has also planning permission, and is part of the Warminster Business Park.
17 H5 We recommend including the Minster Church car park with the churchyard boundary.
18 G5 & H5 We believe that it would be beneficial to include the Warminster School main grounds

including the pool, workshops and Furneaux House as well as the hard sports courts
within the new boundary. This would, however, exclude the green area sports field and

pitches.

19 G4 Include the perimeter of the recently approved Traveller settlement at the corner of Bath
Road and Coldharbour Lane.

20 F3 & G4 Include properties known as the White House and 109 Bath Road to be consistent with

the policy of existing “built development physically related to the settlement”. These
properties are to be fully enclosed by the Core Strategy West Urban Extension.

21 E/F3 to B/C9 The new Wiltshire Core Strategy — Warminster West Urban Extension (WWUE) extends
from the Bath Road, grid F3 to B8, on the north side of Victoria Road. This settlement
boundary extension will need to be added at some time in the future when the full
detailed site layout is approved. Noting that there will be extensive use of buffer zones
along the A36 as well as internal to the new site.

22 B8 & D9 The southern side of Victoria Road contains the remaining part of the WWUE, and
consists of three separate sites:

- The Redrow site (known as Tascroft Rise) is already with full approval and under
construction. The new boundary can therefore be extended from St Andrews Road
and Folly Lane.

- The Persimmon Site (known as Bugley Farm) has not yet been approved, but an
application is under review. The site will enclose the Bugley Barton Farm House
which therefore should be included within the new boundary.

- The remaining site (known as Folly Farm) does not as yet have any planning
proposals, but remains within the designated WWUE.

23 Cc9 The Rugby Club and grounds will be surrounded by the WWUE, but should be excluded
from the settlement.
24 E6 to G5 This area known an SHLAA 1007 Grovelands is subject to a current planning application

(exception site), with 17 acres set aside as open space. If this site is approved the
settlement boundary will need to be adjusted accordingly.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

8. If your representation is seeking a change, do you consider it necessary to participate at the oral part of
the examination?

No, | do not wish to participate at the X Yes, | wish to participate at the oral
oral examination examination

9. If you wish to participate at the oral part of the examination, please outline why you consider this to be
necessary.

Councillor Tony Nicklin has been nominated to speak on behalf of the Council and the Neighbourhood Plan
Policy Review Group.

(Continue on a separate sheet/ expand box if necessary)

Please note the Inspector will determine the most appropriate procedure to adopt to hear those who have
indicated that they wish to participate at the oral part of the examination.

Signature: Fiona Fox Date: 20/09/2017

Page 253



r: 11

I-’agéw f10

Warminster

Proposals for Revised Settlement Boundaries i
2
e
2 3
> i g
4 4
(] —
2 5
o <
6 4 6
Lo
(] A<
]

1 D}
4 A4
3 8
- 1,
. 9
(o <
10 10
. <
1 1"

® !
& \ _\ D Settlement Boundary (HSAP Submission May 2018) S
. . D (HSAP Pre ission June 2017)
12 2 12
| | D Settlement Boundary (WCS January 2015)
Crown Copyright, All rights reserved. Wiltshire Council 100049050, 2018
A i 8 0 c ik o ik E 0 G N B o 1 3 I Q




Response number: 12
Page 1 of 1

From: Shelley Parker

To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - MANP *REF: 11 - printed*
Date: 11 June 2018 10:12:49

Dear Spatial Planning Team
Consultation: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - Marlborough Area Neighbourhood
Plan (MANP)

At their meeting on 31 May, members of the Marlborough Area Neighbourhood Plan Steering
Group considered a response to the above consultation. MANP would like to make the following
comments:

e As raised in the 2017 consultation, it was not clear why Manton, part of the parish of
Marlborough rather than a standalone village, was not included within the settlement
boundary for Marlborough.

e Also raised in the 2017 consultation, Mildenhall is again not listed as a village in the table at
2.3 of the Community Area Topic Paper for Marlborough - 2018. (Mildenhall is not listed
anywhere in the current WCS either)

o The Settlement Boundary may change through the Neighbourhood Plan process

With best regards

Shelley

Shelley Parker

Town Clerk (on behalf of MANP)
Marlborough Town Council

01672 512487

07931 996632
townclerk@marlborough-tc.gov.uk

www.marlborough-tc.gov.uk

Page 255


mailto:townclerk@marlborough-tc.gov.uk
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:townclerk@marlborough-tc.gov.uk
http://www.marlborough-tc.gov.uk/

Response number: 13
Page 1 of 2

Laverstock & Ford Parish Council

Incorporating Hampton Park & Old Sarum

Spatial Planning

Economic Development & Planning
Wiltshire Council

County Hall

Bythesea Road

Trowbridge

Wiltshire

BA14 8JN

11 June 2018
Dear Sir or Madam

Consultation on the Proposed Changes to the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Plan — Draft Laverstock and Ford Parish Council Response

Laverstock and Ford Parish Council are unable to provide a formal response until it has
been agreed by resolution at its next Parish Council meeting on 18 June 2018. However, it
understands that it is acceptable to provide a draft response prior to 12 noon Monday 11
June 2018 as an interim measure pending a resolution on 18 June. The Laverstock and
Ford draft response identifies 2 objections.

Inclusion of OM003 The Yard, Hampton Park.

The Parish has been subjected to some 2600 units being either built, or planning
permission granted to be built, over the last 15 years. Furthermore, the Parish Council
supported a planning application for development at Longhedge for 673 dwellings — 223
more than called for in the Core Strategy. The Parish Council, therefore, believes that it is
un-reasonable to consider any further development within the Parish boundaries and is
disappointed to note the inclusion of OM003 The Yard, Hampton Park in the May 2018
amendment. The Parish Council objects to its inclusion.

Settlement Boundary in the vicinity of Old Sarum and Longhedge.

The developed areas both north and south of The Portway are identified as part of the
Salisbury Settlement Area. The Council objected in its submission to the Pre-submission
Draft Housing Site Allocation Plan in September 2017 to the inclusion of the Old Sarum
area within the Salisbury Settlement Area. It is felt that this cannot be correct as this
settlement falls both within the Parish of Laverstock and Ford as well as the Southern

Page 256



Response number: 13
Page 2 of 2

Wiltshire Community Area. Old Sarum forms an ‘island’ which is well separated from the
main body of Salisbury Settlement Area and, therefore, it is not logical for it to form part of
this.

The recent proposed changes now include Longhedge in this ‘island’. This overall
settlement should be identified within the Southern Wiltshire Community Area Topic paper.
The document already identifies boundaries for 7 separate settlements and an Old
Sarum/Longhedge settlement should form the 8". Therefore, the Council objects to both
Old Sarum and Longhedge being included within the Salisbury Settlement Area.

Corrections to Appendix D to the Salisbury Community Area Topic Paper.
The Council is pleased to note that the errors in the data for 2 SHLAAs (S119 Old Sarum

and 3381Land at Manor Farm Road, Ford), which were identified by the Council in its
September 2017 submission, have now been corrected.

Yours faithfully

Andrew Prince
Clerk to the Parish of Laverstock and Ford

Page 257



Response number: 14
Page 1 of 2

RESPONSE FROM HILPERTON PARISH COUNCIL
TO WILTSHIRE COUNCIL’S REVISED HOUSING SITE
ALLOCATION PLAN

Hilperton Parish Council congratulates Trowbridge Town Council for its work on its Housing
Site Allocations Plan Alternative Submission.

The Parish Council endorses the Resolutions agreed by the Town Council at an Extraordinary
meeting of its Policy and Resources Committee held on the 5" June, 2018, and especially E,
F, Gand I.

The Parish Council wishes to formally object to the following suggested Wiltshire Council
allocations as they are clearly contrary to Wiltshire Council’s adopted Core Strategy,
specially paragraph 5.150 on page 181 reproduced below:-

It is recognised that the villages surrounding Trowbridge - particularly Hilperton,
Southwick, North Bradley and West Ashton - have separate and distinct identities as
villages. Open countryside should be maintained to protect the character and identity
of these villages as separate communities. The local communities may wish to
consider this matter in more detail in any future community-led neighbourhood
planning.

263/297/293 (part) — Hilperton Gap, located in Hilperton parish. Hilperton Parish
Council policy is to oppose development in the Hilperton Gap in order to prevent its
coalescence with Trowbridge.

298 North Bradley Gap, located in North Bradley parish..
3565 Southwick Court Gap, located in Southwick and North Bradley parishes.

None of these suggestions would maintain open countryside between the town and the
villages, nor would they protect the character and identity of these villages as separate
communities.

Furthermore, Hilperton Parish Council is confused as to why Wiltshire Council has now
‘recommended’ that 355 houses could be constructed on the land west of Elizabeth Way.
This increase from the original suggestion of 205 (which allowed for landscaping etc.)
would indicate that the spatial planning team at Wiltshire Council is far from competent in
seeking suitable housing sites in the Trowbridge Community Area and too easily changes
its stance to suit the suggestions of developers.

Resolved by Hilperton Parish Council
at an Extraordinary Parish Council
Meeting dated 7" June, 2018

Page 258



Response number: 14
Page 2 of 2

Page 259



Response number: 15
Page 1 of 12

Revised Salisbury Transport Strategy Refresh

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Salisbury Transport Strategy
Refresh.

Salisbury City Council was disappointed to see that previous representations made
to Wiltshire Council in relation to earlier iterations of the Salisbury Transport Strategy
appear to have been ignored; namely relating to the need for an integrated transport
hub for rail and bus users and improved light rail access from Salisbury to Wilton,
Porton (particularly in light of increased Government investment) and Amesbury (see
Appendix) as well as inconsistencies regarding the housing allocation and the
environmental impact this will have on routes within the city.

SCC has the following requirements to ensure that the Salisbury Transport Strategy
Refresh is meaningful and fit for both the long and short term viability of Salisbury.

1 Churchfields

Whilst SCC note that the possible redevelopment of the Churchfields Industrial
Estate has been deferred until after 2026 as referred to in Appendix 2 of the Wiltshire
Housing Site Allocations PC16, it is recommended that the housing allocation should
read the same in both documents. SCC remains extremely concerned that heavy
goods vehicles will continue to travel through Salisbury and would ask that a
provision made to move the HGV MoT site away from the Churchfields area, and that
height and weight restrictions be applied to Crane Bridge Road and other key routes
into the city during peak traffic flows in an attempt to reduce congestion and pollution
in the City.

2 Pedestrianisation

SCC is keen to see increased pedestrianisation within the city centre, and considers
that over the last decade the pedestrianisation of certain areas of the city have been
widely successful, helping local business, shops and leisure outlets to expand.
Further pedestrianisation would need careful thought to ensure that the needs of
residents those with disabilities are met and allowing loading and unloading for local
businesses and access for public transport. This could be implemented more easily if
access for buses and taxis were permitted through the redeveloped Maltings
(Fisherton Street to Castle Street) This would allow other city centre streets (for
example Silver Street or Minster Street) to become properly pedestrianised, allowing
people to explore the medieval heart of the city more easily, attracting more visitors
and tourists and bringing more money into the local economy.

Page 260


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 2 of 12

Map of Proposed Extent of Pedestrian Area

3 Walking and Cycling Links

A considerable amount of work has been done by the Salisbury Area Greenspace
Partnership (SAGP) and SCC supports the ongoing work of the SGAP looking at
connectivity and green linkages, particularly peripheral and radial greenways which
should link new developments around the city, allowing safe traffic-free access for
non-car modes of transport, including electric bikes. Please see appendix 2. It is
essential that infrastructure must be of high quality for the entirety of the route in
order to encourage people to walk and cycle. On road routes with busy traffic are
unlikely to attract the sort of modal shift which is needed as the city expands.
Proposed routes will need to be protected and it is likely that funding for pedestrian
and cycling schemes will need to be increased to ensure high quality routes are
provided.

Page 261


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 3 of 12

4 Park and Ride

SCC wishes to see more use made of P&R in conjunction with rail travel, by
introducing a number of Park and Ride routes that pass through the Railway Station
and ensuring that these are well advertised. Extended opening hours for Park and
Ride services would assist, as well as better publicity about those bus services which
can serve Park and Ride sites ‘after hours’ if requested to do so. This would increase
the use of the Park and Ride and would reduce the need for additional parking
spaces at the Railway Station in Salisbury, therefore helping to reduce car
dependency and making this an integrated transport hub. SCC would like to reiterate
that there is a real need for a link from the Britford Park and Ride to the Hospital Site;
this would not be difficult to implement but would be beneficial for all.

5 Air Quality within the City

SCC remains deeply concerned about the issue of air quality within the City.

The current AQ Action Plan (AQAP) for Wiltshire states that one of the actions (S02)
is implementation of the Salisbury Transport Strategy (STS) measures that provide
the opportunity to improve the air quality within the city. The current AQAP indicates
that the estimate is that implementing the transport strategy for Salisbury could
ensure that 45% of new trips to the city centre are made by sustainable modes in
2026, compared to 20% by sustainable modes if the strategy was not adopted.
There are also estimates [AQAP, Salisbury 9] for how changes in vehicle emissions
might improve between 2008 and 2026 based on improved fuel & vehicle technology.

Point 1. The importance of the STS to the AQAP remains, estimates of the impact of
the transport strategy on % of trips made by sustainable modes and improvements in
AQ need to be updated a) to reflect actual progress from 2008 — present and b) to
reflect estimates for the remaining period to 2026.

These estimates need to come from the Transport Strategy and feed into the AQAP.
The current themes (page 6, Salisbury Transport Strategy) are derived from eight
objectives, and in some areas poorly represent key requirements of a transport
strategy for the city.

Point 2: The themes need to be modified as follows:

- the theme to ‘improve the accessibility and attractiveness of the city centre’
should be expanded to include ‘and other key service centres’ (which was
present in an early draft presented to Stakeholders). It is important these
other service centres (e.g. Wilton, Laverstock & Ford) are included in order to
reduce the need to travel.

- atheme should be added to ‘ensure transport interventions result in air quality
across the area being within legal limits’. This stresses the importance of air

Page 262


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 4 of 12

quality, and the fact is that AQ issues are increasingly occurring outside the
city centre on the approach roads to Salisbury and resolving these problems is
not covered in the current theme which only refers to the ‘attractiveness’ of the
city centre

- atheme should be added to ‘reduce the need to travel and improve the
infrastructure for non-car modes’.

The previous transport strategy linked each objective to a metric, and metrics are
required to measure the effectiveness of interventions, and to assist in the
prioritisation of schemes.

Point 3: Measures are needed which indicate the effectiveness of any steps
implemented from the last Transport Strategy and the likely impact of proposed
interventions.

Next steps — the only steps identified in paras 7.14 & 7.15 relate to some modelling
results.

Point 4: Further work also needed to identify metrics, prioritise schemes, develop a
Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure plan, calculate contributions from
developments to date on S106 & other transport funding and how this will be spent
etc.

Improved Air Quality and Noise Pollution — Where there is traffic there is noise
and air pollution and where the traffic moves slowly or not at all the situation
becomes worse. Reducing City Centre vehicle movements by preventing through
traffic, being restrictive with delivery vehicle access couple and the related removal of
redundant traffic light stops would radically improve the situation on both counts.

Removal of non-essential traffic — There is a feeling that to avoid the congestion
on the Ring Road a significant amount of traffic is going through the City Centre
causing the related congestion and air quality issues.

Health and wellbeing — Open spaces encourage walking and cycling and having
pleasant environment would encourage both

6 Light Rail Infrastructure to support Neighbouring Towns

At a time of growing concern over the level of traffic congestion this could provide an
extremely useful link for commuting from the north of the city. In Europe light rail is
proven to be the most efficient way to get people out of their cars and onto public
transport. It would make Salisbury a far more attractive city. It would enable Salisbury
to develop as a tourist city as most trips to Stonehenge are currently from London via

Page 263


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 5 of 12

the A303. The link would encourage more people to come to Salisbury by public
transport. The use of some vintage trams in summer would make the line an
attraction in its own right (please refer to appendix 1 — this was produced 20+ years
ago and would need updating in a number of respects, but it does offer some
interesting thoughts into how light rail could be delivered to serve the expanding
communities of Amesbury and Bulford.)

7 Economic Recovery Plan

Salisbury is in competition with Bath, Winchester, Bournemouth and Southampton
and to pull in new business and attractions, and to re-launch itself as an International
tourist destination after recent events in March 2018, there needs to be a
comprehensive overhaul of the City Centre to complement what is arguably the finest
provincial Market Square and historic surrounds in the Country. This strategy should
not impede the work of the Recovery Coordinating Group and where, possible, the
strategy should reflect the emerging priorities of this recovery work.

There has been, is currently and are further being proposed, large scale housing
developments both within and on the outskirts of the City and slightly further afield
with the Army rebasing program all of which will generate increased numbers of
residents who, for the economic viability of the City, need to spend their money in
Salisbury.

To realise this aspiration a large chunk of City Centre expanding outward for the
Market Square should be pedestrianised and while at this point it is not proposed to
try and address what is necessary on achieve this on the ground, that is the next
piece of work, a sensible starting point is to look at the results for what a successful
pedestrianisation program would achieve.

Outcomes

Maintain the vibrancy of the City Centre — As and when the Maltings is built out
the developers will naturally wish to showcase their new Mall and push / pull people
toward their new site. To maintain the vibrancy of the City Centre it needs to be
reinvented and rejuvenated thus increase its economic viability by becoming a much
more person friendly environment with a focus on leisure, lifestyle and independent
businesses and away from “high pressure” West Quay style shopping centres.

A nicer place to visit — As the impact of on-line shopping increases the pressure on
the high street, especially affecting the larger department and chain stores the City
Centre needs to adapt to be a much more relaxed and visitor friendly environment for
people to come and spend their money. The streets will also be easier to keep

Page 264


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 6 of 12

clean, become much more attractive with increased flowers and greenery and
require far less repair and maintenance with the much-reduced vehicle use.

Encourage more Leisure, Cultural and Tourist activities and attractions. — The
City already has the Market Square and next door the Guildhall Square in which to
hold events and attractions, as well as the Cathedral. However, the City’s market has
a Charter giving it the right to use the Square on every Tuesday and Saturday
throughout the year and while the Market is an attraction in its own right it also
prevents the City Centre hosting other events for a period any longer than three days
and we have evidence from a number of groups that would like to come but don’t
because they need longer to set up and market themselves. More space would
allow for other events to be hosted in the City on the same days as the market giving
visitors more than one reason to stay and would allow for a much expanded events
calendar.

Ease of Pedestrian Flow - At present pedestrians are confined to narrow
pavements hemmed in by busy roads with lots of narrow gaps to squeeze through
while transiting from one part of the City to the next via any number of pedestrian
crossings. This makes for a pressured “start/stop” environment as there is always
something in the way of where one wants to go with the consequence being visitors
and shoppers end up going somewhere else. The want is for people to have a more
relaxed experience where they can wander around see all the places they want to
see in their own time without being herded down certain sections of the Centre and
therefore missing all the other shops and attractions going on around them.

Low Carbon City — As part of the redevelopment of the Maltings, SCC supports
micro hydro energy proposals at the Bishop’s Mill site, such as those put forward by
Salisbury Community Energy Limited, as discussed with Wiltshire Council. SCC
consider that this proposal would contribute to three important priorities for this area:
e bring new investment to the Maltings
¢ transform the Bishops Mill and create a new tourism attraction for Salisbury,
signalling that the city is clean, green and forward-looking;
¢ help Wiltshire Council to achieve its strategic objective of becoming a low
carbon authority.

Page 265


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 7 of 12

Example of a new-generation "Zuppinger Wheel"

8 Other Concerns include:

The Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan includes plans for an additional
840 dwellings to the west of Harnham, with additional windfall sites, (for
example application 18/04067/0UT) — the majority of the traffic leaving these
sites will use the Harnham gyratory and Exeter Street roundabout. The
refreshed Transport Strategy merely states that modifications to these two
important routes will be required, but fails to give any details, design, costing
or timescales; it is vital that this work be carried out before the proposed
development takes place. The refreshed Transport Strategy does not appear
to address the issue of seasonality; traffic loadings across the city are highly
season dependent. Peak loadings, especially during summer months and
school holidays should be reported and considered. If this data is not currently
collected this should be undertaken immediately. SCC believe it essential that
all proposed infrastructure improvements are vigorously and robustly tested
and modelled in order to validate the expected outcomes in terms of capacity
and other traffic flow parameters specified, i.e., that the required mitigation
measures and improvements needed to accommodate additional
development will indeed be achieved.

The short amount of time allowed for comments, lack of access to supporting
background documents, for example modelling.

Sustrans National Cycle Network cycle routes through Salisbury should be
covered, as should the need for better cycling routes serving the area as well
as in the area

Page 266


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 8 of 12

¢ Inaccurate housing numbers have underestimated the impact of some
developments (e.g. Old Manor, Longhedge).

¢ Clarification needed of the contribution of through traffic to overall traffic in
Salisbury

e The impact of interventions on attractiveness and timing of journeys by foot
and bicycle would be helpful. A transport model which covers these modes
might assist.

SCC is grateful for the opportunity to comment on the Revised Salisbury Transport
Strategy and believes in partnership, a number of SCC'’s priorities can be
implemented in the short to medium term.

Yours sincerely

Councillor Jeremy Nettle
Chair of Planning and Transportation

Page 267


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 9 of 12

Appendix 1 — Light Rail by Colin Hall

—@— SouTuEL) RAILUAY STATII AND LInéS
AT NETIONAASATION.

- NILITARY RAILWVAYS

By Rail to Stonehenge — Colin Hall

The problem with all the recent proposals to enhance the environment around
Stonehenge is that they are all road based. At present, and for the foreseeable
future, the only way to get to Stonehenge is by road. Very little of this is encouraged
by public transport. Tourist coaches may reduce the amount of cars coming in but
raises the doubt as to whether all using these would otherwise seek out Stonehenge
if it was not on the itinerary. The more intrepid tourist arrives in Salisbury by train and
then visits the stones via the Wilts & Dorset bus service from the station. This is the
only true public transport link and as some of these services also serve Amesbury
and Shrewton they are important locally. This shows how tourist revenue can help
support rural transport when developed together. The question we must now ask
ourselves is why depend on road transport for the future and what could be the
alternative.

Page 268


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 10 of 12

In 1902 a branch railway line opened from a junction with the main Salisbury to
London line near Newton Tony to Amesbury and Bulford. During the First World War
a military railway was built from Amesbury station to Larkhill and other camps in that
part of Salisbury Plain. The military railway was wound down in stages during the
1920's until final closure in 1928. The branch line to Bulford continued to be
extensively used but following the end of the Second World War the passenger
service was withdrawn due to intense bus competition in 1952. However, the line
continued for freight until 1963.

Although the course of these old railway lines has been interfered with by some
recent development they are largely still clear. Reopening as a full rail link is out of
the question due the high cost but there is potential with light rail. This means a
service using modem trams. With their light axle weights and ability to go round
sharp curves the cost of rebuilding the line is greatly reduced. Obstacles can be
circumvented by stretches of road and street running which also means they can
better serve the community by accessing parts a conventional railway cannot.
Stations can serve Newton Tony, Amesbury, Bulford, Durrington, Larkhill and
Stonehenge. Furthermore new stations can be sited on the main line into Salisbury
at Idmiston, Porton, Gomeldon, the Winterbournes and Bishopdown. In Salisbury, by
reversing in the railway station and using the remains of the old market railway, this
service could terminate in the central car park at the back of Tesco’s giving an
important boost to the city centre.

The economics are favourable since a sometime failing of public transport due to the
high cost of providing for commuter peaks does not apply here. The demand for
journeys to and from Stonehenge virtually all year round would provide a high level
of usage throughout the day balancing commuting, school and shopping trips.
Funding from the private sector could come from a consortium such as existing local
transport operators, Railtrack, the construction industry, banking institutions and
pension funds. Public sector funding would come from the local authorities and
central government.

Rural and inter urban light rail systems are common in Europe particularly in Austria,
Germany and Switzerland with old systems being modernised and new ones built. In
Britain trams have already returned to the streets of Manchester, Sheffield and
Croydon with considerable success. Closer to home a proposed link between
Fareham and Portsmouth is gathering momentum. What better way to celebrate the
new millennium than with a new way of looking at transport problems and their
solution.

Page 269


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 11 of 12

Appendix 2 - Working towards a local Green Infrastructure Strategy
in the Salisbury area

ucture Strategy for the Salisbury Area
= e

\ T
nQM:mymnam.«.m;msLongM«mnm”:so T p L. % T 1P N

= Valley Park/Reserve JJJ Downland Country Park/Reserve Historic Park
05 Mapping supplied by Wiltshire Council Salisbury Area
e TR mm m  Peripheral Greenway = = Radial Greenway GREENSPACE PARTNERSHIP

The attached plan illustrating ideas for a local green infrastructure strategy is work in
progress.

It is based on surveys that identified what & where our green (& blue spaces ie.
rivers) are & how well they are connected, & further work is needed to incorporate
the connectivity information for Laverstock & Ford, & Wilton.

Looking at the bigger picture, it is possible to see the potential for & value of
establishing a range of dedicated routes or greenways for people on foot & cyclists -

Page 270


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 15
Page 12 of 12

peripheral & circular routes, as well as radial greenways making use of the valley
corridors & connecting people with schools, local facilities, the city centre, the
community hub, the hospital & work places around the area. It is important that these
potential routes are safeguarded & protected from development

In addition, the green spaces, & particularly those associated with the river valleys &
with the high ground in the area, provide the distinctive landscape setting for
Salisbury. They also provide important vantage points for extensive views
connecting the urban areas with the countryside beyond & are important for wildlife.
Again, there is potential to extend the idea of Downland Country Parks/Reserves to
the higher ground in the area eg. Lime Kiln Down & Rowbarrow, & to create Valley
Parks/Reserves in the river valleys. This would safeguard & protect important
landscapes & valuable wildlife corridors such as Britford Meadows from development
in the longer term.

Further work is needed to develop these ideas more fully & to share them with the
parish councils in the area as well as with Wiltshire Council. A high quality
multifunctional GI network would help to deliver a number of Local Plan (formerly
Core Strategy) policies; it is an important consideration in the preparation of
neighbourhood plans & should also be an important element in the transport strategy
& the master plan for the Salisbury area.

Salisbury Area Greenspace Partnership March 2018

Page 271


mailto:info@salisburycitycouncil.gov.uk

Response number: 16
Page 1 of 1

From: Clark, Ernie

To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: Draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan *REF: 16*
Date: 11 June 2018 17:27:24

Hi,

For some reason the following email failed to transmit this morning. Please confirm receipt.

Change PC43

You propose to amend Policy H2 to replace 205 dwellings in Table 5.3 for Elizabeth Way,

Hilperton (it is NOT in Trowbridge) with 355 dwellings.

Your justification for the original figure was due to the amount of work that would be needed to

make the proposed houses acceptable, hence the low density.

You have accepted the submissions of various developers to increase the allocation whilst

ignoring the many cogent reasons put forward by other parties to remove the policy altogether.

As the elected Wiltshire Councillor for Hilperton Division | wish to formally object to the

following suggested Wiltshire Council allocation as it is clearly contrary to Wiltshire Council’s

adopted Core Strategy, specially paragraph 5.150 on page 181 reproduced below:-
It is recognised that the villages surrounding Trowbridge - particularly Hilperton,
Southwick, North Bradley and West Ashton - have separate and distinct identities as
villages. Open countryside should be maintained to protect the character and identity
of these villages as separate communities. The local communities may wish to consider
this matter in more detail in any future community-led neighbourhood planning.

263/297/293 (part) — Hilperton Gap, located in Hilperton parish. It should be noted that

Hilperton Parish Council policy is to oppose development in the Hilperton Gap in order to

prevent its coalescence with Trowbridge.

This suggestion would NOT maintain open countryside between the town and the village, nor

would it protect the character and identity of the village as a separate community.

Ernie Clark,

Wiltshire Councillor for Hilperton Division,

Independent Group leader, Wiltshire Council.

www.ernieclark.org.uk

3 Stonelea,

Hilperton,

Wiltshire, BA14 7QQ.

0794 120 1995

01225 769940

Page 272


mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=5ae7aa2597c84ed0aad711bdbfe9cd9d-Clark, Ernie
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.ernieclark.org.uk/

Response number: 17

Page 1 of 3
From: Deborah Lawrence
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: RE: Briefing Note 355 - Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - DEFERRAL OF DECISION *REF: 16*
Date: 12 June 2018 16:13:30
Attachments: image001.jpa
image003.ipg

Good afternoon

At the Council meeting held on Monday 11t June 2018, the Council made no comment
regarding the above briefing note.
Regards

Debbie

Deborah Lawrence, PSLCC
Parish Clerk

Purton Parish Council
Station Road

Purton

Wiltshire , SN5 4A)

01793 771066

This email originates from Purton Parish Council and any files transmitted with it may contain
confidential information and may be subject to Copyright or Intellectual Property rights. It is
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you have
received this email in error please notify the sender and delete the email from your inbox. Any
disclosure, reproduction, dissemination, modification and distribution of the contents of the
email is strictly prohibited. Any personal opinions expressed in this message are those of the
sender and should not be taken as representing views of Purton Parish Council. Please note
Purton Parish Council utilises anti-virus scanning software but does not warrant that any e-mail
or attachments are free from viruses or other defects and accepts no liability for any losses
resulting from infected e-mail transmissions.

Receipt of this e-mail does not imply consent to use or provide this e-mail address to any third
party for any purpose.

From: Spatial Planning Policy [mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk]

Sent: 22 May 2018 10:14

To: clerkpurton

Subject: FW: Briefing Note 355 - Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - DEFERRAL OF DECISION

Dear Ms Lawrence,

Thank you for your email in respect of the above.

In recognition of the fact that your relevant committee will not meet until 11 June, can you
please send us your draft response as soon as possible and then confirm the formal response on
the 12 June.

Yours sincerely

Georgina Clampitt-Dix

Head Spatial Planning

Page 273


mailto:clerk@purtonpc.eclipse.co.uk
mailto:SpatialPlanningPolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk









Response number: 17
Page 2 of 3

Economic Development and Planning
Wiltshire Council | County Hall | Trowbridge | Wiltshire | BA14 8JN
Telephone: 01225 713223

Website: www.wiltshire.gov.uk

From: Democratic and Member Services

Sent: 18 May 2018 09:22

To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: FW: Briefing Note 355 - Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - DEFERRAL OF DECISION
*HC to GW*

From: Deborah Lawrence [mailto:clerk@purtonpc.eclipse.co.uk]

Sent: 17 May 2018 18:19

To: Democratic and Member Services <Committee@wiltshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: Briefing Note 355 - Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - DEFERRAL OF DECISION
Good evening

This briefing note has a deadline for comment of 11t June 12 noon, however our Council
meeting isn’t behind held until then, can | ask for a extension of a few days to allow
comment ?

Regards

Debbie

Deborah Lawrence, PSLCC
Parish Clerk

Purton Parish Council
Station Road

Purton

Wiltshire , SN5 4A)

01793 771066

This email originates from Purton Parish Council and any files transmitted with it may contain
confidential information and may be subject to Copyright or Intellectual Property rights. It is
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you have
received this email in error please notify the sender and delete the email from your inbox. Any
disclosure, reproduction, dissemination, modification and distribution of the contents of the
email is strictly prohibited. Any personal opinions expressed in this message are those of the
sender and should not be taken as representing views of Purton Parish Council. Please note
Purton Parish Council utilises anti-virus scanning software but does not warrant that any e-mail
or attachments are free from viruses or other defects and accepts no liability for any losses
resulting from infected e-mail transmissions.

Receipt of this e-mail does not imply consent to use or provide this e-mail address to any third
party for any purpose.

From: Democratic and Member Services [mailto:Committee @wiltshire.gov.uk]
Sent: 17 May 2018 17:32

Page 274


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/
mailto:clerk@purtonpc.eclipse.co.uk
mailto:Committee@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@wiltshire.gov.uk

Response number: 17
Page 3 of 3

To: undisclosed-recipients:
Subject: Briefing Note 355 - Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan - DEFERRAL OF DECISION
Importance: High

Good Afternoon,

Please find attached a copy of Briefing Note no. 355

Note: this Briefing Note has been circulated to Parish & Town Clerks at the request of the
author.

Many thanks,

Democratic Services

This email originates from Wiltshire Council and any files transmitted with it may contain
confidential information and may be subject to Copyright or Intellectual Property rights. It
is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you
have received this email in error please notify the sender and delete the email from your
inbox. Any disclosure, reproduction, dissemination, modification and distribution of the
contents of the email is strictly prohibited. Email content may be monitored by Wiltshire
Council to ensure compliance with its policies and procedures. No contract is intended by
this email, and any personal opinions expressed in this message are those of the sender and
should not be taken as representing views of Wiltshire Council. Please note Wiltshire
Council utilises anti-virus scanning software but does not warrant that any e-mail or
attachments are free from viruses or other defects and accepts no liability for any losses
resulting from infected e-mail transmissions. Receipt of this e-mail does not imply consent
to use or provide this e-mail address to any third party for any purpose. Wiltshire Council
will not request the disclosure of personal financial information by means of e-mail any
such request should be confirmed in writing by contacting Wiltshire Council.

This email originates from Wiltshire Council and any files transmitted with it may contain
confidential information and may be subject to Copyright or Intellectual Property rights. It
is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you
have received this email in error please notify the sender and delete the email from your
inbox. Any disclosure, reproduction, dissemination, modification and distribution of the
contents of the email is strictly prohibited. Email content may be monitored by Wiltshire
Council to ensure compliance with its policies and procedures. No contract is intended by
this email, and any personal opinions expressed in this message are those of the sender and
should not be taken as representing views of Wiltshire Council. Please note Wiltshire
Council utilises anti-virus scanning software but does not warrant that any e-mail or
attachments are free from viruses or other defects and accepts no liability for any losses
resulting from infected e-mail transmissions. Receipt of this e-mail does not imply consent
to use or provide this e-mail address to any third party for any purpose. Wiltshire Council
will not request the disclosure of personal financial information by means of e-mail any
such request should be confirmed in writing by contacting Wiltshire Council.

Page 275



Response number: 18
Page 1 of 1

From: McLennan, lan

Sent: 09 June 2018 12:04

To: Clampitt-dix, Georgina

Subject: Consultation on site allocations for housing, within the core strategy

Georgina

Apologies, | am just off on holiday and remembered | have not input to the consultation, as
members were asked.

| have many new homes allocated and built, as you know, in my ward/parish. However, there is one
new site and that is the site known to Spatial Planning as ‘The Yard’ at Hampton Park/Bishopdown
Farm, in Laverstock & Ford Parish.

Although in ClIr Derek Brown’s ward, it impacts on my ward, as you would recognise.

| fully support this allocation of 14 dwellings. It was ‘omitted’ when this particular land was not sold
to Barratt’s for their 500 homes. | understand that this is why it would eventually reappear.

The documentation states entry via Neal Close, in Hampton Park. | suggest that the entrance should
be via the shared road which will also be the entrance to the country park. The PC and Mr Pearce
agree to a re-sited entrance on Roman Road, rather than use the existing entrance. This will provide
better vision in both directions. Mr Pearce can then fund, via the development!

| ask that you input my thoughts to the consultation.

Many thanks
lan

Cllr lan McLennan
Laverstock, Ford & Old Sarum

Page 276



Response number: 1

Page 1 of 1
From: —
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: Winterslow Settlement boundary *Printed*
Date: 09 June 2018 10:20:01

I am writing to raise an objection to the proposed revised Settlement Boundary adjacent to
1, Witt Road, Winterslow, Salisbury, SP5 1PL. This revision has been instigated by Kent
Oak Ltd in order to build a small housing estate on a rural lane on a plot which currently
sits outside the present boundary. This revision is not supported by Winterslow Parish
Council who recently reviewed the boundaries during the drafting of the Neighbourhood

Plan

I'm objecting as the revision is being proposed by the landowner and their developers and
not by the Parish Council who represent Winterslow village through the NP consultative

process

Regards

Page 277



Response number: 2
Page 1 of 1

From: ]
To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: WINTERSLOW: Development Proposal Outside Village Boundary *Printed*
Date: 10 June 2018 09:29:54

Dear Sir/Madam,

I write to express my very serious concern regarding a proposed development adjacent to 1 Witt Road,
Winterslow, Salisbury, SP5 1PL.

My objection is on the grounds that this proposal falls outside the village boundary. Allowing a
development outside the village boundary would | believe act as the setting of a very serious precedent
and could have significant repercussions on many other village communities.

Specifically | would like to draw your attention to the Wiltshire Core Strategy Plan that states:

"At Large Villages settlement boundaries are retained and development will
predominantly take the form of small housing and employment sites within the settlement
boundaries. ... ... ............Development outside the settlement boundary will be strictly
controlled. Relaxation of the boundaries will only be supported where it has been formally

reviewed through a subsequent DPD or a community-led neighbourhood plan, which
includes a review of the settlement boundary to identify new developable land to help meet
the housing and employment needs of that community.”

I do not believe that this development proposal meets the criteria and should therefore be refused.

Yours faithfully

Page 278



Response number: 3
Page 1 of 1

From: ]
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: WINTERSLOW: Development Proposal Outside Village Boundary *Printed*
Date: 10 June 2018 13:38:59

Dear Sir/Madam,

I write to express my very serious concern regarding a proposed development adjacent to 1 Witt Road,
Winterslow, Salisbury, SP5 1PL.

My objection is on the grounds that this proposal falls outside the village boundary. Allowing a
development outside the village boundary would I believe act as the setting of a very serious precedent
and could have significant repercussions on many other village communities.

Specifically | would like to draw your attention to the Wiltshire Core Strategy Plan that states:

"At Large Villages settlement boundaries are retained and development will
predominantly take the form of small housing and employment sites within the settlement
boundaries. ... ... ............Development outside the settlement boundary will be strictly

controlled. Relaxation of the boundaries will only be supported where it has been formally
reviewed through a subsequent DPD or a community-led neighbourhood plan, which includes a
review of the settlement boundary to identify new developable land to help meet the housing and
employment needs of that community.”

I do not believe that this development proposal meets the criteria and should therefore be refused.
As an adjunct to this, Witt Rd is a single track width road and we already suffer from frequent hold ups

due to deliver and builders lorries. This proposed development can certainly be classed as “over
development”

Yours faithfully

Page 279



Response number: 4

Page 1 of 1
From: .
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: The Red Line, Witt Road, The Common, Winterslow, SP5 1PL *Printed*
Date: 10 June 2018 21:30:54
Dear Sirs

I write to object to all the land adjacent to number 1 Witt Road being included in the
revised housing boundary together with any other boundary changes in Witt Road. |
believe that neither the Neighbourhood Planning Steering Group nor the Parish Council
have asked for these changes. | further understand that the Neighbourhood Planning
Steering Group are on record as saying they will be retaining the boundary as it previously
existed in Witt Road. | am a resident of Witt Road and do not wish the boundary to be
altered.

Yours faithfully

Sent from Samsung tablet.

Page 280



Response number: 5
Page 1 of 2

From: I
To: Spatial Planning Policy

Subject: Objection to changing Settlement boundary in Witt Road *Printed*
Date: 10 June 2018 23:09:57

Attachments: South HMA Southern Wiltshire CA - Winterslow A3L.pdf

Hi

It has been brought to our attention that there has been a proposal to change the
Settlement boundary in Witt Road around 1 Witt Road and around Juniper in Witt Road as
detailed in the attached pdf.

We would like to register an objection to this as Witt Road is a single track road and is
unable to sustain any further access, especially at the start of Witt Road where visibility is

poor.

Also the road is susceptible to flooding and further development would increase the risk of
flooding towards the end of the road.

Thanks

Page 281



] = [ & [ 8 ] & | ¥

L [« [ o |

(510z Aienuep SOM) Aiepunog juswapias

810Z 050670001 [1UN0D SAYSHIM “PaAISSSI SIYBU (1Y ‘4BLAdOD UmoId

(2102 8UNF UOISSILGNS 81d dYSH) Alepunog Juawspes F,, [ =
(810Z Aepy uoissiwans dysH) Arepunog uewames [ ,
| — 3 = | :
I - , i
o[
ol ol
6 6
8 8
7 2 L
0
ol
N
()
m g
S S
\
v ¥
\
€ €
——— \
4 z
7 i . sallepunog JUaW|}}oS PasIAdY 10} sjesodoid
i o ) V4 MO|SISJUIM i
) V,, 74
cloz ?ped 2 o ) 4 3 a o) g v




Response number: 6

Page 1 of 1
From: —
To: BN Sl g Pocy; Devine, Chritogher
Subject: Proposals for revised settlement boundaries *Printed*
Date: 11 June 2018 08:49:22
URGENT ACTION REQUIRED.

Dear spatial planning team,

I write reference a proposed amendment to the Winterslow boundary red line for
development. I am off the understanding that this is at its final stages, I wish to make an
objection to this in particular the change to the boundary at the start of Witt Road.
Amendment to this will only benefit the landowner and the developers seeking to develop
this site. There will be no benefit for the local community, vitality of the village and local
community will not be improved one little bit. Winterslow has an abundance of homes for
sale, and there is currently no requirement at this agricultural site, Winterslow has a
neighbourhood plan which has preferred sites. There are already an abundance of potential
sites that can provide Winterslow housing needs now and in the future.

As a resident of this road where any future development will severely impact my day to
day life, why was I not made aware of this possible change by either council body? It is
only by neighbourhood conversation and some research that I find this information. We
chose to live in this road partly due to the settlement boundary red line restrictions.

I am curious to know how this site came about as a potential change to the plan as it is an
exceptionally narrow single track and congested road, surely better sites and more
appropriate ones exist?

Please can you confirm this email and my objection, and I request to be kept informed of
next steps reference and proposed boundary change.

Reiards

Page 283



Response number: 7

Page 1 of 1
From: —
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: Settlement boundrey Winterslow *Printed*
Date: 11 June 2018 09:00:25

I wise to object to the change to the settlement boundary relating to land adjacent to 1 Witt
road. Winterslow sp5 1PL.

The land in question is not part of the residential domestic garden relating to 1 Witt road, it
1s under separate ownership and 1t is agricultural land. I believe that this proposed
settlement boundary is driven entirely by developers in order to build houses in an
inappropriate location.

Yours faithfully

Page 284



Response number: 8

Page 1 of 2
From: I
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: Proposed Housing Boundary change in Witt Rd, Winterslow Proposal for Revised Settlement Boundary (Ref
L6) *Printed HC*
Date: 11 June 2018 10:56:51
Attachments: South HMA Southern Wiltshire CA - Winterslow A3L.pdf

To Whom It May Concern,

It was recently brought to my attention that there is a proposal to move the Housing
Boundary in Witt Rd Winterslow (attached). | wish to strongly object to the Boundary being
moved to include land adjacent to No.1 Witt Road and request that the line remains as
defined in the WCS 2015 Map (this leaves the house, 1 Witt Road, inside the housing
boundary but none of the surrounding agricultural land/open space).

Instigated by Winterslow NP Steering Group, the village voted on which plots of land it
wished to see developed. All the land adjacent to No.1 Witt Rd was put forward by the
owners but it was rejected by popular vote. A small estate and other small developments
have recently been completed within the village, however these have been completed
transparently and in line with the agreed Neighbourhood plan. This proposed boundary
movement is not.

| believe the changing of the above boundary in Witt Rd will be unconstitutional and
should not be ratified by Wiltshire Council.

Kind regards,

Page 285



] = [ & [ 8 ] & | ¥

L [« [ o |

(510z Aienuep SOM) Aiepunog juswapias

810Z 050670001 [1UN0D SAYSHIM “PaAISSSI SIYBU (1Y ‘4BLAdOD UmoId

(2102 8UNF UOISSILGNS 81d dYSH) Alepunog Juawspes F,, [ =
(810Z Aepy uoissiwans dysH) Arepunog uewames [ ,
| — 3 = | :
I - , i
o[
ol ol
6 6
8 8
7 6 L
0
ol
N
()
m g
S S
\
v ¥
\
€ €
——— \
4 z
7 i . sallepunog JUaW|}}oS PasIAdY 10} sjesodoid
i o ) V4 MO|SISJUIM i
) V,, 74
cloz ?ped 2 o ) 4 3 a o) g v




Response number: 9

Page 1 of 2
From: —
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: Objection to Proposed Boundary Change *Printed HC*
Date: 11 June 2018 10:59:07

Dear Sir/Madam,

Proposed Housing Boundary change in Witt Rd — Ref: Winterslow Proposal for
Revised Settlement Boundary (L6

It was recently brought to my attention that there is a proposal to move the
Housing Boundary in Witt Rd Winterslow. | wish to strongly object to the
Boundary being moved to include land adjacent to No.1 Witt Road and
request that the line remains as defined in the WCS 2015 Map (this leaves the
house, 1 Witt Road, inside the housing boundary but NONE of the surrounding
agricultural land/open space).

Supporting Reasons:

1. The local residents have not requested this change.

2. Winterslow Parish Council has not requested this change.

<|--[if IsupportLists]-->3. <!--[endif]-->Winterslow Neighbourhood Planning
Group has not requested this change.

<l--[if IsupportLists]-->4. <!--[endif]-->In addition | have it in writing from
Winterslow NP 18mths ago that “the NP Steering Group will be
retaining the boundary as it is shown” the map they enclosed clearly
showed the above mentioned land OUTSIDE the Housing Boundary.

<l--[if IsupportLists]-->5. <!--[endif]-->Instigated by Winterslow NP Steering
Group, the village voted on which plots of land it wished to see developed.
All the land adjacent to No.1 Witt Rd was put forward by the owners but it
was rejected by popular vote, probably because of its location in a small
single track rural road and because of the substantial distance from
amenities in Winterslow (it is over a mile from school, shop and pub).

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->6. <!--[endif]-->Documentation on the Wiltshire Council

Website shows that it is the Agents for the land that have applied for this
change, and also further boundary changes on this site.

<l--[if IsupportLists]-->7. <!--[endif]-->In addition, Agents for the land have
already applied for outline planning permission, suggesting the land is
already available for development (even whilst the land is outside the
Building Boundary and not supported within the NP)

<l--[if IsupportLists]-->8. <!--[endif]-->No. 1 Witt Road and its surrounding land

Page 287



Response number: 9
Page 2 of 2

used to constitute a small holding. Over recent years the owners have,
without permission, taken in land and enclosed the barns within a hedge
so as to make it appear that the house has a large garden. Recently the
house was sold off with just a small strip of land immediately behind it.
The remained of the land behind the hedge is what the
owner/deviopers are seeking to have included in the new Housing
Boundary and have already applied to build on it. This is contrary to a
number Wiltshire Councils objectives, specifically item 2 in the Introduction
and para 53 of the NPPF and the statements made in section 7.20,
Conclusion, WHSA Topic Paper 2018.

<!--[if IsupportLists]-->9. <!--[endif]-->There is high demand in the village for
small plots of land for rural use but sadly owners will not sell or rent if they
believe there is the remotest chance of future planning permission being
granted, as is demonstrated in this case.

| and most villagers are not against development, a village has to evolve but it
must be done openly and within the Neighbourhood Plan. We have just
completed the building of a small estate and other small developments, which
were agreed by our Neighbourhood plan. In addition and we are told by our
Parish Council that we have met our current Government requirements for
housing in Winterslow and we still have further developments in our plan agreed
by the village.

For all the above reasons, | believe the changing of the above boundary in Witt Rd
will be unconstitutional and should NOT be ratified by Wiltshire Council.

Yours faithfully,

Page 288



Response number: 10

Page 1 of 2
From: I
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: Proposed Housing Boundary change in Witt Rd, Winterslow Proposal for Revised Settlement Boundary (Ref
L6) *Printed HC*
Date: 11 June 2018 11:10:16
Attachments: South HMA Southern Wiltshire CA - Winterslow A3L.pdf

To Whom It May Concern,

| have been notified there is a fundamental change to the red line Housing Boundary in
Witt Rd Winterslow (attached). As a home owner on this road; | wish to strongly object to
the boundary being moved to include land adjacent to No.1 Witt Road and request that
the line remains as defined in the WCS 2015 Map (this leaves the house, 1 Witt Road,
inside the housing boundary but none of the surrounding agricultural land/open space). |
fear the alterations and subsequent approval, will set a precedence not only in Witt Road,
which will lead to others requesting inclusion and further planning permission, but also in
the rest of the village.

Whilst I do not object to planning consent, or housing development, the village voted on
which plots of land it wished to see developed. All the land adjacent to No.1 Witt Rd was
put forward by the owners but it was rejected by popular vote. A small estate and other
small developments have recently been completed within the village, however these have
been completed transparently and in line with the agreed Neighbourhood plan. This
proposed boundary movement is not. Furthermore, this land has been used many years for
agricultural purposes and | understand the owners of 1 Witt Road tried to purchase the land
for such purposes and were denied. Leading me to believe the current owners are merely
interested in the process of making money and have not considered the voice of the village
in their proposals to develop outside of this plan.

| believe the changing of the above boundary in Witt Rd will be unconstitutional and
should not be ratified by Wiltshire Council.

Kind regards,

Ashley Bird

Page 289



] = [ & [ 8 ] & | ¥

L [« [ o |

(510z Aienuep SOM) Aiepunog juswapias

810Z 050670001 [1UN0D SAYSHIM “PaAISSSI SIYBU (1Y ‘4BLAdOD UmoId

(2102 8UNF UOISSILGNS 81d dYSH) Alepunog Juawspes F,, [ =
(810Z Aepy uoissiwans dysH) Arepunog uewames [ ,
| — 3 = | :
I - , i
o[
ol ol
6 6
8 8
7 O L
(@))
Al
N
()
m g
S S
\
v ¥
\
€ €
——— \
4 z
7 i . sallepunog JUaW|}}oS PasIAdY 10} sjesodoid
i o ) V4 MO|SISJUIM i
) V,, 74
cloz ?ped a o ) 4 3 a o) g v




Response number: 11

Page 1 of 4

From: [
To: Spatial Planning Policy
ce: ]
Subject: RE: Consultation on draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation Plan - SHLAA Site 3408 *LL to GW* *Printed*
Date: 18 May 2018 17:40:10
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Dear Sir/Madam,

| note that the post consultation Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan has now been
submitted to councillors for approval (see minutes of meetings 15.05.2108) and the
decision was deferred until the July meeting. There may therefore be a further
opportunity for correcting errors in the documents submitted as supporting papers.

| further note with respect to SHLAA site 3408, Beechwood, Middleton, Winterslow, SP5
1RD, that the proposed settlement boundary is still shown as arbitrarily going across the
middle of the established lawn, rather than respecting the actual residential
curtilage/garden boundary. The actual boundaries of the residential curtilage are clearly
represented to the north by the road; to the east by a line of trees separating SHLAA site
3408 from the neighbouring residential property; to the south by an evergreen hedge
from agricultural land; and to the west by established woodland. The line shown on the
current plan is not related to any existing physical feature and even appears to cross
through the middle of an existing outbuilding, which has been present for at least 20 years
and is clearly visible on aerial photographs, etc.

| have already pointed this out as a probable error during the consultation period, and
subsequently (see below). | note that in similar cases elsewhere, the red line settlement
boundary has been amended to relate to the existing boundaries of residential curtilages
visible as physical features of the built environment, in accordance with the current
‘Wiltshire Council Topic Paper 1: Settlement Boundary Review Methodology Paper’. If this
error is not going to be corrected, then | would appreciate an explanation of why this has
NOT been done.

As shown at grid reference G5 on the current ‘Southern Wiltshire CATP May 2018 FINAL
document, the actual position of the red line would be impossible to determine; the line
scales out at around 20m wide on the plan and does not relate to any visible landmarks
whatsoever. The following table A.7 provides justification for amendments to grid
reference G5 (amongst others) as ‘amend boundary to include built residential and
community facility development physically related to the settlement’, but this has not
been done on the map. The entirety of SHLAA Site 3408 up to the current site boundaries
has been in residential use since the 1960s, and as such, is obviously related to the existing
settlement.

| appreciate that your team has been very busy with a huge number of consultation
responses, but an early response would nevertheless be much appreciated, particularly as |

Page 291



Response number: 11
Page 2 of 4

have only been trying to point out what seems to be a simple error. Or if it is not an error,
then there should be an equally simple explanation for why the Council has chosen to
define the settlement boundary in this way.

Many thanks

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

From: Spatial Planning Policy
Sent: 15 January 2018 11:01

To:

Subject: FW: Consultation on draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation Plan - SHLAA Site 3408

Dear Dr Flindell,

Thank you for your email.

| can confirm that we have received your original email and that it is being treated as a response
to the consultation. We are still in the process of reviewing consultation responses and preparing
the formal submission to the Secretary of State, therefore no final decision has yet been taken

on further changes to the settlement boundaries in advance of submission.

If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Kind regards,

Economic Development and Planning
Wiltshire Council | County Hall | Trowbridge | Wiltshire | BA14 8JN
Telephone: 01225 713223

Website: www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Follow Wiltshire Council
[z |

From:
Sent: 10 January 2018 12:58

Page 292



Response number: 11
Page 3 of 4

To: Spatial Planning Policy
Ccs
Subject: RE: Consultation on draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation Plan - SHLAA Site 3408

Dear Sir,

Please could you confirm that the error on the original plan of the revised settlement boundaries
in Winterslow (see below) has now been corrected in the formal submission to the Secretary of
State.

| note that the correct plan of the boundary of site 3408, Beechwood, Middleton, Winterslow
has now been included as an attachment on the consultation portal (see file: shelaa-2017-
appendix-5.14-southern-wiltshire.pdf; attached), and that my note from 4-09-2017 pointing out
the error has been included on the consultation website as a formal comment, (see file: site
3408 04-09-2017.docx; attached), but | have not (yet) been advised whether the error has been
corrected in the formal submission to the Secretary of State, or at least provided with an
explanation, as previously requested.

| would be grateful to receive acknowledgement of receipt of this email and attachment and a

proper response to my enquiry as previously requested in my email of 4th September 2017, as
copied below for your reference. | should perhaps point out that my submission to the
consultation was not really a comment on any of the principles of the draft plan as such, but
instead it was intended to point out an error in drafting the site boundaries, which had been
drawn across the middle of the site for unknown reasons rather than around the actual site
boundary.

Many thanks

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

From: I

Sent: 04 September 2017 19:56
To: spatialplanningpolicy@wiltshire.gov.uk

-
Subject: Consultation on draft Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation Plan - SHLAA Site 3408

Dear Sir,

| wish to point out what appears to be an error on the plan of revised settlement boundaries in
Winterslow included as Figure A.76 of the draft consultation documents.

| attach my detailed explanation of why | believe this to be an error.

Page 293



Response number: 11
Page 4 of 4

| would be grateful to receive acknowledgment of receipt of this email and attachment, and in
due course, confirmation that this error has been corrected in the submission to the Secretary of
State, or alternatively, if there is some reason for what appears to be an arbitrary division across
the middle of the site, then | would be grateful for an explanation.

Many thanks

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

This email originates from Wiltshire Council and any files transmitted with it may contain
confidential information and may be subject to Copyright or Intellectual Property rights. It
is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you
have received this email in error please notify the sender and delete the email from your
inbox. Any disclosure, reproduction, dissemination, modification and distribution of the
contents of the email is strictly prohibited. Email content may be monitored by Wiltshire
Council to ensure compliance with its policies and procedures. No contract is intended by
this email, and any personal opinions expressed in this message are those of the sender and
should not be taken as representing views of Wiltshire Council. Please note Wiltshire
Council utilises anti-virus scanning software but does not warrant that any e-mail or
attachments are free from viruses or other defects and accepts no liability for any losses
resulting from infected e-mail transmissions. Receipt of this e-mail does not imply consent
to use or provide this e-mail address to any third party for any purpose. Wiltshire Council
will not request the disclosure of personal financial information by means of e-mail any
such request should be confirmed in writing by contacting Wiltshire Council.

Page 294



Response number: 12

Page 1 of 10
From: I
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: HDPD and Briefing Note 355 *LL to VH* *Printed*
Date: 31 May 2018 16:04:13
Attachments: Housing DPD amend comments.docx

As advised in Briefing Note 355, | am sending you comments on your original report to
Cabinet and the amended Housing Development Plan that was presented to the meeting.
These are my personal comments.

Principally, it is my contention that the draft plan is not “sound” and | submit a number of
reasons why | believe this is so.

| also have some comments on specific amended sections. In this case | have included the
report sections to which | refer.

| ask the Council to take note of my views.

Page 295



Response number: 12
Page 2 of 10

Comments on

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

15 May 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Development Plan
Document - Proposed Submission

Cabinet Member: Councillor Toby Sturgis - Planning and Strategic Asset
Management

Item 1 - p40
Proposals

That having considered the outcome of the formal consultation, Cabinet:

() Endorses the draft Plan as sound and legally compliant, as set out
Appendix 1,

The draft Plan is not sound for the following reasons.

Item 2 - The Housing Plan is perhaps one of the most important policies to be made by the
Council and so should be a document understood and decided upon by the whole of the Council,
not just by Cabinet. It is unbelievable that the report states:-

“The draft Plan has not been subjected to the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function. It has
been agreed that as the Environment Select Committee has not prioritised this item highly as a
topic of interest, no Overview and Scrutiny engagement is to be undertaken at present.”

Item 3 - The Plan does not take sufficient account of the “Consultation” which was intended
to be a major step in developing the Plan. The report to Cabinet is 395 pages long. Comments
were received from almost 1000 people and organisations. The section on the results of
consultation amounts to 8 pages. Considerable weight is given to comments from developers,
ecological and heritage aspects. Almost nothing is reported about comments from Town and
Parish councils and members of the public.

Item 4 - There is no mention in the plan about the character of Wiltshire that the community
wishes to see. We may achieve the housing content but will our descendants wish to live in the
environment left to them? Somewhere in the documentation there should be a discussion about
site density, ie homes per hectare. Clearly there will be a range of densities. A block of flats
would be expected to be denser than a rural site. Members should have a say in this. If it is
available, it is not obvious.

The site density in many cases has increased by up to 65% (PC43) with minimal explanation.

Page 296



Response number: 12
Page 3 of 10

I can find no discussion about the density of population in Community Areas; no discussion about
the percentage of undeveloped land within Community Areas that should be left undeveloped to
provide an interesting and attractive environment. One might expect that both of these
measures would help to assess the future quality of Wiltshire. One should expect an
environment designed on the principles of the Garden Cities.

Item 5 - Wiltshire Council are quite rightly having to allow for the Bechstein and other bats to
thrive. However, the hedgehog appears to have been forgotten. Hedgehog habitats include
private gardens. Many existing houses have gardens large enough to allow some space to be
unkempt and provide for hedgehogs. With a very high density development, with little or no
gardens, separated by solid fences, there will be minimal opportunities offered for hedgehog
movement through them. In 2015 it was reported that four surveys were carried out in urban
areas. The results showed a worrying decline. Hedgehog support organisations have also
detected a fall in numbers of 30% in urban areas and 50% in rural areas since 2000. Hedgehogs
are a protected species. The ecological aspects of the housing proposals should explain how
hedgehogs will be safeguarded.

Item 6 - One of the he biggest problems facing the country is handling the extension in life
expectancy. Accommodation for the elderly should be a significant part of this report. It is
seriously lacking.

Item 7 - In the case of several sites around Trowbridge, development is proposed in direct
contradiction of the Core Strategy policy to keep open space between Trowbridge and its
surrounding villages.

Item 8 - The increase in humbers on many sites is so large that the proposals should go out
again for consultation.

Amendments to Housing DPD

COMMENTS
1 1 | 1 1
Housing AllocationH2.1 Eim Grove Farm, Trowbridge
PC33 Policy ID: 901939 /| To amend site boundary and inclu Amend the boundary of the allocation as set out in Annex B; Minor
H2.1, 01806 adjoining land within the Council's
Figure 5.5,|Rep: 1816 | ownership, but in trust by the And first sentence of Policy H2.1 and paragraph 5.46 to read
National Playing Fields Association

Appendix 2: Schedule of Proposed Changes to the Pre-submission Draft Plan (May 2018)

Paragraph (operating as Fields in Trust “Approximately 44-32 or 17.78ha of land at Elm Grove Farm..."
546 charity), to allow for the relocation of
the primary school on this land and
enhanced community recreational
facilities as part of the wider
development. The extended site will
enable the delivery of the school
early in the site's development
consistent with the strategic priority
identified in PC32.

PC34 Policy H2, |ID: 901939 /| To refiect the increase in site area Amend Policy H2 to reptace 200 dwemngs in Table 5.3 for Eim Main

Policy p01806 consistent with PC33 and dlarify the | Grove Farm with 250 dwellings, and first sentence of paragraph
H2.1, Rep: 1816 | requirements for the use of the land,| 5.46.
Paragraph and associated provision of open
546 space facilities. The increased site | Amend first bullet point of Policy H2.1 to read:
Amend 4th bullet point of Policy 2.1 to read:
-e ved nnd consohda(ed public open
g % adiacent to the

exxsnng Oueen Ellzabe!h I Fleld to provide a play area
teams to utilise;”




Response number: 12
Page 4 of 10

Elm Grove Farm

Page 298



Response number: 12

Page 5 of 10
PC35 Policy ID: 901939 | Factual update to reflect the need Amend the Gth bullet point to read: Minor
H2.1 ! 901806 for cycling and walking routes to
Gth bullet | Rep: 1816 | integrate with the adjoining = " New cycling and walking routes through the site to link intol
employment area. . the existing network and the proposed Ashion Park
Strategic Allocation site, and the White Horse Business
Park."
PC36 Paragraph | 1D: 395940 | Improve clarity. Insert additional text at the start of paragraph 5.47: Minor
547 Rep: 2967,
2968, 2969 | Insert additional wording to address | "Proposals o deve g sife e supported by 3
concems raised by the Environment| Flood Risk Assessment {incorporating an sment of the
Agency, highlighting the need to predicted effects of climate change) and comprehensive
address flood risk and drainage for | draipage strategy.” .
all development sites.
B
E’CB? Paragraph In response to comments from Amend paragraph to read: Minor
5] 5.50 Heritage England to ensure the
ro setting of assets is considered and | “Access to the site would need to be holistically planned with
wn to recognise in accordance with upgrades reguired to Drynham Lane, along with the construction of
co national policy, further detailed a connection to the A363 designed as a through-route anticipating
assessments of heritage would future traffic growth. Mew and improved walking and cycling routes
likely be required to guide layout to existing and planned local services would encourage future
and design at the planning residents to use sustaimable forms of transpori, The site has a
application stage. medium potential for archaeological remains. Therefore any
subsequent planning application should be informed by an
archaeoclogical assessment. In addition, development will need to
minimise the potential o harm the significance of the Grade |1 Listed|
Drynham Lane Farmhouse and, where appropriate, its setting.
Measures may also be necessary to prevent potential noise
pollution from the existing main road and railway. These
considerations should be addressed through the process of detailed
design and layout which should be informed -
lepact Ascacement by detailed sments {including
g o) 10 SUDDOM 311 PRI Rianmng gpoicd
Comments
1 PC33 and 34 are such extensive changes that this site should go out again for consultation.
2 From the point of view of North Bradley residents a woodland buffer should be planted

against the A363 to mask the side of Matalan in the Spitfire Retail Park.

Page 299



Response number: 12

Page 6 of 10
Land off A363 at White Horse Business Park
Housing Allocation H2.2 Land off the A363 at White Horse Business Park, Trowbridge
PC38 Figure 5.6 | ID: Factual update. Amend the boundary of the allocation as set out in Annex C; Minor
Paragraph | 1114350
5.52 Rep: 18- | Amend site boundary to reflect land | And first sentence of paragraph 5.52 to read:
ownership and also to exclude site
ID: that has now been developed. “Approximately 25-8= 18.96 ha of land off the A363 south-west of
1115480 / the White Horse Business park is allocated for the development _."
1115452
Rep: 21
ID:
1120664 |
1115452
Rep: 131
ID:
;,U 1125881
lo Rep: 723
7] ID: 403859
o] Rep: 1457
o
© ID:
1130878 /
1130875
Rep: 1832
PC39 Paolicy H2, | 1D: Improve: clarity. Amend Policy H2 to replace 150 dwellings in Table 5.3 for Land off | Main
Table 5.3; | 8090227 / the A363 at White Horse Business Park, Trowbridge with 225
Paragraph | 1132859 To maximise efficient use of land dwellings.
5.52 Rep: 3074 | consistent with heritage and
ecological constraints increase the | And amend first sentence of paragraph 5.52 as follows:
ID: number of dwellings to
1137984 / | approximately 225 units. "...land off the A383 south-west of the White Horse Business park
1130975 is allocated for the development of approximately 458 223
Rep: 3142- dwellings, as identified on the Policies Map.”
PC40 New para | ID: 403792 | In response to comments from Insart new paragraph after paragraph 5.56 to read: Minior
after 5.56 | Rep: 1642 | Heritage England. To reflect the
Heritage Impact Assessment "As .'denﬁﬂed .'n the Coum:d' s He.'ﬂagg J'mgct Assessmenl,
undertaken by the Council and ands : 85 3
ensure appropriate consideration is :I'usrer nf.'l.istonc fsnnstesds w.'lere t.he fsml houses and
given to heritage assets and their ancillary buildings may be susceptible to setting change. This
settings consistent with national includes Kinas Farmhouse (Grade [l listed). Willow Grove
paolicy. [Gmde I .'lsl‘ed] Uh‘fe Cam.rmn Farm {nnn-desmﬂated assel‘!.
v — s te — an
deslumted asseﬂ An area of Ihe s.ite a.'sc .'ncfudes a Bspt.'st
cemetery with an ernamenial gateway structure (Grade Il
listed) and curtilage listed perimeter walls. The archaeological
potential of the site is likely to be high. At the planning
application stage, the layout and design of the sife would need
0 o give great weight to conserving the significance of these
g heritage assets and their setting in order fo minimise harm.”
D
n5C41 Existing ID: 395940 | Improve clarity. Amend paragraph to read: Minor
Le}] Paragraph | Rep: 2967,
= 5.56 2968, 2969| Insert additional wording to address | “Proposals would need to provide for a high quality, sustainable
concerns raised by the Environment| development that enhances a key gateway approach to the town,
Agency, highlighting the need to whilst protecting the integrity of Morth Bradley as a village. In
address flood risk and drainage for | addition. any subseguent planning application will need to be
all development sites. sunnnmd br a F.'oad Risk Assessment frm:nmmﬂng an
§55E3 Qe ed effecis
fehens.‘v\e dral e stra to he.' .‘nform mstfers such
as layout and design.”

Page 300



Response number: 12
Page 7 of 10

3. H2.2- Land off the A363 at White Horse Business Park, Trowbridge

31 In a similar vein to the proposed Southwick Court site, the proposed allocation
H2.2 presents a challenge in terms of managing the risk of harm to the
significance of heritage assets and their respective settings. The HIA
assesses such matters in a robust manner. Five heritage assets are identified
as being sensitive to change and would potentially be affected if development
proceeds:

. Baptist burial ground — Grade Il listed gateway and perimeter walls
(curtilage listed);

. Kings Farmhouse — Grade |l listed building and associated agricultural
connections;

. Willow Grove — Grade |l listed building and associated agricultural
connections;

. Little Common Farm — non-designated, but closely related in
agriculiural terms to neighbouring farmsteads; and

. Manor Farm — Grade |l listed building to the south of proposed site
with potential for development to lead to setting changes

3.2 The HIA considers that the current landscape structure of relatively large
fields enclosed by hedgerows would offer few easy options for mitigating harm
to these heritage assets. However, the assessment concludes that
development of whole allocation would result in less than substantial harm to
the four designated heritage assets. That said, the level of change that would
be intreduced by development proceeding would be significant and thereby
capable of ercding the legibility of the relatively intact post-medieval
agricultural landscape, which in turn informs the character of North Bradley.

3.3 As the designated assets are essentially clustered in the south-eastern half of
the site, the report considers that development should be concentrated in the
north-east end of the site. Such an approach would help conserve the
relationships between the local farmsteads and still deliver a reasonable
developable area.

3.4 Moreowver, and as outlined in the draft WHSAP, with the application of
appropriate urban design measures, including significant bolstering of existing
green infrastructure to help support protected bat species, a sensitively
planned development could minimise harm to the significance of heritage
assets and character of North Bradley village.

3.5 In addition, development would likely deliver significant public benefits (e.g.
the delivery of housing locally, a boost to affordable housing, habitat creation,
generation of Community Infrastructure Levy etc) capable of satisfying the test
set out in paragraph 134 of the Framework and thereby significantly outweigh
the less than substantial harm to heritage assets.

Comments

1 PC39 is such an extensive increase in numbers that it should go out again to consultation.
2 Discussions should take place with North Bradley Parish Council to reach a compromise
that will allow the North Bradley Neighbourhood Plan to proceed with its ambition to leave a
green landscape gap between North Bradley village and the WHBP.

3 The redevelopment of the ex-Virgin car park (brown site) should be promoted to replace
the use of the fields (green site).Flats could be considered with a high density to match the
proposed change of use from office to residential.

4 The parish Council clearly knows the area well, possibly better than the officers and
consultants who only make site visits. The Parish Council’s expertise should be used.
5 Para 3.3 should be explained in terms of a plan, rather than just words.

Page 301



Ecology

Comments

2232

234

235

Response number: 12
Page 8 of 10

In terms of addressing in-combination effects, Natural England agrees that a
strategic approach is capable of addressing residual effects. With regard to this,
significant progress is being made with the Trowbridge Recreation Management
Mitigation Strategy, now confirmed as the Trowbridge Bat Mitigation Strategy
(TEMS). A specialist consultancy has been engaged and is working to progress the
following:

= A map showing zones where development would have a high or medium risk of
adverse effects for features of the bats SAC (i.e. greater horseshoe, lesser
horseshoe and Bechstein's bats) and where recreational pressure is likely to
lead to in-combination effects

= Standards for assessing developer proposals to retain, protect, buffer and
maintain key bat habitats within application sites

= Principles for mitigating loss of habitat on greenfield sites, including an offsetting
metric to determine size and quality of offset habitats to be created within
allocations, and if necessary offsite

+ Measures for offsetting effects of recreational pressure, taking into consideration
latent capacity at existing non-woodland recreational sites and standards for new
open spaces created within allocations

= An implementation plan for long term management and oversight amangements
for measures being implemented off site

The strategy will be sufficiently advanced during the examination to allow the Council
to demonstrate that the plan is sound and will have no adverse effects on the SAC.

In light of submissions from prospective developers to increase housing density and
the government’s ambition to make the best use of development land, the Council
has tested the capacity of the allocations to accept further housing. As a result,
housing at the following allocations in Trowbridge has been increased.

Table 1: Proposed capacity at site allocations

Site Ref | Site Name Current Proposed capacity

proposed
capacity Approximate number

of dwellings

H2.1 Elm Growe Farmmn, 200 250
Trowbridge

H2.2 Land off A363 at White 150 225
Horse Business Park,
Trowbridge

H2.3 Elizabeth way, Trowbridge 205 355

H2.5 Upper Studley, Trowbridge | 20 45

1 The Plan is clearly premature. It is anticipating a suitable Mitigation Strategy but this
presumably will be subject to consultation and a suitable result is not ensured. For example, the
effects of the plan on the hedgehog population in the Wiltshire Council area has not been

considered.

Page 302



Response number: 12

Heritage

6. Considerations

6.1 The degree of harm to the significance of heritage assets brought about by
developing each of the six sites appraised through the HIA is considered to be
less than substantial. However, in the case of the four sites detailed above,
the scale of likely harm associated with such development would nonetheless
be of a more severe nature. In the light of this evidence consideration needs
to be given to how the Council proceeds.

6.2 One option would be to bolster the policy conzsiderations already set out in the
draft WHSAP through a set of proposed changes that will then be considered
through the independent Examination process. A second option would be to
simply recommend to the appointed Inspector that the Council wishes to
remove the proposed allocations in guestion on heritage grounds alone and
thereby not consider the benefits that would undoubtedly accrue from
development.

6.3 If the four proposed site allocations are recommended for removal prior to the
examination, the net effect will be to weaken the draft WHSAP and thereby
undermine one of its purposes, namely — the timely delivery of housing to
maintain local supply. In this circumstance, the Council will likely need to
provide contingency measures to address the loss of housing.

6.4 Whilst a case could be made to recommend the deletion of all four sites, a
counter case will undoubtedly be made by the proponents of these sites. In
this context, the HIA is a helpful piece of work in terms of furthering our
understanding of heritage constraints. Indeed, based on the evidence
gathered to date through the site assessment process, including that provided
by the proponents of the sites through representations, the level of harm to
the significance of hentage sites that may result through development
proceeding is recognised as being a significant concern.

6.5 Howewver, it is important to note that the assessments for all six sites
essentially concludes that the potential scale of harm that would be generated

because of development proceeding would be |ess than substantigl.
Therefore, the advice set out in paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy

Framework {the Framework') would be engaged.

Page 9 of 10

Comments

6.6 As defined by paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework,

where a proposed development would lead to less than substantial ham to
the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of development proceeding.

1 Whether the proposals are considered less than substantial depends on the viewpoint. To
an authority anxious to boost housing numbers “less than substantial” is satisfactory. However,
local residents might well argue that the effect will be very substantial. Surely it is the
viewpoint of the local resident who lives with the situation day after day rather than the
consultant who might spend an hour or less on site which should take precedent.?

Comments

Page 303



Response number: 12
Page 10 of 10

Road Conditions

Warmlnstelr

PC53 New ID: 903251 Improve clarity. Add new paragraph under 5.87 as follows: Minor
paragraph | Rep: 2396
under 5.87 Highways England has raised that "
there may be cumulative impacts on| indirect cumulative impacts on the A35."
the A36 arising from proposed
housing allocations at Warminster
and this requires consideration.
Prhd Paranranh | I 7ORAG1] In resnnnse tn comments from Amend naranranh 5 BT as follows: Minnr
Comments
1 Highways England has commented that there could be a cumulative impact of traffic

increase on A36. There does not appear to be any similar comment from the Highways section of
Wiltshire Council on the effects of traffic generated by EIm Park Farm and the A363 WHBP
development on A363 and other roads in the Trowbridge network. Is the Council not interested
in potential worsening of congestion along Bradley Road?

Page 304



Response number: 13

Page 1 of 1
From: I
To: Spatial Planning Policy
Subject: The Farmyard on the draft Wiltshire housing allocation list at Laverstock and Ford Salisbury *Printed™
Date: 08 June 2018 08:10:04

Dear Sir or Madam,
| am writing in connection with this proposed development over which consultation ends on

June 11t 2018.

| wish to object most strongly to the possibility that this planned development should have any
access or egress onto Roman Road (Ford Lane).

The clue is in the name of the road from Old Sarum through Ford. | suspect the most recent
development of Roman Road took place just before the last Romans left to return to Italy. Itis a
rural lane already heavily used and abused by modern traffic with traffic volume and speeding
through Ford now at almost critical level. The lane has several accesses already and has very
narrow areas, poor forward visibility, sharp bends and humpback bridges amongst other features
unsuited for even existing traffic volumes. With the future prospect of access to this lane from
wished for development on the Old Sarum airfield this narrow rural lane is really quite unsuited
for a large volume of modern traffic as all traffic has to funnel through the hamlet of Ford. Ford
Lane is much used by pedestrians, horse traffic and cyclists for which physically it is most suited.
Because of its narrowness and parlous conditions with much of the road edges destroyed with
abundant potholes, the route really cannot be upgraded for heavier traffic. Already in times of
problems on the A30 and A345 the lane is heavily used as a relief route in times of stress.

If this development is approved, all its ramifications should be contained in the already heavily
developed Bishopdown Farm and particularly Neal Close where access to this housing is best
afforded.

I should be most grateful if this objection could be recorded.

Yours faithfully,

Page 305



Response number: 14
Page 1 of 10

Wiltshire Cabinet Meeting 15" May 2018.

Agenda Item 7. Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation.

My name is_. | am, with three other family members, the freeholder of

SHLAA site 3268 known as: Land, The Spring, Market Lavington within housing papers.

| am attending this morning’s meeting to specifically answer the Wiltshire Conclusion that
this land is inappropriate for small scale residential development. | heard about the Cabinet
meeting on Saturday afternoon; | apologise in advance for a hastily made submission.

Within the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocation Plan, Sustainability Appraisal Report the land at
P 363 is regarded as More Sustainable with other sites over Wiltshire but is excluded from
the Assessment of Policies at P 365 which has a note at the head of the schedule saying that
certain sites have been chosen from the schedule above it.

| have to explain that, as a policy of complete support in our Neighbourhood Plan
Committee and our Parish Council, we have chosen to offer our field to this plan and have
only been in touch with Wiltshire to answer questions when they have arisen from within
public documents. If an approach to the County would be welcome | would like to provide
further and better information from existing sources and demonstrate sustainability benefit
in relation to our land.

In submitting this land to the village for inclusion within the Neighbourhood Plan we have
made it clear that we want to provide old peoples’ dwellings as to part of the development
objects, ideally as Affordable Homes; this village is a working community therefore
containing middle aged and elderly inhabitants, many of whom are not well off.

Our land is the nearest to the retail centre of the village of all the sites that have reached
the later stages of the selection process yet geographically the best by far in having
unimpeded road links from the parish. Development of the site will cause virtually no
additional congestion on The High Street; unlike other sites proposed it is within walking
distance.

Our site only extends to 1 Hectare and meets the public desire for the Neighbourhood Plan
to provide housing in small sites rather than to permit Fiddington to enlarge by perhaps 40%
which large size does not settle well in a rural setting where access to modern recreation
opportunities and integration into the small community are both difficult.

| have to answer the Wiltshire Conclusion summary in regard to three matters;

1. Site storm water drainage. | have with me a copy of the letter prepared by Cole
Easdon, our hydrological consultants, provided in September 2017 to Wiltshire in
response to the request for submissions on last year’s housing document which
demonstrates completely that the perceived ‘surface water flooding’ is so easily

Page 306



Response number: 14
Page 2 of 10

dealt with that it just is not a major issue. In addition the natural falls can readily be
returned as of right to completely remove any ponding in the field caused by a
modern embankment which carries a school road at the Western end.

2. This site substantially lies below the level of the B3098 public highway by virtue of
the clay abstraction from the land a couple of centuries ago and so buildings upon it
would be, rather surprisingly, unobtrusive. Furthermore the wood and wild strip
along the Southern boundary screens the land from the scarp of Salisbury Plain. The
land quality is poor due to previous disturbance, the area does not contribute to the
surroundings owing to its contouring yet provides the opportunity for a very discreet
residential scheme.

3. Our absolute commitment to the village is that most people will be pleased with the
work we do. The nature of the position encourages ready integration with the
historic environment. Our site is not on the far edge of the developed land with
other post war build; we understand that we should use our responsibility to
enhance our rural village.

N < Vo 2015

Page 307



Response number: 14
Page 3 of 10

A response to the Consideration of Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations
Development Plan Presented to Cabinet on 15 May 2018.

SHLAA Site 3268 The Long Field, The Spring, Market Lavington.

| was asked by Clir T.Sturgis on the 15 May at Cabinet to amplify my remarks for the Spatial

Planning Team who are seeing_ and myself,-
I it I he VD of Feltham Properties on the 20" June. We are very

grateful for the offer of discussion and too for the help received in arranging the meeting.

For purposes of recap and convenience | attach to this response to the Plan which is to be
with Wiltshire council on the 11" June a record of my remarks on the 15" May. | also have
used a Wiltshire plan for purposes of easy plot identification; the SHLAA numbers are two
paragraphs down.

| have to ask forgiveness for the length of this submission however | have two worries to
overcome which really can only be achieved by detailed reference to the Housing Site
Allocation Plan.

Arising from the Devizes Community Area Remainder Sustainability report at P 4657 SHLAA
3268 reached equal assessment standing with other alternative development proposals at
Market Lavington. This land became an Omission Site and has been further assessed under
Stage 4a Site Landscape Assessment. | have not seen the equivalent assessments which
have no doubt been completed for SHLAA 1089, 2055, 530, 3443 which are other Market
Lavington locations.

PART ONE

In first presenting this land to the village of Market Lavington for proposed development we
envisaged a slightly quirky proposal which was amended but which very much holds to the
policy of providing homes which complement our two very large estates at Fiddington,
mainly built for the MoD in the 1960’s and Grove Farm built in the 1980’s/90’s

Since 1949 the population increase has been from 950 people to some 2,250 today. This
remarkable growth at a rural parish has been welcome for a great number of reasons not
least the sustainability of services in the village and the employment provided.

This expansion should continue because we provide a marginally different way of life to
urban living but it has to be created in as friendly way as possible so that new residents
reach out and use those things that this particular community has to offer. This paragraph
can be tendered in relation to any group of dwellings but we are a Rural Centre where the
outlook from the community needs to be extrovert, Can Do and accommodating. | am
absolutely sure that is what Market Lavington and also Wiltshire Council are aiming for.

Page 308



Response number: 14
Page 4 of 10

A plan Showing the built area of Market Lavington parish. SHLAA sites are coloured Yellow.

The B 3098 runs nearly due West from the cross roads at the village centre and SHLAA 3268
fronts onto the road on the South side.

Wiltshire Council: Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan: Sustainability Appraisal Report

HDEL‘LS{EBG AN
Fhm v

_ SR
or Hou?e’.':):\.\ Sl
Voods | % iz

Ui % S R N P / Q
% LAy, > AP % ey
& D NS NG

SHUAR wies ke
] tewara a Stage 3
aizaismant

Figure 7.8. Market Lavington

Atk?ns Page 4658 148

Page 309



Response number: 14
Page 5 of 10

| am sorry but the choices made under the Allocations Plan have no regard to this aspect of
Town & Country Planning and make a horrible mistake in seeking to extend onto the foot
slopes of The Plain an estate which was first conceived to house families who had a
traditional lifestyle linked to a military profession which did not need integration with the
local community. Adding to the estate at a modern density two more developments is bad
for existing occupiers because the ‘urban’ boundaries grow and is worse for new people
popped between cereal cropping and deeply established housing estate living

There are so many reasons why placing new housing behind existing single use development
would normally be considered bad policy that | will not elaborate save to remind about 19"
C. development in the wool and cotton towns or 20" C. housing in London as T & C P policy
struggled into existence.

The Grove Farm estate is far more successful because its’ position belongs with the village
and there are naturally good road and footpath communications running through it.

The Market Lavington people understand all this which, | expect, is why they asked for small
development sites yet the Allocation Plan ignores this intention choosing an alternative to
that in the Neighbourhood Plan documentation.

The guidelines used in the preparation of the Housing Allocation Plan take a very valid
component of Planning expertise and use it beyond its appropriate place within the way
that the environment should be evaluated.

Planning is about land and Planning is about people; not just the residents of newly created
homes but also, metaphorically, the people who live next door already. Present Planning
thinking puts extraordinary weight on the technical suitability of land for its change of use —
you understand — view from footpaths nature of the sub-soil, colour of the bricks, shelter
belts, density, nature matters; the land must pass these tests before its suitability for human
occupation is considered; even worse if the land meets the technical standards, well yes,
humans will be safe and happy. Everyone understands the cost of this regulation, targets led
process, is mental and physical health problems, social insecurity.

| have explained above why Wiltshire and Market Lavington have not quite seen eye to eye
on the future of the parish. The centre needs to be stronger, for example improved parking,
before a distant estate expansion is encouraged.

I have always thought the Southcliffe scheme is sensible because of the land use to the
South but by my own argument the site should be rejected as contributing little to the
village but just helping to meet County housing requirement alone.

Our land lying immediately adjacent to the 19" C. built community is overlooked by the
modern Community Hall, St Mary’s Church with the Old School (a PCC owned facility). Even
the Surgery at the other end of the village is less than 1 Km away, the shops and The Green

Page 310



Response number: 14
Page 6 of 10

Dragon, serving food, are 500 m distant. Time and again one hears how fortunate one is to
live in Market Lavington.

PART TWO

| have to say that The Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan has not incorporated to the
proper extent at all the People side of Planning. There is lengthy reference to factors which
are relevant but the application to SHLAA sites | have not seen.

| would be grateful please if you would look at the Wiltshire Site Allocation Plan
presentation page 6601 Stage 4a Site Landscape Assessment by Wiltshire Council and The
Environment Partnership.

It is unfortunate that the outside firm chosen to make this Landscape Assessment for
inclusion within the Allocation Plan have a conflict of interest as | am advised, not over the
whole of the County but at Market Lavington, because The Environment Partnership have
Persimmon as their clients as well as Wiltshire Council. In a sector where the choice of
expert is limited and where there are a multitude of interests a clash is inevitable
somewhere; the interest just has to be notified in the relevant document at the point where
the conflict occurs. To conceal the conflict is a serious duplicity and unworthy of the
organisation.

Discovering this matter as | finished preparing this submission | have looked again at their
work and better understand.

| find now that | have to make detailed remarks on the Stage 4a Site Landscape Assessment
Paper. This is an entirely different aspect of the Town and Country Planners brief requiring a
balanced judgement with the duties of Planning work outlined above. In this instance the
investigation is deliberately limited to look at the interaction at present between SHLAA
3268 and both the countryside and the built environment alone. The study seeks to
measure and report but in the end is based on an entirely empirical opinion on a slippery set
of features.

| refer to the schedule in this Advice at P10. | seek to answer and comment on the report’s
findings. | must advise that it would be best to read my comments please with the questions
and answers printed in the Allocations Plan.

Page 311



Response number: 14
Page 7 of 10

Element

Key features of landscape character area

Market Lavington is at the extreme Western end of the Pewsey Vale and the village is
dominated by the scarp of Salisbury Plain, there is no valley at Market Lavington.

The vale is a very high quality farming area. The Avon rising at Rushall, properly in the Vale,
runs to Salisbury but our brook resulting mainly from the flow from the Salisbury Plain
aquifer is part of the Avon catchment to Bristol.

Site Description

This land lies relatively wet all year because the natural drainage was badly damaged when
the causeway, carrying the access road to Lavington School playing field lying directly South
of the Western end of SHLAA 3268, was made 40 years ago. The stream and the drain
inverts were installed at the wrong levels. | have rights to rectify when required.

The surface of this paddock was taken a couple of centuries ago for its clay mostly at the
Western end of the field. Top soil depth is minimal. Housing referred to as adjacent is on
and above the North side of the B3098 comprising one late 20" C, house and six of pre-war
construction. There are two cottages at the roundabout. To the immediate South of the land
at the Western end is the School playing field and to the South East, next to the playing field
is a single large arable field, the Rec used to be there. The bungalows fronting onto the B
3098 are about 20 meters from the site.

The strip of trees and less good scrub on the South side of the stream belongs with the field
the whole extending to 1.1 Ha; we intend that management of the scrub and woodland for
natural benefit will devolve onto the land owners jointly in the fullness of time when
development is compete. Expert guidance has already been initiated and Planning direction
will be desirable.

Landscape Character

‘Attactiveness’

The land cannot be said to be ‘attractive’; it is burdened with rushes and presently lies cold
and wet because of the clay abstraction and because of the height of drainage inverts.

Consistency

The land is entirely inconsistent with either the build environment on three sides or with the
Chalk based arable land on the South side of the riparian strip. The reasons are above.

Page 312



Response number: 14
Page 8 of 10

Settlement Edge

‘Some features’ are said to contribute to the present settlement setting. The only one |
would subscribe to is the woodland strip which will be an important aspect of any built
development.

Remoteness

| doubt if house frontagers onto the B 3098 would regard the road as ‘peaceful’. | believe
that there are traffic count results for the centre of the village. How can a location with a
well used highway on one side, an access road and playing field to the West and South and
more housing with the Community hall to the East be regarded as peaceful? Seclusion
perhaps.

Evaluation

The houses fronting onto the South side of the B 3098 do not ‘nestle behind mature
riparian vegetation’ this is simply wrong. The unfortunately dominant Shires Close group are
on made up higher ground arising from the earlier garage land use which was single storey.
No other buildings are near riparian growth.

The B 3098 (The Spring) Northern frontage from the Market Lavington Sign is either
developed as school space or is in residential use to the roundabout under the Community
Hall. On the South side, the frontage is completely developed save for the subject site which
occupies about 1/3" of the total length.

This land has been spoiled in the past and cannot be regarded as making a quality
contribution to the street scene or to the land running up to The Ridgeway. It is not peaceful
meaning calm or tranquil because of the adjacent human influences.

Views

Visual Prominence

The land is low lying and inconspicuous.
Mitigation

Riparian vegetation is not characteristic of the local landscape. The only length that exists in
the parish is within this ownership and the strip South of Shires Close. There is huge
potential for Mitigation by the use of high quality design, the care of the stream and the
deep, sympathetic management of trees and scrub with complementary planting. | would
expect and hope that this important site adjacent the village centre should be regarded as a

Page 313



Response number: 14
Page 9 of 10

21° C. contribution to the village scene just as the pre-war 20" C. development does
opposite.

Could I bring to your attention our own development at 25 The Spring as one way to
minimise the influence of development on surroundings.

Impact Assessment

Overall magnitude

Because of the land levels, the linear nature of the site and the natural background on the
South side, the built area can be so easily be broken up, actually at no great loss of density
or interference with surroundings. There is a fall of 3 m East to West from 81 m max AOD to
78 m min AOD.

Description of Impacts

This area_is entirely at odds with all the various degrees of land use in the vicinity.

The benefit of the scheme will add greatly to the built environment. The whole team are
committed to this within the special context of Market Lavington. There can be no
assumption that completed residential housing will be other than of good architectural
worth and a pleasing aspect of the village.

From where are views adversely affected? The field cannot be seen from the south; parts
are glimpsed at from near the church and a small area is visible from The Community Hall.

This land benefits from a pavement along its length to protect pedestrians within the village
from traffic. This village facility is the best place from which to look at the field and there is
bus stop.

Private Views

The developed land is likely to be seen from the housing opposite along the north frontage
of The Spring B 3098 but of course these forceful pre-war buildings stand above road and
field levels as indeed do the well elevated units at The Ham.

There might be thought to be a special standard relating to small scale development such as
ours and alternatively day to day applications. My own single storey extension at 25 The
Spring received permission notwithstanding adverse comment from two owners North of
The Spring opposite whereas the report regards the supposed detriment to views to house
opposite the land as ‘highly adverse’ where they are higher and further from the site.

There are no views from the Shires Close development save via a severely oblique angle at
the South eaves of the property adjacent the site; the other houses have a North/South

Page 314



Response number: 14
Page 10 of 10

aspect, gardens are screened. Trees within the relevant end garden have just been lopped
so that the aspect from the upper floor Westwards will minimally overlook the proposed
development of which the owners are aware. The assessment is badly inaccurate.

Regarding the effect on the frontage development West of the site | do of course as
indicated above have personal knowledge of this single building and its East facing gable
window. If ever there was a remark that causes worry as to the guidance of the person
responsible for the work, this is it. The description of ‘Medium Adverse’ is not well judged.

The reference to property at The Ham, one of the roads forming part of the Grove Farm
estate, to the effect that a view is now a rural view to be spoiled is wrong because houses
on the same Northern side of The Spring are seen in the foreground from the two houses
and the view, | would judge from highway access only, extends to Salisbury Plain over our
ground. Housing will be seen mid distance.

Mitigation and capacity to accept change.

| have to say that this summary is a wrongly judged assessment of the site partly because of
Clay extraction workings on the land but also because of the setting within the village. | am
sceptical of the ability of the report authors to balance the value of a view before and after
development very especially when the site lies below all the surrounding land. The loss of
open, wet grass and rushes is an unfortunate mistake; this is rough, ugly grazing not land |
am sorry to say that will fatten lamb. It is no advertisement for the Pewsey Vale.

Most developers abandon sites so that their contribution to the surroundings is no more
than an eyesore. | could have done likewise and what a glorious mess would have resulted
in a couple of years.

10" June 2018.

Page 315



MNarA “J : CZ f“'& D Resppnse Iaumber: 15 Page 1 of 5¢
Mead w /)Qa«««_a' By fond
Ecotamene MJ’P‘M P
: flasecry~  [RECEIVED
e s sy 08 JUN 2018

LD Rlliie | SAWFIN. ol tnchutindecdi e

(DWWLMLM,
o €Ol Dl Proiines Lok Alecatives [lnr aril
Hoineak o f%ggggﬁw 4/‘)0&:&%%.7%%#

- 3W M%Wa Eo 2ev aa o €20
U«E&M%Tw (B Uy 22§, (,A_Qa,t’wa Co eQuey Pk
R Cotweel &ML MW oA cesiihe. b
/vggww\u o Lo \Jw-f.(,t Plar. cen o *21“"" Leacz.yw,t
M*Mo—ﬁw s Q f 9 .....gmtwe_éaiu
a 2w i mwgﬂjm( ¢ W@ACDU%,/')

d/««)—(.q-—
Canc Bt - ee Foeo Ioaae. we,@’,e,& &

&mw—mwﬂ—”ﬁmjks j/t'e.,u.&nall-“fou"'
(




Response number: 15 Page 2 of 5
fumtle. of Loty o b phatbbulion ey bl o parl
| 22 oA ..,«;’s bt el Lo aead m\‘!w«%w
zr : q codclevee M L M‘Qe‘-”. ~
WW' ‘EI)—O“'“’U"" " .
o Mmecvnrmensnie 3 .,ewlwe—(;u'-—‘*ﬁ—‘-**-ﬁ-“*’@“?a

5 3 nmeepk ok o conplont aspradl Corenasne
a/{/e*tw. ] Ay wwu&mww
4 b} ——g—= e
M@M@%\(%Mawc&w-cw
W%xw ol %QQQM>J
Mated v wnbivn ok W Cile ok o Mok Lo cok

J « s
LAl b, @00 " Pl Sfecars o whasice & 06
N d ) ) :
Catisnerl on Ll dolhlo el ooy € Yele Aloentiend
/&“'63 W&M%SJ%@ - 0 ¢l

WW% “Vrel-@;” o) o 4 j 0 )
Ll %4W,M w-o«-..QJLq.m'ﬁ-Qc-\ Lo Qo € ovecrek
W /’M J“MV » 9]

w. e |
N2 Lfe—Q"T‘es—ewt toed H & .,peg....“._-a, Efces ae weeld
W o "Q‘z"g**j“l b wﬁ'@&mr&vwﬂ-«ﬂéﬂ




www‘,h%& : T L;

. d ) - A

W e o Afacad e
o e T \‘J -
y: T vy g C Lo 0o peBllc

A—Qs.a-\):-ae“. &,Tm s I & 3 QaSu:,C‘Qa.BmgtM«a’
Page_s:ﬂ%l&s : 4




Response number: 15 Page 4 of 5
A-A-—(fut werxE G_&h,c,(swm(w: Lo Qa
clicolol ol (Rats uw |
Qs J WWWML%MU%MMqu
o dovellopecs aloul o ponaidble cQocna ko Ste (3
%mw&a‘“’n‘*’a‘“— &Q,MW

Las wet 2 '
Q’“—*»WQ_.@M C:‘ ~E._,\_%
o T <

: ( s cﬂ.cc.(%.a.c.a ; G.—.Qz.z el
Lo keleol | O “ Qo po b : 2l
WW&LG%M R ke ACO 94—

» "2 wl o [Pt o 4fm At
w‘:«-a s *kam‘j&"
porsoti 1dns (e Aite € Qudons tge Conenc
,Q.M%‘-WM tBa. =~ f&“',LM_




Response number 15 Page5o0of5
ailiie A v o R&Batiila Qo wretd @y tisalast
&y M

i Aelle . dwisian coation o
el & w%%mwbmm

M'ﬂ MMMLMB D%(-Qu,éu‘-«u

WMM&&“/QQA——‘J-

(=

ol

'D%/QM«.;. /g_.,bh_...g‘ o Ael ool o Ly
gy Aol 4 “—ev—'-&&—wvv@& e Qooribt s

Contos o b oo oo Mm»«’pﬂnw&w
M&“WW&""
@MWEQQ,*&M%MQ%

‘;&;&u-— dopabitde b 000 Loforn e Oimfl 2o

wé—e—ww

Q_—*qg—u
Wa,t‘,w i J - ) o :




Response number: 16
Page 1 of 2

Comments on Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Plan

from I S2'isbury (Consultation ID )

General Points

The time allowed for consultation (from 15/5/2018 Cabinet meeting to 11/6/2018 consultation
closure) is very short, particularly given that nearly 100 documents are being submitted to the
Council meeting on 10/7/2018. The consultation does not appear to have been flagged up on
Wiltshire Council’s Consultation Portal, nor on the existing webpages which relate to Housing Site
allocations.

The responses given in Appendix M to the representations received need further work and
clarification. Grouping the representations together and then providing a response seems to have
resulted in key points which have been raised being overlooked. As an example, in Part 29 on
‘Implementation and Monitoring’ the point has been raised that Annual Monitoring Reports have
not been produced: these are needed to monitor the effectiveness of the Core Strategy. This point
is recorded in para 21.134. However the ‘Council’s response to the themes/issues raised [para
21.136] does not address this point.

Similarly, the comment (no. 785) regarding the lack of a Green Infrastructure strategy has been
combined with another 132 comments on a variety of topics (Table 21.1). The Council’s response to
the issues raised, from para 21.18 — 21.23, makes no reference to the failure to produce this
document, and the proposed changes are ‘no changes proposed’. This is not an adequate response
to the concerns which have been raised.

Detailed comments on changes

Change Ref No. Comments

PC15/PC16 It is unclear why the entirety of the Churchfields site is being deferred to
‘beyond 2026" when self-contained parts of this site are currently vacant.
Specifically, the Engine Shed site, to the north of Lower Road, is currently
available for redevelopment: in 2014 this site was earmarked for imminent
redevelopment of a Custody suite for the Wiltshire Police. Nothing came of that
particular redevelopment, but it did transpire that the site was owned by
Wiltshire Council which should make sale and development relatively easy.

The environmental value of this land is still to be properly assessed, but the use
of the Engine Shed site would comply with NPPF policies to promote the use of
brownfield site [NPPF Para 111: Planning policies and decisions should
encourage the effective use of land by re-using land that has been previously
developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental value. ]

Since the Engine Shed site is so convenient for the railway station and also for
the City Centre and other amenities it would be a prime candidate for a high-
density development which is particularly encouraged in the current revisions of
the NPPF. [NPPF Draft text for consultation, March 2018, paras 122-123]

PC74 At the time of writing these comments (6/6/2017) the Salisbury Transport
Strategy refresh is not completed. The 3 May 2018 document submitted with
the other documents is labelled as ‘Draft Salisbury Transport Strategy Refresh’.
A number of comments have been raised in respect of the draft Salisbury
Transport Strategy, including the lack of metrics which can be used to measure
success or otherwise of the transport interventions proposed. It will be

Page 321



Response number: 16
Page 2 of 2

necessary to have the final version of the Salisbury Transport Strategy available
to see whether these have been addressed.

The right is reserved to make further comments both on the changes proposed and the manner in
which representations to date have been dealt with when there is an appropriate opportunity for

the public to do so, with sufficient time being allowed for documents to be read and comments to
be made.

Page 322



Response number: 17

Page 1 of 2
From: I
To: Spatial Planning Policy
ce:
Subject: Schedule of Proposed Changes to the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Pre-submission Draft Plan (May
2018) - PC30 *Printed HC*
Date: 11 June 2018 11:50:19

Dear Sirs — on behalf of the Landowners (| | | | ) ¢ the Developer (R
) of the Long Field, Market Lavington (SHLAA Site 3268), we write in response to the
Schedule of Proposed Changes to the Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Pre-submission Draft Plan
(May 2018) (the Draft Plan). These Representations should be read in conjunction with our
Representations submitted at the Pre-sub submission draft Stage (15th September 2017).

The Proposed Changes provided the Council with an opportunity to address the fundamental conflict
between the draft Market Lavington Neighbourhood Plan (NP) and the Draft Plan, a conflict that we
had drawn attention to in our pre-submission representations. That conflict has been amplified since
the Pre-submission consultation because of the considerable progress that the NP has made and the
delay in progressing the Draft Plan. The conflict is now very serious and if not resolved will fatally
undermine the NP — destroying that principle of the primacy of Neighbourhood Planning (a principle
that the Draft Plan purports to espouse). The failure of the Proposed Changes to address this conflict
(by holding any additional allocations at Market Lavington in reserve (to be released only should the
NP fail to delivery an adequate level of housing) as we had proposed; or otherwise) means that the
Draft Plan remains unsound.

In relation to the Proposed Changes, we object to the proposed increase in the size of Housing Site
Allocation H1.2 (Underhill Nursery) (PC30) for the following reasons:

1. The pre-submission draft plan (July 2017) proposed that the Underhill Nursery site allocation
should accommodate 50 dwellings (Policy H1). The Plan at Annex A of the Draft Plan shows
that the Proposed Change (PC30) increases the size of the allocated site area by about 50% -
and yet Table 4.4 (at Paragraph 4.28) still indicates that the allocation will accommodate
approximately 50 dwellings. That is clearly non sensical. The Proposed Change will increase
the capacity of the site — to accommodate at least 75 dwellings.

2. The increase in the size of this proposed allocation is directly contrary to the clearly expressed
views of the Community; namely that further growth at Market Lavington should be
accommodated in a few small sites dispersed around the village, rather than concentrated on
a single large site. Increasing the size of the Underhill Nursery Allocation will also exasperate
further the environmental impact that will be caused by an urban extension in this area (a
level of impact that the site selection process has failed to properly assess). In particular, in
our opinion the larger site will result in a “high to medium adverse” landscape and visual
impact. We note that the Stage 4a Site Landscape Assessment (June 2017) did not assess the
impact of developing the larger site that is now proposed. The larger site will also result in
greater traffic impact on the village centre.

3. We also believe that the revised proposed site access (now to be achieved by demolishing one
half of a pair of semi detached dwellings fronting on to Stirling Road) will have a severe and
unacceptable impact on the residential amenity of the retained dwellings on either side. The
proposed change to the Draft Plan, to provide an alternative access, is a clear
acknowledgement that the site cannot be satisfactorily accessed from Fiddington Hill (as had
been originally proposal). Whilst the revised access may be acceptable in terms of highway
engineering, it would have an unacceptable impact on neighbouring dwellings. The conclusion
is therefore clear — a satisfactory access cannot be provided to the Underhill Nursery site.

4. We assume that the Council is satisfied that this site is deliverable (ie is achievable and
available now) with the revised access arrangement (notwithstanding our comments above).

Please acknowledge receipt of these Representations.

Page 323



Regards

Director

PRO VISION

PLANNING | ARCHITECTURE | URBAN DESIGN

GROSVENOR COURT, AMPFIELD HILL, AMPFIELD, ROMSEY, HANTS SO51 9BD
2 OLD BATH ROAD, NEWBURY, BERKSHIRE, RG14 1QL

WWW.Pro-vision.co.uk

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are privileged and confidential (within the meaning of applicable law) and are
intended solely for the use of the individual to whom they are addressed. Unauthorised dissemination, distribution, publication
or copying of this e-mail is prohibited. If you received this e-mail in error, please notify admin@pro-vision.co.uk or telephone
01794 368 698 and delete it from your system. Whilst every endeavour is taken to ensure that our e-mails do not contain
viruses, no liability can be accepted and the recipient should use their own virus checking software.

PV PROJECTS LTD - UK Registered Office -Grosvenor Court, Ampfield Hill, Ampfield, Romsey, Hant. SO51 9BD. Reg No. 3296321

Page 324

Response number: 17
Page 2 of 2



Response number: 18
Page 1 of 2

Planning Officer

Development Services
Wiltshire Council

County Hall _
Bythesea Road
Trowbridge Reference ||| GG
Wiltshire

BA14 8JN

Date: 13" April, 2018

oear I

Cleeve House, Vicarage Lane, Upavon - Proposed additional dwelling.
| am writing in response to your letter of 28th March.

| note your comments concerning the site and that it may have been segregated at some unspecified
point in the past. As far as we are aware that is not in recent history and does not surely bear any
relevance in this issue. The review of the settlement boundary needs to be urgently reconsidered to
include Vicarage Lane; it is illogical that it is not. Vicarage Lane is part of Upavon village, and has clearly
been part of the village for in excess of 100 years. We, along with other residents on Vicarage Lane pay
taxes to the Council, including the Parish Council tax. We have never been aware of any consultation by
Wiltshire Council of the settlement boundaries or we would have written in. The omission of Vicarage
Lane from the settlement boundary is a serious omission by the Council and must surely be rectified. If
you are able to raise these concerns with your Local Plan team that would be very much appreciated.

You refer to the absence of a housing needs assessment, though I'm sure you will appreciate that as a
private resident we would not have the resources to commission such an assessment, however, you are
fully aware that we have been directly approached by an elderly resident who has a need for suitable
accommodation in the village, hence us making this enquiry to you. We are prepared to agree to a
mechanism within the S106 agreement that the property will only be occupied by someone over the age
of fifty five. The buyer has agreed to such a limitation.

| cannot agree with the comment that the proposals would extend development along Vicarage Lane as
both Cleeve House and Stable Cottage are located farther along the Lane and you have already
observed that a building would have limited visual impact and your Conservation Officer has concluded it

Page 325



Response number: 18

Page 2 of 2
Wiltshire Council

would not harm the Conservation Area.

The proposed property will have adequate parking and turning as well as meeting the requirements of
parking. Any new access would be need to be well designed to ensure the earthworks and landscaping
maintains the rural feel along the lane.

I note your comments concerning drainage. | am well aware of the importance of these in the proposals.

The principle of the development is important as the requirement of the property is to meet the need for
downsizing. Also for the occupier to be able to live in a property that meets their need in later years and
not to be too large or difficult to maintain is important. We are working in conjunction with the buyer to
design and build a property that will not only meet their requirement but also to be a blueprint for future
generations that will give them their own space, not to be too onerous to maintain but within their means
and to give them privacy in a very pleasant location.

Concerning your comment about the location, there are several elderly people in Vicarage Lane and also
in Avon Square and Watson Close who do not have problems in getting to the village, which is less than 5
minutes walk. As a matter of correction, there is street lighting in Vicarage Lane and the absence of a
footpath does not present any issues as the Lane has few vehicle movements and provides a good
surface for people to walk on.

| appreciate the comment that the proposed property would not have a negative impact on the character
and appearance of the conversation area. As this is our intention as is the buyer’s to have a house which
fits in and does not detract from the character of the conservation area. This is one of our prime
motivations. | understand the Council’s policy stance but would hope that you would agree the omission
of Vicarage Lane from the settlement boundary is anomalous and reasonably a dwelling in such a
location would be acceptable. Furthermore, as you have identified a small dwelling would have limited
visual impact, would not harm the conservation area and would not extend existing built form on the

lane. There is an identified need for this self build dwelling for an elderly resident and the property can be
retained with such a restriction going forward. There is no identified harm arising from this project and we
would ask that you give further consideration on this basis in order to provide appropriate accommodation
for the prospective occupier.

Yours sincerely,

Page 2

Page 326



A B C o E F o F Q
e e S
1 1
Seend |
L Proposals for Revised Settlement Boundaries }
e Ny
2 2
L &
Py *
3 \: .y 3
Il N
4 4
&
5 : 5
L - -
rd B "y
5| 4 B
QO
L1 Q /
# D A
N :
7 7
~
L ra
g g
k. LY
g . g
b /’/ &
rd "y
ol .
10 e 10
i
L ra
e *
1 1
- .
I I Settlement Boundary (HSAP Further Proposed Changes June 2018)
[] settiement Boundary (HSAP Submission May 2015)
12 ] settement Boundary (HSAP Pre Submission June 2017)

Crown Co-pr:.rfight, All rights !'eaerv&d. Wiltspir& Council 10

0043050, 2018

D Settlerment Boundary (WCS Jamuary 2015)
T

A

X

B

s

C

|

]

&

=L

J

o]

,

F!

Q




A B C D E F o P Q2
" My
1 i 1
Winterslow
Proposals for Revised Settlement Boundaries
&
— R
2 2
S
3 3
4 4
5 L]
n
U
Li] Q 5]
®
il
w !
N
00)
T T
B
-] g
] o]
7
10 10
b
11 11
I D Settlement Boundary (HSAP Further Proposed Changes June 2018)
[] settiement Boundary (HSAP Submission May 2015)
12 : Seitlement Boundary (HSAP Pre Submission June 2017)

Crown Cc-mrfight, All rights !'eseru'ed. Wiltslhire Council 1DIDMEDSG, 2EI1EE

n Settlement Boundary (WCS January 2015)
I

A J\ B /L C l D l E J\ F

J o

P

0]




\ - i o ™, " - #
A B C D E 0 P o
# Rt
1 1
Codford
PFOPOEH Is for Revised Settlement Boundaries
, &
g AN
2 2
5 i .y
< 3 "
3 4 \ 3
4 3 Sl 4
M_H <
7 z 4
5 5
B . ’
< R
If
(3] -U I | G
S e
N, Q- ’
Py D s
W/

7 N . 7
, i 2 Iy
g i g

]
i " 1
8 h g
il
L e
& At
10 ; d 10
s '
:
# h
1 1
.I-I ' =
i Ir I I Settlement Boundary (HSAP Further Proposed Changes June 2018)
' A [] sestiement Boundary (HSAP Submission May 2015)
12 D Seitlement Boundary (HSAP Pre Submission June 2017)

Crown Copyright, All rights reserved. Wiltshire Council 100049050, 2018

n Settlemnent Boundary (WCS Jamuary 2015)
| 1

A

J\ B

)\

Cc

)\

]

)\

E

)\

-

J o

N,

P

-\

0]




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
Complaint

Cabinet Members: Councillor Jerry Wickham - Adult Social Care, Public
Health and Public Protection

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman considers
complaints from members of the public that they have suffered injustice
as a result of maladministration and/or service failure by local
authorities and other bodies within its jurisdiction. The Ombudsman has
extensive investigation powers and can make findings based upon a
balance of probabilities test, similar to the civil courts.

The Ombudsman published a report on 27 April 2018 finding
maladministration against the Council that caused injustice to the
complainant, Mrs. N, regarding the provision of respite care and travel
support for her son Mr. P.

Where the Ombudsman reports that injustice has been caused to a
person in consequence of maladministration, the relevant body, in
this case the Cabinet, must, within three months of the publication of
the report, consider the report and notify the Ombudsman of the
action which the Council has taken or proposes to take.

The Council must also make arrangements for the publication and
inspection of the report as set out in the relevant legislation.

Following consideration by Cabinet, the report will also be referred to
the Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee and the Standards
Committee.

> Page 331



Proposals
Cabinet is recommended to:

a) Note the findings and recommendations in the Ombudsman’s
report published on 27 April 2018;

b) Confirms the Council’s acceptance of the Ombudsman’s findings
and recommendations and the actions to remedy the injustice as set
out in the report.

c) Authorise the Director of Adult Care Services in consultation with the
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Public
Protection to take the necessary steps to address the issues raised
in the Ombudsman's report.

d) Require that a progress report is made to the Standards
Committee and to the Health Select Committee within 6
months.

Reason for Proposals

To enable the Council to consider the Ombudsman’s report and formally
confirm its response to the Ombudsman as required by law.

lan Gibbons, Director of Legal & Democratic Service and Monitoring
Officer

Tracy Daszkiewicz, Director of Adult Services

> Page 332




Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

Complaint

Cabinet Members: Councillor Jerry Wickham - Adult Social Care, Public

Health and Public Protection

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1.

The purpose of the report is to inform Cabinet of the findings and
recommendations in the report of the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman (“‘the Ombudsman”) published on 27 April 2018 and to confirm
the Council’s response to the report.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2.

The issues raised within the Ombudsman’s report are integral to the Wiltshire
Council Business Plan 2017 — 2027. They highlight the need to ensure
protection of the most vulnerable in our community. This is achieved through
a balanced and collaborative approach to empowering and safeguarding
families and individuals, whilst ensuring there is a joined-up approach to health
and care integration.

Background

3.

Mr. and Mrs. N have an adult son, Mr. P, who has complex needs that are
eligible for support. He has always lived at home with his parents. Mr. N is
disabled and Mrs. N is the carer for both Mr. N and Mr. P. At her request, the
Council pays her via direct payments to be Mr. N’s carer.

Mr. P has attended a day care facility on weekdays and the same respite centre
for many years. The Council has provided transport for him to day care and
residential respite care. The family lived in a house about 10 miles from the day
care centre. In late 2015, Mr. and Mrs. N relocated within the County being
keen that the existing care package should remain.

In June 2016, Mr. P’s transport funding was reduced, with a request that Mrs.
N undertake two journeys per week between the home and the day centre or
alternatively, fund the trips at a cost of £30.00 per trip. A decision was also
taken to reduce respite care from 104 nights per year to 68 nights per year.

Mrs. N complained, initially under the Council’'s Complaints Procedure, both in

relation to the transport, as she was also required to care for her husband and
to undertake the journeys would result in her husband being left

Page 333



unaccompanied for up to 6 hours. Mrs. N also complained in relation to the
reduction of respite care provision. Mrs. N subsequently complained to the
Ombudsman.

Ombudsman’s conclusions

7.

10.

A copy of the Ombudsman’s report is attached at Appendix 1. The
Ombudsman’s conclusions are set out at paragraphs 66-99 of the report.

The Ombudsman concluded that the Council was at fault in the way in which it
reduced the level of respite and transport provision. The request that transport
be provided or funded by the family, was not based upon an assessment of
need and therefore, in breach of the requirements of the Care Act.

The Ombudsman further concluded that the Council was at fault in the use and
application of the Matrix Assessment Tool and for introducing the reduction in
respite care, as quickly as it did. The Matrix Assessment Tool involved a four-
stage assessment process, that assisted in the assessing of needs and
allocation of available resources.

The Ombudsman also concluded the Council was at fault for having processed
the complaint, by way of a two-stage complaint process, as opposed to a one
stage complaints process, in accordance with the statutory scheme for adult
care complaints under the 2009 Regulations.

Ombudsman recommendations

11.

The Ombudsman’s recommendations are set out in paragraphs 101-103 of the
report. These include a requirement for the Council to consider the report and
confirm, within three months, the action it has taken or proposes to take. The
recommendations are as follows:

o Apologise to Mrs N.

o Restore the previous level of respite care pending a reassessment
compliant with the Care Act 2014.

o Confirm it will offer her 24 days’ respite care, to be taken at a time of
her choosing, in recognition of the respite care wrongly withdrawn.

o Pay Mrs N £747.50 in recognition of the money she paid the Council
for transport.

o Pay Mrs N £500 in recognition of distress and time and trouble.

o Review its policy and procedure on respite care, to reflect the
requirements of the Care Act 2014.

o Review other files for evidence of use of the Matrix Assessment Tool.
It should write promptly to anyone similarly affected and review their
cases.

o Review the files of anyone whose transport was cut, to ensure these
cuts were compliant with the Care Act.

o Inform the Ombudsman of the numbers of people involved and
undertake to review all cases, within a further three months.

o Ensure all staff receive training in the requirements of the Care Act and
the relevant guidance.

o Review all relevant documents to ensure they reflect the current law.

Page 334



Main Considerations for the Council

12. The Council has considered and accepted the conclusions and
recommendations of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman.

13. To address the recommendations, an action plan has been developed
(Appendix 2) which is supported by a tracking tool to ensure all actions are
completed, within the suggested time frame, by the end of July 2018.

14. Additional resources have been provided from colleagues, in other Adult
Social Care teams, to ensure actions are prioritized and delivered. A total of
142 customers have been identified as needing a review and all have been
allocated a worker. Approximately 30% of these reviews have now been
completed and all are scheduled to be carried out before the end of July. Of
those completed, there have been no significant financial implications for the
Council, as a result of this activity.

15. As part of the adult care transformation programme, all policies and
procedures relating to assessment and support planning have been reviewed
and are in line with Care Act guidance. In addition, Care Act training for all
social care staff, from induction through to regular updates, has been
provided, with additional training sessions being implemented with the
Learning Disability Teams. This specifically includes training, with regard to
support planning and the use of respite care to meet eligible need.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement
16. It is proposed that progress in implementing the agreed actions on this
matter is reviewed by the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee after 6 months.
Safeguarding Implications
17.  The actions that are to be taken in response to the Ombudsman’s Report
will strengthen the approach of Wiltshire Council to safeguarding the interests of
services users.
Public Health Implications
18. The public health implications of this report, relate to services users, their
carers and wider families. The adoption of the conclusions and
recommendations of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman will
further ensure a positive impact upon individual health and wellbeing.

Procurement Implications

19. The report does not contain or result in procurement implications.

> Page 335



Equalities Impact of the Proposal

20. The equalities impact of the adoption of conclusion and recommendations of
the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman further enhance the
provision of services delivered by Adult Social Care.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

21. There are no environment and climate change implications associated with
this report.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken

22. The Council has accepted the conclusions and recommendations of the
Ombudsman’s report. Failure to implement the recommendations would
result in customers and families potentially not receiving the appropriate
amount of care to meet their needs. There would also be legal and
reputational risks to the Council.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

23. None identified.
Financial Implications

24. It is not anticipated that this process will incur significant increased costs to
the Council,

Legal Implications

25. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman considers
complaints from members of the public that they have suffered
injustice, as a result of maladministration and/or service failure by
local authorities and other bodies within its jurisdiction. The
Ombudsman has extensive investigation powers and can make
findings, based upon a balance of probabilities test, similar to the
civil courts.

Where the Ombudsman reports that injustice has been caused to a
person, in consequence of maladministration, the relevant body, in this
case the Cabinet, must, within three months of the publication of the
report, consider the report and notify the Ombudsman of the action which
the Council has taken or proposes to take.

The Council must also make arrangements for the publication and inspection
of the report as set out in the relevant legislation.

Directors : lan Gibbons, Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer,
Tracy Daszkiewicz, Director of Adult Services

> Page 336



Date of report 6" June 2018

Appendices
1. Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Report 12" April 2018:

16015946
2. Recommendation Action tracker

> Page 337



This page is intentionally left blank



Local Government &
Social Care

OMBUDSMAN

Investigation into a complaint against

Wiltshire County Council
(reference number: 16 015 946)

12 April 2018

Local Government Ombudsman | PO Box 4771 | Coventry | CV4 OEH
www.lgo.org.uk

Page 339


http://www.lgo.org.uk/

The Ombudsman’s role

For 40 years the Ombudsman has independently and impartially investigated complaints. We
effectively resolve disputes about councils and other bodies in our jurisdiction by recommending
redress which is proportionate, appropriate and reasonable based on all the facts of the
complaint. Our service is free of charge.

Each case which comes to the Ombudsman is different and we take the individual needs and
circumstances of the person complaining to us into account when we make recommendations to
remedy injustice caused by fault.

We have no legal power to force councils to follow our recommendations, but they almost always
do. Some of the things we might ask a council to do are:

> apologise
> pay a financial remedy

> improve its procedures so similar problems don’t happen again.

Page 340




Investigation into complaint number 16 015 946 against Wiltshire Council

Contents
REPOI SUMIMEBIY ... ettt e e e et e e e e et e e ee e r e e e e e et e e enn b a e e e e e e eennnnnn s 1
The COMPIAINT ... 2
Legal and administrative background .............ccooooiiiiiiiiiii e 2
How we considered this COMPIAINL...............uuiiiiiiiii e 4
LNV Z=ES] T =1 1o o PP 4
(0] o] 1157 T o 1 O PP PP PP PP PP PP PPPPPPPP 9
DT ol PP TSP PP PP PP PP PPPPPPPPRPPPPN 13
RECOMMENAEA GCHONS ......eiiiiiiiiitei ettt e e e et e e e e e e eaeeeeaaana 13

Section 30 of the 1974 Local Government Act says that a report should not normally name
or identify any person. The people involved in this complaint are referred to by a letter or
job role.

Key to names used
Mrs N — The complainant acting on behalf of her son
Mr N — Her husband

Mr P — Their son, an adult in need of specialist care

Page 341



Report summary

Adult Care Services

Mrs N cares for Mr P, her son. She complains the Council has wrongly cut the respite
care provided for her son and has wrongly asked her to pay towards the cost of her
son’s transport between home and day care.

Finding
Fault found causing injustice and recommendations made.

Recommendations

The Council has accepted our recommendations. The Council will consider the report at
its full Council or Cabinet or other appropriately delegated committee of elected
members and confirm within three months the action it has taken or proposes to take.
We will require evidence of this.

In addition to the requirements set out above the Council has agreed to take the
following action to remedy the injustice identified in this report. The Council will:

» Apologise to Mrs N;

» Restore the previous level of respite care pending a re-assessment compliant with
the Care Act 2014;

« Confirm it will offer her 24 days respite care to be taken at a time of her choosing in
recognition of the respite care wrongly withdrawn;

+ Pay Mrs N £747.50 in recognition of money she paid the Council for transport;
« Pay Mrs N £500 in recognition of distress and time and trouble;

* Review its policy and procedure on respite care to reflect the requirements of the
Care Act 2014;

» Review other files for evidence of use of the Matrix Assessment Tool (MAT). It
should write promptly to anyone similarly affected and review their cases;

* Review the files of anyone whose transport was cut to ensure these cuts were
compliant with the Care Act;

+ Inform the Ombudsman of the numbers of people involved and undertake to review
all cases within a further three months;

» Ensure all staff receive training in the requirements of the Care Act and the relevant
guidance; and

» Review all relevant documents to ensure they reflect the current law.

Page 342



The Complaint

1. Mrs N and her husband care for their disabled adult son, Mr P. Mrs N complains the

Council has wrongly cut Mr P’s respite care and she was wrongly asked to pay towards
the cost of his transport to and from his day care centre.

Legal and administrative background

2. We investigate complaints about ‘maladministration’ and ‘service failure’. In this report,

we have used the word fault to refer to these. We must also consider whether any fault
has had an adverse impact on the person making the complaint. We refer to this as
‘injustice’. If there has been fault which has caused an injustice, we may suggest a
remedy. (Local Government Act 1974, sections 26(1) and 26A(1), as amended)

The Ombudsman may investigate matters coming to our attention during an
investigation, if we consider a member of the public who has not complained may have
suffered an injustice as a result. (Local Government Act 1974, section 26D and 34E)

When investigating complaints, if there is a conflict of evidence, the Ombudsman may
make findings based on the balance of probabilities. This means that during an
investigation, we will weigh up the available evidence and base our findings on what we
think was more likely to have happened.

Social care

5. The Care Act 2014 introduced a requirement that local authorities should promote

‘wellbeing’ and ‘signifies a shift from existing duties on local authorities to provide
particular services, to the concept of ‘meeting needs’.... The concept of meeting needs
recognises that everyone’s needs are different and personal to them. Local authorities
must consider how to meet each person’s specific needs rather than simply considering
what service they will fit into’. (Care and Support Statutory Guidance, Ch 1)

Councils must also consider the importance of preventing or delaying the development
of needs for care and support among carers. Statutory guidance recommends ‘tertiary
prevention’ methods such as respite care. (Care and Support Statutory Guidance 2.10)

Needs assessment

6.

A council must carry out an assessment of any adult who seems to need care and
support. It must also involve the individual and where appropriate their carer or any other
person they might want involved. (Care Act 2014, section 9)

Having identified eligible needs through a needs assessment, the Council has a duty to
meet those needs. (Care Act 2014, section 18)

The Care Act sets out examples of different ways a council can meet eligible needs.
Examples include accommodation in a care home, care and support at home,
counselling and social work, and information, advice and advocacy. (Care Act 2014, s 8)

Page 343



9. If a council decides a person is eligible for care, it must prepare a care and support plan.
This must set out the needs identified in the assessment. It must say whether, and to
what extent, the needs meet the eligibility criteria. It must specify the needs the council
intends to meet and how it intends to meet them. (Care Act 2014, ss 24 and 25)

10. A council should revise a care and support plan where circumstances have changed in a
way that affects the care and support plan needs. Where there is a proposal to change
how to meet eligible needs, a council should take all reasonable steps to reach

agreement with the adult concerned about how to meet those needs. (Care Act 2014, s27(4)
and (5))

11. The care and support plan must set out a personal budget which specifies the cost to
the local authority of meeting eligible needs, the amount a person must contribute and
the amount the council must contribute. (Care Act 2014, s 26)

12. The High Court has confirmed an individual's wishes are not the same as their needs
and their wishes are not the paramount consideration. A council must have ‘due regard’
to an adult’s wishes as a starting point, but social workers are entitled to exercise their

professional skills and judgement in deciding how to meet eligible needs. (R (Davey) v
Oxfordshire County Council [2017] EWHC 354 (Admin))

13. A person with eligible care needs can have a council arrange their care. Or, if they wish,
they can arrange their own care using a direct payment. (Care Act 2014, s 31)

Carers

14. A council must consider whether to carry out a carer's assessment if it appears the carer
has need for support. It must assess the carer’s ability and willingness to continue in the
caring role. It must also consider the results the carer wishes to achieve in daily life and
whether support could contribute to achieving those results (Care Act 2014, s10)

15. The Act says the local authority can meet the carer’s needs by providing a service
directly. In these cases, the carer must still receive a support plan which covers their
needs, and how they will be met. (Care Act 2014, s 25)

16. The Council can also provide a carer’s personal budget, which must be sufficient to
enable the carer to continue to fulfil their caring role. The Council should consider the
carer’s wishes for their day-to-day life. The Council should try to agree the personal
budget and its use during the planning process. (Care and Support Statutory Guidance 2014)

Allocation of resources

17. The Care and Support Statutory Guidance states:

a. ‘It is important to have a consistent method for calculating personal budgets that
provides an early indication of the appropriate amount to meet the identified
needs to be used at the beginning of the planning process. Local authorities
should ensure that the method used for calculating the personal budget
produces equitable outcomes to ensure fairness in care and support packages

Page 344



regardless of the environment in which care and support takes place, for
example, in a care home or someone’s own home. Local authorities should not
have arbitrary ceilings to personal budgets that result in people being forced to

accept to move into care homes against their will.” (Ombudsman’s emphasis added.
Care and Support Statutory Guidance 2014, 11.22)

b. “There are many variations of systems used to arrive at personal budget
amounts, ranging from complex algorithmic-based resource allocation systems
(RAS), to more ‘ready-reckoner’ approaches. Complex RAS models of allocation
may not work for all client groups, especially where people have multiple
complex needs, or where needs are comparatively costly to meet, such as in the
case of deaf-blind people. It is important that these factors are taken into
account, and that a ‘one size fits all’ approach to resource allocation is not
taken. If a RAS model is being used, local authorities should consider alternative
approaches where the process may be more suitable to particular client groups

to ensure that the personal budget is an appropriate amount to meet needs”
(Ombudsman’s emphasis added. Care and Support Statutory Guidance 2014, 11.23)

Complaints procedure

18. Councils should ensure complaints are dealt with efficiently. (Local Authority Social
Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) Regulations (2009) reg 3)

How we considered this complaint

19. We produced this report after speaking to Mrs N. We asked the Council for its relevant
files and documents. We gave the complainant and the Council two confidential drafts
and invited comments. We took their comments into account before finalising the report.

Investigation

Background

20. Mr and Mrs N have an adult son, Mr P, who has complex needs. He has severe learning
difficulties and epilepsy. He has always lived at home with his parents.

21. Mr P needs constant care. He is doubly incontinent, incapable of speech and has severe
cognitive impairment. Mrs N says she sleeps lightly because of concerns about his
epilepsy. He is often awake through the night. Mrs N describes herself as ‘close to
breaking point’.

22. Recently, Mr N has also become disabled. He can only walk short distances and had to
take early retirement. Mrs N acts as carer to both Mr N and Mr P. At her request, the
Council pays her via direct payments to be Mr N'’s carer.

23. Since leaving school, Mr P has attended a day care facility within the Council’s area on
week days. He has attended the same respite centre for many years. The Council has
provided transport for him to day care. It also provides residential respite care. The
family lived, until 2016, in a house about 10 miles from the day care centre.

Page 345



Council’s transport duty

24,

25.

The Council must provide transport to adults in need of social care where this is
necessary for them to receive care. It assesses eligibility for such transport according to
the Eligibility Criteria for Community Care Transport document (2005). This states:

o ‘The test of eligibility is ‘Would the failure of the Council to provide transport result in
an eligible need for services going unmet’

e The Council would not normally provide transport for individuals in receipt of a
Motability payment.

For many years, the family has had a Motability vehicle to help with Mr P’s transport.
Nonetheless, the Council did not expect Mrs N to drive Mr P to and from day care.

The Matrix Assessment Tool

26.

27.

28.

The Council adopted its ‘Matrix Assessment Tool’ (‘MAT’) in 2007. Its stated purpose
was to ‘ensure limited resources could be fairly allocated to families based on need'’.

The Council’s document ‘The Matrix Assessment — How it Works’ (‘How it works’)
explains the process. There are four stages:

a. Stage one: assess applicant’s need for respite care. The MAT allocates a score
in various categories to reflect the applicant’s level of disability or need.

b.  Stage two: assess the ‘current provision of service’. This provides a second
score which must be subtracted from the ‘need’ score.

C. Stage three: assess the carer’s situation’. The ‘carer’s score’ is then added to
the previous total.

d.  Stage four: The Council assesses those requiring respite care and lists
applicants according to their scores. The Council then calculates the number of
respite beds available. It then divides the number of beds available by the
number of beds required. This calculation creates the ‘coefficient’. The Council
then multiplies the score of each service user by the coefficient. This produces a
number which will be the number of nights' respite he will receive that year.

How it Works contains a specimen calculation; the Council has 1400 bed nights
available and the demand is for 2750 bed nights. The Council has half the number of
beds it needs which produces a coefficient of 0.5. With this coefficient in place, an
applicant with a score of 160 would receive 80 nights respite care (160 multiplied by
0.5).

Introducing reductions gradually

29.

How it Works contains the following guidance; ‘Some people will have allocated levels
below their current level of service. To avoid causing sudden drops in service levels, it is
intended that any gap will not be greater than 80% of the current level.

Page 346



For example

Current level = 75 nights
Assessed level = 59 nights

gap = (75 — 59) 16 nights

80% of 16 =13

actual level = 59 + 13 (72) nights’.

30. ‘Each year the level will be reduced by a further 20% until the assessed level is reached,
or if individual needs change, a re-assessment indicates a new assessment level’.

31. The wording used in How It Works is somewhat ambiguous. However, by following the
calculations, it is clear that only 20% of any proposed reduction should be made each
year.

32. Until 2016, the Council funded four consecutive nights of respite care every other week.
(104 days respite care per year).

33. In 2013, the Council carried out a comprehensive assessment of Mr P’s needs. His
eligibility level under the prevailing criteria were recorded as:

o Managing behaviour and actions — critical
o Managing personal care — critical
o Access, mobility and transfers — critical
o Nutritional needs — critical
o Running and maintaining your home — critical
o Keeping safe — critical
o Making decisions and organising your life — critical
o Community life, work and learning — critical
o Family relationships — critical
34. The Council accepts Mr P’s needs have not changed since 2013.
Review 2015
35. In April 2015, the Care Act came into force. The Council reviewed Mr P’s needs. The

review took some time because Mr P was ill. The review document stated his needs
could be met by an indicative budget of ‘£7000 to £2000 a week’. The Council has told
me the indicative budget figure in the April 2015 review document was a misprint and
should have read ‘£700 to £1000 a week’.

House move

36.

In late 2015, Mr and Mrs N decided to move. Mrs N was very keen that Mr P should
keep his existing care package at their new home.

Page 347



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

The Council’s records show Mrs N emailed the Council in December 2015 saying; ‘Good
morning, my son uses adult care services in the [local town] area, receiving transport to
and from [Mr P’s] day care centre. Could someone make contact with me please as we
have now sold our house and need to know if the house we are about to offer on is still
[in] the catchment area’.

A few days later, the Council wrote back saying the house was ‘in our catchment area’.

Mrs N wrote again saying ‘we have tried to get some guide lines as to where we can
move to whilst keeping [Mr P’s] all-important care package and understood, as long as
we didn’t move to [local village] which we understood was the boundary, we should be
fine’. There is no record of the Council’s response.

Mr and Mrs N bought the property. In January 2016, she contacted the Council to give
the new address. The Council asked her to tell them when they moved. Mrs N then
emailed back asking if he could keep the same escort ‘to give [Mr P] some continuity
when he most needs it’.

Mrs N says she saw these conversations as assurances she would retain the same
services at the new house.

The Council says Mrs N was not justified in this belief. It says; ‘It is quite a different thing
for the Council to say that Mr P would continue to receive support to whether Mr P would
continue to receive support at a particular service’.

‘None of the contemporaneous recordings support Mrs N’s version of what was said. In
the Council’s view, what Mrs N asserts was said would be contrary to section 27 Care
Act as a change of address would be a change of circumstances that would require a
review of the care and support plan’.

Review of transport/respite care

44.

45.

46.

47.

In June 2016, Mrs N spoke to another parent at the day care centre who told her the
Council had withdrawn or limited the transport provision of many of the centre’s users.
Mrs N contacted the Council to ask if it intended to cut Mr P’s transport funding.

Not long afterwards, the Council told Mrs N it had decided to cut Mr P’s transport funding
and to ask Mrs N to provide two journeys a week between home and day care. She
could either pay the Council £30 a trip or provide the transport herself.

The Council said it had also decided to cut respite care from 104 nights per year to 68
nights per year. The Council said it had calculated the new level using the MAT.

Mrs N complained about these decisions. With regards to the transport, she said she
had to care for her husband. The round trip to and from the day care centre could take
her three hours, including getting Mr P in and out of the car. This would leave Mr N at
home, uncared for. The Council says Mr N does not require constant care.

Page 348



Council’s explanation for transport cut

48.

49.

The Council said, ‘the eligibility for transport explains we do not offer transport for
anyone who has access to their own mobility vehicle. However, there is no expectation
that a carer should have to drive more than 100 miles per week.... The cost of transport
is approx £60 a day from your current home address. If your son was to return his
mobility car it is likely the money he receives instead ... will only cover the cost of one
day and the Council would have to provide transport for the additional 4 days. Therefore,
as an alternative ... you could either provide one day of transport or purchase one day of
transport instead. | understand the mornings can be a difficult time for you and as a
solution | would suggest transport is provided two afternoons instead’.

The Council now says the cost of transporting Mr P from the new house to the respite
centre is £90 per day.

Assessment September 2016

50.

51.

In September 2016, the Council conducted a review of Mr P’s needs. In the summary, it
said, ‘all support needs are being met — no change required...., ‘Mrs N is happy to
continue as Mr P’s main carer and for him to reside in the family home (respite, day care
and transport arrangements need to remain unchanged to continue to support)’.

Mr P’s eligibility for services remained unchanged. His wellbeing outcomes remained
unchanged. Mr P’s indicative budget was, however, recorded as ‘£700 to £1000 per
week’, a reduction from the level set at the previous assessment.

Respite care

52.

53.

4.

55.

56.

57.

Mrs N said she needed the respite care to remain at its current level. She said she
wanted to care for Mr P but could not do so without respite.

The Council said it had carried out a fresh calculation of the family’s respite care
entitlement. It said it had applied the provisions set out in the MAT. It had assessed
Mr P’s and Mrs N’s needs against the MAT framework and awarded a score of 167.

It had then, it said, multiplied this figure by a coefficient of 0.5 to produce 68.47 thereby
making the family eligible for 68 days respite care per year. (It had, in fact, used a
coefficient of 0.41. It has done so ever since it introduced the MAT).

It said Mrs N had been receiving a level of respite care above that which it gave in
similar cases. It said the change would be introduced ‘gradually’ and would be fully in
place by April 2017

After a lengthy email exchange, and several meetings, during which a range of options,
including options for Mr P’s respite, were discussed, the Council informed her it would
impose the changes to transport and respite.

The transport changes were introduced immediately. The Council said it would introduce
the reduction in respite ‘gradually’ between December 2016 and April 2017.

Page 349



58.

59.

60.

In response to our enquiries, the Council wrote ‘The support being offered to the family
is in line with the individual’s needs as assessed by Adult Care Services; is in line with
the Council’s policies and procedures; and in line with the Care Act 2014, the legislation
that the Council is required to consider when assessing and meeting the unmet eligible
needs of each person. The level of support being offered is in line with others who have
similar assessed needs.

‘Mrs N has stated that she and [Mr N] have recently made decisions regarding where
within [the council area] they live, ensuring they stay within the county boundary.
However, they are residing in an area much further away from the services that her
previous assessment noted, contributing to some of the increases in costs of the
services Mr P receives. The Council believes it has tried to explore and offer a range of
options to assist Mrs N and her family maximise the personal budget they are eligible to
receive, but Mrs N has consistently refused to explore these options insisting that she
and Mr P only receive the services in the way they have previously’.

We asked the Council to restore respite care during our investigations into the case. It
responded ‘... The allocation of support being provided is at the top level...therefore | am
not able to agree funding a person above the amount the council deems appropriate’.

Current situation

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

Mrs N says she wants to remain as Mr P’'s main carer. However, she believes she will
not be able to do so unless her previous level of respite is restored.

The Council says it wants Mrs N to allow Mr P to attend day care in a facility closer to
the new house. It says this will be cheaper. Mrs N refuses to allow this. She says the
Council assured her she could move to the new house and continue to use the same
day care centre. She says this is ‘non-negotiable’.

Mrs N cares for her husband and says this has increased her need for respite at a time
when the Council has cut it. She says she is exhausted as Mr P often keeps her up for
hours. She says she sleeps poorly anyway as she is worried about the possibility of
Mr P’s sudden death from epilepsy. For this reason, she will not take sleeping pills.

Mrs N says she is being treated by her doctor for chest pains. She says she is frequently
distressed, ‘tearful and unsettled’. She has been offered antidepressant medication by
her GP but has refused it.

Mrs N was unhappy with the Council’s responses to her complaint, so she complained to
the Ombudsman

Conclusions

66.

The Council was at fault for the way in which it reduced both the level of respite care and
the transport provision. The reasons why are set out below.

Page 350



Funding limits

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

The Council says the family is receiving care ‘at the top level’. This approach does not
accord with the Care Act which requires councils to assess and meet eligible needs. The
Council cannot set maximum budget levels. The Act says eligible needs must be met, no
matter what the cost.

The Council says the indicative weekly budget set at the April 2015 review was wrongly
recorded as £1000 - £2000 a week. It says it should have been £700 - £1000. This is
immaterial. The only question is whether the Council is meeting eligible needs.

The Council has provided me with its bandings. It says Mr P’s disability falls into a
certain band and therefore his funding cannot exceed a certain level.

Again, this approach does not accord with the Care Act. The Council may use bandings
as a guide but, as the Care and Support Statutory Guidance states, such systems are
unlikely to work in complex cases like Mr P’s.

The Council has provided evidence that the cost of transport from the new family home
is much higher than before. It says there is alternative provision closer to the new house
and it wants Mr P to go there. Mrs N is adamant this should not happen.

Mrs N cannot, in the end, insist on the location of care. Nor can the Council cap care on
the basis of cost. The Council must use its professional judgment to decide where care
is provided. Mrs N may have a strong preference for a certain day centre but the Council
does not have to provide care at that centre.

The Council may, however, have created an expectation that Mr P’s care and respite
would continue unchanged if the family moved. This may give Mrs N grounds to resist
any such change. We make no finding on this though please see paragraphs 96 and 97
for our views on the evidence

Decision to ask Mrs N to fund/provide one day of transport

74.

75.

76.

The Council’s decision to ask the family to either fund or provide one day’s transport per
week appears to have been part of a general withdrawal of provision and a cost cutting
exercise. It was not based on assessments of need and was therefore in breach of the
requirements of the Care Act and was fault.

In Mrs N’s case, asking Mrs N to provide the transport would have resulted in Mr N’s
needs going unmet. Mrs N is his carer too. Asking Mrs N to provide one day’s transport
per week for Mr P would result in Mr N being left alone for six hours.

The Council’s guidance on transport says; ‘The test of eligibility is ‘Would the failure of
the Council to provide transport result in an eligible need for services going unmet?’.
Clearly, in this case, it would.

Page 351 0



77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

The Council also has a Care Act duty to consider the wishes of those involved; service
users and carers. It cannot force an unwilling carer to provide care she reasonably
states she cannot give.

The Council also relied on its rule, not contained in the policy, that no-one should have
to drive more than 100 miles per week. The Council suggested Mrs N should drive 100
miles, not in a week, but in one day or two (two round trips of fifty miles).

There is no evidence the Council considered whether Mrs N, who complains of

sleepless nights looking after Mr P, would be able to provide this transport. The Council
was at fault, therefore, for failing to follow its own guidance, to comply with the Care Act
and for applying an unwritten criterion with no basis in the assessment of eligible needs.

For the reasons given, the Council was at fault for the way in which it reduced the
funding for transport. This fault has caused injustice. Mrs N has been required to pay
£60 per week towards the cost of transport when she should not have been.

The Council has agreed to repay her for this but it argues this figure should be reduced
by the Council’'s weekly transport contribution (payable by all users) multiplied by the
number of weeks reduction.

The Council charges all transport users £3.70 a day (£18.50 a week). We accept this
request as fair. The Council has agreed to repay Mrs N £747.50.

Use of the Matrix Assessment Tool (MAT)

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

The MAT predates the Care Act. Its purpose is to ration available resources. The Care
Act requires councils to meet eligible needs. It does not allow rationing for any reason. If
a council cannot meet an eligible need, it must pay someone else to meet it.

The MAT is, therefore, incompatible with the Care Act. The Council is at fault for
continuing to use it. If the Council has used the MAT in other cases, this will also be
fault. We shall return to this point in our recommendations.

The Council was at fault in reducing the family’s care as it did and Mrs N has suffered
injustice. She says she cannot cope without the respite care and the cut has caused her
great distress. She says she has been treated by her doctor for this.

The Council accepts it did not use the MAT as prescribed in its own guidance. It accepts
its failure to recalculate the coefficient has reduced the MAT’s effectiveness as a tool.

It maintains the MAT was effective in informing care and support planning but accepts
the approach does not accord with the guidance and has agreed to stop using it.

Failure to apply MAT guidance on reducing care gradually

88.

The Council was also at fault for introducing the reduction in care as quickly as it did.
The cut in care was calculated using the MAT and the MAT guidance is clear that only
20% of any respite reduction should be introduced each year. This should have meant a
reduction of 6 nights in year one, from 104 nights per year to 98 nights per year.

Page 352 H



89.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

In practice, the entirety of the reduction was made immediately. The Council cut the
respite care by 36 days in year one and reduced her respite care from four days every
two weeks to three days every two weeks with immediate effect. The family has had
three days respite per week ever since.

Even if any reduction could be justified by the current law and guidance, it was not
introduced in line with the Council’'s own guidance set out in How It Works. Nor was it
introduced ‘gradually’ as the Council said.

The Council said, in response to the first draft of this report, ‘the reduction had no
connection to the possible uses of the MAT when it was introduced by the Council in
2006. The Council has never changed the coefficient that would lead to a deduction in
support to all those using respite services’.

This argument does not help the Council. The reduction was calculated using the MAT
and, if the reduction was to be introduced, it should have been introduced at the rate set
out in the MAT guidance. The failure to do so was fault.

Further, the Council never calculated the coefficient during the period it used the MAT.
This too was fault. The coefficient was intended to represent the ratio of available beds
to demand. Because the Council never calculated it, it did not do so. It should have been
calculated at least once a year.

In any event, the MAT is incompatible with the Care Act. The Act states that the Council
must assess eligible needs and meet them. It cannot ration care on the basis that it does
not have sufficient capacity.

This fault caused Mrs N and her family additional injustice. Mrs N says she has not been
able to cope and has suffered a great deal of distress because of the reduction in the
respite care which was calculated erroneously and introduced immediately.

Assurances about moving to new house

96.

97.

| find, on a fair reading of the Council’s records, Mrs N was asking about retaining Mr P’s
current provision and not continuing to be eligible for support from the Council. She
speaks of a desire for ‘continuity’ and the ‘need to retain the all-important care package’.

Mrs N believes the Council assured her she would retain the existing care package if
she moved. | find the notes support her claim. Whether knowingly or not, the Council
created an expectation that Mr P would retain his existing service after moving.

Two stage complaints process

98.

In December 2016, the Council responded to Mrs N’s “stage two complaint”. Since
April 2009 The Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service Complaints
(England) Regulations (2009) and the Department of Health Listening, Responding,
Improving (2009) guidance require a “proportionate, achievable and cost-effective”
investigation. This has been interpreted to mean a one stage, rather than a multi stage,
procedure for all adult social care complaints.

Page 353 2



99. The Council’s website says it uses a one stage process. The Council seems to have put
Mrs N’s complaint through two stages. The Council is at fault for failing to follow its own
procedures, and for not complying with the intention of the regulations and guidance.
The Council has accepted it was at fault.

Decision

100. The Council was at fault both for reducing the respite care and for asking Mrs N to
contribute towards the transport. This fault caused injustice. In particular it caused her
stress and affected her wellbeing. We have suggested a remedy to reflect this.

Recommended actions

101. We welcome the Council’'s agreement to our recommendations.

102. The Council will consider the report at its full Council or Cabinet or other appropriately
delegated committee of elected members and confirm within three months the action it

has taken or proposes to take. We will require evidence of this. (Local Government Act
1974, section 31(2), as amended)

103. In addition to the requirements set out above the Council has agreed to take the
following action to remedy the injustice identified in this report. The Council will:

* Apologise to Mrs N;

* Restore the previous level of respite care pending a re-assessment compliant with
the Care Act 2014;

*  Confirm it will offer her 24 days respite care to be taken at a time of her choosing in
recognition of the respite care wrongly withdrawn;

* Pay Mrs N £747.50 in recognition of money she paid the Council for transport;
+ Pay Mrs N £500 in recognition of distress and time and trouble;

* Review its policy and procedure on respite care to reflect the requirements of the
Care Act 2014;

* Review other files for evidence of use of the MAT. It should write promptly to
anyone similarly affected and review their cases;

* Review the files of anyone whose transport was cut to ensure these cuts were
compliant with the Care Act;

* Inform the Ombudsman of the numbers of people involved and undertake to review
all cases within a further three months;

«  Ensure all staff receive training in the requirements of the Care Act and the relevant
guidance; and

* Review all relevant documents to ensure they reflect the current law.

The Council has already ceased using the MAT. It has also accepted that its complaints
procedure was faulty in this instance.

Page 354 w



GG abed

LGO recommendations and Action Tracker (Appendix 2)

Action to date

Date completed

Apologise to Mrs N

Letter sent

1st May 2018

Restore the previous level of respite care pending a re-assessment compliant with the Care Act 2014

Level of care had never actually been
reduced.

n/a

Confirm it will offer her 24 days respite care to be taken at a time of her choosing in recognition of the respite care wrongly withdrawn

Letter sent to family

1st May 2018

Pay Mrs N £747.50 in recognition of money she paid the Council for transport

Cheque sent

25th April 2018

Pay Mrs N £500 in recognition of distress and time and trouble

Cheque sent

25th April 2018

Review its policy and procedure on respite care to reflect the requirements of the Care Act 2014

The Matrix Assessment Tool has not been
used since Autumn 2017. All relevant
policies and procedures are fully compliant
with Care Act guidance with regard to
respite care.

October 2017 and
ongoing.

Review other files for evidence of use of the MAT. It should write promptly to anyone similarly affected and review their cases

All customers and families who receive
respite care as part of their care and support
plan have been identified (142 families). All
have been written to, informing them of
LGO recommendations and plans to review
care and support plan

letter sent 4th May

Review the files of anyone whose transport was cut to ensure these cuts were compliant with the Care Act It is known that only one other family had n/a
cuts to transport which have been
reinstated.

Inform the Ombudsman of the numbers of people involved and undertake to review all cases within a further three months ongoing

The Council will keep the LGO updated on the
progress and number of reviews




9G¢ abed

Ensure all staff receive training in the requirements of the Care Act and the relevant guidance

All social care staff complete induction
training and regular updates in Care Act
guidance. This is supplemented by individual
supervision and appraisal. Additional quality
audit measures are being implemented
through a performance management
framework to ensure assessments and
support plans are in line with guidance and
this will inform future training. Additional
training sessions have been undertaken with
the Learning Disability teams on the specific
guidance needed to reflect the LGO

racommandatinne

ongoing

Review all relevant documents to ensure they reflect the current law

As part of Phase 1 adult care transformation,
assessment and support plan
documentation used by all social care staff
has been reviewed and is in line with Care
Act guidance.

Completed May 2018




Agenda ltem 10

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
Cabinet member: Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE - Leader of Council

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. To ask Cabinet to consider a draft Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18
for comment before final approval is sought from the Audit Committee on 24
July 2018.

Background

2. The Council is required, as part of its annual review of the effectiveness of its

governance arrangements, to produce an Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) for 2017/18. This will be signed by the Leader of the Council and the
Corporate Directors after final approval by the Audit Committee on 24 July
2018. The AGS will form part of the Annual Statement of Accounts for
2017/18.

3. The format of the AGS follows recent advice from the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), with an onus on making it focused
and readable.

4. The AGS for Wiltshire Council should demonstrate how the Council is meeting
the principles of good governance adopted in its Code of Corporate
Governance. These principles aim to ensure the Council is:

» Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values, and representing the rule of law.

* Ensuring openness, transparency and comprehensive stakeholder
engagement — delivering accountability

* Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits

» Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of
intended outcomes

« Developing capacity, including the capacity of the Council’s leadership and
the individuals within it

* Managing risks and performance through robust internal controls and
strong public financial management.

Page 357



5. The AGS is primarily retrospective. It reports on the assurance framework and
measures in place for the financial year 2017/18, but must take account of any
significant issues of governance up to the date of publication of the Statement
of Accounts in July 2018. The AGS should outline the actions taken or
proposed to address any significant governance issues identified.

6. The AGS is drafted by senior officers who have lead roles in corporate
governance. The evidence for the AGS comes from a variety of sources,
including service plans, relevant lead officers within the organisation, internal
and external auditors and inspection agencies.

Main Consideration for the Council Draft AGS - Content

7. A draft AGS for 2017/18 is attached at Appendix 1. The draft will be revised
in the light of any observations of Cabinet and Audit Committee, as well as
external audit (KPMG).

8. The Council’s internal auditors have given an overall audit opinion of
reasonable assurance on the effectiveness of the Council’s control
environment for 2017/18.

0. The final section of the draft AGS requires the Council to identify any
significant internal control issues affecting the Council during the relevant
period. CIPFA guidance suggests that an internal control issue is to be
regarded as significant if:

» the issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal
objective;

» the issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be
resolved, or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another
aspect of the business;

« the issue has led to a material impact on the accounts;

« the audit committee, or equivalent, has advised that it should be
considered significant for this purpose;

+ the Head of Internal Audit has reported on it as significant, for this
purpose, in the annual opinion on the internal control environment;

» the issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has
seriously damaged the reputation of the organisation;

+ the issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial
Officer and/or the Monitoring Officer.

10. Atthis stage it is proposed to include the following governance issues as
areas for improvement:

¢ Responding to the recommendations in peer reviews including the Corporate
Peer, SEND and CQC reviews. This will include assessing the impacts on the

Page 358



11.

12.

delivery of the Council’'s Business and Financial Plans of external factors
including the Social Care green paper expected Summer 2018, changes to
the Business Rates system and lessons learnt from the s114 issued at
Northamptonshire County Council.

Embedding improvements to data protection to be compliant with the new
regulatory framework.

Responding to an event in March 2018 that occurred in Salisbury, the Council
will seek to learn and share lessons surrounding the event, as well as assess
the long-term impact and actions needed for the County, Council and
Partners.

Ensuring the new waste contract is mobilised effectively in line with current
plans for July 2018.

Improving the Council’s counter fraud framework including greater awareness
and response.

There will be a review of the inter-relationship between key polices to improve
clarity and consistency of processes including: Anti-Fraud and Corruption,
Whistle Blowing, complaints and some staff policies, such as Registering
interests, gifts and hospitality.

How the Council collects general feedback from individuals and communities
to assess improvements in approach and reviewing the arrangements for the
governance of partnership working.

Reporting of finance and performance and risk management will be more
closely aligned. A review of the relevant Corporate Performance Strategy and
Risk Management Strategy will take place to ensure a focus on links between
the use of resources and the outcomes being achieved. Alongside this there
will be a focus on delivery of comprehensive plans for change for council
services and a review of council commissioning, procurement and contract
management.

The governance of the Council will continue to be monitored by Cabinet, other
councillor committees and the Council’s Corporate Leadership Team. That will
include the areas to address identified above.

The Council’s external auditors, KPMG LLP, have been consulted on the draft
AGS and their comments will be reflected in the final draft to be presented to
Audit Committee 24 July 2018.

Page 359



Safeguarding Implications

13. Safeguarding issues have been highlighted in Section 2 of the draft AGS.
Public Health Implications

14.  There are no public health implications arising directly from this report.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

15. There are no environmental or climate change considerations arising directly
from this report.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

16. There is no impact on equality arising from this report.

Risk Assessment

17.  Ongoing review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance
arrangements is an important part of the Council’s risk management strategy.

Financial Implications

18.  There are no financial implications arising directly from the issues covered in
this report

Legal Implications
19. The production of the AGS is a statutory requirement.
Proposal
20.  Cabinet is, therefore, asked:
a. to consider the draft AGS as set out in Appendix 1 and make any
comments or changes as they see fit;
b. to note that the draft AGS will be revised in the light of any comments by
Cabinet before final approval by the Audit Committee and publication
with the Statement of Accounts at the end of July 2016.
Reason for Proposal

21. To prepare the AGS 2017/18 for publication in accordance with the
requirements of the Audit and Accounts Regulations.

lan Gibbons
Director, Legal and Democratic Services

Page 360



lan Duncan
Interim Director, Finance and Procurement

Robin Townsend
Director, Corporate Services and Digital

Report Authors: lan Gibbons, Robin Townsend and lan Duncan,
ilan.gibbons@wiltshire.gov.uk, robin.townsend@wiltshire.gov.uk and
ian.duncan@wiltshire.gov.uk

Background Papers
The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of this

report: None

Appendices
Appendix 1 Wiltshire Council’s Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

> Page 361


mailto:ian.gibbons@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:robin.townsend@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:ian.duncan@wiltshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

1
11
o
Q
«Q
)
W
> 1.2
w

Introduction

Wiltshire Council is a local authority that is responsible for providing services to nearly half a million residents, tens of
thousands of varied businesses and over a million visitors per year. It secures funding from national government, local
taxation and charges. So as a public body it needs to have a strong governance framework that ensures that its business is
conducted to the highest standards, ensuring:

e resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities;
e there is sound and inclusive decision making, conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards;

e there is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired outcomes for service users and
communities; and

e public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and continuous improvement in the way in which its functions
are exercised is secured, having regard to economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Ensuring good governance fits with the principles of the Council’s current Business Plan 2017-27 which states that the
Council will deliver its vision of strong communities by working according to the principles set out under eight key themes:



t9¢ abed

Elected members are collectively responsible for the governance of the Council. The full Council’s responsibilities include:

e agreeing the Council’s constitution, comprising the key governance documents, including the executive arrangements,
and making any necessary changes to ensure that the Constitution remains fit for purpose and reflects legislation and
best practice.

e agreeing the budget and policy framework, including key strategies
e appointing the head of paid service

e appointing members to committees responsible for overview and scrutiny functions, audit, standards and regulatory
matters.

The Council operates a leader and cabinet executive model in accordance with the Localism Act 2011. Under these
arrangements the Cabinet carries out all of the Council’s functions which are not the responsibility of any other part of the
Council. Cabinet meets monthly and its decisions in 2017/18 can be found here.

The cabinet is held to account by overview and scrutiny committees whose function is to review and/ or scrutinise decisions
made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of the Council’s functions and assist with policy development.


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=141&Year=0

Gog abed

1.6

The political structure of the Council is shown below:

Part 2 of the Constitution
Schedule 1

Wiltshire Council Committee Structure

Full Council

Cabinet

Overview and Scrutiny

I —

Joint Strategic Economic

Committee (SWLEP)

Standards Committee

Management Committee

Children’s Select

Audit Committee

Committee

Health Select Committee

Environment Select

Committee

a )
Task Groups

Rapid Scrutiny
Exercises

Proj Boar
L oject Boards

OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY

GOVERNANCE

7
| | Wiltshire Pension Fund

Committee (including
Investment Sub-
LCommittec—:‘)

Wiltshire Local Pension
Board

Wiltshire Health and
Wellbeing Board

Wiltshire Police and
Crime Panel

Area Boards

(Area Committees of the
Council, exercising deleg
Executive authority)

ated

A _

( Community Y Town and 1

| Area | Parish

| Partnerships l Councils )
N R A

(

Partner Organisations

PARTNERED BODIES

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT




99¢ abed

1.7

1.8

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the Council is
directed and controlled and the activities through which the Council accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It
enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

The assurance framework and the system of internal controls are significant parts of the governance framework . They are

designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. They cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The assurance framework and the system of
internal controls are based on an ongoing process that is designed to:

1.9

1.10

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives;

c 9

evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised;

o

assess the impact of the risks if they are realised;

d. manage the risks efficiently, effectively and economically.

The assurance framework also provides a mechanism for monitoring and implementing a system of continuous governance
improvement. The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of approval of the Statement of Accounts for 2017/18.

As part of ensuring the highest standards are set and maintained the Council regularly reviews its governance
arrangements. This statement reflects how Wiltshire Council has met those standards in 2017/18 and the ongoing actions it
is taking to maintain and improve its governance arrangements. Evidence of how we have assessed ourselves in line with
good practice set out by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in its publication ‘Delivering
good governance’, has been grouped into six sections:

1. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and representing the rule of law.
2. Ensuring openness, transparency and comprehensive stakeholder engagement — delivering accountability

3. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits



1.11

2.
2.1
o
QD
«Q
D
w
(@)
\]
2.2
2.3

4. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes
5. Developing capacity, including the capacity of the Council’s leadership and the individuals within it

6. Managing risks and performance through robust internal controls and strong public financial management.

The following sections set out how Wiltshire Council delivers good governance, how it performed in that role in 2017/18 and
what it is doing to continually improve its arrangements.

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and representing the rule of law.

The Council’s Constitution provides the framework within which the Council operates. It sets out how decisions are made
and the procedures which must be followed to ensure that these are efficient, effective, transparent and accountable. The
Constitution is reviewed on an ongoing basis and Full Council updated Parts 11A and 11B (relating to corporate parenting
and safeguarding children) in May 2017 and Part 4 (council procedure rules) on recorded votes in October 2017. In 2017/18
specific reviews on parts 3D (3) (scheme of delegation specific to planning) and various changes to Part 2 (The
Constitution), Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions), Part 9 (Finance Regulations and Procedures) and Protocol 11
(Governance Reporting Arrangements) have commenced. These will be assessed by the Standards Committee and
considered by Full Council on 22 May 2018. This practice ensures that the Constitution remains fit for purpose and is
updated for national and local changes in circumstances.

The Constitution includes at Part 13 the Members’ Code of Conduct, which makes clear the obligation of elected members in
promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct and ensuring the principles of public life (selflessness, integrity,
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership) are adhered to. Pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests are
registered and published on the web site in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Conduct and the underlying
legislation. There is a process for dealing with complaints under the code of conduct for unitary, parish, town and city
councillors in Wiltshire. This process and its application is set by the Council and reviewed regularly by the Council’s
Standards Committee. Minutes from the meetings of this Committee can be found online.

The Council has a policy and register of interests, gifts and hospitality for councillors. This is also reviewed regularly by the
Council’'s Monitoring Officer. The registers are available for public scrutiny.


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13386&path=0
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=11673
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=1128
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mgGeneric.aspx?MD=CouncillorsDeclarationofInterest&bcr=1

89¢ abed

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

There is a strong culture operating in the Council of acting to the highest standards. This is rooted in the behaviours
expected of councillors and staff, and upheld by the senior leaders. Where any resident feels the Council has not acted
properly the Council has a corporate complaints procedure. If residents are not satisfied with the response to their complaint
they may complain to the Local Government Ombudsman. The complaints procedure is also subject to regular review.

The Council publishes and promotes both a code of conduct for its staff and a behaviours Framework that details what is
expected of all employees. The behaviours framework forms a key part of the appraisal system to promote ethical
awareness amongst the Council’s staff.

The Council provided a comprehensive induction programme for newly elected councillors in May 2017, including training on
the decision making framework, standards of conduct, safeguarding, overview and scrutiny and the discharge regulatory
functions. Further training will be provided on an ongoing basis as the Council operates a protocol for Councillor-Officer
Relations to ensure the respective roles of councillors and officers are fully understood. Joint communications are used (The
Wire and Elected Wire) to ensure that officers and councillors have the same understanding of projects, plans and issues.
These measures ensure that elected members have every opportunity to use their expertise.

The Council has established recruitment policies to ensure that appointments to the Council are fair and ethical and meet the
requirements of equalities legislation takes account of the need to ensure diversity. Any applicant who has identified
themselves as disabled and who meets the essential requirements of the person specification will be automatically
shortlisted. This ‘double tick’ policy is part of the Council’s wider Equality and Diversity Policy that ensures all appropriate
decisions are taken with issues of equalities in mind.

Ethical considerations are also evident in the Council’s Procurement Strateqy where Social Value is a key feature. The
Strategy describes a voluntary charter for suppliers asking for a commitment to local employment, skills, training and
environmental issues.

The Council has an Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy which operates as part of the governance framework to ensure the
Council recognises and responds to the threat of fraud and corruption. The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy was reviewed
and updated during 2017/18 and will be published together with awareness initiatives in 2018/19. During 2017/18 SWAP
Internal Audit Services took on responsibility for counter fraud across the Council following the disbanding of the in-house



http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/complaints-making-a-complaint
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/corporate-procurement-strategic-hub
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/(S(wm5gga55b130f045qoanjja5))/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=2182&PlanId=0&Opt=3#AI1662

69¢ abed

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

counter fraud team in late 2016/17. A Counter Fraud Plan for 2017/18 was developed and agreed by the Audit Committee,
delivery being reported during the year.

The Council is reviewing its policies on Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Whistleblowing, Complaints and other Human Resources
Policies to ensure that these are clear to staff and work effectively together.

The Council has independent external auditors (KPMG LLP) and internal auditors (SWAP Internal Audit Services, with the
Council being a partner). SWAP’s periodic update reports were considered during 2017/18 by the Council’'s Audit
Committee. No significant governance issues were raised.

The Council appoints an Independent Remuneration Panel when required to advise and make recommendations to the
Council on the setting of member allowances in accordance with the Local Authorities (Member Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003. The Panel’s latest review was considered by Full Council in October 2017.

The Council is responsible for a number of partnerships, including:

e the Health and Wellbeing Board, a committee of the council with a strategic leadership role in promoting integrated
working between the council and the NHS;

e the Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel which reviews and scrutinises decisions of the Police and Crime Commissioner. The
Panel is a joint committee with Swindon Borough Council;

e The Council is the lead authority for the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP). Following the
Mary Ney national review of LEPs, the Council as the lead authority reviewed the governance and assurance
frameworks underpinning the SWLEP (such as the Joint Strategic Economic Committee) during 2017/18 with input from
internal Audit and DCLG. The governance arrangements were found to be operating effectively and were commended
by DCLG. These will be kept under review to reflect further best practice guidance from central Government during
2018/19.

The Council is the Administering Authority for the Wiltshire Pension Fund, and the Pension Committee exercises its
responsibilities in relation to investment management where it sets investment policy and appoints and monitors external
investment managers. This has including participation in the Brunel Pension Partnership (as agreed by full council) and



https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=155
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=155
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=10973&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Act=later&CId=1163&D=201604141000&MD=ielistmeetings
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wiltshirepoliceandcrimepanel.htm
https://swlep.co.uk/documents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-local-enterprise-partnership-governance-and-transparency
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1234&MId=11281&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1234&MId=11283&Ver=4
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-enterprise-partnership-governance-and-transparency-best-practice-guidance
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=142

0.¢ abed

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

continued operation of a Local Pension Board whose purpose is to assist the Council as Administrator for the Wiltshire
Pension Fund and ensure the efficient and effective governance of the pension scheme. SWAP Internal Audit undertook an
audit of key financial controls in relation to the Wiltshire Fund during 2017/18.

Ensuring Openness, Transparency and Comprehensive Stakeholder Engagement — delivering Accountability

The Constitution sets out the legal and constitutional framework for good decision making, including the principles of
decision making, schemes of delegation, recording of decisions and access to information relating to decisions. All Council,
Cabinet and Committee report templates include a section on legal and financial considerations. These can be seen in all
decisions made, see for example reports available to the public made by Cabinet during 2017/18.

The Council publishes a Forward Work Plan once a month giving details of all matters anticipated to be considered by the
Cabinet over the following 4 months, including items which constitute a key decision.

The Council has established 18 area committees known as Area Boards. Each area board exercises local decision making
under powers delegated by the Leader.

The Council's overview and scrutiny arrangements consist of an Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee supported
by 3 select committees:

e Health (including the NHS, public health and adult social care)
e Environment (including highways, waste and transportation)

e Children (including education, vulnerable children, youth services and early years)

The management committee co-ordinates the work of the select committees and also covers internal services such as
finance, performance, staffing and business planning. Most overview and scrutiny work is done by small groups of elected
members who meet to review single issues in detail. Interested parties are often invited to contribute to this work. The group
then produces a report presenting their findings and recommendations to the cabinet and others as necessary on how the
issue or service could be improved. During 2017/18 49.5% of Cabinet decisions received Overview and Scrutiny input. No
cabinet decisions were called in and considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Commission.


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=11304

T/ abed

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Rapid scrutiny exercises provide the opportunity to be able to react more readily to issues as they emerge. Scrutiny member
representatives can also be appointed to boards of major projects to provide challenge. Partners and contractors also
contribute to the scrutiny process.

These arrangements serve to hold the Cabinet, its Committees, individual Cabinet Members and officers to public account
for their executive policies, decisions and actions and serves to make sure that decisions are taken based on sound
evidence and are in the best interests of the people of Wiltshire.

In 2017/18 Scrutiny Committees consider a wide range of subjects and produced an Annual Report to the Overview and
Select Management Committee on its work. In addition the Council carried out several public consultations to provide
feedback to Cabinet as part of informing their decision making, including:

e Car parking charges

¢ \Waste Management

An electoral review committee was also established during 2017/18 to undertake detailed work on behalf of full council to
inform a submission to the Local Government Boundary Commission for England for the electoral review of Wiltshire. Full
council’s submission emphasised the importance of the council’s area boards for local accountability and delivery.

The Council consults appropriately in line with its Consultation Strategy and legal requirements in order to inform its decision
making. Consultation also takes place with the Council’s partners in particular partnerships such as the Health and Wellbeing
Board and the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership to enable more effective partnership communication and
consultation.

There has been no residents survey undertaken in Wiltshire for a number of years. The Council is aware a number of other
local authorities and partners undertake such an exercise, and it will consider the need and format going forward as part of
its assessment of its governance arrangements in 2018/19.

The Council makes available a range of important information on its website including its strategic aims and ambitions in its
published Business Plan and via its publication scheme. Further information is available on request and through the



https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1122&MId=11741
http://wiltshire.objective.co.uk/portal/parking_and_transport/car_parking_charges_consultation
http://wiltshire.objective.co.uk/portal/waste_and_recycling/waste_and_recycling_survey_2017
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/wilts-council-2010-consultation-strategy.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Act=later&CId=1163&D=201604141000&MD=ielistmeetings
https://swlep.co.uk/
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council-democracy-business-plan
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/freedom-of-information

4.1

4.2

2/ abed

4.3

4.4

4.5

council’s arrangements for dealing with requests under Freedom of Information legislation. In 2017/18 there were 1,495
requests received, 97% were responded to within the legal compliance time.

Defining Outcomes in terms of Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits

Wiltshire Council has operated a four year planning cycle in line with its electoral cycle, as such in 2017/18 the Council
agreed a revised and updated Council’s Business Plan 2017 — 2027. It continues to build on and extend the vision, goals and
achievements from the previous business plans and has been prepared to reflect both the significant external challenges and
changes that the council will have over the coming years as well as the changes to the way the council will have to operate to
manage these challenges.

Part of the building of communities involves capital developments of buildings, highways and other such infrastructure. The
Council sets out a four year Capital Programme tied into its Business Plan. During 2017/18 a hub was completed in Devizes,
building on a health and wellbeing centre in Pewsey began and centres in Calne, Cricklade and Melksham had their revised
budgets approved in Dec 2017 and have now progressed to design phase. This aims to bring communities together in one
location to enable them to connect, seek services and take on more responsibility. In addition, the Council is applying the
learning from the recently completed devolution of assets to Salisbury City Council to other parts of Wiltshire. The Council’s
decision-making framework has ensured that all of these decisions are reported through Cabinet. This is seen as a key
strand of the future delivery of the Council’s business.

The Council’s directorates and services plan their activity around these outcomes and review those plans on an annual
basis. The performance against the Business Plan is reported every quarter to Cabinet and the final outturn for 2017/18 is on
the same agenda as the Annual Governance Statement.

The actions arising from the Business and Service Plans must all comply with key procedures, including following the
Council’s procedures on project management, procurement, consultation and risk management. Regular reports are taken to
senior management and councillors via the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) and appropriate regular councillor meetings,
for example Audit Committee.

Wiltshire communities are engaged with the delivery of the long-term aims of the Council through Local Area Boards. These
Boards prioritise the Council’s ambitions within local areas and help direct resources. The reach of the Local Area Boards
extends beyond the physical meetings through the work of Community Engagement Managers and the virtual network Our


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council-democracy-business-plan
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1160&MId=12011&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=11098

¢/ ¢ abed

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Community Matters. In 2017/18 there were 124 Area Board meetings, and all minutes and actions form these meetings are
publicly available. Area Boards have been essential in delivering improvements in youth development and health initiatives
such as rights of way and walk to school. The Council has also started initiatives such as the Legacy programme and the Big
Pledge to improve the connectivity and health of its communities. More decision making and funding is now devolved at local
area level. In addition to the funding grants and Highways (CATG) and youth activities, there is also funding for older
people’s champions and health and wellbeing projects

The Council receives reports on the combined economic, social and environmental impacts of its policies in the form of
various reports including the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), and the Annual Statement of Accounts, as well as
regular performance and financial updates to Cabinet e.g. here and here.

The council continues to have a relentless focus on safeguarding improvement in Children's Services. An Improvement
Board chaired by the Corporate Director with statutory role of Director of Children's Services (DCS) has continued to be in
place during 2017/18 (Link). In early 2018 the LA and partner agencies were subject to an OFSTED Inspection focussing on
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and High Needs. The outcomes of this review were very positive.

Similarly, the council received the findings of an LGA peer review on Outcomes Based Commissioning in adult social care in
Wiltshire during 2017/18. This found that:

o It was clear to the team that there was strong political leadership for Adult Social Care.
o There were improving relationships with partners.
o The Council’s Area Boards were widely viewed as a positive way of engaging with local communities and for

ensuring that local needs were addressed.

The team also observed that:

o More could be done to increase the amount and profile of coproduction with service users.

o The Council should encourage providers to work more collaboratively with each other and with the Council itself in
addressing skills shortages.

o There needs to be a clear ‘front door’ to accessing adult social care services.

These findings have been used to inform the development of an Adult Social Care Transformation programme, building on
the successful model established within children’s services and using additional and time-limited adult social care funding to


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council-democracy-area-boards
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1163&MId=11086&Ver=4
http://moderngov.wiltshire.council/documents/s141308/Performance%20Management%20and%20Risk%20Outturn%20Report%20Q3%20201718.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s140004/Revenue%20Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20Period%209%20DRAFT.pdf
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/provider/files/2763765/urn/80580.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1163&MId=11083&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s134580/Report%207%20-%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Transformation.pdf

v/ ¢ abed

411

4.12

4.13

deliver this. A system wide review of the health and wellbeing system was also undertaken by the CQC in March 2018, with
the findings due to be released later this year. An action plan will be agreed with partners in the NHS to deliver this.

The council continues to engage in annual LGA peer reviews and in November 2017 it underwent its second Corporate Peer
Review. The detailed report was presented to March Cabinet. The key findings were:

The council has strong and accessible political leadership which sets a clear direction for the council and the place.
Stakeholders are clear what the council stands for, how it goes about its business and what its plans are.

The council benefits from a committed workforce. All staff that the Peer team met told them that Wiltshire Council is a
great place to work; that they feel valued, are developed to undertake their roles and feel supported to progress their
careers.

The Council has a strong record in terms of financial management.

There has been a very good recovery in Children’s services since a disappointing Ofsted inspection in 2012.

There are a range of suggestions and observations within the main section of the report that will inform some ‘quick wins’
and practical actions, including:

Building a shared understanding of the opportunities, investment and skill needed in the areas of commercialism and
‘digital’.

More closely aligning financial and budget planning to organisational priorities and underpin this with a more robust
planning and performance management regime.

Applying the same approach and commitment to the Adults Services Transformation plans as was afforded to the
council’s previous children services recovery plan.

Ensuring that both the council and CLT themselves invest sufficient time in focussing on their development as a team.

An action plan is being implemented and overseen by CLT and Cabinet with the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee monitoring progress on a six-monthly basis.


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s141611/Corporate%20Peer%20Challenge%20-%20Appx%201%20-%20Feedback.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s141612/Corporate%20Peer%20Challenge%20-%20Appx%202%20-%20Plan.pdf

G/ ¢ abed

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

Determining the Interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes

In 2017/18 the Council also refreshed its Medium Term Financial Plan as part of a four-year financial settlement with the
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). As part of that and in setting the 2018/19 budget the Council
has several key Programmes of activity it is managing to improve the outcomes of its residents, these have included the
Campus Programme, with Devizes hub opening in 2017/18. The Campus programme has been the subject of various
reports and programme management updates during 2017/18, and its financial progress reported to Cabinet.

Oversight of corporate projects is undertaken by the Corporate Leadership Team, supported with advice from Finance, Legal
HR and Procurement Teams. The Corporate Directorate includes the Programme Office which manages projects and
programmes on behalf of the Council and provides reports to the Council on ongoing work. During 2017/18 the majority of
projects were delivered or progressed according to schedule. Monthly reports were provided to CLT with appropriate actions
taken.

As part of the financial settlement for 2017/18 additional Adult Social Care grant was awarded. This was used to establish
the transformation programme for adult social care within Wiltshire. Health partners are actively engaged in this Programme
at a senior level through the Health and Wellbeing Board as well as operational representation on the programme board.

Regular Performance and financial updates are reported to senior officers and councillors, including scrutiny through the
Finance and Performance Task Group which is a task group established by the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee.

Developing capacity, including the capacity of the Council’s leadership and the individuals within it

In order to deliver the council’s priorities within a strong governance framework the Council requires a workforce that is
appropriately skilled and qualified. Because of the shifting requirements of local government and the changing demands put
on the Council it is essential that the capacity of the Council’'s workforce is reviewed and updated. Following the May 2017
elections, the council’s Business Plan was refreshed and to aid the delivery of the outcomes a restructuring of Tier 1 and 2 of
the council’s management structure has taken place to ensure that directorates are aligned with the delivery of outcomes. A
comprehensive induction programme was also put on for new councillors.


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1160&MId=12011&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=11098
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s140009/Capital%20Period%209%2020172018%20Appendix%20E.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s134580/Report%207%20-%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Transformation.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=1122

9/¢ abed

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

In addition to this, the Council takes an organisation wide approach to staff improvement and has, in the last year, updated
its People Strategy. The new strategy focuses on attracting the best people to work for the Council and engaging, developing
and retaining existing staff. Full council also agreed a pay policy statement as part of the budget setting process and
complies with reporting requirements on the gender pay gap.

The Council looks for good practice from other areas and other authorities in order to help improve its leadership and
delivery. The Council also makes use of external reviews of its practice in order to deliver better outcomes. In 2017/18
several key peer reviews and inspection were completed and the findings of all are public:

e Ofsted review of SEND

e LGA Corporate Peer Review report
e Outcomes Based Commissioning for Adult Social Care peer review findings

e CQC system review (results due for publication in 18/19)

In March 2015 the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) carried out a voluntary audit of the Council’s information
governance arrangements. As reported in last two year’s AGS this has been a key area for the Council to address, and with
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) changes having come into force in May 2018 remains so. Actions have been
taken and as well as the Senior Information Risk Owner annual report ongoing updates have been provided to the Audit
Committee, which are content that significant improvement has and continues to be taken and made in this area.

Working in partnerships is increasingly important to the Council and is used as an additional method of improving and
growing the skills base for delivering the Council’s objectives.

Managing risks and performance through robust internal controls and strong public financial management

Performance management is a key component of the Council’s approach to achieving its stated outcomes. Part of this
process involves identifying and, where appropriate, mitigating risks, ensuring that performance and risk management
processes are in place throughout the organisation with additional rigorous processes to ensure sound financial
management. Performance management follows the standard planning cycle (plan, do review, revise) and allows the


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s132314/Appendix%201%20New%20people%20strategy.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council-democracy-hr-pay-policy
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/provider/files/2763765/urn/80580.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s141611/Corporate%20Peer%20Challenge%20-%20Appx%201%20-%20Feedback.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1163&MId=11083&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s134714/SIRO%20Report%202016-2017.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=11068

7.2

7.3

/1€ abed

organisation to know what it wants to achieve, how it's going to achieve, whether it's achieving and what more could be done
to achieve. Performance reports are a regular part of the Council’s business. In addition to cabinet performance reports the
Council updates a Citizens’ Dashboard with statistics about Wiltshire for easy public consumption. The format of the
dashboard will be reviewed during 2018/19 to ensure it reflects the new business plan and delivers maximum openness and
transparency.

Financial reporting is currently undertaken separately, although reported on the same agenda as performance, this is an
area for improvement in 2018/19. During 2017/18 there were four budget monitoring updates to councillors (period 4, 7, 9
and outturn), and 11 to senior officers (monthly, period 2 to outturn). These identified potential overspends, and appropriate
action was taken. This raised the risk of the Council’s financial position in its Corporate Risk Register however, effective
management meant that a small surplus was delivered by year end. The Council also undertook robust scrutiny of the
2018/19 budget and this was set at Full Council in February 2018.

The Council’s risks are monitored at various levels in the organisation including by the Cabinet on a quarterly basis.
Managing risks is the responsibility of services who define the risks related to their service areas and assign individuals to be
responsible for their management. All services risks are scored on the same basis and some service risks are elevated,
through a set strategy, onto the corporate risk register which is published and reviewed quarterly. Service risks that are high
scoring or appear on, or are referenced on, the strategic risk register require a greater level of mitigating action planning with
those actions assigned a time scale and an owner. The Council recognises that in order to make successful changes some
risk must be undertaken. Therefore, some risks are accepted. This overarching risk management strategy will be reviewed
again during 2018/19 alongside the Corporate Performance Strategy.


http://moderngov.wiltshire.council/documents/s141308/Performance%20Management%20and%20Risk%20Outturn%20Report%20Q3%20201718.pdf
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/CitzDash/CitizenDashboard/MainReports

8/ ¢ abed

Likelihood

7.4
changes to risks were:

Changes in Residual Scores of Strategic Risks June 2015
to March 2018

Contract <>‘ i;
Management
Info Pandemic Flu
Governancge | Floodin
Budget
Management
Safeguarding
Children Electricity Failure |
Terrorist Attack |
Health & Air Quality
Safety Staff capacity

* Cyber
Security

i::} = start point

<>Risk Name = end point

* added in Sept 2015

Safeguarding
Adults

Im'pact

-
=
o
=
a
)
]
=
]

=

=i
©
=
=]
=
=]
(8]

Changes in overall Residual Scores of

Strategic Risks June 2015 to March 2018

Budget

Health &
Safety

Safeguarding
Children

The Council’s risk management reports are reviewed by Cabinet within performance and risk reports. In 2017/18 the main

)

Cyber Security

Management |
Staff Capacity



7.5

7.6

8.1

6.¢ abed

Wiltshire’s section 151 Officer or Chief Finance Officer has a statutory duty to ensure that the Council has a strong financial
control environment, including an effective and independent Internal Audit function in accordance with the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015. As at April 2018, SWAP Internal Audit Services completed 40 reviews ,to draft and final report
including significant high risk areas e.g. contract management and project management. Reporting also has included action
to follow up implementation. The Audit Committee raised concerns regarding the timeliness of finalising some audits and the
implementation of agreed audit recommendations and improvements were made. Overall SWAP Internal Audit Services
assessed the Council’s control environment as ‘adequate’ with no significant issues raised. The Council’s external auditors
have also not raised any significant matters during 2017/18. We have sought to advise KPMG at all times and sought their
views on a number of occasions before taking key decisions. A review was carried out on role of the Audit Committee in
2017/18 and agreed actions will be implemented in 2018/19.

The section 151 Officer’s role as set out in both statute and defined by the CIPFA framework has been in place throughout
2017/18. No issues have been raised and there has been full compliance with that framework.

Areas for Improvement

The Council has identified a number of areas where further improvements to can be made to strengthen its governance
framework. Work will be undertaken over the next twelve months to review the following areas.

e Responding to the recommendations in peer reviews including the Corporate Peer, SEND and CQC reviews. This will
include assessing the impacts on the delivery of the Council’'s Business and Financial Plans of external factors including
the Social Care green paper expected Summer 2018, changes to the Business Rates system and lessons learnt from the
s114 issued at Northamptonshire County Council.

e Embedding improvements to data protection to be compliant with the new regulatory framework.

e Responding to an event in March 2018 that occurred in Salisbury the Council will seek to learn and share lessons
surrounding the event, as well as assess the long-term impact and actions needed for the County, Council and Partners.

e Ensuring the new waste contract is mobilised effectively in line with current plans for July 2018.

e Improving the Council’s counter fraud framework including greater awareness and response.



8.2

08¢ abed

e There will be a review of the inter-relationship between key polices to improve clarity and consistency of processes
including: Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Whistle Blowing, complaints and some staff policies, such as registering interests,
gifts and hospitality.

e How the Council collects general feedback from individuals and communities to assess improvements in approach

e Reporting of finance and performance and risk management will be more closely aligned. A review of the relevant
Corporate Performance Strategy and Risk Management Strategy will take place to ensure a focus on links between the
use of resources and the outcomes being achieved. Alongside this there will be a focus on delivery of comprehensive
plans for change for council services and a review of council commissioning, procurement and contract management.

The governance of the Council will continue to be monitored by Cabinet, other councillor committees and the Council’s
Corporate Leadership Team. That will include the areas to address identified above.

Leader of the Council
Baroness Jane Scott of
Bybrook OBE

Corporate Directors
Alistair Cunningham
Dr. Carlton Brand
Terence Herbert

Date




Agenda Item 11

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q4
2017/18

Cabinet member: Councillor Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Finance

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

This report provides an update on performance against the stated aims in the
council’s new Business Plan 2017-27. The information provided includes key
measures as well as the council’s strategic risk register.

Proposals
Cabinet to note updates and outturns

1. Against the measures and activities ascribed against the council’s
priorities.
2. To the strategic risk register.

Reason for Proposal

The current corporate performance framework compiles measures used to
monitor progress in service areas against planned objectives that relate to the
goals laid out in Wiltshire Council’s current Business Plan 2017-27.

The strategic risk register captures and monitors significant risks facing the
council: in relation to significant in-service risks facing individual areas and in
managing its business across the authority generally.

Carlton Brand, Alistair Cunningham, and Terence Herbert,
Corporate Directors

> Page 381



Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q4
2017/18

Cabinet member: Councillor Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Finance

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. This report provides an update on the progress against the stated aims in
the council’s Business Plan. It includes measures from the performance
framework as well as the latest version of the council’s strategic risk
register. This report covers the period January to March 2018.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2. This report updates Cabinet on the performance against each of the
stated goals contained in the Business Plan 2017 to 2027 at the end of
quarter four 2017/18.

Overview of outturns

3. Below are some key measures shown under the three key priorities of the
new business plan: growing the economy, strong communities and
protecting those who are most vulnerable.

> Page 382



Priority 1.1 Growing the Economy — Highly Skilled Jobs

4. To create the workforce needed to match the demands of a future
economy Wiltshire Council is keen to promote high educational standards
for all children in the county. Last financial year was a high point for the
classification of Wiltshire’s schools with over 94% of pupils attending
good or outstanding schools according to Ofsted. At the end of this
financial year that figure was 87% but it remains above the national
average. The percentage of good or better schools dipped last year
consistent with their mixed examination and testing results. The
establishment of the “Right Choice” platform for traded services and
professional development in particular should give schools better access
to support services. School Effectiveness Team has committed to a
detailed report to Children’s Select Committee on schools’ Ofsted results.

% of Pupils who attend Good and Outstanding Secondary
Schools in Wiltshire

95%
90% / \
/ k

S

85% 7 /

80%

100%

75%
s \\ilt shire e Fngland

70%

Ql‘QZ‘Q?)‘Qtl
2017/18

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qtl
2016/17

Ql‘QZ‘Q?)‘Qtl
2015/16

65%
Q4lq1‘ QZ‘Q?:‘ Q4
013/

]

4 2014/15

5.  Supporting training and skills programmes including apprenticeships and
building more higher education opportunities within the county is helping
build a workforce fit for the future. More highly skilled jobs might result in
overall higher rates of pay. The graph below shows that Wiltshire’s
average rates of pay have improved over time specifically in the last year
and are now within 1% of the national average for the first time in 6 years.
This measure includes Wiltshire residents who commute out of the county
and are generally better paid.

> Page 383



£580 A
£560 g
7
£540 /7 3
£520 _— g
£500 — 3
(0]
o —
=
£460 g
- S
£440 — Wiltshire =
England @
£420 -
s
£400 : T : T : T : T : T : T : T : T : T : T : I 2
3
T

Median gross weekly pay for full-time workers

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Source: Nomis

Priority 1.2 Growing the Economy — Sustainable Development

6.

Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan states that sustainable development will
be achieved by delivering development where it is needed and in
accordance with Wiltshire’s Core Strategy. Making the right planning
decisions helps enable that ambition. This financial year has seen
consistently good performance. The success rate of defending planning
appeals has been above the 70% target in each of the four quarters.
Additionally, the number of appeals made has fallen in each consecutive
quarter and the total number of appeals in the year was 23% lower than
in 2016/17.

Successful defence of planning appeals 3
100% 60 £
£ 9% 2
7 so% A N\ 30, g
8 A AN NN\ /X E 2
H / \ b 40 & 2
w3l 60% . & <
- 3
® T \ =T )
g5 50% V 30 . <
g2 o o/ V -
o5 40% B ]
@ 20% ~N Successrate - 20 2 2
E ’ No. appeals g g
& 2% -app 102 £
< 10% g
% 10 oy
Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qd Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qtl Ql‘QZ‘QS‘Qtl Ql‘QZ‘QS‘Qd &

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 v

In order to provide the most effective building control service possible the
council seeks to maintain a professional, responsive team of experts. The
council service competes with the private sector but has a statutory
responsibility to offer a building control service as ‘provider of last resort’.
The greater the share of the market the Council has the easier itis to
offer a high-quality service. Wiltshire council’s market share has fallen in
the last year and the situation is being closely monitored.

Page 384



Building Control - Wiltshire Council's % market share
80.0%

70.0% N\
\___\ --=-________ I

60.0% \
50.0% e

40.0%

30.0%
20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

Ql‘QZ‘Q_%‘Qtl
2017/18

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qtl
2016/17

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qtl
2015/16

Ql‘QZ‘Q_%‘Qtl
2014/15

Priority 1.3 Growing the Economy — Transport and Infrastructure

91eJ 4ay3iy e Ag umoys si aouewsoad Jauag>

8. Strategically managing the county’s highways is one way in which
Wiltshire Council aims to improve infrastructure and thereby help create
conditions in which Wilshire’s economy can grow. One outward sign of
well managed highways is the filling of potholes and the undertaking of
general repairs to the highway. The average length of time it takes
Wiltshire Council and its contractors to respond to, and resolve, a
highways issue (13 days) and to fill potholes (5 days) has increased in the
final quarter of the year. This is an expected rise as the amount of
damage to Wiltshire roads increased due to the cold weather. In fact, the
number of potholes reported was up by 115% on the previous quarter to

just under 4,000.

1 Highways - average days between issues report and fix

. NS A

SN\ N SN\AL
N/ AT\ A

N~ V. O\

. N\
N

Pothole fixes

== || highways fixes

Q1 ‘ Q2 ‘ Q3 ‘ Q4
2016/17

Q1 ‘ Q2 ‘ Q3 ‘ Q4
2015/16

2017/18

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘in

> Page 385

<Better performance is shown by a lower number



Priority 2.1 Strong Communities — Community Wellbeing

9.

High levels of volunteering is a measure of strong community wellbeing.
One of the ways in which the council can promote volunteering is to
provide voluntary opportunities for people to take-up. Volunteers are used
in many of the council’s services. One such example is in maintaining
countryside sites and rights of way where participation rates remain high.
The severe weather experienced in the last quarter, specifically the last
month, of the financial year had a big impact on the tasks that were
possible and therefore, the hours of volunteering given. Despite this fact
across both measures there were 2.2% more hours given in 2017/18 than
in the previous year.

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

Hours of Volunteering for Wiltshire Council

~

Maintaining rights of ways \

/\——-’\:/ A\/ET Cyﬁdegt—e; /\\

"o

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qﬂr
2017/18

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qﬂr
2016/17

Ql‘Q2‘Q3‘Q4
2015/16

Ql‘QZ‘CB‘Qﬂr
2014/15

10.

Wiltshire’s communities are strengthened by effective management of
litter and waste. Wiltshire Council aims to meet the national target of 50%
of household waste being recycled or composted by 2020. The recycling
rate is shown as a year-to-date figure. Performance falls in the final
quarter of the year because there is less garden waste in the winter
months. In 201718 45% of household waste was recycled or composted,
an increase of more than one percentage point compared to 2016/17.

50.0%
49.0%
48.0%
47.0%
46.0%
45.0%
44.0%
43.0%
42.0%
41.0%
40.0%

Dry Recycling and Composting as a percentage of

household waste

91eJ Jay31y e Ag umoys si 2ouew.oyad Ja119g >

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Page 386



Priority 2.2 Strong Communities — Safe Communities

11.  In order to improve safety in communities Wiltshire Council aims to
reduce alcohol misuse. A number of tactics are used by public health and
social care teams to reduce alcohol dependence and harm. In the most
recent data Wiltshire has mirrored the dramatic national drop in the rate of
alcohol related hospital admissions.

Hospital admissions for alcohol related conditions (rate

750 per 100,000 population) =
700 5
650 \ 2
600 8
550 \/A \\ 8
500 \\ B
450 g
— Wiltshire N £

400 5
England .

350 5
300 T . T . T ' T ' T ' { o

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Source: LG Inform

<

Priority 2.3 Strong Communities — Personal Wellbeing

12.  In order to achieve healthier communities Wiltshire Council works with
many groups to reduce the harmful impacts of unhealthy habits. Wiltshire
Council, in conjunction with its partners, runs a number of programmes to
help people give up smoking. There are specific programmes for
vulnerable people. The graph below shows that there may be a way to go
but in the last six years there has been a 4.5% point reduction in the rate
of expectant mothers smoking at the time of delivery. The Wiltshire rate is
now below 10% and below the national average.

% exptant mothers smoking at time of delivery o
16 g
| Wiltshire g
14 - s
® England ©
12 >
2 6 £
S
i g
0 T T T T T T T ”
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Source: PHOF
> Page 387



Priority 3.1 Protecting the Vulnerable — Early Intervention

13. Wiltshire Council’s business plan put a greater emphasis on early
intervention for potentially vulnerable people. The desired impact is that
there will be less demand for more intensive statutory support for
vulnerable people further down the line. This is a long-term aim. The
number and rate of referrals to children’s social care might be expected to
reduce over time as more emphasis is placed on helping children and
families before they require a referral to social care. However, it is
important to note that more referrals may also be an indication of better
identification of those who are vulnerable. There has been a reduction in
both the overall number of referrals to children’s services and rate (per
10,000 of the child population) in the past three years and the rate in
Wiltshire remains below that of England as a whole.

Number and rate per 10,000 of referrals to Children's Social Services

1,600
Wiltshire number
1,400
— Wiltshire Rate
1,200
England Rate
3,00 4—m— — — — — — — —— — —
s00 — M M W B N B N N N N N N N N N
I S o Gmm me— = e mem mm mmm D B D BN BN mm e
-'-'-'-—__
400_7____________ [—
P B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B
0 I I I 1 1 1 1 1 L 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 |
sl slzalelalzlalalsls alals s
20112012201 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Source: LAIT

< Better performance may be shown by a higher or lower rate >

> Page 388



14.

Wiltshire Council aims to have schools that help all pupils. The Council
would like to see early educational intervention lead to better outcomes
for disadvantaged pupils. The Progress 8 measure compares the
progress of students between the end of primary school (key stage 2) and
GCSE (key stage 4) to the national average of those at a similar level of
achievement. A positive score suggests that a group made more
progress, on average, than those nationally who got similar results at key
stage 2. A negative score means less progress, on average. The
outcomes for the last two years show a disparity between disadvantaged
and non-disadvantaged pupils with that disparity being greater in Wiltshire
than in England as a whole. Wiltshire has recognised the priority of
addressing the needs of disadvantaged learners. Schools have identified
disadvantaged learner leads, and activity has focused on raising
awareness and spreading good practice. The council’s Children's Select
Committee is currently considering the best way to scrutinise the
Disadvantaged Learners' Strategy.

Progress 8 measure

W England Non-disadvantaged F

m Wiltshire

017

Non-disadvantaged -

-0.70

-0.60 -0.50 -0.40 -0.30 -0.20 -0.10 0.00 0.10 0.20
Source: LAIT
N

Better performance is shown by a higher number >

Priority 3.2 Protecting the Vulnerable — Integration

15.

Ensuring that services which are designed to protect the most vulnerable
in our communities are well linked and work together is a key goal for
Wiltshire Council. Wiltshire Council works hard with its partners in health
care to provide a seamless service. Part of this work is to reduce demand
on both the health and care parts of the service. The number of people
who required adult social care has risen by 3.9% in the last year but is
almost the same as the number in 2015/16.

Page 389



9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000

The number of people requiring adult care services

)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Better performance may be shown by a higher or
lower rate

<

Priority 3.3 Protecting the Vulnerable — Personalisation

16. Wiltshire Council takes opportunities to work with its partners to protect
the most vulnerable. Children and young people referred into the social
care teams are amongst the most vulnerable. Effective multi-agency
working should mean that these young people get the support they need.
One way to measure the effectiveness of the service is to consider how
many are re-referred back into the service. In the last four years the
proportion of children re-referred within 12 months has remained largely
stable at around 18.5%. The reduction in the rate in the previous four
years means that the Wiltshire rate remains below the national average.
Percentage of Re-Referrals to children's services within 12

35 months

30 ™~

20 ~N——————

15

— Wiltshire

10

* 2018is a provisional local figure England
5
0 T T T T : T T T 1

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 *
Source: LAIT

Page 390

<Better performance is shown by a lower rate



2011/12  2012/13  2013/14  2014/15  2015/16  2016/17

Source: LG Inform

17. Accommodation is often the key factor affecting people’s vulnerability.
Wiltshire council’s Business Plan is clear that finding suitable
accommodation for vulnerable people is a priority. The rate of Wiltshire
households, with children, in temporary accommodation has fallen over
the last five years to a low of 1.5 in every 1,000. Over the same period the
national figure, which matched the Wiltshire level in 2011/12, has risen to
a high of 4.1.

a5 Households with dependent children in temporary o

' accommodation per 1,000 ©

35 / -

3.0 3

-~ g

25 / £

2.0 \ -

1.5 —— £

——Wiltshire £

1.0 £

——England C
0.5 -
0.0 g

An Innovative and Effective Council

18.

I's important for Wiltshire Council to be effective in delivering services to
our customers as well as with its inhouse processes. The roll-out of
Universal Credit Full Service created a spike in new claims and workload
prior to its introduction in June 2017 and has had an impact on the
council’s teams delivering benefits services to residents. There has been
a fall in the number of new Housing Benefits claims since June 2017.
There were 40% fewer new claims in December 2017 than there were in
December 2016. However Universal Credit does not include council tax
reduction where the caseload has fallen by less than 4% in the same
period with over 25,000 households receiving this benefit. Despite the
impact of Universal Credit Full Service, the average processing time was
actually five days less in December 2017 than in the same month the
previous year. Wiltshire, after an unsettled period, is moving back towards
the national average time to process new claims.

Page 391



Average time to process new Council Tax Relief and

< Better performance is shown by a lower number

45.00 ; . .
Housing Benefit claims
40.00 ~
35.00 A\//\ /\
/ \ / \\
25.00 - -
\W
20.00
\~‘--/
15.00
10.00 England
— Wiltshire
5.00
000 —p+—
s 5 3% 393 =52 9 98 =5|F 5 |3
2015 2016 2017 2018
Source: LG Inform
19. Through its People Strategy the council aims to ensure that it can attract,

retain and motivate the best people to serve Wiltshire’s communities. It

does this through empowering staff, providing innovate flexible

employment practices and working with the staff body. A mark of this
success would be staff retention. The graph below shows the proportion
of staff who choose to leave the council. Wiltshire’s annualised rate at the
end of last quarter was 9.7% which is low in comparison to the figure for

all English local authorities in the past few years.

0.20
0.18
0.16
0.14
0.12
0.10
0.08
0.06
0.04
0.02
0.00

Staff turnover rate (year to date annualised)

-—-—'-'----_—

/M\ —-"’_'_""“'-——____‘—/\_.._

——Wiltshire

England

a1l a3 as 1|2 03| as a1 |@2| a3 |t | @2 03| as

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Source: LG Inform

Page 392

Better performance is shown by a lower rate

<



20. As Wiltshire Council improves the efficiency of its contact with its
residents by providing more, and more efficient, ways for people to
contact the council and conduct transactions the number of occasions
where people need to interact with a member of council staff face-to-face
or by telephone has reduced. The trend in the number of face-to-face
contacts over the last four years shows a reduction of 19.7% and
telephone contacts of 4.5%. That reduction has been more marked in the
year to March 2018 with the average monthly number of face-to-face
contacts falling by 34.3% and telephone contacts by 28.6% suggesting a
potential greater uptake and reliance on digital contact options.

Total volume of contacts per month
90000 -

80000 -

Face-to-face
70000 - Telephone
60000 -
50000 -
40000
30000

20000 -

10000 - WWW

0

- £ B bp o = C Bp o+ o = £ o +
o o o o o (=1 [ =]
qiéog qogu‘:‘qiéog&:‘qiéog

2014 ‘ 2016 ‘

Feb
Apr
Jun
u
Feb

2015 2017

‘2018‘

)

Better performance may be shown by a higher or lower number

<

Strategic Risk Register (as at end March 2018)

21.

22.

23.

24.

Delivering the Council’s new Business Plan will continue to offer a
significant challenge given an increasing demand for key services, such
as care for vulnerable children and adults, waste management and
highways maintenance, as well as rising inflation costs and smaller
central government grants. The Strategic Risk Register reflects these
challenges.

For the first time, the strategic risk register reflects the challenges
presented by the incident that took place in Salisbury on 5th March.
Wiltshire Council has been at the centre of recovery efforts in Salisbury
and the strategic risk register reflects the greater risks to the council
identified by the end of March.

The Strategic Risk Register draws together information recorded on risk
registers at service delivery level. Each Directorate area holds at least
one Service Risk Register.

Information that has significance across the council as a whole is
displayed in two categories on the Strategic Risk Register.

Page 393



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.
31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Critical service risks: significant single service risks, which, should they be
realised will have a significant impact on the organisation as a whole.

Composite strategic risks: risks which are significant within a number of
service areas although individually would not significantly impact on the
organisation as a whole. These risks are compiled into a single strategic
composite risk (owned by the most appropriate service) and included
within the strategic risk register. The ongoing monitoring of these risks
therefore is drawn from the updates to the individual service level risks.

National risks, which mirror the most significant risks on the Cabinet
Office’s national risk register and is Wiltshire’s response should these risks
be realised, will be reported once a year as there is very little movement
in the impact or likelihood of these risks.

The simplified version of the current strategic risk register is provided in
appendix 1.

Each risk is fully defined by the responsible service (who assess the
cause, event and effect that make up the identified risk) and scored for
impact and likelihood to give an overall score. A risk is scored twice;
firstly, as inherent (the current level of risk) and then as residual (the risk
as it would be once all mitigating actions are in place). The actions
described are RAG’d, based on progress towards completion. This RAG
guides the reader of the register to understand the true current risk.

A whole range of service risks are kept under observation each quarter.

Of the nine risks listed on the strategic risk register three have an inherent
score that puts them in the ‘high’ bracket.

The imitate response to the issue in Salisbury involved the work of many
staff from across the organisation including large contributions from the
corporate office, public health, communications and economy and growth.
In addition, many the council’'s most senior staff were required to be
involved. There was a danger that these areas would be unable to
maintain the level of work they had expected to achieve while supporting
work in Salisbury. Support from across the organisation and clear
prioritisation has meant the risk has been reduced.

The impact on Salisbury’s economy from the incident in March is
significant. The risk to the council and its strategic aims is that economic
recovery from that shock is slow. The mitigation of this risk is being
undertaken by the Recover Coordination Group and its sub groups.

There was little change in the individual service risks around contract
management but a greater understanding of what is required from an
updated contract management framework following an audit has meant
that the corporate level risk is viewed as higher.

The corporate composite risk around Information Governance has
increased scoring this quarter as a result of greater incident reporting.
This is due to raised awareness and an easier procedure for reporting
incidents. The increase in scoring represents a better understanding of
the true risk across the organisation. Additional monitoring and measuring
of incidents and practice are in place but the impact of these mitigations
will take some months to be felt.

Page 394


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/419549/20150331_2015-NRR-WA_Final.pdf

36. Some of the issues described in composite corporate risks are more
severe in specific services but the scores displayed represent the risk for
Wiltshire Council. This is the case with the Staff Capacity risk where the
relevant lead services are undertaking reviews of service level risks.

37. The safeguarding of vulnerable adults and children remains a high priority
for the council. This focus means that actions continue to be sought and
undertaken, to mitigate the likelihood of safeguarding incidents. This
includes the development of an adult multi-agency safeguarding service
(MASH) made up from the Police, Clinical Commissioning Group and the
council which will further enhance our safeguarding response across
Wiltshire, ensuring better communication and response. Policy and plans
are in place to help recruitment and retention in children’s service in order
to further mitigate the safeguarding risks.

Overview & Scrutiny Engagement

38. The Financial Planning Task Group is due to consider this report at its
next available meeting. The Task Group will also play a role in the
development of the new performance management framework helping to
ensure clear links to the council’s new business plan

Safeguarding Implications

39. A number of indicators are regularly analysed which directly relate to the
safeguarding of children and adults. Action is taken where improvements
in performance are required.

Public Health Implications
40. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Procurement Implications
41. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
42. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
43. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Risk Assessment
44. Not applicable as no decision is required.

> Page 395



Financial Implications
45. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Legal Implications
46. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Options Considered
47. Not applicable as no decision is required.

Conclusions

48. This report brings together updates performance indicators that make up
the corporate performance framework as well supplementary commentary
to provide further context around the council’s activities in these areas
and the risks faced by the council.

Robin Townsend
Director, Corporate Services & Digital

Report Author:
Toby Eliot, Corporate Support Manager | toby.eliot@wiltshire.qgov.uk
May 2018

Appendices
J Appendix 1: Strategic Risk Register (Q4 March 2018)

> Page 396


mailto:toby.eliot@wiltshire.gov.uk

Wiltshire Council Strategic Risk Register

2016/17 Quarter Four

Risk short name

Critical Service Risks
Safeguarding Children

Primary
Risk
Category

Service Delivery

Secondary
Risk
Category

Reputation

Q4
Inherent
Impact

Q4 Q4
Inherent Inherent
Likelihood Risk Rating

/6 abed

4 2
Safeguarding Adults Reputation Service Delivery

4 2
Inability to deliver business |Service delivery |Reputation
as usual or respond to
another 'major incident’
while providing resource to 3 4
Salisbury Recovery
Failure to revive Salisbury's |Reputation
economy

3 3

Q4 Actions
RAG

Q4
Residual
Impact

Q4
Residual
Likelihood

Q4 Res
Risk Rating

Q4 Comments

safeguarding duties.

Vacancies within the wider team carry
an inherent risk and mean that the
residual risk is no lower. The specific
risk is mitigated by long-term strategy
on recruitment and the prioritisation of

period of transition.

The individual risk areas remain well
monitored and managed during a

developed.

The quantity of staff, and other
resource, required to support on going
recovery in Salisbury is not yet known.
Plans for providing resource to this
unforeseen area of work, alongside
business as usual, are being

support.

The council will be working closely with
businesses, trade bodies and other
organisations to develop recovery
plans and coordinate government

page 1 of 2



86¢ abed

Wiltshire Council Strategic Risk Register

2016/17 Quarter Four

Risk short name

Composite Corporate Risks

Staff capacity: Recruitment
and Retention

Primary
Risk
Category

Staffing/ People

Secondary
Risk
Category

Q4
Inherent
Impact

Q4

Inherent

3 2
Budget management Financial Reputation

3 3
Contract monitoring and Service delivery  |Financial
management

4 3
Corporate Health, Safety &  |Health & safety
Wellbeing

3 2
Information Governance Reputation Financial

4 3

Q4

Inherent
Likelihood Risk Rating

Q4 DoT

Q4 Actions Q4 Q4
RAG Residual Residual
Impact Likelihood

Q4 Res
Risk Rating

Q4 Comments

There are some individual service risks
where scores are high - these include
in Adult Care and IT. The HR service
are working directly to mitigate those
specific risks.

Continued review of budgets and RAG
rating on the planned savings in
2018/19 to flag any variance early as
possible and bring forward
compensating savings.

The inherent risk score has been
increased to emphasize the important
of contract management to
organisation’s performance. 114
council officers have now been trained
on contract management and thus the
likelihood score has been lowered to
reflect this. Also, the Contract
Management Framework (CMF) has
been updated to apply
recommendations made by SWAP in
their recent audit — changes include
better alignment of relationship
between the CMF and CM Toolkit and
also increased promotion of the CMF
and Toolkit across the Council’s
contract management community.

New service-specific risk assessments
are now being used to manage down
likelihood of services risks becoming
issues.

will take some time to have an impact.

Increased scoring due to heightened
awareness of incident reporting. New
monitoring and measuring in place but

page 2 of 2



Agenda Item 12

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Families & Children's Services Social Work Capacity

Cabinet Member: Clir Laura Mayes - Cabinet Member for Children,
Education and Skills

Key Decision: Yes

Executive Summary

The current and future demand in children’s services is evident both nationally
and locally. We have improved services within Wiltshire for vulnerable children
and families and we now need to prepare ourselves going forward. One key
issue we need to address is the social work capacity within Families and
Children’s Services via new investment.

Proposal

That Cabinet approve an additional £1.2m investment to increase the social
work capacity with Families and Children’s Services.

Reason for Proposal

We need ensure sustainable, future proof and secure service across Families
and Children’s Services. This will only be achieved by increasing the number
of social workers and associated posts to ensure we can manage the current
predicted increase in service demand and offer both achievable, and where
required, protected levels of caseloads. The proposals will also ensure we
have sufficient managerial oversight in this important and high-risk area of the
council’s delivery. This proposal essentially ensures the Local Authority have
the requisite capacity within core work groups to deliver on these principles.

Terence Herbert
Corporate Director

Page 399



Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Families & Children's Services Social Work Capacity

Cabinet Member: Clir Laura Mayes - Cabinet Member for Children,
Education and Skills

Key Decision: Yes

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to outline the proposal to ensure a sustainable,
future proof and secure service across Families and Children’s Services. This
will be achieved by increasing the number of social workers and associated
posts to ensure we can manage the current predicted increase in service
demand and offer both achievable, and where required, protected levels of
caseloads. The proposals will also ensure we have sufficient managerial
oversight in this important and high-risk area of the council’s delivery.

2. The outcome sought is an additional £1.2m annual investment in Families and
Children’s Services.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

3. One of the council’s five priorities in the Business Plan 2017- 2027 is to protect
the most vulnerable in Wiltshire’s communities. Social workers and social work
mangers have a key role in delivering that priority which means being able to
recruit and retain the right number of high calibre staff in these roles is critical
to delivering the principles and actions that will ensure that we meet this
priority.

Background

4. The background is that the establishment levels within this service have
remained the same since 2015 when social work capacity was last increased,
this alongside the market supplement introduced 2015 had a positive impact
but are no longer sufficient going forward.

Social Work - Building a sustainable model

5. There are many elements that influence and support the quality of social work
delivery; high quality university education, good induction, robust, reflective
and supportive supervision and management oversight, effective procedures
and systems and manageable caseloads.

Page 400



6. We have been developing a robust practice framework (CARE) — a coherent

approach that structures how we work with families; our staff feedback is that
this is assisting them in their assessment and interventions.

The Council has invested in a new Case Management System (CMS) run by
Liquid Logic. The system is scheduled to go live in November 2018 and will
bring together the Council’s work across Early Help, Children’s Social Care
and Support and Education support. It will allow us, through the use of
Portals and Liquid Logic’s Singleview module, to work even more closely with
partners who will be enabled to use the system to understand a family’s
journey, contribute directly to assessments and more effectively share
information.

We deliver a training offer that staff support and we operate as a learning
organisation ensuring reviews and audits along with family feedback inform
the learning and development programme for staff and partners.

Our staff are committed to Wiltshire and to the families they work with. They
tell us and the evidence supports their view that with manageable caseloads
they can more effectively work with families and experience an improved
sense of wellbeing for themselves.

Main Considerations for the Council

10.

11.

12.

13.

There is much to celebrate in Wiltshire with supporting and improving life
chances for children and young people at the heart of the Council’'s agenda.
Ensuring that our children and young people are safe and healthy, and that
families have access to services that meet their individual needs at an early
stage, is crucial in making sure every child and young person has the best
possible start in life and grow up to be purposeful and functioning adults and
potential parents.

Wiltshire is a relatively healthy and affluent County and outcomes for most
children and young people are generally good compared to outcomes across
England. However too many of our children who live with increased or
multiple vulnerabilities (for example Special Educational Needs [SEN],
young carers, care leavers, young people with mental health difficulties) are
not doing as well in life as we, or their families would wish.

12% of our children live in low income families. The issues faced by these
children combine to impact upon their development and education, limiting
their future employment prospects, and reducing their opportunities to
succeed throughout their lives and increasing the likelihood of their reliance
on ‘high end services’.

The Families and Children’s Transformation (FACT) Programme has been

designed to take a whole-system approach with partners, staff, children,
young people and their families to both streamline and improve the way we

Page 401



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

work whilst promoting multi-agency integration and enabling us to be more
efficient in the delivery of our services and more effective at helping families
and children achieve positive outcomes at the earliest point.

As part of our shared vision we will empower professionals to maximise the
time spent with families, providing early support to prevent escalation and
ensuring that our children thrive in their families and communities.

So, in brief, good quality services delivered by well supported and trained
people who have the necessary time and expertise to empower and support
the people of Wiltshire is critical to delivering improved outcomes. A core and
fundamental element of this workforce is our Social Work and Support staff.

Workforce

In order to deliver on our ambition to ensure families access services at the
right time and effectively work with them to improve their outcomes and de-
escalate risk, we need to ensure we have sufficient staff in place to do this.

We know that nationally Local Authorities have an average of 17% of social
worker posts currently unfilled (the range for this can be from 3- 50%). The
shortage of qualified social workers has also increased the use of agency

staffing (costing upwards of an estimated £150m nationally). This is adding
yet further costs to a system that is already having to find substantial efficiencies.

Position at 30 Sept National Regional Wiltshire
17

Vacancies 17% 15.8% 10.8%
Turnover rate 13.6% 14.5% 10.7%
Agency worker rate 15.8% 13.3% 4.7%
Absence 3.1% 4.0% 4.7%

Wiltshire’s position is more favourable than either the regional or national
picture but we know that with no slack in the system any social work vacancy
presently puts substantial pressure on delivering services to vulnerable
children and thus we need to ensure we remain in this position by looking
ahead to the future.

We also know that families frequently report that it is staff from a range of
professional backgrounds that can best support them in times of crisis and
there is good evidence to encourage a clearer definition of the work we see
as the social work task and how a more flexible workforce can be deployed
to support this.

We have seen the benefits of the previously agreed market supplements and
an improved recruitment strategy but know from our staff feedback that
workload remains critical and is the primary factor that is impacting upon our
retention. There has been no increase in social work establishment in

Page 402



21

22.

23.

Wiltshire since 2015, over the last 3 years we have seen demand on our
services increase.

Demand in Children’s Services

. The Local Government Association has revealed that nationally 66,410
children were put on child protection plans in 2017, a rate of more than 180 a
day. The figure is almost double the 33,300 put on such plans a decade ago,
while children’s services face a £2bn funding gap by 2020.

One in every five children in England is referred to children’s services before
the age of five.

The LGA analysis also highlighted the particular shortfall facing early
intervention work as a result of a £500m cut in government funding since
2013, with further projected cuts of £183m by 2020, which will represent a
40% overall reduction.

Per Capita spend on children and
young peoples services

700

600 —

500 4+ — — — — —

400 + — — — — — —

300 w14/15

200 u15/16

100 16/17
0 u17/18

24

25.

. The above shows that half of our statistical neighbours are spending more
than they were in 2014/15, it is important to note that two of these are
bordering authorities. Where spend is on staffing, the largest resource
delivering direct to families and children, this will have an impact on Wiltshire
in terms of workforce recruitment/competition.

The National Children’s Bureau “Off the Radar Report” highlights the evidence
that the number of children with additional needs is growing. A Survey poll of
101 Local Authority Lead Members for children, conducted for NCB, found
that 87% said demand for children’s services had increased in the last two
years. (Oct 2017). Furthermore recent research by the Office of the Children’s
Commissioner (July 2017) suggests that in England half a million children are
so vulnerable that they require help from the state. This reports highlights the

Page 403



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

challenges in accurately identifying the number of vulnerable children and
states “The figures that we do know about are shocking enough — more than
half a million children so vulnerable that the state has to step in; 700,000 in
‘high risk’ family situations such as living with drug or alcohol addicted parents
or in temporary accommodation; at least 800,000 with mental health
disorders”.

The NCB highlights that these challenges are likely to increase over the
coming years and there is a clear link with austerity and rising child poverty.
Recent research has shown that children in low income households have
worse cognitive, social and health outcomes as a result of growing up poor.
(2017) ‘Does Money Affect Children’s Outcomes? An update’.

The NCB believes the Government should urgently take specific actions to
improve children’s outcomes — such as increasing funding for children’s social
care so that local authorities can meet their statutory duties and maintain
services focused on early intervention.

We know children in care are less likely to achieve good qualifications; (only
13% achieve five or more GCSE’s) compared with over half of their
peers.(Department for Education (2017) ‘Outcomes for children looked after by
local authorities in England, 31 March 2016’).

Recent research suggests over 70% of children in care experienced at least
one change in their placement, school or main social worker over a twelve
month period. As such, the quality of support and of relationships children and
young people in care receive varies considerably.(NCB (2016) ‘From care to
Independence. Consequently, young people leaving care often struggle to
cope with independent living meaning the they are more likely to experience
homelessness, unemployment and involvement in crime. Again the NCB
suggests the Government should prioritise improving outcomes for care
leavers, by addressing gaps in resource.

Demand in Wiltshire

Since 2014 we have seen a decline in the number of Early Help Assessments
completed by partners from 1768 (2013/2014) to 939 in 2017/2018. In
response to this we have improved the Council’s Early Help offer in the
creation of the support and safeguarding service and the introduction of family
key workers to work with families who are below the statutory child in need
process. In time this will lead to a reduction in the number of statutory cases
however this will take some time and better identification of need is going to
maintain demand for social care services.

During this same timeframe we have seen improvement in service provision
although our child in need figures are similar to the level in 2013/14, the
number of single assessments completed has increased by about 60%. We
have also seen an increase in the number of child protection investigations
started.

Page 404



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Our looked after population has risen from 397 (March 2014) to 450 (22"
June 2018).

On the 18t April 2018 the duties for Care leavers increased following changes
to the Children and Social Work Act 2017; so Local Authorities are now
required to offer personal adviser support to all care leavers up to age 25,
irrespective of whether they are engaged in education or training. This
includes care leavers who return to the local authority at any point after the
age of 21 up to age 25 and request PA support.

Furthermore the number of Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers we are
supporting has increased in the last 3 years and we are now supporting 51;
this will rise further.

Request/Proposal

In order to maintain performance with increasing demand we need to increase
our establishment, recruitment will take at least 3 months and thus we need to
act quickly in order to be prepared and ready for increasing demand.

The increase in capacity need to be across both the support and safeguarding
service and the Child in Care Service. This is in order to manage the increase
in demand in child in need, child protection, looked after children and care
leavers. Paragraph 45 (Financial Implications) outlines the financial modelling
of the 2 options, one being sole social work capacity and the other with some
personal adviser capacity also.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

37.The Corporate Director has consulted with the Chair of Children’s Select

38.

39.

40.

Committee regarding these proposals.
Safeguarding Implications

The safeguarding implications are directly related to the ability of the council to
recruit and retain sufficiently experienced social workers and managers to
undertake the statutory safeguarding responsibilities of the council and to
ensure these staff and managers have sufficient time and capacity to safely
and effectively assess and intervene with families requiring help.

Public Health Implications

With increased professional capacity we will be able to provide more support
which will have a positive impact on the health of families and children as well
as positively impacting on the children as they move into adulthood.

Procurement Implications

There no procurement implications. Additional staff will be recruited via normal HR
processes. If agency staff are sought, we will identify them via the Matrix neutral
vendor framework.

Page 405



Equalities Impact of the Proposal

41.Vulnerable Families and Children face inequalities in society, additional

42.

43.

resource to work with these families will improve their life chances and reduce
inequalities.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

There are no environmental and climate change considerations as a result of the
agreed proposals.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

There is a risk to vulnerable children and adults if social workers and their
managers do not have the requisite time to spend with families ensuring
robust and effective assessments and interventions. The council will be
assisted in recruitment and retention of experienced social workers and
managers if caseloads are considered manageable. This risk means that
vulnerable adults and children may suffer harm if steps are not taken to
improve the council’s ability to recruit.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks

44. The risk associated with this action is the impact on Council budgets/spend,

good financial management will be required.

Page 406



Financial Implications

45.The additional budget that would be required to meet the cost of an additional
16 Social Worker’s and 8 Assistant Team Managers in children’s services
(safeguarding) would be approx. £1.2m in a full year.

46. Costing to increase Families and Children’s Workforce.

2018/19 Costing

Model 1

FTE Costper FTE TOTAL COST
L3 Social Worker 16.00 45,923 734,775
Assistant Team Managers 8.00 56,951 455,604
24.00 1,190,379

Less 5% Vacancy Factor -59,519
Travel @ £2625k per Ops worker 42,000
1,172,860

Model 2

FTE Costper FTE TOTAL COST
Aspiring Manager 2.00 45,974 91,948
L3 Social Worker 4.00 41,965 167,861
Personal Advisers 2.00 35,442 70,885
8.00 330,694
L3 Social Worker + 10% MP 10.00 45,923 459,235
Assistant Team Manager + 15% MP  6.00 56,951 341,703
Aspiring Manager + 15% 1.00 52,639
MASH 1 SW - L evel 3 + 10% MP 1.00 45,923 45,923
18.00 899,500

Less 5% Vacancy Factor -61,510
Travel @ £2625k per Ops worker 42,000
26.00 1,210,684

47. 1t would be usual for additional expenditure proposals to be considered
alongside other requests during the annual budget process. However,
given the potential adverse impact of delaying consideration until later in
the year it is recognised this initiative needs to be acted upon now.

48. The nature of the request is for a recurring commitment on the Council’s

budget. As such a permanent financing solution should ideally be
identified. Members will recall that the outturn results reported to the June

Page 407



49.

50.

51.

52.

49.

meeting of the Cabinet identified additional income from business rates
under the Business Rates Retention Scheme. This is a recurring revenue
stream and therefore it is proposed that this is utilised in support of the
recruitment of additional social workers in the Children and Families
workforce.

Legal Implications

There are no direct legal implications within this proposal. Any recruitment
should follow our recruitment policies.

If this is not progressed there is a risk that the Council will not be able to
meet its statutory obligations to safeguard children.

The level of increase in care proceedings should be monitored particularly
in the early stages to ensure that there are sufficient legal support
resources to meet any increase in demand.

Options Considered

Several other strategies are being developed to improve the recruitment
and retention of social workers and managers. We have also looked at
increasing the level and diversity of our workforce to support families
across a broader range of professionals. However, the demand data
suggests that without an increase in social work capacity we will not be
able to manage future demand which will impact negatively on service
provision and outcomes for families and children in Wiltshire.

Conclusions

The Families and Children’s Transformation (FACT) programme is driven
by five core principles for families and children;

o Help when you need it
o We are Better Together
o More time to be with Families
o Resilient communities

o Equity of Opportunity

This proposal essentially ensures the Local Authority have the requisite
capacity within core work groups to deliver on these principles.

Lucy Townsend (Director - Family and Children's Services)

Report Author: Lucy Townsend, Director - Family and Children's Services,
lucy.townsend@wiltshire.gov.uk,

Date of report: 25" June 2018

Page 408



Agenda Iltem 13

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Council Adoption Service: 2017-18 Year End Report
Cabinet member: Councillor Laura Mayes — Children’s Services

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

It is a statutory requirement that the Adoption Service provides a year-end report
to the Council. It describes the management arrangements, outcomes, priorities
and finances of the Agency for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

Wiltshire Council’'s Adoption Service was most recently inspected by Ofsted in
July 2015 as part of the wider inspection of Children’s Services. The overall
inspection judgement was Requires Improvement (RI). Since this time, the
Families and Children’s Service has continued to develop and improve how it
works to best effect. Two areas for improvement were indicated regarding the
Adoption Service. These remain as priorities:

e The need for timeliness of the assessment of adopters and their match
with a child to be adopted, and
e The need for timeliness of the adoption of children with complex needs.

In 2016/17, 33 adoption orders were granted (higher than the Wiltshire average
in recent years) and 26 families were approved as suitable to adopt. For the
year 2017/18, 22 adoption orders were granted and 19 families were approved
as suitable to adopt. The reduction in adoption orders granted is because 4
children with complex emotional needs were placed, requiring significant levels
of support prior to the families feeling able to make an application to adopt.
These are now all progressing to application. Had they been adopted within the
reporting period; the figure would have been closer to the Wiltshire average for
the last five years.

It is anticipated that 35-40 children will require adoption in any full year (an
approximate benchmark is 10% of the care population). Therefore, two years
ago the recruitment target was revised with the aim to recruit 30 adoptive families
through targeted and general recruitment to meet anticipated needs. This annual
target remains in place and is designed to provide sufficiency for children
requiring adoptive families whilst maintaining a “pool” of adopters who are
prepared and waiting to adopt.

>> Page 409



As reported in previous annual reports, driven by the Government’s stated
commitment to improving adoption services in terms of numbers of children
being adopted and the timeliness of matches for children requiring adoptive
placements, the development of the Adoption Service has continued.
Comparative performance is measured using the Adoption Scorecard which, for
Wiltshire, shows overall continued improvement. In previous annual reports, it
was recognised that further acceleration of improvement was needed although
the overall trajectory was positive and this has continued. The Service is
balancing the need to ensure continual improvement whilst maintaining a clear
focus on the Adoption West initiative, discussed below.

In spring 2015, the Government made it an expectation that local authorities
were to develop collaborative arrangements to improve adoption performance.
The regional response to this was the Adoption West project, comprising of six
local authorities and a small number of locally operating Voluntary Adoption
Agencies working together to design and deliver a new adoption agency.
Wiltshire Council is a member of the Adoption West partnership and has recently
taken the responsibility of chairing the Adoption West Governance Group,
following the retirement of the previous chair.

Cabinet has previously received detailed information regarding Adoption West
and the role, responsibility and accountability arrangements that are being
developed.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and accepted.

Reason for Proposal

Wiltshire Council is an Adoption Agency registered with Ofsted. The 2014
Adoption Minimum Standards (25.6) and 2013 Statutory Guidance (3.93 and
5.39) describe the information that is required to be regularly reported to the
executive side of the local authority to provide assurance that the adoption
agency is complying with the conditions of registration whilst being effective and
achieving good outcomes for children and service users.

Terence Herbert
Corporate Director

>> Page 410



Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Council Adoption Service: 2017-18 Year End Report

Cabinet member: Councillor Laura Mayes — Children, Education & Skills

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1.

5.

This report provides a year-end report to Cabinet regarding the performance
of the Adoption Service within Wiltshire Council. It is a requirement of the
condition of registration, as described in the 2014 Adoption Minimum
Standards and 2013 Statutory Guidance, that Cabinet is satisfied the
Adoption Agency complies with the conditions of registration, is effective
and is achieving good outcomes for children.

Cabinet last received an annual report regarding the Adoption Service in
July 2017, covering the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. This
report relates to the full year 2017/18 reporting period. Cabinet also
received an interim six-month report in January 2018.

The Ofsted inspection of Children’s Services in July 2015, (arriving at the
overall judgement of Requires Improvement) which included the Adoption
Service, noted strengths alongside two areas that required further attention:

The timeliness of the assessment of adopters and their match with a child
to be adopted, and
The timeliness of the adoption of children with complex needs.

This report includes information regarding the management of the Adoption
Service, the Adoption Scorecard, children who require adoptive placements
and those who are placed, the recruitment and approval of adopters, the
disruption of placements, children where the plan for adoption changes and
the work of the Adoption Panel.

It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and accepted.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

>>

6.

The Wiltshire Council Adoption Service contributes to a central priority as
set out in the Wiltshire Council Business Plan 2017-2027; to protect those
who are most vulnerable and provide permanent homes for children in care.

Page 411



7.

Identifying adoptive families for Wiltshire children remains a priority.
Wiltshire Council will remain as an adoption agency because it will retain
responsibility for children requiring adoption. The arrival of Adoption West
as the Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) will mean that the provision of
adoptive families, home finding and adoption support will become the
responsibility of the new agency.

Main Considerations for the Council

8.

The main consideration for the Council is to be assured about statutory
compliance and the effectiveness of the Adoption Service. In 2015/16, 22
children were adopted. In 2016/17, 33 children were adopted (higher than
the recent Wiltshire average) and in 2017/18 this number was 22. Of these,
19 (86%) were placed within 12 months of the decision that adoption was
in their best interest being made. In 2015/16, 13 adoptive families were
approved, in 2016/17, 26 families were approved. In 2017/18, 19 families
were approved as suitable to adopt. This indicates the need to increase the
number of families approved as suitable to adopt.

Wiltshire’s current Adoption Scorecard (most recently published
performance to March 2017) shows overall continued improvement and is
included below, for reference. National performance targets are no longer
in place and it is not clear what national and local reporting will be in place
when the RAA is in operation. At present, each local authority Adoption
Agency has a scorecard and there are three key measures that are
included:

Al: the average time between a child entering care and moving in with its
adoptive family, for children who have been adopted:

The local authority three-year average (2014-17) is 469 days. This is shorter
than the three-year average of 545 days in 2013-16 and shorter than the
England three-year average for 2014-17 of 520 days. The Scorecard shows
steady improvement over time.

Excluding two legacy cases the three-year average figure becomes 419
days for 2014-17

The local authority figure for 2017-18 is 326 days, down from 445 in the
previous year.

Including Early Permanence (Fostering for Adoption) placements and
legacy cases, locally reported data estimates the figure for 2015-18 as 392
days, a continued improvement on 469 days and a marked improvement on
545 days, remaining significantly less than the England average.

A2: the average time between a local authority receiving court authority to
place a child and the local authority deciding on a match to an adoptive
family:

>>

The local authority three-year average (2014-17) is 186 days. This is an
increase on the three-year average of 158 days in 2013-16. Excluding two
legacy cases this figure becomes 154 days for 2014-17.

Page 412



It remains shorter than the England three-year average of 220 days. Overall
the Scorecard shows steady improvement over time.

The local authority one year figure for 2017-18 is 126 days. In 2016-17 the
figure was 221 days, excluding 2 legacy cases this figure becomes 144
days for 2016-17

This includes 2 children adopted in May 2016 following protracted court
proceedings, who were originally placed for adoption in 2014 with the
placement orders being granted in 2011. One child has significant additional
needs and the second experienced placement disruption prior to being
matched with adoptive parents. In addition, 2 children were adopted by their
foster carers whose adoption assessments needed to be completed once
placement orders were granted. Three adoptive placements were found for
a family of 7 children, meaning significant sibling contact was required.
Including legacy cases where they remain in the three-year period, locally
reported data estimates the figure for 2015-18 as 171 days. 2019-20 will be
the final three-year average where these legacy cases will have an impact.

A3: the number of children who waited less than 14 months between
entering care and moving in with their adoptive family:

>>

In the period 2017-18, there were 69% (85) of children who waited less than
14 months between entering care and moving in with their adoptive family.
This is an increase from 48% (60) in the previous cycle when the measure
was those who waited less than 16 months. The England three-year
average (2014-17) is 53%. Locally reported data estimates the figure for
2015-18 as 94 children (73%). This shows steady improvement over time.

10.The most recent Scorecard three year averages relate to 2014-17, therefore

there has been a further year of work taking place in Wiltshire which has
produced the unverified averages described above. This data indicates that
the three key measures have continued to improve this year, with the overall
pace and trajectory of improvement being positive. There is significant
improvement for indicator A1l (which is showing an improvement of about
20%, meaning that more children are being placed in their adoptive
placements in a shorter time after being received into care) and A3 where
there is an improvement of about 20 percentage points and in the context
of a tougher definition (a reduction of two months each reporting year). This
is good progress. The increase in A2 includes two children who have been
hard to place and who are now in adoptive placements, demonstrating
commitment to seek secure, permanent arrangements for all children where
adoption is considered to be in their best interests. To ensure continued
progress and improvement, careful attention must be given to all aspects of
the work of the Adoption Service whilst the current responsibilities of the
Wiltshire Council Adoption Agency continue to apply, prior to the
implementation of Adoption West which is scheduled for October 2018.

11.Improvements to processes have continued, to ensure that home finding

starts at the earliest opportunity and that all activities are monitored and
completed in a timely fashion. Previous practice had home finding beginning
later in the child’s journey with the resultant impact on timeliness. This work
will continue in the coming year and into the development of Adoption West,

Page 413



>>

making sure that best practice is recognised and delivered within Wiltshire
and across the Adoption West area.

12.The 2017 Scorecard is as follows:

Page 414



Children Average time indicators

A2: Average time
PO S alf’tf]tc‘:‘;ﬁinrgc'giiﬁ']g A3: Children who Al: Average time between a child entering care and moving in with its adoptive family
: X - wait less than 14
between achild | court authorityto | o0 “henveen A2: Average time between a local authority receiving court authority to place a child
entering care and place a child and entering care and . L. . .
moving in withits  the local authority " ignwith et and the local authority deciding on a match to an adoptive family
adoptive family deciding on a adogtive family h hold
(days) match to an = = = thresnholds
adoptive family (number and %) 1,200
(days)
LA's 3
:;1\/Ser:;1)§)ear 469 186 85 (69%) 1.000
(2014-17) )
n
Distance from %
2014-17 ©
f Y
P hreshold 43 days 65 days © 800 [803|M—__
(426 and 121 8 750
days)
g @630} -©16391 JE 63
630k === 639L =——n 7
I1year trend . Averagetime in Average time in z 600 L-=1 L=l “.-L6£)§1 L 610
mprovemen 2017 was longer 2017 was longer ®)) ~~‘~..J 'i
from 2016 to : . I~ I_547 545
2017 than in 2016 than in 2016 © —-——leaoo yret
: ol Toom .
T o - < 400 ~@1426}-==-@426]
3 y&dr trend - Average time in Average time in
Imprevement 2014-17 was 2014-17 was
fron’2013-16 shorter than in longer than in
tOI-E914-17 2013-16 2013-16 .i-—--. _.l-—--.
3y 200 23— =@ 213} 1ol —— 156]m
157 169 22 165 Hg 151 === T Pk
England 3 year [ L==r 911211~ 12]11====-@11211
average 520 220 11120 (53%) 107 L= L= L=
(2014-17)
0
2008-11 2009-12 2010-13 2011-14 2012-15 2013-16 2014-17
Al: Average time between a child entering care and moving in A2: Average time between a local authority receiving court
with its adoptive family, 2014-17 authority to place a child and the local authority deciding on a

match to an adoptive family, 2014-17

England average 520 days

England average 220 days
umm N
>>




Adopters

Related Information

Adoptions of
Proportion of . Children for Number of Number of | children from  Adoptions of
Number of adoptive New ADM decisions ~ New plagfan;fe CIEEE whomthe ¢ children Altimeliness children in ethnic children aged
e families who Adoptions permanence - waiting to where times for a Fostering minority five or over
l\;umrt;(?lrec&f apé)étc:rtrzzn:nto were matched from care decision V\far\]iltliiretno be placed children who are for backgrounds during 2014- nge:zg:f
a%% tive adoptive famil to a child during 2014- has be Ia?:ed for adopted by their Adoption/ = during 2014- 17 c%\re
familiespwaitin s?ill bein y during 2016-17 17 changed F;or adoption foster family are | Concurrent 17 (number roceedings
to be matchedg assessed (?wt who waited 30 35 30 (with % away from adoption with a stopped at the Planning (number adopted and P locall 9
as at 31 March et aproved or more than 3 25 leaving care adoption (as gt 31 placement date the child foster adopted and % of children durin 2())'14_
yet app months from I e I —— who are during order moved in with the =~ placement % of BME aged 5 or over 9
2017 rejected) as at March - - . 17 (weeks)
31 March 2017 approval to adopted) 2014-17 2017) (as at 31 foster family (as at 31 children leaving care
being matched 2016 2017 2016 2017 (number March (days) (2014-17) March leaving care who are
i 0,
to a child THESE ARE NOT PERFORMANCE MEASURES and %) 2017) 2017) who are adopted)
adopted)
LA 25 20 79% LA 80 (16%) 30 (19%) 20 10 402 X 5 (10%) 15 (5%) 27
LA
wohange  20% % -17%
England 2,040 1,690 74% N‘:ngg; England 14410 (15%) 2880 (12%) 4,100 2,580 435 380 2210 (8%) 3130 (5%) 30
National
% change -3% ch:(:lge %
o
Q
«Q
D
N
|_\
o

>>



13.Management arrangements and staffing are compliant with regulation in
terms of qualification and experience. The Corporate Director (with the
responsibility of Director of Children’s Services) has overall responsibility
for the Adoption Service. Reporting to the DCS is the Director with
responsibility for Families and Children’s Services. The Head of Service:
Care and Placement Services has day-to-day operational responsibility for
the Service. There is a Service Manager and Adoption Team Manager in
post. This provides strength and clear accountability to the Service with an
opportunity to develop the strategy for improvement, ensure appropriate
line management arrangements in the Service, provide operational
accountability and maintain an important and continuing significant
contribution to the development of Adoption West.

14.The Adoption Team Manager has recently been appointed as the Service
Director for Adoption West. Whilst this will result in a staff deficit within the
Service from mid-July, there will be cover provided by the Service Manager
and Assistant Team Manager and the impact will be short-term as all
adoption staff will transfer to Adoption West in October 2018. Recruitment
to the vacant Team Manager post will be recruited to by Adoption West. It
is positive that the new Service Director has shaped and improved the
Adoption Service in Wiltshire and knows it well.

15.The core task of the Adoption Service is to provide secure, stable adoptive
placements for children who require legal permanence and are no longer
able to remain living safely with their parents or other family members.
Services provided are broadly delivered by two teams within the Adoption
Service:

e The Adoption Recruitment and Assessment Team: provides permanency
for children through the recruitment, assessment and preparation of
prospective adopters. Recommended for approval by the Adoption Panel
with decisions made by the Agency Decision Maker, adopters are then
matched with children through the home finding process.

e The Adoption Support Team: supports adoptive families and their children
to ensure placement stability. It also provides support to Special Guardians
(although this responsibility will stay with the local authority when Adoption
West becomes operational). Services include therapeutic support,
counselling, training, family days, newsletters and a link to Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS). This team is also responsible
for managing referrals to the Adoption Support Fund which increases
adopters’ and Special Guardians’ access to specific services for adoption
support.

16.In addition, the Adoption Service is responsible for providing an
intermediary service for adopted adults and birth relatives wishing to trace
family members, for those wishing to trace adopted children, support for
non-agency adoptions (typically step-parents wishing to adopt), and those
wishing to adopt children from overseas.

Page 417



>>

17.The establishment operational staffing of the Service (Recruitment and

Assessment and Adoption Support) comprises one full-time equivalent
Team Manager and one full time equivalent Assistant Team Manager.
There are 8 full time equivalent qualified social work posts. There are 1.95
full time equivalent Adoption Support Workers who, between them, have
responsibilities across the full range of support work within the Adoption
Service. There is currently one vacancy for an Adoption Support Social
Worker, the post is not being recruited to as it will need to be considered
when moving staff into Adoption West. This is a small team with county-
wide responsibilities. The demands upon the team have grown over time
with the increase of Special Guardianship Orders in Wiltshire. They also
have responsibility for the work generated by potential and actual adoption
breakdowns that can occur at any time post-Adoption Order. Most
commonly, these involve adolescents who are challenging and can be hard
to place if they are unable to remain with their adoptive families.

18.A development plan, supported by an adopter recruitment strategy, was

published in autumn 2015, refreshed in autumn 2016, with further review in
2017. This reflects the priorities of the Service and the areas of
improvement indicated in the Ofsted inspection of 2015, linking to the
developments and improvements required to improve performance as
evidenced within the Scorecard. It is anticipated that Adoption West will
begin full operation in October 2018 at which time it will assume
responsibility for most functions of the Wiltshire Adoption Service. Adoption
West will have its own development and implementation plan.

19. The priorities of the current Adoption Service Development Plan include:

Identification of suitable adoptive families without delay for children for
whom adoption is in their best interest

Adopter recruitment and retention

Provision of an effective and efficient home finding service

Provision of an adopters’ training pathway

Promotion and continued development of Early Permanence for children
Provision of an adoption support service that is responsive to the needs of
adopters, special guardians, adopted children and their families

Ensure that the Adoption Panel is effective

Ensure that the Adoption Service is integral to the development of Adoption
West

20.The Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Services carried out in July 2015 graded

the overall Service as Requires Improvement. A culture of continuous
improvement was noted with a positive trajectory towards Good. Children
and young people were considered to enter Care when they needed to and
the timeliness of care proceedings had improved. Inspectors identified an
Adoption Service that “made well informed and well-matched placements
supported by effective family finding”. There was evidence that good
performance information was used to inform practice and service
development. Adopters were prepared and assessed well and the Adoption
Support Team was seen to be effective, innovative and forward looking. The
Adoption Panel and Agency Decision Maker (ADM) ensured that children

Page 418



were effectively matched with the most appropriate families. These
judgments describe the foundation of continuing improvement.

21.1n early 2015 the Government stated that local authorities (and Voluntary
Adoption Agencies) should work collaboratively to ensure more effective
arrangements were in place to deliver adoption where it was in a child’s best
interest. Adoption West is the local response to this initiative. Comprising of
six local authorities and locally operating Voluntary Adoption Agencies,
Adoption West will be an independently operating Adoption Agency.
Cabinet has already given approval to the design, budget and
implementation arrangements of the partnership. It is anticipated that
Adoption West will improve the timeliness of adoption for children whilst
providing other aspects of the work carried out by current local authority
Adoption Agencies. Staff and managers from Wiltshire are fully involved in
the development, not only to ensure it is an effective agency but also that
the interests of children and adopters from Wiltshire are well served. The
chairing of the Governance Group has recently been taken on by the
Corporate Director. All this represents a significant commitment from the
Service and care will be taken that it does not affect “business as usual’.

22.There are significant implications for the Adoption Service and staff in
Wiltshire, not least because those staff whose jobs are wholly or mostly
associated with the work of the Adoption Service will transfer, via TUPE,
from the local authority to Adoption West in October 2018. The final
structure of this service is being developed and the process of allocating
specific posts and roles to transferring staff has begun. Recruitment will take
place where there are vacancies within the new structure. The scope will
include administration, direct services (pre and post-approval), and the
Adoption Panel function. This process in being carefully managed to reduce
anxiety for those concerned. As indicated, the current Adoption Team
Manager has been appointed as Adoption West Service Director.

23.The development of Adoption West is managed through the Governance
Group which consists of the Associate Directors (or equivalents or
delegates) from each authority who in turn report to their DCS who meet
when required. The Governance Group is currently supported by a Service
Manager Group. The task is to ensure that the new service is robust and
can deliver and sustain improvement, meeting the needs of the region, each
of the six local authorities and the Voluntary Adoption Agencies. There are
benefits to be gained in terms of the recruitment and sharing of a pool of
adopters across the area who can best meet the needs of children requiring
adoptive placements and therefore increased opportunity for timely
matching of children with adoptive families, particularly those who may be
considered harder to place.

24.In autumn 2017 local authority adoption panels were closed and Adoption
West panels began operating. Progress has been good and the new
arrangements are working effectively. The next part of Adoption West to
begin operation is the “front door”, allowing access, for those who wish to
be considered as potential adopters, to information about adoption and what
assessment will entail. It is anticipated that this will have commenced
operation by the summer of 2018. Clear management, regulatory and

Page 419



accountability arrangements will be in place for Adoption West with the
Corporate Director for Wiltshire being the Ofsted Registered Individual. A
Wiltshire Council group remains in place to monitor the ongoing impact of
the development of Adoption West on the Council, as work progresses. This
includes consideration of human resource, ICT, legal and budgetary issues.

25.As required to be provided to Cabinet, this report provides performance

information relating to the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

Profile of children waiting for an adoptive placement at year end

Legal status 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Section 20 0 0 0
Interim Care 7 7 6
Order
Care Order 5 7 13
None 1 10 1
Total 13 24 20
Ethnic Origin 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
White British 7 20 18
Mixed/Other 2 3 1
White Irish 1 0 0
Other Ethnic 3 1 1
Group
Total 13 24 20
Age 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
0-11 months 1 4 8
12-23 months 7 3 2
2-4 years 3 11 4
5-10 years 2 6 6
11 and over 0 0 0
Total 13 24 20

26.To be noted is that several children remained at home with birth family whilst
subject to care proceedings with a care plan for adoption. This meant that
other permanence options (such as Special Guardianship Orders) will be

considered by the court for these children.

Children adopted

Age 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
0-11 months 0 3 5
12-23 months 7 7 8
2-4 years 7 14 5
5-10 years 8 8 4
11 and over 0 1 0
Total 22 33 22

>>

Page 420



Children 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
matched out of
county
4 children in 3 15 children in 11 10 childrenin 7
placements placements placements
Out of county 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
children
matched with
Wiltshire
adopters
7 children in 5 8 children in 5 8 children in 5
placements placements placements

Rescissions of Placement Orders and Disruptions

27. In 2017-18, 7 rescissions were made where the plan for the child moved
away from adoption, leading to the rescission of Adoption and Placement
Orders. Wiltshire Council applies rigorous scrutiny to care planning and it is
inevitable that there will be developments in a case or a child’s situation that
means that adoption is no longer in that child’s best interest; for example, a
family member or parent can resume the care of a child where it had not
previously been envisaged, a court may not grant a Placement Order but
make a Special Guardianship Order instead or a plan will move to long term
fostering, particularly for older children. There are a further 4 children who
are currently in this rescission process.

28.During 2017-18, there have been no adoption placement disruptions
notified to the Adoption Service before an Adoption Order was made. There
has been one placement breakdown that occurred post-order, when the
child returned to being looked after. The child was 8 years old and had been
placed for adoption, by Devon, at the age of 4, with Wiltshire adopters. A
disruption meeting was held in June 2018 and the resultant learning has
been disseminated.

Prospective adopters

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Enquiries to be an adopter 147 85 66
(individuals) (households) | (households)
Applications to be an adopter 29 n/a 30
Number of newly approved adopters 13 26 18
Application to approval: 0-3 months 0 3 0
4-6 months 4 15 3
7-12 months 7 7 13
Over 12 months 2 1 1
Number approved adopters unmatched 21 14 12
Number approved adopters matched 17 14 18

29.0f the 12 adopters, unmatched and “waiting”, 1 family was linked and
waiting to go to Adoption Panel for a match and 2 had withdrawn from
wanting to adopt and required deregistration, leaving 9 families actively
looking to be matched with children. There were 10 children with Placement
Orders who were waiting for placements at the year end. Although it is
anticipated that these children will be placed with Wiltshire adopters, it is

>> Page 421



nationally recognised that it remains more challenging to find placements
for children with complex needs, older children and sibling groups.

Financial summary of the agency

30.The tables below indicate the budget, actual and predicted expenditure, for
the financial years 2017/18 to 2018/19.

2017/18 Budget (£) Actual Expenditure
Salaries and team 557,900 531,326
running costs

Adopter recruitment 17,000 215
and training

Adoption allowances 501,500 712,048
(all types)

Special Guardianship 1,835,600 1,533,815
Allowances

Adoption income -200,000 -183,000
Total 2,712,000 2,614,404
2018/19 Budget (£) Predicted Outturn
Salaries and team 559,000 559,000
running costs

Adopter recruitment 17,000 17,000
and training

Adoption allowances 610,000 610,000
(all types)

Special Guardianship 1,654,700 1,654,700
Allowances

Adoption income -200,000 -200,000
Total 2,641,300 2,641,300

e |n addition to the direct budgets above, adoptive families have access
to ringfenced therapist services, estimated value of the contract is

£40,000.

e Please note that pay inflation has not yet been applied to the 2018-19
salary budgets. From 1%t October 2018, Wiltshire’s Adoption Service
will be moved to Adoption West and approximately 50% of the
Adoption Budget will transfer to support staff, moving via TUPE

arrangements, and other operational net costs.

31. There have continued to be adoptive families who are financially supported.

Numbers of families and total costs are indicated below:

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2017
Children/Carers Children/Carers Children/Carers
RO Allowance 14/11 11/10
Adoption 38/31 32/26
Allowance
Other (SGO) 165/124 184/136 195/150

>>

Page 422




Total

| 235/180 | 236/178 | 238/186

32.

2017/18
Provisional
Outturn (£)

96,036

2016/17 Actual
Expenditure (£)

2015/16 Actual
Expenditure (£)

RO Allowance
Adoption
Allowance
Other (SGO)
TOTAL

123,472 108,706

371,081
1,081,967
1,576,520

332,757
1,397,912
1,839,375

301,064
1,530,644
1,927,744

The local authority continues to apply for funds from the Adoption Support
Fund (ASF) to enable families to access commissioned therapeutic
services. There are about 65 allocated families who are receiving adoption
support and almost 100 applications have been made to the ASF, with the
current budget being administered of approximately £332,000. The team
works actively within the £5,000 fair access limit per child and has sought
match funding from the local authority for 3 children when there has been
significant risk of placement breakdown. The most common types of
therapy provided are DDP, Sensory Integration therapy and creative
therapies such as art or play therapy.

The outturn budget for Adoption Allowances has slightly fallen in the last
two years, despite the number of children attracting these allowances
falling more significantly. This reflects more “complex” adoptions being
supported (often in adolescence and to prevent placement breakdown). In
addition, the limitations of the Adoption Support Fund only financing
therapy for children plus the requirement of the local authority to
contribute, means that some adoptive placements require additional
financial support to maintain stability.

Adoption Panel

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 (Wiltshire
Council and
Adoption West
(AW)
No. Panels held 21 19 19
Adoptive families considered 14 (including 25 24* (including 4
one deferred assessed by other
and not AW local
reconsidered) authorities)
Matches considered 28 31 36 (28 Wiltshire
children and 8
from other AW
local authorities)
Relinquished Children 2 0 1 (Wiltshire child)
Reviews of Adopters notified 0 0 0

* Two suitability assessments were considered by panel on 27.3.18 and their ADM
decision was made in April. Therefore, they do not appear in the 2017-18 count.

>>

Page 423




33.The Adoption West Panel (and the Wiltshire Council Panel before it)
complies with Regulation. This is important assurance as children who are
the responsibility of Wiltshire Council are matched with adopters at these
panels. Although they are different panels, information is included, in the
table above, relating to Wiltshire Panels and Adoption West Panels, which
are hosted by the Council under the partnership “hub” arrangement. These
panels are not the direct responsibility of the local authority. The panel is
chaired by a suitably skilled and experienced Independent Chair who
ensures that the functions of panel are delivered effectively. There is an
Agency Panel Adviser in place (currently from the local authority) to ensure
that the panel is always adequately supported. To ensure that panels are
quorate, there is an Adoption West central list of panel members
established which includes members with direct experience of adoption
including adopters and those who have been adopted. There are
dedicated Administrators in place within the three Adoption West hubs,
and other locations, to support the work of the Adoption Panel.

34. To comply with regulation, all Panel members, including the Chair, receive
annual appraisals which consider their effectiveness as panel members
and any areas for development. There is an annual training day, the most
recent in June 2018, which ensures that panel members are updated
regarding statutory and legislative changes along with Adoption West
developments and improvements to practice. Panel members have an
opportunity to consider how well the Panel is operating and what could be
done better. The Chairs meets regularly with the Panel Advisers of all three
Adoption West panels to discuss operational and developmental issues
relating to the panels’ work and consistency, making any changes and
improvements as required.

35. The arrangement for Panel recommendations being considered by the
Agency Decision Maker (ADM) is robust. In the interim period between
October 2017 and the implementation of Adoption West as an Adoption
Agency in October 2018, decisions regarding Wiltshire children being
matched with adopters and the suitability of adopters assessed by the
Wiltshire Adoption Service are made by a Wiltshire ADM. To ensure
capacity and availability, there are currently three senior managers who
take the ADM responsibility on a rota basis within the organisation, with
administrative support and a clear process in place to make sure that ADM
decisions are made within timescale. This means that adopters are
informed of decisions promptly following Panel recommendations. When
Adoption West becomes an Adoption Agency, it will have its own ADM
who will make the decisions.

Commentary
36. The main externally reported performance information is included in the
Adoption Scorecard and is summarised above. There has been steady
improvement in performance over the three-year rolling period. The impact
of legacy cases is noted alongside local reported predictive figures.

37. Sustained improvement is evident when considering the two priority areas
of development (the time between assessment of adopters and matching

>> Page 424



>>

38.

and the timeliness of the adoption of children where it was in their best
interest, including those with complex needs), the unverified data indicates
that improvement continues, with attention to be paid to performance
through to the implementation of Adoption West to maintain momentum.
Starting from a poor position in 2008-11, practice has improved year on
year because of improved planning that is focussed on outcomes for
children and is part of the wider Looked After Children improvement
agenda. Robust management arrangements are in place, providing a solid
foundation for continued improvement. There is now a short time before
Adoption West becomes the Regional Adoption Agency when most
aspects of adoption performance will become the responsibility of that
organisation.

Continued improvement of performance at Al requires permanence
planning to be timely and responsive to a child’s needs. The second review
(held four months after a child becomes looked after) must identify an
appropriate plan where the decision is that permanence is the preferred
option. To ensure timely planning and decision making, the role of the
Independent Reviewing Officer, working alongside the child’'s Social
Worker, provides challenge and oversight to a case. This is checked
through audit. Permanency Planning Meetings are used on all cases to
decide which options are right for a child and required actions are
identified, supporting the care planning process. The terms of reference of
the monthly Permanence Panel ensures that children have an appropriate
plan for permanence, including adoption, at the right time in their care
pathway. In addition, the pace at which matters proceed through the legal
process has improved. The average time between the initiation and
conclusion of care proceedings shortened from 23.6 weeks in March 2015-
16 to 21.9 weeks for 2016-17. As of March 2018, the average time was 28
weeks; several complex cases requiring lengthy finding of fact hearings
have increased the average figure.

39.Cabinet will previously have been encouraged to see the number of

40.

adopters recommended for approval in 2016-17 to be an increase on the
previous year. The reason for this rise was given in the last annual report.
Of concern, however, is the drop in numbers approved in this reporting
period when 18 have been approved as suitable to adopt. The Adoption
Leadership Board states that there is a national decrease in adopter
recruitment figures. Currently the Service has 21 assessments in progress
(the highest since 2016), an increase of 33% from the end of the previous
financial year. This indicates a recovery in figures although it is important
to maintain rigorous oversight of this, particularly in view of the national
trend and the challenge of moving to Adoption West.

There is a slight drop in the number of children who are “waiting” for
adoption, alongside a reduction in the number of children who have been
adopted this year. When there are less children who require adoptive
placements, it is likely that there will be smaller number who are waiting.
More recent figures indicate that the number of children requiring adoptive
placements is rising once again and so an increase in these numbers is
anticipated in the next annual report.

Page 425



>>

4].

42.

43.

44.

As was the case last year, the impact of Link Maker, a national on-line
resource that is adopter-led and provides information about children
needing adoptive families to adopters, continues to be seen. It has
produced quicker matching for some children and national searches are
made for children considered ‘hard to place’. In some situations, and if
required, adopters may be recruited either locally or via another adoption
agency for specific children waiting. This strategy has not been used for
Wiltshire children this year as placements have been identified with
existing Wiltshire adopters, those from Voluntary Adoption Agencies or
Adoption West partners. The development of Adoption West will have a
positive impact on the timely placement of children with adoptive families
as it will widen the pool of approved adopters with the agency.

Early Permanence (EP) practice is continuing to develop in Wiltshire. In
2017-18, 10 children were placed with EP carers, compared to 3 in the
preceding year. The Adoption Service will continue to assess potential
adopters, and seek approval of their suitability through the Adoption West
Panel, who can act as foster carers for children who do not yet have a
Placement Order, but for whom the long-term plan is adoption and for
children where there is concurrent planning for a potential return home.
Such placements fall under the umbrella of Early Permanence. Regulation
allows for children to be placed in these circumstances. There is some
uncertainty associated with such placements, as the child could return
home or move to family, and so adopters need to be able to manage this
and appropriate support is provided. The local authority should be
confident in presenting the legal case to court and being assertive in
matching children with adopters where it is in their best interest to do so.
This will further improve outcomes for children, timeliness and, therefore,
Scorecard performance.

The Agency Decision Maker (ADM) process is designed to meet statutory
requirements and not bring undue delay into the system. It is under
continual review to ensure it is effective, by ensuring that home finding and
matching work can begin at the earliest opportunity, the time is reduced
that children wait to be matched. This activity, linked to the development
of Early Permanence will allow placements to be made and matches
agreed through Panel quickly and without reducing the rigour applied to
ensuring that all decisions are in the child’s best interest. This activity will
support improvement of A2.

It is anticipated that A3 performance will continue to improve as the
scrutiny and challenge provided by the Independent Reviewing Service
and the work of Permanence Panel continue to drive timeliness and
permanence planning. It is important to note that the target has “tightened”
in recent years and the measure is now taken over 14 months, with
progress remaining positive. The emphasis placed on effective planning
means that several children, where adoption was identified as being in the
child’s best interest, have had the ADM decision reversed and the
Placement Order rescinded, with an alternative permanence plan agreed.
Current care planning practice and robust challenge will not allow cases
to drift, thus securing permanence for children.

Page 426



45. The Adoption Service has previously considered performance against

statistical neighbours. Comparative Scorecards are not available for this
report and so comparison can only be made with the England average.

46. As indicated, Adoption West is increasingly an area of priority involvement

for the local authority. Wiltshire staff are involved at all levels of planning
and active in not only the Governance Group, including providing the chair
of the group, and the service manager “lead” group but also in the work
groups that are considering specific areas of adoption practice. There is
an impact on the Service as staff are called away from the local authority
and it is important that this does not damage overall performance. It is
positive that the current Adoption Team Manager has been appointed as
the Adoption West Service Manager. This will cause some anxiety for
Wiltshire staff transferring to the new organisation but will also provide
reassurance as they will have confidence in their senior manager.
Although some staff will join from other local authorities, this will help to
provide stability and consistency for the current Wiltshire staff group.

Next Steps and Recommendations

>>

47. To continue to improve the effectiveness of the Adoption Service, the Local

Authority will:

Through the chairing of the Governance Group, maintain a high level of
involvement in the development and implementation of Adoption West
before and after implementation; considering the needs of children and
adopters in Wiltshire, staff currently working in the local authority and other
stakeholders

Through specific discussion and regular liaison meetings, continue to work
with the local judiciary to further improve the way that the courts deal with
care cases in a timely manner, recognising the potential delays for children
where additional family members (sometimes multiple) may be considered
as carers late in proceedings or where additional assessments are
indicated

Provide Early Permanence placements for children through to the
implementation of Adoption West and continue to support them once they
are provided by the new Agency.

Use positive Home Finding practice (anonymised profiles, information
days and events, Link Maker, child appreciation events) to ensure the
effectiveness of the process to bring about timely identification of potential
adoptive matches for children who require adoption

Until the implementation of Adoption West, continue to ensure a
sufficiency of adopters who can meet the diverse needs of the population
of children requiring adoption in Wiltshire. A suitably diverse pool of
approved adopters allows matching to begin early in the process, often
before a Placement Order is made. Approved adopters will move to
Adoption West in time, if they are still waiting to be matched with a child
In cases where it is recognised that the agency may struggle to match
children with in-house prospective adopters, request Court consent to
feature the children’s profiles beyond Wiltshire’s boundaries and be pro-
active in referring children to regional and national placement finding

Page 427



services once a Placement Order has been granted (sooner with the
consent of the court)

e Continue to ensure that formal Disruption Meetings take place where
adoption placements breakdown before Adoption Orders are made to
consider key learning in to inform whole service improvement.

Background

>>

48.The Adoption Service provides permanency for children who are no longer
able to live safely with their parents or other family members. This is
achieved through the provision of quality adoptive placements for children
who live in Wiltshire and where a decision has been made that adoption is
in their best interest.

49.The fundamental requirement of the Service is that children are placed with
families who have been assessed as being suitable to adopt. A
recommendation of suitability is made by the Adoption Panel and this is
ratified as a decision by the Agency Decision Maker (ADM). Through this
process, there is rigorous assurance that approved adopters can provide
safe, secure and enduring family placements for this vulnerable group of
children. His allows them to grow, develop and thrive in a nurturing,
supportive and loving family environment, removed from the stigma of being
Looked After by the local authority.

50.To do this, there must be an appropriate range of enduring adoption
placements to meet the assessed needs of children who need permanent
adoptive families. These families must promote stability, safety and positive
outcomes for children by working in partnership with all agencies as
required.

51.The legislative basis of this work is the Adoption and Children Act 2002 and
the accompanying 2005 Regulations. As indicated, Ofsted inspected the
Service as part of the wider Ofsted inspection of Children’s Services in July
2015. From October 2018, Adoption West will be the Regional Adoption
Agency and Wiltshire will no longer carry out the full range of functions as it
does at the current time. The Council will retain some aspects of an
Adoption Agency and so the requirement to be inspected and for cabinet to
be assured will remain.

52.The local authority, through reporting to Cabinet, must be assured of
regulatory compliance and effectiveness through performance monitoring,
challenge and improvement planning.

53.The Adoption Service continues to be able to recruit adopters for infants
and younger children. Through a programme of recruitment, this will be
maintained, until the inception of Adoption West, and the pool of adopters
will be expanded to include those who can provide permanence for children
who may be considered “harder to place”. This group includes older
children, sibling groups and children with disabilities. The Service is part of
the South West Adoption Consortium (SWAC) which works regionally to
identify matches for children across the area. Where necessary, children
are also referred to the National Adoption Register (NAR) which provides

Page 428



national opportunity to identify adopters for children who cannot be placed
locally. The authority subscribes to Link Maker, an online adopter-lead
resource.

54.Adoption West is a regional development involving six local authorities and

a small number of locally operating Voluntary Adoption Agencies. It will
provide a single Regional Adoption Agency in line with government
requirement — from the point of expression of interest to adopt, through to
assessment and approval at panel and beyond, to Adoption Support.
Adoption West is intended to have significant impact on outcomes for
children as it will deliver a more effective regional response to adoption and
the needs of children. The case responsibility for children will remain with
Wiltshire Council.

Safeguarding Implications

55.Wiltshire Council Adoption Service is part of Families and Children’s

Services, all of which are delivered in accordance with Wiltshire Children’s
Services Policy and Procedures, overseen by the Wiltshire Safeguarding
Children Board. The local authority has clear and effective safeguarding
procedures in place for children and vulnerable adults.

56.This report is for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Public Health Implications

57.Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Corporate Procurement Implications

58.Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal (detailing conclusions identified from
Equality Analysis, sections 4 and 5)

59.Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

60. Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Risk Assessment

>>

61.Risks that may arise if the performance and management of the Adoption

Service is not effective and it does not achieve good outcomes for
children:

Safeguarding risk to looked after children if they are placed with adopters
who have not been fully assessed, prepared and supported. Safeguarding
is considered a high-level risk within the corporate risk register

An inadequate supply of adopters to meet the needs of children requiring
permanence through adoption

Page 429



e Reputational risk if the Agency or Adoption West is not effective and does
not achieve good outcomes for children who require adoption

e Reputational risk if statutory timescales are not meet regarding adoption

e Reputational risk if the Agency or Adoption West is rated as Inadequate
through inspection

e Financial risk if placements are made, are unstable and subsequently
breakdown leading to children returning to local authority care

e Risks associated with the safety and effectiveness of overall service
delivery provided by Adoption West.

Effective delivery of the Service, improvement plan, reporting and challenge will
mitigate these risks whilst Wiltshire retains its Adoption Team. The secure
operation of Adoption West, with appropriate accountability and reporting to
Wiltshire Council will support this now and when Adoption West is operational.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
62. See above. Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

63. See above. Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.
Financial Implications

64. The budget for the Adoption Service is indicated, in summary, above. The
Service has been managing within budget due to external incomes
collected. The cost of supporting an adopted child is less than the average
cost of looking after a child in the care system and is often time limited as
opposed to costs of care which extend to 18 years old and beyond.
Cabinet has received information relating to the financial implications of
Adoption West and the contribution that the Council will make to the new
organisation. This annual report relates to the work of the Wiltshire
Adoption Service and not Adoption West, the implementation of which
does have financial implications.

Legal Implications
65.1t is a requirement of registration as an Adoption Agency that the
Executive side of the Council receive regular written reports regarding the
effectiveness, compliance and management of the Agency. It has been
agreed that this will be in the form of this annual report and so it ensures
that legal requirements are met. There are no additional legal implications
arising.
Options Considered
66.Not applicable - for note by Wiltshire Council Cabinet.

Conclusion

>> Page 430



67.Recent years have seen considerable change within the world of adoption
and a focus on improving adoption performance. This has led to the need
to review and develop services, amend policy and practice and so
increase the effectiveness of the Adoption Service. At the heart of this is
the belief that, for some children, adoption is the best route to legal
permanence, security and the opportunity to achieve their potential.
Wiltshire Council’s Adoption Service is committed to improving service
delivery and, therefore, outcomes for children. Adoption West will bring
further significant change and improvement in coming years. The Council
is an Adoption West partner, working collaboratively and regionally to
ensure a whole service approach to prevent delay in securing appropriate
adoptive placements for children in a timely and safe way.

68. The interim six-month report (January 2019) and subsequent Annual
Report (July 2019) show the considerable change anticipated between
now and the time when Adoption West becomes fully operational.

Terence Herbert
Corporate Director

Report Author: Martin Davis

Head of Service: EDS and Placement Services

Contact Details: Martin.Davis@Wiltshire.gov.uk
01225 712590

May 2018

Background Papers

The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report:
None

Appendices
None

>> Page 431


mailto:Martin.Davis@Wiltshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 14

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Proposed Changes to the Senior Management Structure
Cabinet member: Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE - Leader of Council

Key Decision: No

Purpose

1. The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s approval to take steps to make
changes to the senior management structure of the council at tier 1 following the
decision to reconsider the appointment of the fourth Corporate Director role, which was
to be a joint post with Wiltshire CCG, and following discussion with the current
Corporate Directors.

Background.

2. In June 2017 Cabinet approved proposals to make changes to the senior
management structure in response to the new business plan, and the need for
increased strategic capacity in light of the priorities in the plan.

3. The structure, which is based on a four corporate director model, was implemented in
August 2017 following the redeployment of an existing Corporate Director to one of
the roles and the appointment of two new Corporate Directors. This four Corporate
Director model is based on the following alignment of service responsibilities:

e Children & Education (statutory Director of Children’s Services (DCS))

e Adult Social Care & Health (joint statutory Director of Adult Social Services
(DASS) and Chief Accountable Officer for the CCG)

e Growth, Investment & Place

e Communities, Resources & Digital, Returning Officer (RO) and Electoral
Registration Officer (ERO))

4. The role of Corporate Director, Adult Social Care & Health, which is the joint statutory
Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) and Chief Accountable Officer for the CCG,
has remained vacant since the new structure was implemented while discussions with
the CCG and National Health England (NHSE) have continued with the aim of
agreeing the joint responsibilities of the role, and to ensure that a legal framework is
in place to support the role in discharging the joint statutory responsibilities.

5. We had made good progress with these discussions and were anticipating being able
to advertise the role shortly. However, we have recently been made aware of the
publication of a Government green paper which may occur in July to coincide with the
70" anniversary of the NHS.

Page 433



6. Whilst the contents of this paper are currently unknown, we are aware that it is likely
to focus on the continuation of collaborative working to integrate health and social
care services. It is also anticipated that the green paper will provide clarity on the
future direction for NHS commissioning; particularly commissioning by CCGs of health
services. It is on this basis that we have agreed with the CCG that we will not
progress with the appointment to the joint Corporate Director role.

7. Itis extremely disappointing that we cannot proceed with this role due to the
impending changes being made by NHS England, but our aim to integrate health and
care services remains a priority for the council and Wiltshire continues to make great
strides towards achieving an integrated approach.

8. We will continue to work with our health partners and have a strategy based on joint
ambitions for health and social care across the county to meet the growing pressures
on these services, and the rise in the number of older people. Partnership working
and the delivery of joint services will be vital if we are to continue manage the
increasing demand, and a key focus of the discussions about the joint role have been
based on achieving an integrated approach to health and care services in Wiltshire.
As a result we will continue to look at the possibility of a joint post to build on what we
have achieved already, but as outlined this will not be a Corporate Director role.

Main considerations for Cabinet

9. As a result of the on-going discussions about the joint role an interim senior
management structure has been in place since August 2017 to ensure leadership
capacity has been in place to deliver adult social services, and the adult social care
transformation programme that has been underway since early 2017. As a result of
the decision not to recruit to the joint role | have reviewed the structure and | am now
proposing some changes to alignment of services in the top tiers.

10.The interim structure has been successful and has continued to deliver significant
outcomes for the council, and to meet all of the financial challenges. As a result | am
proposing that interim structure of three Corporate Directors becomes the permanent
structure. This proposal continues to align with the business plan priorities and is
providing the resilience and strategic capacity needed at the top tier of the council.

11.The proposed structure, which outlines how services and statutory responsibilities will
align with the proposed three corporate director model, is shown in appendix 1 and is
based on the following alignment:

I.  Children & Education (statutory Director Of Children’s Services (DCS))
II.  Adult Social Care & Public Health (statutory Director Of Adult Social Services
(DASS), Returning Officer (RO) and Electoral Registration Officer (ERQO)))
. Growth, Investment & Place

12.The development of this proposal has also resulted in a review of the alignment of the
Directors currently under the line management of the Corporate Director,
Communities, Resources & Digital as this Corporate Director role will no longer be
required based on the proposed structure at tier 1. As a result | have sought HR
advice about the implications of this, and whether the proposed structure would
provide an opportunity for mutual agreement on the variation to the role descriptions

Page 434



for the Corporate Directors to reflect the changes proposed.

13.In particular | have sought advice about the statutory role of DASS, and the guidance
about the role and responsibilities that apply to this role to ensure these requirements
would not impact on my ability to mutually agree the variation to the role descriptions
for the Corporate Directors to reflect the proposed changes, and therefore the
retention of all of the current Corporate Directors. | am clear that the senior leadership
capacity should match the scope of the Corporate Director roles that | am proposing,
including the proposed statutory responsibilities at tier 1, but | am also clear that any
changes to the senior management structure at tier 1 should involve the least possible
disruption to the organisation. This is particularly as the current senior management
structure is less than 12 months old, there have been several new appointments in the
senior leadership team, and some Director posts at tier 2 are still vacant.

14.The HR advice has reassured me that the existing Corporate Directors have the
leadership skills and knowledge to fulfil the Corporate Director roles based on the
proposed alignment of Directors in the senior management structure and the
designation of the statutory roles, including the statutory requirements of the DASS.

15.The ADASS guidance published in 2017 to support the application of the statutory
guidance that was last updated in 2006, takes account of the changing structures in
local authorities in light of both the changing demand, the move to more integrated
services and the financial impact, and gives clear advice about the role, how its
functions should be discharged and where the role should sit in the organisations
structure.

16.The advice is that this statutory role should be a Chief Officer at first tier, consistent
with the DCS, and that there is a single officer responsible for adult social services.
The guidance recognises that the DASS may not come from a social work
background so outlines some requirements that councils should ensure when making
an appointment. Principally these concern effective leadership across systems and of
the social care workforce, the mitigation and management of risks associated with
adult social services and that they are aware of the legal framework within which they
work, and their obligations. The HR advice, based on this guidance, is that our
structure, and the director roles that will report to the DASS, has the capability and the
effective systems in place to support the DASS in the discharge of the statutory functions.

17.In my proposal the statutory responsibility for children’s social care (DCS) will remain
designated to the Corporate Director, Children & Education, and for adult social
services (DASS) it will be designated to the Corporate Director, Adult Care & Public
Health, who will also have statutory responsibility as the Returning Officer and
Electoral Registration Officer (ERO).

18.In reviewing the alignment of the Directors | have considered carefully the role of
the Directors who have statutory responsibility as the Monitoring Officer, Section
151 Officer and Head of Paid Service, and in particular how the statutory duties of
these Directors are discharged. | have concluded that as these roles are the
collective responsibility of the whole leadership team that they should operate with a
degree of independence in the structure.

Page 435


https://www.adass.org.uk/media/6002/adass-advice-note-director-of-adult-social-services_-roles-and-responsibilities.pdf

19.1 am therefore proposing that the Directors with responsibility for these three

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

statutory roles, should work on a matrix management basis as part of the Corporate
Leadership Team (CLT) to provide the Corporate Directors with appropriate
professional advice and challenge in the discharging of the statutory responsibilities.
As members of CLT they will also attend meetings of Cabinet Liaison and Cabinet.
To support the effectiveness of this matrix approach | am also proposing that the
administrative line management of these Directors is based on each Corporate
Director having responsibility for one, as outlined in the proposed structure
(appendix 1).

The remaining Directors will form the extended Corporate Leadership Team and will
attend Corporate Leadership Team meetings as appropriate. Directors will continue
to have specific service related accountabilities but the principal accountability for all
members of the extended Corporate Leadership Team will be for contribution to the
overall council priorities and delivery of the business plan.

| am also proposing a change in the alignment of the Director, Communities &
Communications to report to the Corporate Director, Children & Education and the
Director, Corporate Functions & Digital to the Corporate Director, Growth, Investment
& Place. This provides a better balance of direct reports across the three Corporate
Directors and ensures alignment with the relevant Director with statutory
responsibilities where joint working is needed.

The service responsibilities, currently assigned to Directors, will remain unchanged
with the exception of the role of Senior Risk Information Owner (SIRO) which | am
proposing will be assigned to the Director, Corporate Functions & Digital.

The designation of statutory roles must be approved by Council and the constitution
amended accordingly.

| have discussed my proposal with the Corporate Directors, who are fully supportive
and, if this is approved by cabinet, my intention is that following further informal
consultation on the proposal with the Corporate Directors, | will update the role
descriptions for the Corporate Directors to reflect the change in service responsibilities,
and to reflect their joint responsibility for the Directors with statutory responsibility for
the Monitoring Officer, Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer. | will then take
steps to mutually agree with the Corporate Directors a variation to their role
descriptions, and therefore the responsibilities of the Corporate Director roles.

The new proposed structure, if approved by Cabinet, will be implemented once Council
have approved the designation of the statutory roles at their meeting on 10 July 2018.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

26.

Overview and Scrutiny will have the opportunity to comment about the proposal as
part of the consultation with the Corporate Directors and staff and will be kept
informed about the implementation.

Page 436



Safeguarding Considerations

27.The proposed changes to the structure maintains separate statutory responsibility for
Adult Social Services and Children’s Social Care, and the expectation that all
Corporate and Directors have a role in promoting safeguarding within their specific
areas continues.

Public Health Implications

28.There are no public health implications as a result of the proposals outlined.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

29.There is no environmental or climate change impacts as a result of the proposals.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal

30.There is no equalities impact as a result of the proposals outlined. The council has in
place robust policies and procedures to support change to structures all of which have
been subject to an equalities impact assessment.

Risk Assessment

31.In proposing the senior management re-structure a number of risks have been
considered, namely:

I.  Financial risks, details in paragraphs 33 - 34
Il.  Legal risks, details in paragraph 35
. Delivery of the business plan: The risk is that if the new structure is not
implemented the council may not be able to deliver the business plan (2017 —
2021).

The business plan (2017 — 2021) outlines the council’s vision and four new
priorities against which a number of goals outline how these priorities will be
delivered. This relies on the council having a strong and resilient structure with
strategic capacity and capability at the top of the organisation, and will need to
ensure services are aligned in a way that that supports the three Corporate
Director model to deliver these priorities.

IV.  Short term impact on delivery: There is no short term risk as the proposal
means that the current Corporate Directors remain in place, which minimises
disruption and provides stability to what is a relatively new senior management
structure.

32.Based on the risks outlined above the overall risk is assessed as low, but will be kept
under review.

Financial Implications

33.The 2018/19 base budget approved by Council in February 2017 allows for a gross
pay budget of £0.810m for 3.5 fte Corporate Directors roles at, at least mid-grade

Page 437



point and other associated costs.

34.As the joint Corporate Director role post was jointly funded by the Council and CCG
this proposal will mean a saving of 0.5fte, however some of this saving may be
required to fund a joint post which will continue to develop an integrated approach to
health and care services in Wiltshire and to ensure we continue to have the
leadership capacity needed to continue to support delivery of the business plan.

Legal Implications

35.Legal advice will be provided to ensure that the proposed new structure is
implemented lawfully, and in accordance with the requirements of the council’s
policies and procedures, and the constitution.

Options Considered

36.The other option considered was to retain a four Corporate Director model, with steps
taken to recruit to the vacant post. However, the rationale for the fourth joint role was
the opportunity to further develop the collaboration with partners and to work more
jointly with the CCG, which resulted in this role being developed. As outlined in
paragraphs 5-7 a Government green paper, potentially in July, to coincide with the
70" anniversary of the NHS, is likely to focus on the continuation of collaborative
working to integrate health and social care services and, it is anticipated that the
green paper will provide clarity on the future direction for NHS commissioning;
particularly commissioning by CCGs of health services. It is as a result of this that we
have agreed with the CCG not to appoint to the joint corporate director role and as a
result the rationale for this fourth Corporate Director no longer applies.

Proposals
37.1 am proposing that cabinet approve:

I.  The proposed changes to the structure of the council at the top tier (Corporate
Director), and as outlined in appendix 1 and paragraphs 10 & 11.

Il.  The designation of the statutory Director of Adult Social Services to the
Corporate Director Adult Care & Public Health and as outlined in paragraph 17.

lll.  The proposed change to the role of the Directors with statutory responsibility
for Monitoring Officer, Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer and as
outlined in paragraphs 18 & 19 and in appendix 1.

IV.  Approve the proposed alignment of the Director, Communities &
Communications and Director, Corporate Functions & Digital as outlined in
paragraph, and as outlined in paragraph 21.

V.  The designation of the Senior Responsible Information Owner (SIRO) to the
Director, Corporate Functions & Digital, and as outlined in paragraph 22.

Page 438



38.If approved | propose that cabinet note that:

I.  Further discussion about changes to the structure with the Corporate Directors,
and relevant Directors, will start immediately.

II.  Thatfollowing discussion and mutual agreement with the Corporate Directors, and
relevant Directors, on changes to their role descriptions, the structure will be
implemented.

Baroness Jane Scott of Bybrook, OBE
Leader of the Council

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Proposed tier 1 structure

Page 439



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Senior Management Structure

-
g EXTENDED

(D CORPORATE
4> LEADERSHIP

~
I TEAM

Appendix 1

CORPORATE
LEADERSHIP
TEAM



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Council's Housing Board Annual Report
Cabinet Member: Cllr Richard Clewer

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet regarding the activities of
Wiltshire Council’s Housing Board between December 2016 and November
2017 and comply with its Terms of Reference which requires an update to be
provided to Cabinet.

Throughout this period, the Board has engaged in a range of activities to shape
the service offered to residents and their families, further increase service
quality via appropriate monitoring mechanisms, encourage resident
engagement and protect the reputation of the council as a landlord by ensuring
a robust Business Plan is implemented.

Areas focused on by the Board are detailed in the main body of the report, with
the primary focus of the Housing Board being:

e Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan
e Asset Management Strategy (AMS)

The Board is regularly updated about the budget position of the HRA and the
implications of welfare reform and policy amendments, including the rent
reduction of 1% per annum for 4 years. Members are also regularly updated
about Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), with the targets for said indicators
being decided between the service and a sub-group of the Board.

When considering the strategic direction of the service, and the main current
and future strategic risks and actions, Board members act in such a way as to
complement the council’s corporate Business Plan and objectives.

There is engagement between the Housing Board and the Environment Select
Committee (ESC), and the Board has a scrutiny group sitting below it comprised
of volunteer residents — the Housing Assurance Panel, which recently changed
its name to the Challenge and Change Group.

Reforms suggested by the Board and/or the scrutiny group, have been
incorporated into our service plan monitor. Members have been involved in
shaping the services’ Forward Work plan.

The Board’s Annual General Meeting included an overview of the year,

> Page 443



presented by the Chairman and an update on the budget position.

Board members operate in a fair and balanced manner, maintain their
independence and make recommendations to Housing Services; the Board can
also make recommendations to Cabinet; however, powers cannot and have not
been conferred on the Board so as to enable it to make binding decisions, as
outlined in the Paper passed by Cabinet on 22 January 2013.

The Housing Board is beginning its second cycle of 4 years, which is linked to
the council’s local electoral cycle.

Proposal

For Cabinet to note this Annual Report.

Reason for Proposal

Wiltshire Council’s Housing Board’s Terms of Reference require an Annual
Report to be presented to Cabinet.

Alistair Cunningham
Corporate Director

> Page 444




Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Wiltshire Council's Housing Board Annual Report
Cabinet Member: Cllr Richard Clewer

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. To update Cabinet regarding the activities of Wiltshire Council’'s Housing

Board between December 2016 and November 2017 and comply with its
Terms of Reference which requires an annual update to be provided to
Cabinet.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2. As part of their Away-Day’s and their regular meetings, the Board set future

priorities, which are constructed to complement the Council’s Business Plan.
In respect of the Business Plan 2017-2027, the Board contributes toward
creating strong communities in Wiltshire, protecting those who are most
vulnerable and being innovative and effective. There is emphasis on
sustainable development, safe communities, personal wellbeing, community
involvement, commercialism, people, change, digital, performance and
delivering together.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

3. This report is for noting by Cabinet and provides an update on the activities of

Wiltshire Council’s Housing Board. It does not require a decision to be made.
The Environment Select Committee are to receive a statement from the
Cabinet Member for Housing, Corporate Services, Heritage, Arts and Tourism
at their 26 June 2018 meeting. The statement will provide a brief update to
the Committee on the work of the Housing Board.

Background

4.

5.

At its 22 January 2013 meeting, Cabinet resolved that it approved the setting
up of a Management Board for the governance of council housing consisting
of an equal number of Councillors, tenants and independents, with a
recommendation that such a panel should be in place by April 2013.

Appointments to the Board were made in November 2013 and December
2013 and the Board held its inaugural meeting on 17 December 2013. In
January 2014, the Board introduced ‘Open Sessions’ at the beginning of each
meeting where residents could attend and put questions to Board members.

Page 445



6.

7.

Board meetings are approximately held on a bi-monthly basis:

a) For the year 2017, meetings were scheduled and held in January,
March, September and November. Meetings were not held in May
and July due to appointments being linked to the local Government
electoral cycle and a review of the Housing Board being
undertaken.

The Board’s Annual General Meeting was held on 27 November 2017.

Overview (December 2016 — November 2017)

8.

9.

The Board did not have a meeting scheduled for December 2016.

Between January 2017 and March 2017, the Board considered the strategic
direction of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) with particular emphasis on
financial and budgetary matters, including:

a) The rent reduction of 1% per annum having reduced the Rental
Income Budget by £0.366 million.

b) Increasing garage rents increased the Rental Income Budget by
£0.006 million.

C) That the total reduction to the Rental Income Budget for 2017/18
was £0.359 million.

d) Increasing service charges increased the Income Budget by £0.016
million.

e) There was an allowance for 1% pay inflation of £0.040 million.

f) The amount Returned to Revenue Reserve was reduced by £0.383

million, from £0.975 million to £0.592 million.

10. Furthermore, between January 2017 and March 2017, the Board contributed

11.

toward creating, reviewing and refining the HRA Business Plan and new HRA
model, in the context of the main current and future strategic risks. Short,
medium and long term priorities served to strategically link the service with
corporate objectives.

Also between January 2017 and March 2017, the Board received Budget
Updates, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) data, focused attention and
accountability on voids performance, and were updated around Building
Maintenance Contract Procurement progress; as well as being presented with
the Right to Buy Audit Report and reconfiguring Local Housing Panel
arrangements to further strengthen resident engagement; Board members
also enjoyed public attendance at their March meeting. The Housing
Assurance Panel (HAP), which later changed its name to become the
Challenge and Change Group, is comprised of volunteer residents who
conduct scrutiny exercises; the Board received:

a) The HAP’s report on ‘Grounds Maintenance (particularly grass
cutting)’.

b) The Management Response to the ‘Grounds Maintenance
(particularly grass cutting)’ report.

Page 446



C) Research findings in relation to the residents’ magazine ‘Housing
Matters’ (the Board had previously suspended making
recommendations about the HAP’s report on ‘Housing Matters’
pending further research being conducted by the service, as
requested by the HAP).

d) The HAP’s report on ‘Leaseholder Involvement in Maintenance
Matters and Leaseholder Handbook'’.

e) The Management Response to the ‘Leaseholder Involvement in
Maintenance Matters and Leaseholder Handbook’ report.

f) General update.

12.Participants also considered and made recommendations, between January
2017 and March 2017, on the formulation of an Asset Management Strategy
(AMS) and the range of works and developing of internal tools to further this
objective. The AMS had previously been selected as a strategic priority for the
Board, along with the Business Plan. An independent consultant was present
as part of the review of the Housing Board.

13.Throughout April 2017 and June 2017, there were no formal Board meetings.
A small number of members met in April for a sub-group to set targets for the
services’ Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the year 2017/18, with an
independent consultant also being present. Attendees were presented with an
End of Year Performance Report alongside the proposed targets, some of
which were amended.

14.Board members, HAP members, officers and councillors met with the
consultants to inform the review. Board appointments officially terminated in
line with the local Government electoral cycle. Shortly after, a new Cabinet
Member and new Portfolio Holder were confirmed.

15.Between July 2017 and September 2017, the review of the Housing Board
was concluded with Board members being verbally informed of the services
intentions to approach the Environment Select Committee with a
recommendation to continue with the Board, to continue payment and to
rework the terms of reference. The Environment Select Committee was
presented with the report and services’ recommendations on 19 September
2017 and resolved that they supported the Board continuing, supported
maintaining payment and supported reworking the terms of reference. Board
members were informed, reappointed and a Board meeting arranged.

16.At its September meeting, the Board considered the outcome of the
Governance Review and the views of the Environment Select Committee; a
sub-group was established to rework the Terms of Reference (which met in
October). Members also considered the risk register, regulatory standards
compliance and fire safety; the service updated around amendments to
customer services opening times. The KPI 2016/17 End of Year report was
presented to all members, along with the sub-group reporting back, which
included agreed targets for the year 2017/18 which were constructed to
complement the Board’s priorities, and the KPI outcomes for 2017/18 Q1.

17.The Board’s September 2017 meeting included:

> Page 447



d)

A Management Update Report in respect of the HAP’s ‘Housing
Matters’ report.

A Management Update Report in respect of the HAP’s ‘Grounds
Maintenance (particularly grass cutting)’ report.

The HAP’s ‘New Ways of Working: Recruitment and Collaboration’
joint report (this was the HAP’s first joint scrutiny project and report,
which was conducted in collaboration with Paragon Community
Housing, which is now PA Housing — one of the recommendations
included changing the name of the scrutiny group to the ‘Challenge
and Change’ group to help make it more accessible and meaningful
to residents).

The Management Response to the ‘New Ways of Working:
Recruitment and Collaboration’ joint report.

18. Furthermore, at their September 2017 meeting, Board members evaluated the
2016/17 End of Year Report for the HRA Budget and Housing Income, as well
the position for 2017/18 Q1 and the effects of welfare reform on Wiltshire
Council residents and were verbally updated about Building Maintenance

Contracts.

19.In November 2017, the Board held its fourth Annual General Meeting, which
included a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Finance Update and the
Chairman’s overview of the year. Opportunities were provided for questions to
be put to the Chairman. There were no public attendees beyond the members
of the Challenge and Change Group.

20.Immediately following the AGM meeting, the Board held its regular meeting,
which was dedicated to 6 significant priority items:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

Fire safety, which included reassuring attendees, in respect of a
number of properties that had been discussed, that we do not use
the type of cladding involved in the tragic Grenfell Tower fire.
KPIs for 2017/18 Q2 and the arrears figures including and
excluding Universal Credit (impact of the waiting period).
Challenge and Change Group:

)] Project #7 — ‘Anti-Social Behaviour'.

1)) Management Response to the ‘Anti-Social Behaviour’ report.
i) General update.

Budget Update (2017/18 Q2).

Asset Management Strategy, which included a review of the final
document, as well as the Wiltshire Homes Standard, and a Year 2
Progress Report, plus verbal updates around:

)] Progress and actions toward realising 100% of our dwellings
meeting the decent homes standard.
i) Increasing satisfaction with planned maintenance.

Sheltered Housing Review, which included a strategic overview of
the schemes.

21.Other matters considered at the November 2017 meeting included potential
changes to the pets’ policy, options for the future of 6 week visits and a verbal
update around Building Maintenance Contracts.

Page 448



22.The Challenge and Change Group (formerly the Housing Assurance Panel)
sits below the Housing Board. To date, the group has produced a number of

reports:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(€)

(f)

@

(h)

Project #1 — ‘Introduction to a Tenancy’ (July 2015).

The report was presented at the Board meeting held on 27 July
2015. The management response was presented at the Board
meeting held on 5 October 2015. A management response update
was presented at the Board meeting held on 25 January 2016.

Project #2 — ‘Voids’ (October 2015).

The report and management response were presented at the Board
meeting held on 30 November 2015. A management response
update was not required.

Project #3 — ‘Planned Maintenance: Kitchens and Bathrooms’
(March 2016).

The report and management response were presented at the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2016. A management response update
was presented at the Board meeting held on 5 September 2016. At
the September 2017 meeting, it was agreed that a further
management update report would be circulated, along with the
original report. This was circulated in December 2017.

Project #4 — ‘Housing Matters’ (June 2016).

The report and management response were presented at the Board
meeting held on 5 September 2016. The Board placed the
recommendations on hold, pending the outcome of a residents’
survey. The findings of the research were presented to the Board
on 27 March 2017 and a management response update was
presented on 25 September 2017.

Project #5 — ‘Grounds Maintenance (particularly grass cutting)’
(November 2016).

The report and management response were presented at the Board
meeting held on 27 March 2017. A management response update
was not required.

Check-Back #1 — Verbal Exercise (November 2016).

The group spoke with the appropriate officers, to establish if their
recommendations had been implemented, the impact of their
recommendations and to gain the feedback of officers. The group
provided a verbal update to the Housing Board on 27 March 2017.

Project #6 — ‘Leaseholder Involvement in Maintenance Matters
and Leaseholder Handbook’ (March 2017).

The report and management response were presented at the Board
meeting held on 27 March 2017. A management response update
was later provided verbally.

Joint Project #1 — ‘New Ways of Working: Recruitment and
Collaboration’ (June 2017).

Page 449



The group worked in collaboration with Paragon Community
Housing’s scrutiny team (now PA Housing). The report and
management response were presented at the Board meeting held
on 25 September 2017. A management response update has been
timetabled for January 2018. The report was formally ‘launched’ by
the partners at a TPAS (Tenant Participation Advisory Service)
regional event on 27 September 2017.

0] Project #7 — ‘Anti-Social Behaviour’ (November 2017).
The report and management response were presented at the Board
meeting held on 27 November 2017. A management response
update has been timetabled.

()] Quick Look Exercise #1 — ‘Fire Safety’ (November 2017).
The short viewpoint report has been presented to the service.

Priorities

23.The Board has previously recommended to the service that the following
strategic matters be prioritised, as noted in the minutes of their meeting held
on 23 May 2016:

a) “That the main 2 priorities, in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account, be:

e Asset Management Strategy.
e Housing Revenue Account Business Plan.

Furthermore, in respect of the 2 priorities, above:

e The Board endorses the service having the flexibility to
utilise additional resource, as and when required, within the
overall finances of the Housing Revenue Account.

e That when the first version of the Asset Management
Strategy is presented, it will include proposals for resident
consultation, and the full Asset Management Strategy is to
be delivered over the coming 12 to 18 months.”

24.Board members operate in a fair and balanced manner, maintain their
independence and make recommendations to Housing Services; the Board
can also make recommendations to Cabinet; however, powers cannot and
have not been conferred on the Board so as to enable it to make binding
decisions, as outlined in the Paper passed by Cabinet on 22 January 2013.

Membership

25.1n January 2017, a tenant member alerted the service to her departing the
Board with immediate effect.

> Page 450



26.In May 2017, a councillor member was not re-elected as part of the local
Government election.

27.Given the review of the Housing Board had already been timetabled,
recruitment did not commence. Agreement from the Environment Select
Committee was sought to commence recruitment, when the Governance

Review was presented to them. This agreement was received.

28.During October and November, the vacancies were promoted, with
applications received from 1 councillor and 5 tenants. Interviews were held in
the week commencing 6 November 2017, with the successful applicants being
informed on 13 November 2017.

Attendance Record (December 2016 — November 2017)

29. Attendance relates to Board meetings only (that is, the figures exclude Away-

Days, sub-groups, etcetera).

30. Of the 4 meetings held in 2017, attendance was:

WCHB Member

30/01

27/03

Councillor
Richard Clewer

Councillor
John F. Smale

Rachael Arnott
(Tenant Member)

Angela Britten
(Tenant Member)

Robert Chapman
(Independent Member)

Cindy Creasy
(Independent Member)

Councillor
Brian Dalton

Jacqui Evans
(Independent Member)

Lorraine Le-Gate
(Tenant Member)

Emma Powell
(Tenant Member)

Councillor
lan Tomes

Councillor
Fred Westmoreland

31.0f the 6 meetings held in 2016, attendance was:

July | 25/09 | 27/11 | Total

(100%)

0
(0.0%)

3
(75.0%)

4
(100%)

3
(75.0%)

1
(100%)

2
(50.0%)

ANE I NENENENE SN

4
(100%)

(100%)

WCHB Member

25/01

21/03

23/05

05/09

03/10

28/11

Total

Page 451



gi(?:l;lr;?glcg!ewer ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ (10%%)
/(A'\I'negneallitBl\;IIgrirl]Jer) x ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ x (66.425%)
(ndspencentmtemben | Y | Y |V IV VLY oon
gllr;liypgrrlzii)tl Member) ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ x ‘/ ‘/ (83%%)
\(]I?l(él%l;)lei\éag;l? Member) ‘/ x x x x ‘/ (33%%)
(renant Member) V VI x| Y] x ]V e
(E'I'rgnmaar?{D I?/Ive\:lﬁllber) ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ x \/ x (66.46%)
Couelly AR ARARaracrar>
IC::roelfjn\(;\I/”eosrtmoreland x ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ ‘/ (83.53%)

Safeguarding Implications

32.There are no significant safeguarding implications associated with this report.

Public Health Implications

33.There are no significant public health implications associated with this report.

Procurement Implications

34.There are no significant corporate procurement implications associated with
this report; although should the Board make recommendations regarding
procurement of services to be delivered to residents, then this will become a
consideration.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

35.All Board members operate in and treat all residents in a fair and balanced
manner, maintain their independence and make recommendations to Housing
Management. Board members do not represent a particular area; they
represent all council residents in the county of Wiltshire and make
recommendations in the best interests of all council residents in Wiltshire.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

36.There are no significant environmental or climate change implications
associated with this report.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
37.Wiltshire Council’s Housing Board would fail to meet the requirements of its

Terms of Reference, namely to provide an Annual Report to Cabinet and
potential deterioration of or missed opportunity to improve services if the

> Page 452




Board were not to focus their efforts on the identified priorities. This paper is
only for noting.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

38. Wiltshire Council’s Housing Board may fail to make recommendations which
improve services for residents and their families, missing an opportunity for
improvement, or make recommendations which leads to a deterioration of
service quality. This paper is only for noting.

39.Powers cannot and have not been conferred on the Board so as to enable it to
make binding decisions, as outlined in the Paper passed by Cabinet on 22
January 2013. The Board makes recommendations to Housing Management
and can make recommendations to Cabinet.

Financial Implications

40.There are no significant financial implications associated with this report.
Legal Implications

41.There are no significant legal implications associated with this report.

Options Considered

42.A formal report to Cabinet is required. No alternative options were considered.
Conclusions

43.There is increasing evidence that Wiltshire Council’'s Housing Board is having
a positive impact on the quality of service provision to residents and their
families, has itself created an additional opportunity for residents to engage
with the service and shaped further engagement opportunities.

Proposal

44.For Cabinet to note this Annual Report.

Reason for Proposal

45. Wiltshire Council’'s Housing Board’s Terms of Reference require an Annual

Report to be presented to Cabinet.

Alan Richell (Interim Director - Housing and Commercial Development)

Report Author: lan Seeckts, Governance and Scrutiny Officer,
ian.seeckts@wiltshire.gov.uk, Tel: 01722 434353

3 May 2018

> Page 453



Appendices

Appendix 1 — Housing Priorities and Workplan (April 2016).
Appendix 2 — Service Plan Monitor (external Excel file).
Background Papers

The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report:

None.

> Page 454



Appendix 1

(please note: document relates to multiple housing services, not just the council’s landlord business which are highlighted in orange)
Please also consider Appendix 2: Service Plan Monitor (external Excel file).

Housing Priorities and Workplan (April 2016)

Priority Action(s) Lead Officer Target date Notes
1 a) New Build programme and delivery of new
Ensure affordable housing to meet need
residents are [.  Council house build programme Tim Bruce March 2018
able to access
a range of
ny) housing and
g care options to
[9) meet needs
> 2 a) Develop an asset management strategy for Tim Bruce March 2017 Needs to be
CU",., Make best use council housing stock to include; completed within
of existing I.  Options for regeneration of The next 12 months
housing stock Friary (security doors)
in Wiltshire ii. Disposal strategy and strategy for
high value stock
iii.  Sheltered housing
review/remodelling proposals
iv.  Strategy for garages
v. General stock issues e.g. Bemerton
vi.  Approach to adapted properties
vii.  Void standard




oGt abed

3

Review
services to
ensure they
meet need,
deliver good
value for
money and
deliver good
quality
outcomes

a) Review and procure planned and Janet O’Brien September Interim options
responsive maintenance contracts 2017 followed by long
term options going
(1) Consult with managers forward
(i) Agree how to involve staff &
residents
(i) Clarify timeline/project plan
(iv)  Review policies and procedures
b) Review HRA Business Plan Nicole and April 2017
Janet — along
(1) budget with finance
(i) impact of housing & planning bill and
welfare reform
(i)  update policies e.g. tenancy policy
(iv)  Review service charges including
leaseholds
(1) Review staff structure in line with agreed
priorities
C) Explore options for delivering ongoing All managers April 2017
efficiencies and savings across HRA and
general fund
d) Review of the Housing Board James October 2016 Looking to appoint

a consultant




/St abed

4 a) Review and develop statutory strategies and Helen Taylor Review by JC to discuss with
Ensure robust policies and lan December 2016 | Robin
strategies and (i) Tenancy Strategy Seeckts
policies are in (iv) Update of policies including Debt
place policy to reflect legislative changes and audit
supported by a requirements
robust
evidence base (v) Update of procedures to reflect
to enable changes of policy
successful
delivery of b) Review and consider the impact of any Jamie Peters September Research and
projects and legislative or policy changes (council 2016 reports underway.
services (i) Impact of Welfare Reform on existing tenants / UC rollout likely in
Wiltshire Council tenants Wiltshire March 2017.
(i) Response of other providers to these Money)
changes — understand the impact of this Welfare Reform
(iif) Support and options for tenants impacted Report With NS
by these changes
(iv) Impact on Under 35s — affordability and UC report being
options drafted.
(v) Housing and planning bill
(vi) Consideration to councils response in
creating fixed term tenancies — creation of
a tenancy policy
5 a) Ensure robust systems are in place for; Janet / Nicole / | April 2017 Documents to be
Implement (i) Risk management Simon reviewed and
effective (i) Information management/filing ready by April 2017
systems for (paperless)
management (i) Performance management
of the whole (iv) Budget management




8Gt abed

housing
service &
deliver
efficiency
savings

(v) Communication

(vi) Data sharing
b) Building a strong landlord service with our Dot Kronda
residents through effective resident
engagement (regulatory framework)
(i) Work towards a quality mark for September
resident engagement 2017
(i) Implement audit and ESC
recommendations on engagement April 2017
(i) Revenue budget to encourage resident
engagement December 2016
c) Review or service level agreement with Legal | Nicole Smith September
to ensure an efficient and effective legal 2016

service can be provided
I.  HRA - efficiencies / SLA
II.  General fund process




Housing Priorities and Workplan
Housing Service Plan Report 2017/18

a

g

[-T:]

9

a

Month <
April 7 50 3 60
May 7 50 3 60
™ June 7 50 3 60
&  [|July 7 50 3 60
August 7 50 3 60
September 6 49 5 60
October 5 47 8 60
November 0
December 0
© January 0
g February 0
N [March 0

April

l B Yet To Start
' In Progress
H Completed

July August

I Bl Yet To Start '
In Progress
B Completed . '

October Novemb:

Page 459



M Yet To Start
7 In Progress

B Completed

January Februar

M Yet To Start
7 In Progress

B Completed

Page 460



M Yet To Start
@ In Progress

B Completed

June

M Yet To Start
7 In Progress

H Completed

W Yet To Start
@ In Progress

H Completed

September

M Yet To Start
7 In Progress

H Completed

er

December

Page 461




B Yet To Start B Yet To Start

In Progress In Progress

B Completed H Completed
March

B Yet To Start M Yet To Start

In Progress In Progress

B Completed B Completed

Page 462




Agenda Iltem 16

Wiltshire Council
Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service
Cabinet Member: Councillor Richard Clewer

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

This report outlines the business case for extending the Council’s Direct Labour
Organisation (DLO) to take on additional work to ensure the Council’'s housing
stock is maintained effectively.

Wiltshire Council owns 5,746 properties, mostly in the old Salisbury District
Council area, along with over 1,300 garages, un-adopted roads, land and
communal spaces. There are 4 major contracts relating to the repair of council
housing stock which come up either for an extension or to an end in March
2020. In addition there are a number of other minor contracts relating to repairs
and maintenance services and some services that currently do not form part of
a contract and are tendered or quotes sought as and when those repair issues
arise. These contracts currently operate alongside the DLO.

At the Cabinet meeting on 14" March 2017, the following was resolved:

1. To approve, in principle, the process that will be followed in order to deliver
the required outcomes, including the various stages that will be undertaken
and how suitable contractors can be selected.

2. To note that all options for delivery of services considered within the report
in Appendix 1, in light of the report’s conclusions, agrees in principle:

i.  To progress with the enlargement of the DLO to take on all responsive
repairs and voids work, and look to recruit a new managerial structure to
lead and co-ordinate this service

ii.  To extend the current partnership contracts with lan Williams, British
Gas and Wessex Electrical for a further two years and then look to
migrate some of these services to the DLO, subject to a further review;
and

iii.  That a further report will be presented to Cabinet in June 2017 with
costings and potential savings in support of the above.

This report addresses (iii) above presenting the costings and potential savings
in support of (i) above. There have been delays to presenting this report for

> Page 463



decision due to leadership changes within the housing service.

A further review will be carried out after implementation of (i) to determine the
extent to which the DLO should be further enlarged to deliver additional works
currently outsourced as detailed in (ii) above and a further report presented
within the next 12 months.

Proposals

1. To agree the business case for progressing with the enlargement of the DLO to
take on all responsive repairs and voids work.

2. That authority be delegated to the Director of Housing and Commercial
Development to agree staffing and contractual changes required to deliver the
responsive repairs and voids service by the DLO with effect from April 2019.

Reason for Proposals

On average Wiltshire Council plans to spend around £12 - £14m from the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA), both capital and revenue, each year on the
repair and maintenance of the housing stock. This includes all emergency and
day to day repairs, works to void properties, gas servicing, electrical testing, lift
maintenance, as well as elemental replacements, such as kitchens, bathrooms
and insulation, to continue to meet the Decent Home Standard.

The majority of this work is currently outsourced to contractors (value c.£13m)
with just under £1m being directly delivered by the Council’s Direct Labour
Organisation.

The key reasons for the proposal for the DLO to take on a greater share of the
services are;

e Minimising the risk of contractor failure and the knock-on impact on our
residents

e Developing a more commercial approach to the delivery of repairs and
maintenance services in-house in line with the sector

e Generating savings and avoiding paying profit margins to external
organisations

e Capitalising on the higher performance already being delivered by our
DLO

e Enabling opportunities to improve management of the supply chain for
materials and plant as well as fleet and IT

e Providing flexibility to change and innovate in response to national and
local policies changes and demands, without the need for protracted
negotiations with external providers.

Alistair Cunningham
Corporate Director

> Page 464




Wiltshire Council

Cabinet

3 July 2018

Subject: Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service

Cabinet Member: Councillor Richard Clewer

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. This report outlines the Business Case for enlarging the Direct Labour
Organisation (DLO) to take on additional work for the repair and maintenance
of the Council’s Housing Stock enabling the Council to continue to deliver a
quality Repairs and Maintenance (R&M) service for the upkeep and
improvement of the Council’s Housing Stock for the next 30 years

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2. The delivery of new R&M service arrangements should deliver the following
from the Council’s Business Plan:

a.

Protect those who are most vulnerable — the nature of our housing service
is that it is there for those people who are least able to afford to house
themselves and the delivery of effective R&M services is the key issue
when it comes to resident satisfaction

Boost the local economy - the employment of local labour and creation of
more effective agreements with local materials and equipment suppliers
will lead to the creation of new apprenticeships, traineeships and wider job
creation within Wiltshire

Bring communities together to enable and support them to do more for
themselves — as part of the transformation of services service recipients
will be empowered to help shape and agree the future of R&M services
and deliver cost efficiencies

An _innovative and effective Council — enlarging the DLO will enable the
service to behave more commercially, offering better value for money,
making best use of technology and delivering improved performance and
better outcomes for customers

Background

3. Wiltshire Council owns 5,746 housing properties, mostly in the old Salisbury
District Council area, along with just over 1,300 garages, unadopted roads,
land and communal spaces and the majority of the contracts for the upkeep of
these come to an end or up for potential extension in March 2020.

The proposal contained in report submitted to Cabinet on 14" March 2017

outlined how the R&M Steering Group, made up of members, managers, staff

Page 465



and residents, had progressed through a series of stages in order to propose
the agreed most suitable and affordable delivery vehicle for delivering repairs
and maintenance to the Housing stock.

Cabinet agreed in principle:

I. To progress with the enlargement of the DLO to take on all responsive
repairs and voids work, and look to recruit a new managerial structure
to lead and co-ordinate this service

ii. To extend the current partnership contracts with lan Williams, British
Gas and Wessex Electrical for a further two years and then look to
migrate some of these services to the DLO, subject to a further review;

lii. That a further report will be presented to Cabinet in June 2017 with
costings and potential savings in support of the above

There have been delays to presenting this report for decision due to
leadership changes within the housing service. However, this report now
delivers the third resolution and focuses on the first resolution to enlarge the
DLO with effect from April 2019 (Phase 1). A further review (Phase 2) will be
undertaken to determine the scope for bringing additional services in-house
and a report will be subsequently brought to the Cabinet once these contracts
have been reviewed.

Main Considerations for the Council

7.

10.

11.

Cost savings. Details of the anticipated cost and efficiency savings that are
achievable through the proposed changes are summarised below and in
Appendix A.

Timescales. The main contract delivering services alongside the DLO has
been extended to March 2020 with a break clause from March 2019. It is
proposed that the contract is terminated at the end of March 2019 and that the
DLO takes responsibility for full delivery of responsive repairs and voids
services from April 2019. A proposed programme for these changes is
attached as Appendix B

Implementation. A skilled and motivated management team will be required to

drive change and the transformation of this service. There will be staffing
changes required as a result of this proposal and a review of role descriptions
will take place including the management roles to ensure the post holders
have the skills and experience required to deliver the service.

Risk Assessment A draft risk register is attached as Appendix C

Cost Analysis (Appendix A)

12.

Over the last 20 years there have been some major swings in the trend of
setting up or enlarging in-house DLOs (Direct Labour Organisations) to
complete repairs and maintenance services in the Housing Sector. The 2010
collapse of mainstream contractors such as Connaught and ROK left a lot of
housing organisations struggling to find alternative providers to fulfil planned

Page 466



and responsive maintenance works on their properties and highlighted the risk
of reliance on contracted out services.

13. All the main housing providers in Wiltshire and neighbouring areas have DLOs

14.

15.

16.

17.

or commercial wings within their group structure to provide most of the main
repair and maintenance works with only some elements of work still
outsourced. Most new build work is still currently outsourced but some larger
housing providers are also stepping into this arena too.

At present some 93% of the value of work for repairs and maintenance to
housing stock is outsourced and within this there is an average annual profit
margin paid by Council of over £400k, which could be reinvested back into the
stock. The proposals in this report would move this to 83% still being
externally resourced over the next 2 years but then decreasing further to
around 40% from 2020. This could potentially deliver some savings of £2-7m
back into the HRA Business Plan over 30 years.

A study by the Guardian newspaper found that DLOs were on average 10%
cheaper than using a Contractor and DLO performance for completing
responsive repairs on time was 3% faster than using a contractor. However,
achieving this relies on good support networks such as new technology and
the effective management of supplies and materials, including vehicle stock
and scheduling of works. It is intended that the DLO will be developed as a
commercial organisation that could stand alone as a contractor in the future
and potentially offer out services to other organisations. The intention is to
build resilience and deliver at least 5-8% savings, this would deliver an
additional £4 -19m savings into the HRA Business Plan over 30 years.

Appendix A compares the average cost of a repair under the MD contract to
the average cost of repair through the DLO based on 2017-2018 actual data
to provide a comparison between the two delivery models and indicates the
level of savings that could be achieved for Phase 1. It is proposed that an
annual report will be taken to the Housing Board to detail the actual costs and
savings, following implementation.

It is anticipated that further savings will be generated from 2020 with more
services delivered by the DLO increasing opportunities for negotiating volume
supply chain management, scheduling works effectively and attracting and
retaining a skilled and motivated workforce.

Rate of Change (Appendix B)

18.

19.

In order to simplify the transformation process and minimise risk, it is proposed
to split the transformation into Phase 1 and Phase 2. In Phase 1, it is
proposed that the only service brought in-house from March 2019 would be
the services which are undertaken through contract with MD Building Services
Ltd. This contract covers voids works and some responsive repairs.

Given the nature of works undertaken already by the DLO, there is

considerable duplication with both a contractor and the DLO carrying out the
same types of repairs and therefore our operatives will not require any

Page 467



additional training to perform in these areas, however, additional resources will
be required and there is the likelihood of some TUPE transfers of staff from
MD to the DLO to help bridge this gap in resources.

20. In line with the March decision by Cabinet, contracts with lan Williams, Wessex
Electrical and British Gas have been extended for a further 2 years to March
2020. Prior to March 2020 a further report will be submitted to Cabinet
outlining which elements of these contracts could be brought in house as part
of Phase 2 of the transformation programme.

Management Approach

21. It is intended that management roles will be reviewed to ensure there are
sufficiently skilled and experienced staff in post to drive forward the growth
and efficiency of the DLO. The housing service has a robust IT structure and
performance dashboard and is well placed to attract the required candidates to
fill any vacancies created.

Risk Management (Appendix C)

22. A summary of the risks to the proposed enlargement of the DLO and the steps
proposed to minimise the impact these could have on the Council is attached
at Appendix C.

Overview and Scrutiny Engagement

23. This report was discussed at the Environment Select Committee on 13" June
2017 and Tuesday 26" June 2018 and reviewed by the Chair of Environment
Select Committee on 5" June 2018.

Safeguarding Implications

24. All staff entering people’s homes will be appropriately checked and vetted to
ensure that our residents are safe within their homes. In addition, we will work
with our in-house staff to ensure continuous training, awareness and reporting
of safeguarding issues

Public Health Implications

25. Delivery of effective and efficient R&M Services will ensure the safety of our
residents in their homes, whilst ensuring compliance on the part of the
Council, particularly on key issues such as fire, gas, electric and water safety
and asbestos. In addition, good quality homes assist with ensuring tenants
health is maintained effectively.

Procurement Implications
26. Any procurement requirements resulting from the strategy set out in this report

will be undertaken in accordance with Council Procurement and Contracts
Regulations with support from the Strategic Procurement Hub. The Strategic

> Page 468



Procurement Hub is committed to support to ensure successful service
transformation.

27. Post transformation the procurement team will continue to drive service
innovation by helping to develop opportunities for efficiencies within the
housing service.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

28. There are no major equalities impacts from this report as the services are for
all of our residents, both tenants and leaseholders, and will be delivered in a
considered, non-discriminatory manner

29. As part of these proposals an Equality Impact Assessment has been
completed to ensure no adverse impact on any groups.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

30. Energy Efficiency will be considered as part of the void inspection and any
resultant works will be delivered. The operatives will also be trained, alongside
some of our residents, on energy awareness so that the ‘Cost in Use’ of our
properties is reduced.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken

31. Cabinet has already approved the enlargement of the DLO in principle subject
to costs and savings being presented back to Cabinet. If this work is not
progressed other options will need to be considered for the delivery of the
service when the current repairs and maintenance contract terminates in
March 2020.

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks

32. Arrisk assessment is attached at Appendix C
Financial Implications

33. In Appendix A the average price per repair has been calculated based on
2017/2018 actual cost to allow the comparison between the current model
using MD contractor and DLO to the proposed model in phase 1 of
growing the DLO.

Assumptions have been made regarding the future potential costs and
savings that could be incurred/generated from the revised model, they
include:

e Additional costs in relation to central overheads for increased staff
and operational requirement.

¢ Additional costs for Management and Admin support.

e Savings of 10% for improved supply chain management

> Page 469



e Savings of 5% for efficiency gains through improved scheduling
e Savings of 4% for contract management

These assumptions are based on national and internal data and are
considered to be a prudent estimate.

Overall the model is showing that based on 2017/2018 actual costs and
factoring in the above assumptions a full year saving of £326,000 could be
achieved by increasing the DLO and undertaking void and responsive
repairs in house rather than outsourcing them to contractor MD Building
Services Ltd.

Actual costs and savings can be monitored and evaluated, following
implementation.

The Council will take on the risk of employing more staff in the DLO rather
than operating through a contract, this will include future financial risks if
operational model changes in the future around Pension liability and
redundancy this needs to be considered when making this decision.

Legal Implications

34. This is a report updating Cabinet on information relating to the in principle

decision taken by Cabinet on 14 March 2017 to progress development of the
DLO should due diligence be satisfied.

35. There is nothing contained within the due diligence to date which would negate

the proposed direction of travel adopted by Cabinet on 14 March 2017.

36. At the point when due diligence is completed a formal decision will need to be

37.

taken as to whether to bring these contracts in house. Should that decision be
made then TUPE, as well as any other relevant legal implications, will need to
be considered.

Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006
(TUPE)

() Whilst it is difficult to identify the detail as we are still in the due diligence stage

it is likely that the TUPE regulations are likely to apply to the enlargement of
the DLO as the Council is proposing to insource the services currently being
provided by contractors. TUPE will apply if within the contractors’
organisations there is an organised grouping of employees whose principal
purpose is delivering services under the contract with Wiltshire Council. The
employment of employees of the contractor who are wholly or mainly assigned
to the Wiltshire Council contract will transfer to the employment of Wiltshire
Council.

(iTherefore this may mean that direct recruitment of or procurement of required

skills may not be as extensive if suitably qualified staff are to transfer from the
providers. The employees who are transferred under TUPE will transfer to the
Council on their existing terms and conditions of employment.

Page 470



(iAs the transferring staff will become employees of the Council they will be
eligible to join and will be automatically enrolled into the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). There will be an ongoing financial cost to the
Council in terms of the Employer contributions it will have to make to the
LGPS in respect of those transferring staff who become members of the
LGPS.

(iv) If TUPE does not apply or applies to an insufficient number of resources then
a recruitment campaign will be required.

Options Considered

38. The alternative to agreeing to increase resources within the DLO to enable a
higher percentage of repairs and maintenance services to the council’s
housing stock to be provided in house is that the majority of services will
continue to be outsourced and be provided by external contractors.

39. The implications of the option of continuing to provide services as we do
now compared to implementing the proposal to enlarge the DLO are explained
in Appendices A & C(cost analysis and risk assessment)

Conclusions

40. The proposed new delivery model for the Repairs and Maintenance
services will ensure the Council’s stock is maintained and improved in line
with the Council’s statutory obligations and ensures tenants live in good
quality homes with high quality services.

Report Author:

Janet O’'Brien, Head of Housing Strategy & Assets
Email. Janet.obrien@wiltshire.gov.uk
Tel. 01249 706550

15t June 2018
Appendices

As detailed in the agenda, the following appendices have been made
exempt from publication:

A. Cost comparison
B. Project Timescales
C. Risk Assessment

Background Papers

The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report:
None

> Page 471


mailto:Janet.obrien@wiltshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 473



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 475



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 477



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes
	240 Public participation and Questions from Councillors

	6 Emergency Stopping Places Strategy
	Emergency Stopping Places Strategy - Appx

	7 Site Disposal
	Appendix 1 - Resident Engagement Feedback
	Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment
	Appendix 3 - Health Impact Assessment
	Appendix 5 - Options Appraisal
	Appendix 4 - Risk Register

	8 Wiltshire Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document - Proposed Submission Materials
	Appendix 6 Equalities Impact Assessment May 2018 (amended 19.6.18)
	Blank Page

	Report on consultation on proposed changes 15th May - 11th June 2018 250618
	Appendix 1 Table of responses from Wiltshire Councillors and parish and town councils 250618
	1. Crudwell Parish Council
	Crudwell Parish Council3
	Crudwell Parish Council4

	1a. Crudwell Parish Council
	Crudwell Parish Council1
	Crudwell Parish Council2

	2. Codford PC
	3. Westbury Town Council
	4. Seend Parish Council
	5. Trowbridge Town Council
	5a. Trowbridge Town Council
	6. Durrington Town Council
	7. YK PC
	8 and 9. North Bradley and Markey Lavington Parish Councils
	10. Marlborough Town Council
	11. Warminster Town Council
	10 Warminster 1
	10 Warminster 2
	Part B – Please use a separate sheet for each representation
	Part B – Please use a separate sheet for each representation
	Part B – Please use a separate sheet for each representation

	10 Warminster 3

	12. Marlborough NPSG
	13. Laverstock and Ford PC
	14. Hilperton Parish Council
	15. Salisbury City Council
	16. Cllr Ernie Clark
	17. Purton PC
	18. Cllr Ian McLennan_Redacted

	Appendix 2 Table of responses from members of the public
	Appendix 3 Maps showing proposed changes to settlement boundaries 250618
	Seend
	Winterslow pdf
	codford pdf


	9 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
	LGO  Final report - pdf version (004)
	LGO Recommendations tracker

	10 Annual Governance Statement
	DRAFT Annual Governance Statement 201718 v1.2

	11 Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q4 2017/18
	Appendix 1 Startegic Risk Register Q4 2017_18v2

	12 Families & Children's Services Social Work Capacity
	13 Wiltshire Council Adoption Service: 2017-18 Year End Report
	14 Proposed Changes to the Senior Management Structure
	Appendix 1 Proposed senior management structure

	15 Wiltshire Council's Housing Board Annual Report
	Enc. 1 for Wiltshire Council's Housing Board Annual Report

	16 Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service
	19 Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service (Part ii)
	Appendix B - Project timescales
	Appendix C - Risk Register




